
A G E N D A  

WORK SESSION 

City of Moberly 

February 06, 2023 

6:00 PM 
  

 

Requests, Ordinances, and Miscellaneous 
1. An Ordinance Authorizing The City Of Moberly, Missouri To Issue Its Taxable Industrial Revenue 

Bonds (Equipmentshare.Com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment And Distribution Facility Project) 

Series 2023, In A Principal Amount Not To Exceed $55,000,000, For The Purpose Of Providing 

Funds To Pay The Costs Of Acquiring,  Improving And Equipping A Facility For An Industrial 

Development Project In The City; Approving A Plan For An Industrial Development Project And 

Costs-Benefits Analysis For The Project; And Authorizing The City To Enter Into Certain 

Agreements And Take Certain Other Actions In Connection With The Project And The Issuance Of 

The Bonds. 

2. A Discussion Regarding The Purchase Of A JetVac For Public Utilities From Coe Equipment Inc. 

3. A Discussion Regarding Moberly State Revolving Fund Applications Submittal To DNR And 

Authorizing The City Manager To Submit The Applications. 

4. A Discussion Regarding Moberly State Regional Incentive Grant Application Submittal To DNR 

And Authorizing The City Manager To Submit The Application. 

5. A Request From Lori Turk To Hold The Annual Mother’s Day 5k To Raise Money For Families 

Battling Cancer on May 14, 2023. 

6. A Resolution Approving Equipment Usage Agreement Between Burrell Health And The Police 

Department. 

7. Review Of The 2023 Fireworks Agreement With J&M Display. 

8. An Ordinance Adopting Article III To Chapter 20 Of The City Code Providing For No Smoking Of 

Marijuana In A Public Place Or Meeting. 

9. A Resolution Accepting A Quit Claim Deed From Marian E. Cumberlander For Real Estate 

Located At 1204 Quinn Street. 

10. Appointment To The Historic Preservation Commission. 

11. An Application For Re-Zoning Submitted By Devin Snodgrass On Behalf Of Kal Cleavinger For 

The Property Located At 201 W Hinton Ave And The Lots To The North. They Are Requesting 

These Be Zoned N-1/PD (Nonurban/Planned Development District). These Locations Are Currently 

Zoned R-3 (Multi-Family Dwelling District). 

12. An Application For A Planned Development Submitted By Devin Snodgrass On Behalf Of Kal 

Cleavinger For The Property Located At 201 W Hinton Ave And The Lots To The North. 

13. A Discussion Regarding A Tannehill Water Line Project Change Order and Increase in Contract 

Costs. 

14. On-Call Professional Services Agreement With Bartlett And West Expires March 3, 2023 And 

They Want To Extent The Agreement Another Three (3) Years. 

15. Discussion Of Task Order #19 With Bartlett & West Professional Services For Shelter/Restroom 

Building At Kiwanis Park. 

16. A Resolution Of The Council Of The City Of Moberly Approving A Sidewalk Repair Services 

Agreement; And Providing Further Authority. 

17. Discussion Regarding Mid-Am Wanting Semi-Truck Stacking In The Right-Of-Way Of Omar 

Bradley Dr. 

1



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Authorizing The City Of Moberly, Missouri To Issue Its Taxable 

Industrial Revenue Bonds (Equipmentshare.Com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment 

And Distribution Facility Project) Series 2023, In A Principal Amount Not To Exceed 

$55,000,000, For The Purpose Of Providing Funds To Pay The Costs Of 

Acquiring,  Improving And Equipping A Facility For An Industrial Development 

Project In The City; Approving A Plan For An Industrial Development Project And 

Costs-Benefits Analysis For The Project; And Authorizing The City To Enter Into 

Certain Agreements And Take Certain Other Actions In Connection With The Project 

And The Issuance Of The Bonds. 

  

Summary: The City is considering the issuance of bonds under Chapter 100 RSMo. to 

provide property tax abatement to EquipmentShare.com in connection with the 

project located at 1855 Robertson Road.  The City has no payment obligation 

on the bonds.  The Ordinance approves the Plan for Industrial Development 

and Costs/Benefits Analysis previously distributed to the impacted taxing 

districts and authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary bond 

documents and closing documents.  As part of the transaction, the City will 

also take title to the project site and the personal property acquired by 

EquipmentShare.com for the project, which is necessary to provide tax 

abatement.  All costs of issuance of this project will be paid by 

EquipmentShare.com. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Direct staff to bring to the February 21st Council meeting for final approval  

  

Fund Name:   

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:   

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report    x   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
      Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

2

WS #1.



BILL NO. __________                            ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO ISSUE 
ITS TAXABLE INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. 
MANUFACTURING, REFURBISHMENT AND DISTRIBUTION FACILITY PROJECT) 
SERIES 2023, IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $55,000,000, FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO PAY THE COSTS OF 
ACQUIRING,  IMPROVING AND EQUIPPING A FACILITY FOR AN INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY; APPROVING A PLAN FOR AN 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT AND COSTS-BENEFITS ANALYSIS FOR 
THE PROJECT; AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO CERTAIN 
AGREEMENTS AND TAKE CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE PROJECT AND THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Moberly, Missouri (the “City”) is authorized under the provisions of 

Article VI, Section 27(b) of the Missouri Constitution, as amended, and Sections 100.010 to 100.200, 

inclusive of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (collectively, the “Acts”), to purchase, 

construct, extend and improve certain projects (as defined in the Acts), and to issue industrial 

development revenue bonds for the purpose of providing funds to finance the costs of such projects 

and to lease or sell such projects to others, and to pledge the payments, revenues and receipts from 

such projects as security for the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest 

on such bonds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 100.050 of the Acts, the City has prepared a plan for an 

industrial development project attached as Exhibit A to and incorporated by reference in this 

Ordinance (the “Plan”) which calls for the acquisition and leasing of certain property and the 

renovation and equipping of certain real and personal property on an approximately 16 acre site within 

the City known and numbered as 1855 Robertson Road (the “Property”), which activities are 

expected to facilitate the renovation of existing buildings and improvements on the Property 

including, without limitation, the establishment of a construction equipment refurbishment, rental, 

sales, service and tracking facility (collectively, the “Project”) for EquipmentShare.com Inc., a 

Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and the Plan contemplates the issuance by the City in 

multiple series or endorsements of its taxable industrial development revenue bonds in a maximum 

aggregate principal amount not to exceed $55,000,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of completing 

the Project as further described in the Plan, all in accordance with and pursuant to the Acts; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 100.059 of the Acts, the Council of the City (the “Council”) 

has provided written notice of the proposed Plan and Project to certain affected taxing entities not less 

than Twenty (20) days prior to the Council’s consideration of the Plan and Project and in such notice, 

such taxing entities were invited to submit comments to the Council which were fairly and duly 

considered and a public hearing on the Plan and Project was conducted by the Council on the date 

hereof; and  

 

 WHEREAS, after closing the public hearing, and upon due consideration, the Council now 

wishes to approve the Plan and the Project, and in connection therewith, the Council hereby finds and 

determines that the foregoing activities and undertakings are within the scope of the powers of the 

City, and the Council has further found and determined that such activities and undertakings are for 

a public purpose; and 

3

WS #1.



2 
 

 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable in connection with the Project and the issuance of 

the Bonds that the City (i) approve the acceptance of the Property by the City from the Company; (ii) 

approve the leasing of the Property and the Project to the Company upon terms which will be 

sufficient to enable the City to pay principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the 

same become due and payable, all in furtherance of the public purposes of the Acts; (iii) enter into 

certain documents, including: (a) a certain development agreement in substantially the form attached 

as Exhibit B to this Ordinance (the “Development Agreement”) with the Company and the Moberly 

Area Economic Development Corporation (the “EDC”) providing for, among other things, the 

implementation of the Project and the payment of certain amounts in lieu of taxes, (b) a bond purchase 

agreement in substantially the form attached as Exhibit C to this Ordinance (the “Purchase 

Agreement”) by and between the City and the Company, as bond purchaser, (c) a lease purchase  

agreement in substantially the form attached as Exhibit D to this Ordinance (the “Lease”) by and 

between the City as “lessor,” and the Company as “lessee”, and (d) a trust indenture in substantially 

the form attached as Exhibit E to this Ordinance (the “Indenture”) between the City and BOKF, 

N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”); and (iv) to accept the conveyance to the City of the Property by 

acceptance of the Special Warranty Deed attached as Exhibit F to and incorporated by reference in 

this Ordinance (the “Deed”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the Acts, this Ordinance and the instruments and documents 

specified herein, the Bonds and interest thereon shall not constitute an indebtedness of the City within 

the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory limitation and shall not constitute or 

give rise to a pecuniary liability of the City or a charge against the City’s general credit or taxing 

powers; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. The Recitals to this Ordinance including, without limitation, the findings and 

determinations therein, are hereby incorporated by reference in their entirety in this Ordinance as 

if set forth in full at this place. 

 

SECTION 2. Capitalized terms used and not defined in this Ordinance shall have the meanings 

ascribed to them in the Indenture. 

 

SECTION 3. The Council hereby finds and determines that the acquisition, renovation, 

improvement and equipping of the Project and the jobs created thereby will promote the economic 

well-being and industrial development of the City, the taxing entities in whose jurisdictions the 

Project is located, and such other affected taxing entities, and that the issuance of the Bonds to pay 

a portion of the costs of the Project will be in furtherance of the public purposes set forth in the 

Acts, all as further set forth in the Plan.  As such, the Plan and the Project are hereby approved. 

 

SECTION 4. The City Council hereby finds, determines and declares that the adoption of this 

Ordinance, the actions hereby authorized, and the execution and delivery of the documents herein 

authorized and approved is necessary to carry out the powers, purposes and duties expressly 

provided in the Acts and each and every matter and thing as to which provision is made herein and 

4

WS #1.



3 
 

 

therein is necessary to carry out and effectuate the purposes of the City in accordance with the 

Acts, and the powers of the City herein exercised are in each case discharged in accordance with 

the provisions of the Acts and in furtherance of the purposes of the City. 

 

SECTION 5. The City shall issue the Bonds but only in the manner provided in the Indenture, 

for the purpose of providing funds to finance the Project.  The City and the Trustee shall deposit 

and apply and use the proceeds of the Bonds as set forth in the Indenture.  The Bonds shall be 

issued in such form, mature on such dates, bear and pay interest at such rates and on such dates, 

be subject to redemption prior to maturity and contain such other terms and provisions as set forth 

in the Indenture.  The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City by the Mayor under the official 

seal of the City attested by the City Clerk.  The signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk may be 

manual or facsimile.  The official seal of the City may be actually impressed or imprinted or 

otherwise reproduced thereon by facsimile.  No Bond shall be issued unless first authenticated by 

the Trustee, to be evidenced by the manual signature of an authorized signatory of the Trustee on 

such Bond.  The Bonds shall be a limited obligation of the City, payable solely from the revenues 

from the Lease as pledged under the Indenture.  The Bonds and interest thereon shall never be or 

be considered a general obligation of the City or an indebtedness of the City, the County of 

Randolph, or of the State of Missouri or any subdivision thereof within the meaning of any State 

constitutional provision or statutory limitation and shall not constitute or give rise to a pecuniary 

liability of any of them or a charge against their general credit or taxing powers. 

SECTION 6. The City has negotiated for the sale of the Bonds to the Company at the price set forth 

in the Purchase Agreement.  Given the purposes of the financing and the involvement of the City 

therewith, it is the determination of the Council that the Bonds shall be hereby awarded to the 

Company at the price aforesaid with delivery to follow in the manner, at the time or times and subject 

to the conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement and this Ordinance.  As evidence thereof, the 

Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed for and in the name of the City to execute 

and deliver the Purchase Agreement in substantially the form of Exhibit C presented herewith, with 

such insertions therein changes or corrections thereto as shall be approved by the Mayor consistent 

with this Ordinance and the terms of the Acts, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence 

of the approval of any such insertions and corrections. 

 

SECTION 7. The terms and provisions of the Development Agreement, the Lease and the 

Indenture are hereby approved.  The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized for and in 

the name of the City to execute, affix with the official seal of the City and deliver such documents 

in the substantially the forms of Exhibit B, Exhibit D and Exhibit E, respectively,  presented 

herewith, or with such insertions therein changes or corrections thereto as shall be approved by the 

Mayor consistent with this Ordinance and the terms of the Acts, the execution thereof to constitute 

conclusive evidence of the approval of any such insertions and corrections. 

 

SECTION 8. The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized for and in the name of the City 

to execute the Bonds in the manner authorized by Section 5 of this Ordinance.  Subject to the terms 

and conditions of the Purchase Agreement and the Development Agreement, the City shall deliver 

the Bonds to the Company as purchaser against payment of the purchase price therefor. 

 

5

WS #1.



4 
 

 

SECTION 9. The Mayor and other appropriate officials of the City are hereby authorized and 

directed to accept the conveyance from the Company of the Property as set forth in the Deed; and 

to acknowledge and cause to be recorded in the office of the Randolph County Recorder the Deed 

and any and all such instruments necessary to effectuate such conveyance, and to take such further 

actions and execute such further instruments and may be necessary or convenient to obtain fee title 

to comprise the Property. 

SECTION 10. The selection of Gilmore & Bell, P.C. as Bond Counsel in connection with the 

issuance of the Bonds, pursuant to the terms of the engagement letter attached hereto as Exhibit 

G, is hereby confirmed and approved.  The selection of BOKF, N. A. as Trustee under the 

Indenture in connection with the issuance of the Bonds is hereby approved.  Bond Counsel’s 

issuance fee and the Trustee’s closing fee are hereby approved as Costs of Issuance of the Bonds. 

The City shall and the Mayor and the City Clerk and other appropriate officers, agents and 

employees of the City are hereby each further authorized to execute, publish, file and record such 

other documents, instruments, notices (including, without limitation the Annual Report filed with 

the State of Missouri Department of Economic Development) and records and to take such other 

actions and execute and deliver such other documents, certificates, and instruments as shall be 

necessary or desirable to accomplish the purposes of this Ordinance and to comply with and 

perform the obligations of the City under the Bonds, the Development Agreement, the Lease, and 

the Indenture.   

SECTION 11. All exhibits referenced in this Ordinance are hereby incorporated in this Ordinance 

by this reference as if such exhibits were fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 12. The portions of this Ordinance shall be severable.  In the event that any portion of 

this Ordinance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining portions 

of this Ordinance are valid, unless the court finds the valid portions of this Ordinance are so 

essential and inseparably connected with and dependent upon the void portion that it cannot be 

presumed that the City Council would have enacted the valid portions without the invalid ones, or 

unless the court finds that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are incapable of 

being executed in accordance with the legislative intent. 

SECTION 13. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and 

adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the officer presiding 

at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri on this 21st 

day of February, 2023. 

 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Presiding Officer at Meeting 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

6

WS #1.



5 
 

 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk  

7

WS #1.



EXHIBIT A 

PLAN FOR AN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

AND 

COSTS/BENEFITS ANALYSIS  

 

8

WS #1.



EXHIBIT B 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

9

WS #1.



EXHIBIT C 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 

 

10

WS #1.



EXHIBIT D 

LEASE 

 

  

 

11

WS #1.



EXHIBIT E 

INDENTURE 

 

 

12

WS #1.



EXHIBIT F 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

 

 

13

WS #1.



EXHIBIT G 

BOND COUNSEL ENGAGEMENT LETTER 

 

 

14

WS #1.



CERTIFICATE REGARDING BOND ORDINANCE 
 

I, the undersigned, as duly appointed and serving City Clerk of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri, do hereby certify that the attached including Exhibits A, B, C, D, E, F and G thereto, is 

a true and accurate copy of Ordinance No. _____ of the City approving, among other things, the 

issuance by the City of its Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond (EquipmentShare.com Inc. 

Manufacturing, Refurbishment and Distribution Facility Project) Series 2023 in the maximum 

aggregate principal amount of $55,000,000 as the same appears of record in the Office of the City 

Clerk and said Ordinance was duly passed and approved by the Council of the City at a duly 

noticed meeting held on February 21, 2023 and has not been amended, modified or repealed and 

remains in full force and effect as of the date set forth below. 

 

 

Dated:  ____________, 2023 

 

 

 

             

      ______________________________________ 

      Shannon Hance, City Clerk  

      City of Moberly, Missouri 

 

 

15

WS #1.



 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 

(EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. MANUFACTURING, REFURBISHMENT AND 

DISTRIBUTION FACILITY PROJECT) 

 
 

 

 

 

PLAN FOR 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

AND 

COSTS/BENEFITS ANALYSIS 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16

WS #1.



 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

(EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC.  MANUFACTURING, REFURBISHMENT AND 

DISTRIBUTION FACILITY PROJECT) 
 

PLAN FOR INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

AND 

COSTS/BENEFITS ANALYSIS 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

                  PAGE NO. 

 
I. Industrial Development Plan .................................................................................................. 1 

II. Parties ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

III. Description of the Project ........................................................................................................ 2 

IV. Estimated Cost of the Project ................................................................................................. 5 

V. Statement of Source of Funds to be Expended for the Project ............................................ 5 

VI. Statement of the Terms Upon Which the Facilities to be Provided by the Project are 

to be Leased or Otherwise Disposed of by the Municipality ................................................ 5 

VII. Statement Identifying Each School District, Community College District, County, 

City or Emergency Service District Affected by Such Project Except Property 

Assessed by the State Tax Commission Pursuant to Chapters 151 and 153, RSMo. ......... 6 

VIII. Most Recent Equalized Assessed Valuation of the Real Property and Personal 

Property Included in the Project ............................................................................................ 7 

IX. Estimate of the Equalized Assessed Valuation of the Real Property and Personal 

Property Included in the Project after Development ........................................................... 7 

X. An Analysis of the Costs and Benefits of the Project on Each School District, 

Community College District, County, City and Emergency Service District ..................... 8 

XI. Identification of any Payments In Lieu of Taxes Expected to be Made by Any Lessee 

of the Project, and the Disposition of any such Payments by the Municipality ............... 11 

XII. Conclusion .............................................................................................................................. 13 

Attachment A – Summary of Key Assumptions and Sources 
Exhibit A – The Property – Legal Description 
Exhibit B – The Project Location 
Exhibit C – Summary of Project Revenues 
Exhibit D – Estimated Total Tax Revenue with No Project (Real and Personal Property) 
Exhibit E – Projected Real Property Tax Revenue With Abatement 
Exhibit F – Projected Personal Property Tax Revenue With Abatement 

 

17

WS #1.



 

PLAN FOR INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

AND 

COSTS/BENEFITS ANALYSIS 
 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

(EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. MANUFACTURING, REFURBISHMENT AND 

DISTRIBUTION FACILITY PROJECT) 
 

 

I. Industrial Development Plan 

 

Pursuant to section 100.020 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, the City of 

Moberly, Missouri (the “City”) enjoys express authority to carry out projects for industrial 

development.  Additionally, the City may issue industrial revenue bonds to facilitate a “project for 

industrial development” under the terms of sections 100.010 to 100.200 of the Revised Statutes of 

Missouri, as amended (the “IDB Act”) and article VI, section 27(b) of the Missouri Constitution 

(together with the IDB Act, the “Acts”).   

 

Under the IDB Act, a “project for industrial development” or “project” is defined as “the 

purchase, construction, extension and improvement of warehouses, distribution facilities, research 

and development facilities, office industries, agricultural processing industries, service facilities 

which provide interstate commerce, and industrial plants, including the real estate either within or 

without the limits of such municipalities, buildings, fixtures, and machinery.”  Pursuant to the 

Acts, the City intends to issue taxable industrial revenue bonds (“Chapter 100 Bonds”) to 

facilitate a proposed industrial development project on behalf of EquipmentShare.com Inc. (the 

“Company”), a Delaware corporation duly authorized to do business in Missouri and having a 

principal office at 5710 Bull Run Drive, Columbia, Missouri 65201. 

 

The IDB Act requires any city proposing to carry out a project for industrial development 

to approve a plan for the proposed project.  Accordingly, the City has caused this plan for an 

industrial development project (this “Plan”) to be prepared pursuant to the Acts to analyze and 

inform certain affected taxing entities of the potential costs and benefits, including the related 

anticipated tax impact on such affected taxing entities, of using Chapter 100 Bonds to facilitate 

abatement of ad valorem real and personal property taxes and exemption from sales and use taxes 

on property purchased for use in or incorporated into the project described below.   

 

II. Parties 

 

The Company.  Founded in 2014, the Company has grown into one of the fastest-growing 

construction equipment sales, rental, and service businesses in the world by integrating its 

proprietary digital tracking and management systems into the rental and retail experience.  In 

addition to providing construction vehicles and equipment, the Company’s software which is 

available to both purchasers and renters allows fleet managers to monitor assets, prevent theft and 

machine misuse, track usage, schedule maintenance, and prevent unplanned downtime.  The 

Company now seeks to expand its operations by renovating recently acquired improved property 

18

WS #1.



-2- 

containing approximately 16 acres within the corporate limits of the City and known and numbered 

as 1855 Robertson Road, all as described in Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated by reference 

in this Plan (the “Property”) as a new construction equipment refurbishing, rental, sales, service 

and tracking facility (collectively, the “Project”). 

 

The City.  The City is a city of the third classification and political subdivision of the State 

of Missouri.  According to the United States Census Bureau, the City’s 2020 population was just 

under 14,000.  The City is the largest city in Randolph County and is located near the center of the 

state, almost equidistant from Kansas City and St. Louis.  The City is located at the intersection of 

two US Highways and rail facilities operated by Norfolk/Southern railroad.  The City’s workforce 

is robust and varied, suitable to a variety of industry and business sectors and offers a diverse skill 

set from highly technical workers to skilled labor to entry-level personnel.  The City and the region 

have one of the lowest costs of labor in the United States. 

 

The EDC.  Moberly Area Economic Development Corporation (the “EDC”) was formed 

in 1988 to facilitate economic development in the City and throughout Randolph County.  The 

EDC is a nonprofit, public/private partnership that works to promote new investment in a three 

county area in an effort to create new jobs, increase the tax base of local municipalities and taxing 

jurisdictions, and diversify the local economy.  Among other activities, the EDC promotes the 

region to site selectors and business leaders and assists the City and other local governments and 

existing business with expansion opportunities. 

 

III. Description of the Project 

 

Pursuant to that certain Development Agreement among the City, the EDC, and the 

Company (the “Development Agreement”), upon the Company’s conveyance of the Property to 

the City, the City will lease the Property back to the Company and the Company will renovate, 

equip, and finance the Project.  More specifically, under a certain Lease Purchase Agreement with 

the City dated as of even date with the Development Agreement (the “Lease”) the Company will 

renovate the existing structure located at 1855 Robertson Road (including costs of acquisition, the 

“Financed Facility”), as depicted on Exhibit B, attached hereto.  In addition, the Company plans 

to acquire and install machinery, equipment, furnishings, hardware and software, robotics and 

special tools, and other personal property with a fair market value of over $44 Million to furnish 

and equip the Financed Facility (collectively, the “Financed Equipment”) as a construction 

equipment refurbishment, rental, sales, service and tracking facility.  It is anticipated that the fully-

realized Project will result in the creation of approximately 150 new full-time or full-time 

equivalent jobs (“FTE Jobs”) with an average annual wage in excess of $46,000. 

 

Under the Development Agreement, beginning in calendar year 2023 and continuing 

through 2028, the City will periodically issue Chapter 100 Bonds, in multiple series (including 

endorsements thereto), in the aggregate maximum principal amount not to exceed Fifty-Five 

Million Dollars ($55,000,000) (collectively, the “Bonds”) for the purpose of providing funds for 

paying the Project costs.  The maximum term of the Bonds (and of any endorsements thereto) shall 

be Twelve (12) years in accordance with the schedule on the page following.  

 

 

19

WS #1.



-3- 

Lease 

Year 

 

Lease Term Start 

Date 1 

  

Abatement 

Year 

 

  

Bond Payment 

#/Due  

1    3/1/2023 2  N/A 1  

2  1/1/2024  1  12/1/24 2  

3  1/1/2025  2  12/1/25 3  

4  1/1/2026  3  12/1/26 4  

5  1/1/2027  4  12/1/27 5  

6  1/1/2028  5  12/1/28 6  

7  1/1/2029  6  12/1/29 7  

8  1/1/2030  7  12/1/30 8  

9  1/1/2031  8  12/1/31 9  

10  1/1/2032  9  12/1/32 10  

11  1/1/2033  10 12/1/33 11  

12  1/1/2034  11 12/1/34 12  
_______________ 

1  The foregoing assumes a single conveyance of the entire Project in one phase, however, in the event the Project will 

be completed in sequential phases, the Lease by its terms ends on the later of (i) December 31, 2034 (12 years 

following the anticipated last date for acceptance by the City of any portion of the Financed Facility or the Financed 

Equipment) or (ii) with respect to each portion of the Bonds represented by an annual endorsement of principal, 

December 1 of that year which is twelve (12) years from the year of such annual endorsement as set forth on the Table 

of Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount on the Bonds, to which an Additional Payment/Principal Amount 

Advanced pertains.  Thus, each portion of the completed Project will obtain a maximum 12 full years of year abatement. 
2  On or about March 1, 2023. 

 

The initial issuance of the Bonds is expected to occur in the first quarter of 2023 and shall 

occur contemporaneous with the conveyance by the Company to the City and the leasing back by 

the City to the Company of the Property.  Bond “proceeds” from the initial issuance shall be used 

to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds and administrative and legal costs of the Project as well as 

initial acquisition costs.  Each subsequent issuance and endorsement to the Bonds required by the 

Project construction schedule or events of force majeure will attend the phasing of renovations to 

the building, site improvements, and furnishing and equipping of the Financed Facility and the 

Financed Equipment to support the Project.  All additional endorsements to the Bonds shall be 

made in amounts corresponding to the costs of the portions of the Project then completed or 

installed, but not previously financed by prior endorsements to the Bonds.   

 

To facilitate the Project, the City will retain fee simple title to the Property.  The City will 

issue the Bonds, and the Company will lease the Property from the City for a term of Twelve (12) 

years beginning on the date of the acceptance by the City of the Property.  Contemporaneous with 

each subsequent endorsement to the Bonds, the City will also acquire (but not more frequently 

than annually) title to all real property improvements at the Financed Facility, and to all Financed 

Equipment as constructed or installed at the Financed Facility and on the Property in furtherance 

of the Project.  Under supplements to the Lease, the City shall lease the applicable portions of the 

Financed Facility and Financed Equipment so acquired to the Company, in each case for a term of 

Twelve (12) years from the date of acquisition.  

20

WS #1.



-4- 

The Company seeks to obtain an initial Eight (8) year exemption from ad valorem taxation 

of One Hundred Percent (100%) of ad valorem taxes imposed on the realty and personalty 

comprising the Project plus an additional Four (4) year exemption from ad valorem taxation of 

Fifty Percent (50%) of ad valorem taxes imposed on the realty and personalty comprising the 

Project.  The City and the Company anticipate that the Property, the Financed Facility and the 

Financed Equipment will be exempt from levies of ad valorem taxes for as long as the City owns 

such property and, accordingly, that the Company shall enjoy property tax abatement on the 

Property and portions of the Financed Facility or Financed Equipment for a period of Twelve (12) 

years after the City has acquired such portions of the Financed Facility or Financed Equipment, as 

applicable.  Pursuant to the Development Agreement, beginning in Year 9 of the Project and for 

every year thereafter during the term of the Lease, the Company shall make payments in lieu of 

taxes (each a “PILOT”) at the rate of fifty percent (50%) of the total real and personal property 

tax due in each such year, all in accordance with the schedule below.  In compliance with section 

100.050.3 of the IDB Act, PILOT amounts in excess of actual costs of Plan administration shall 

immediately upon receipt be disbursed by the City Treasurer to each affected taxing jurisdiction 

in proportion to their current ad valorem tax levies.  In addition, in any year in which the Project 

fails to provide and maintain the target number of FTE Jobs, the Company will be required to make 

a further annual PILOT as additional rent under the Lease, as further described in Section XI of 

this Plan. 

 

Lease 

Year 

 Lease Term Start 

Date 1 

 Abatement 

Year 

 % 

Exemption 

 % PILOT 

Required 2     

1  3/1/2023  1  N/A  -0- 

2  1/1/2024  2  100%  -0- 

3  1/1/2025  3  100%  -0- 

4  1/1/2026  4  100%  -0- 

5  1/1/2027  5  100%  -0- 

6  1/1/2028  6  100%  -0- 

7  1/1/2029  7  100%  -0- 

8  1/1/2030  8  100%  -0- 

9  1/1/2031  9  50%  50% 

10  1/1/2032  10  50%  50% 

11  1/1/2033  11  50%  50% 

12  1/1/2034  12  50%  50% 
_______________ 

1  On or about March 1, 2023. 

2  Whether or not the Project is completed and conveyed in sequential phases, the percentage of PILOTs due in any 

year shall apply to all portions of the Property, the Financed Facility, and the Financed Equipment then accepted and 

held in fee by the City.   Thus each portion of the Project will obtain a maximum 12 year abatement. 

 

Finally, the City will permit the Company to use the City’s tax-exempt status to obtain an 

exemption from certain sales taxes for purchases of qualified building materials and personal 

property to be incorporated into or consumed in the construction of the Project. 

 

21

WS #1.



-5- 

IV. Estimated Cost of the Project 

 

The acquisition of the Financed Facility cost approximately $1,950,000 and real property 

improvements to the Financed Facility are expected to cost $1,877,437.   

 

The acquisition and installation of the Financed Equipment is expected to cost 

$44,894,112.   

 

Values for the existing facility have been provided by the Office of the Randolph County 

Assessor.  Acquisition costs and estimated Project costs for all new investment have been provided 

by the Company.  Neither the City nor the EDC have undertaken any independent verification of 

these amounts.  See also Attachment A to this Plan for relevant assumptions informing these 

estimates. 

 

V. Statement of Source of Funds to be Expended for the Project 

 

The principal source of funds to be expended for the Project will be the issuance of Bonds, 

in an aggregate principal amount equal to: (i) in the case of the initial issuance of the Bonds, the 

costs of issuance of the Bonds including closing costs, fees and charges, together with  and legal 

and administrative costs associated with the documentation of the Project and the required 

conveyances and the acquisition cost of the Property; and (ii) in the case of subsequent issuances 

of Bonds, the “true value in money,” as finally determined in accordance with Missouri law, of 

the applicable portions of the Financed Facility and Financed Equipment together with closing 

costs, fees, and charges associated with each such subsequent issuance and endorsement and 

conveyance of Financed Facility and Financed Equipment.  It is expected that the Company will 

purchase and hold the Bonds and each subsequent endorsement to the Bonds relating to the Project 

in exchange for the Property and applicable portions, as completed, of the Financed Facility and 

the Financed Equipment, all pursuant to a written bond purchase agreement with the City and a 

trust indenture for the Bonds (the “Indenture”).  In addition, other available Company funds are 

expected to be utilized in support of the Project. 

 

The City shall in no way have liability to make payments with respect to the Bonds except 

from revenues derived by the City from payments or credits under the Lease and other related 

Bond documents and the City shall not be obligated to commit or expend the City’s own funds in 

connection with or support of the Project.  The Bonds issued by the City shall be secured solely 

by rent payments or credits under the Lease, and the Bonds will be payable solely from the rent 

payments or credits provided by the Company to the City under the Lease.  The Bonds shall not 

be an indebtedness, general obligation, or liability of the City, Randolph County, or the State of 

Missouri or of any political subdivision thereof.   

 

VI. Statement of the Terms Upon Which the Facilities to be Provided by the Project are to 

be Leased or Otherwise Disposed of by the Municipality 

 

 The City shall lease the Property to the Company contemporaneous with the initial Bond 

issuance.  It is expected that the Financed Facility and the Financed Equipment shall be conveyed 

to the City as completed and, as necessary, on an annual rolling basis during the time that the 

22

WS #1.



-6- 

Project is under construction, with the Company conveying to the City in December of each year 

during the renovation and construction period the portion of the Financed Facility and Financed 

Equipment completed but not yet conveyed to the City.  Contemporaneous with each such 

conveyance, the City shall lease the portions of the Financed Facility and Financed Equipment 

back to the Company via supplements to the Lease, and the Bonds shall be endorsed in an amount 

equal to the “true value in money” of the conveyed Financed Facility and Financed Equipment.  

Payments or credits made under the Lease and supplements to the Lease shall at all times be 

deemed to be equal to, timed to coincide with the due dates of, and be pledged to the satisfaction 

of applicable principal of and interest on the Bonds, as the same shall become due and payable.  

The Company shall also be required to make certain PILOTs to affected taxing entities, as 

described in Section III, above and additionally described in Section XI of this Plan.   

 

  The Company will renovate, furnish, and equip the Financed Facility and will purchase 

and install the Financed Equipment on the Property in accordance with the Development 

Agreement, and the terms and provisions of the Lease.  It is anticipated that the City shall be the 

sole owner in fee of the Property, and each portion of the Financed Facility and Financed 

Equipment during the Twelve (12) year period beginning in the year in which the existing Property 

or such portion of the Financed Facility or Financed Equipment was conveyed to the City. At the 

end of the Lease term, the City shall re-convey the Financed Facility and Financed Equipment to 

the Company and the Project shall be subject to all applicable ad valorem tax levies.   

 

 Under the terms of the Lease, the Company shall have the option to purchase the Property, 

the Project, the Financed Facility, and the Financed Equipment or any portion thereof at any time 

prior to the expiration of the term of the Lease at prices set forth in the Indenture.  Upon the 

expiration or termination of the Lease or when all principal and interest due on the Bonds shall 

have been paid in full, the Company will have the obligation to purchase the Project, the Property, 

the Financed Facility, and the Financed Equipment under terms specified in the Lease and the 

Indenture.  The Lease will terminate not later than December 31 of the year that is Twelve (12) 

years from the year in which the final endorsement to the Bonds is made.  The Lease is subject to 

earlier termination provisions. 

 

VII. Statement Identifying Each School District, Community College District, County, City 

or Emergency Service District Affected by Such Project Except Property Assessed by the 

State Tax Commission Pursuant to Chapters 151 and 153, RSMo.  

 

 The Moberly R-2 School District, Moberly Area Community College, Randolph County, 

and the City constitute the school district, community college district, county, and city, 

respectively, affected by the Project.  The Moberly Special Road District, Moberly Road and 

Bridge District, Randolph County Road and Bridge District, Randolph County Developmental 

Disabilities Board, Little Dixie Library District, and the Randolph County Health District also levy 

property taxes within the Project area.  Finally, the Westran R-1 School District, Higbee R-8 

School District, Sturgeon R-5 School District, Renick R-5 School District, Northeast R-4 School 

District, Chariton R-4 School District, City of Huntsville, City of Clifton Hill, Village of Renick, 

Village of Cairo, City of Higbee, City of Clark, and Village of Jacksonville are also school districts, 

community college districts, or municipalities affected by the Project to the extent these entities 

receive allocations of merchants and manufacturers replacement or commercial surtax amounts.  

23

WS #1.



-7- 

The Costs/Benefits Analysis set forth in Section X of this Plan and related exhibits to this Plan 

identifies all taxing entities affected by the Project. 

 

VIII. Most Recent Equalized Assessed Valuation of the Real Property and Personal Property 

Included in the Project 

 

 According to the records of the Randolph County Assessor’s Office, the most recent 

equalized assessed valuation (2022) of the Property and improvements is $478,120.  The current 

assessed valuation reflects a “Commercial” classification.   

 

 None of the Financed Equipment has been acquired or installed.  Accordingly, the most 

recent equalized assessed valuation of the personal property included in the Project is $0.   

 

IX. Estimate of the Equalized Assessed Valuation of the Real Property and Personal 

Property Included in the Project after Development 

 

The “true value in money” of the land and improvements included in the Property and the 

Project is based upon the Company’s acquisition cost of $1,950,000 plus estimated cost of real 

property improvements of $1,877,437. The estimated assessed value of $1,224,780 was 

determined by multiplying the purchase price and the cost of improvement to the real property 

portion of the Project (collectively, $3,827,437) by the assessment ratio for commercial real 

property of 32%.   

 

The equalized assessed valuation of personal property included in the Project is estimated 

to be $14,949,739.30 in the year the Project is expected to be completed.  The estimated assessed 

valuation for personal property was calculated by multiplying the initial cost of the personal 

property ($44,894,112), by the assessment ratio for commercial personal property of 33.33%.  The 

value of the personal property reflects the value estimated as of 2023 when the Project is expected 

to be begin.  The assessed value of personal property in the Project is expected to decrease, 

however,  in the years between 2023 and 2034, when the last endorsement to the Bonds is expected 

to be made, due to depreciation.  Some of this decrease may be offset, however, by periodic 

replacements by the Company of portions of the Financed Equipment pursuant to terms of the 

Lease.  

 

The actual assessed value of the real and personal property comprising the Project may be 

more or less than the estimates provided in this section.  The assumptions used in estimating the 

assessed value of real and personal property after the Project is complete are set forth in 

Attachment A and the exhibits attached to this Plan. 

 

These estimates are not intended to bind the Company, or the Randolph County Assessor 

in determining the “true value in money” of the Property, the Financed Facility or the Financed 

Equipment in determining PILOT amounts due or for other computational purposes. 

 

24

WS #1.



-8- 

X. An Analysis of the Costs and Benefits of the Project on Each School District, Community 

College District, County, City and Emergency Service District 

 

Pursuant to section 100.050.2(3) of the IDB Act, this Plan includes an analysis of the costs 

and benefits to the City and other taxing entities affected by the proposed tax abatement and 

exemptions applicable to the Project.  In addition, the following provides a summary of the exhibits 

attached to this Plan that estimate the direct tax impact the Project is expected to have on certain 

taxing entities accompanied by an explanation of the ancillary benefits expected to be derived from 

the Project.  Attachment A – Summary of Key Assumptions illustrates and summarizes various 

assumptions related to the determination of the assessed valuations and the tax formulas that were 

applied. 

 

Summary of Cost/Benefit Analysis.  Exhibit C, attached to and incorporated by reference in 

this Plan, presents a summary for each affected taxing entity of: (1) the total estimated tax revenue 

that would be generated if no project were completed on the Property (the “No Project Scenario”); 

(2) the total real and personal property tax revenues that would be generated if the Project were 

completed taking into account the tax exemption provided under the Acts and the PILOTs required 

under the Development Agreement; and (3) the difference between revenues generated with and 

without the Project.  The summary reveals that during the twelve-year abatement period the Project 

is expected to generate total tax revenues of $431,306. This amount represents that which would 

be received under a “No Project” scenario.  At the end of the twelve-year abatement period, even 

with depreciation applied, cumulative annual amounts to taxing districts will produce annual 

amounts over $200,000.  Moreover, these amounts do not include or account for the “spinoff” 

benefits accruing from the maintenance of 150 new full-time jobs having an average annual wage 

of $46,000. 

 

Real Property Tax Revenues.  Exhibit E, attached to and incorporated by reference in this 

Plan, provides the projected revenues that would be generated from the Property and the Financed 

Facility, assuming completion of the Project on the schedule and as described in this Plan.  The 

estimated tax revenues are shown for all taxing districts affected, including those districts only 

affected to the extent that they receive a portion of the County’s commercial surtax applied to the 

Property.  These projections include amounts that the Company is obligated to pay as payments in 

lieu of taxes.  After tax year 2030, the Company will make annual PILOT payments equal to fifty 

percent (50%) of tax revenues that would otherwise be generated by the realty comprising the 

Project.  Estimated revenues from annual PILOT payments based on real property alone total 

nearly $200,000 ($195,667) over the Lease Term.   

 

Personal Property Tax Revenues. Exhibit F, attached to and incorporated by reference in 

this Plan, provides the projected personal property tax revenues that would be generated from the 

Financed Equipment for the term of the proposed tax abatement.  Because the Chapter 100 Bonds 

cover personal as well as real property the resulting exemption from taxation applies to (100%) of 

the property taxes on personalty and equipment.  However, as in the case of the real property tax 

revenues discussed above, beginning in 2030, the Company will also make PILOT payments 

representing fifty percent (50%) of revenues that would otherwise be generated by Project personal 

property. 

 

25

WS #1.



-9- 

Estimated revenues from annual PILOT payments representing personalty and equipment 

are expected to generate an estimated a total in excess of $214,000 over the Lease Term.  This 

amount incorporates the assumption that the Company will enjoy applicable depreciation 

allowances on all such equipment.  Again, when the twelve-year abatement period will have run, 

the Property can be expected to generate annual amounts of over $107,000 solely from personal 

property taxation. 

 

Sales Tax Exemption.  By allowing the Company to utilize the City’s sales tax exemption 

as provided under the Acts, the City will also provide a sales tax exemption on qualified building 

materials and certain personal property necessary to construct and equip the Project which are not 

otherwise exempt from sales tax.  Notably, the State of Missouri provides for exemption from sales 

tax independent of the Chapter 100 Bonds incentive for equipment purchases related to 

manufacturing. 

 

Accordingly, the sales tax exemption analyzed below applies only to non-manufacturing 

personal property purchased as a part of Project development.  This Plan assumes an estimated 

$1,877,437 in building materials purchases principally for renovations to the existing structure and 

of an estimated $45,600,000 in total estimated expenditures for personalty and equipment, with 

$225,000 allocated to non-manufacturing personal property purchases.  Under these assumptions 

and those in Attachment A the net fiscal impact of the sales tax exemption if granted by the City 

is estimated to $173,180, distributed as follows:  

 

State of Missouri $52,560 

City of Moberly $26,280 

Randolph County $83,828 

Randolph County Ambulance District $10,512 

 

     Total  $173,180 

 

Arguably, these “foregone” amounts still represent a significant impact on the affected 

jurisdictions.  However, this argument is falsified by the observation that, unlike property tax 

revenues, sales taxes are entirely transaction based.  Thus for such revenues to be truly “foregone,” 

the Project would have to occur regardless of the exemption, an unlikely scenario given the highly 

competitive process attending selection of a location for the Project and the realization that the 

availability of the tax abatement/exemption provided the City and the IBD Act was a material 

inducement to the Company to undertake the Project in Moberly.   

 

Service Costs of School Districts, Community College Districts, County, and Cities.  The 

completion of the Project may require taxing entities that are affected by the Project to provide 

certain additional governmental services to the Property.  Service costs for Randolph County and 

the City have been estimated based on a pro-rata allocation of available budgeted 2021 total annual 

expenditures for the respective taxing jurisdictions over the entire service area served respectively 

by each such taxing district.  Estimated services costs resulting from the Project were calculated 

by allocating the estimated services costs of Randolph County and the City proportionally to the 

Project and the Property on a per acre basis.   

 

26

WS #1.



-10- 

Because the Project does not provide for residential development, it is assumed that no 

significant population will be added as a direct component of the Project.  Further, both the City 

and the Company anticipate that the majority of new FTE Jobs can be expected to be filled by 

employees who will either be coming from outside the immediate area or who already reside in 

the service area.  Thus, no significant influx of population of school-age children or adult students 

is expected.  As such, the Moberly R-2 School District and the Moberly Area Community College 

District can be expected to incur only minimal direct service costs as a result of the Project.  

Moreover, to the extent any such student population increases are experienced, currently existing 

facilities are expected to satisfy any additional service demand.  Table 1 below page provides a 

comparison of estimated annual costs by taxing entity to provide services to the Property under 

“No Build” and “With Project” scenarios. 

 

Table 1: Taxing Entity Annual Service Costs 1  

 

Taxing Entity 
“No Build” Services 

to Property 2 

“No Build” 

Services 

Costs to 

Property 

Added Services 

to Property 

“With Project” 3 

Total  

Services Costs  

to Property 

“With Project” 

City of Moberly 
Administration, Law 

Enforcement, Utilities, 

Stormwater Management  
$25,912 4 

Wastewater, Solid Waste, 

Parks & Recreation; 

Water, Fire and 

Emergency Services 

$33,653  

Randolph County 
General County Government 

Services, County Law 

Enforcement  
$284 Health Code Enforcement $370 

Moberly School 

District 
Elementary & Secondary 

Education 
$0 None/Minimal $0 

Moberly Area 

Community 

College 

Adult & Higher Education $0 None/Minimal $0 

 
________________________________________________________ 

1   Services costs are based upon a pro-rata allocation of applicable portions of available 2020-2021 annual budget data for each individual 

taxing entity on a per acre basis.  After the estimated services costs are determined for each individual taxing entity, such estimated services 

costs are applied to the Project based on a ratio of the total service area acreage of the taxing entity versus the acreage of the Project area. 

Where no service population exists, certain service costs are presumed to be $0.00. 
2  “No Build” services are those provided on a general basis to all properties within the taxing district, whether improved or unimproved. 
3  “With Project” services are those additional services provided to individual parcels of property with occupied improvements.  As such, 

these services include services the taxing entity currently provides to the Property, together with anticipated increases in service demand 

resulting from active occupancy and use of the premises.  Costs shown are allocation only – not necessarily actual costs. 
4  Pro-rata allocation assumes that service demand associated with each acre is equal; in fact, unoccupied or vacant ground generates 

significantly less service demand than occupied ground.  As such, this estimate of costs is likely a significant over-estimate of actual costs 

associated with the Property as presently used. 
 

Taxing entities identified in Section VII of this Plan that are affected by the Project only to 

the extent that they receive allocations of commercial surcharge amounts will provide no services 

to the Property, and thus, will bear no associated services costs. 

As the Project is developed, affected taxing entities, particularly the City, may experience 

increased capital or operation costs as a result of providing services to operations on the Property.  

For example, emergency services demand may increase due to the increase of industrial activity.  

27

WS #1.



-11- 

However, some of these potential increased costs may be absorbed by the capacity of existing 

facilities that currently serve areas around the Property.  On the other hand, individual facilities 

that currently are at capacity or in the near future may reach capacity could be overburdened by 

significant increases in localized demand.  Simply put, the costs and impacts on taxing entities 

resulting directly from Project completion are difficult or impossible to objectively quantify.  Any 

increase in business activity, construction, and development creates a potential concomitant 

increase in localized demand for certain public services.  Where such impacts may be anticipated, 

however, these have been considered against the anticipated magnitude of new revenues generated 

by development and job creation that will be available to meet cost concerns. 

 

Ancillary Project Benefits.  During the term of the abatement, the Company is expected to 

create and maintain 150 FTE Jobs at the Property.  The City and Randolph County may therefore 

experience an increase in business activity to support the Project’s employees and operations.  The 

Project may also provide collateral benefits for local suppliers during the construction period.  If 

the Company fails to create and maintain this anticipated number of FTE Jobs, the Company will 

pay PILOTs in amounts tied to the number of FTE Jobs actually created, as described in Section 

XI of this Plan, with the amount of PILOTs increasing as the number of FTE Jobs actually created 

decreases.  Recognizing the difficulties in quantifying costs and impacts of the Project identified 

above, ancillary impacts were not quantified for the purposes of the Project and this Plan. 

 

XI. Identification of any Payments In Lieu of Taxes Expected to be Made by Any Lessee of 

the Project, and the Disposition of any such Payments by the Municipality 

 

Beginning in tax year 2030 the Company will make PILOTs at the rate of fifty percent 

(50%) of the total real and personal property tax due in each such year as determined in each such 

year by the Randolph County Assessor.  

 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.] 
 

28

WS #1.



-12- 

 Lease Term   

Abatement 

Year  

% 

Exemption  
% PILOT 

Required 2 

   3/1/2023 1  1  N/A   -0- 

 1/1/2024  2  100%  -0- 

 1/1/2025  3  100%  -0- 

 1/1/2026  4  100%  -0- 

 1/1/2027  5  100%  -0- 

 1/1/2028  6  100%  -0- 

 1/1/2029  7  100%  -0- 

 1/1/2030  8  100%  -0- 

 1/1/2031  9  50%  50% 

 1/1/2032  10  50%  50% 

 1/1/2033  11  50%  50% 

 1/1/2034  12  50%  50% 
_______________ 
1  On or about March 1, 2023. 
2  The table above assumes a single phase completion and conveyance of the Project.  However, whether or not the 

Project is completed and conveyed in sequential phases, the percentage of PILOTs due in any year shall apply to all 

portions of the Property, the Financed Facility, and the Financed Equipment then accepted and held in fee by the City.  

Thus, each portion of the Project will enjoy a maximum 12 year abatement. 
 

In compliance with section 100.050.3 of the IDB Act, PILOT amounts above in excess of 

actual costs of Plan administration upon receipt will be disbursed by the City Treasurer to each 

affected taxing jurisdiction in proportion to their current ad valorem tax levies. 

 

If at any time during the term of the Lease reimbursements to emergency service districts 

pursuant to section 100.050.4 of the IDB Act or successor enactments are required to be made, the 

Company shall be and shall remain solely responsible for making such reimbursements as and 

when due. 

 

If the Company provides and maintains the anticipated 150 FTE Jobs through the Project, 

the Company will not incur an obligation to pay additional PILOTs (over those described in the 

preceding paragraph) during the term of the Bonds.  However, if the number of FTE Jobs is 

determined to be less than 150, calculated in accordance with the Development Agreement, the 

Company will pay additional PILOTs on the Financed Facility and the Financed Equipment in the 

form of additional rent payments under the Lease (the “Additional Rents”), beginning in 2024 

and in any year thereafter that the Bonds remain outstanding in which the number of FTE Jobs is 

not 150.  The PILOTS will be calculated on a sliding scale based on the number of FTE Jobs 

actually provided compared to the target amount required.  Such Additional Rents will be also 

disbursed to applicable taxing districts in accordance with section 100.050.3 of the IDB Act. 

 

29

WS #1.



-13- 

XII. Conclusion 

 

Based on representations of the Company, the decision by the Company to pursue the 

Project would not have occurred without the City’s commitment to adopt and approve the Plan.  

The Project will provide a significant net benefit to Randolph County, the City, and other affected 

taxing entities.  The Project is anticipated to generate 150 Jobs.  The creation of 150 Jobs will 

provide a significant benefit to local taxing entities by increasing the overall tax base. 

 

* * * 

30

WS #1.



Attachment A-1 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

Summary of Key Assumptions and Sources 

 

 

The following assumptions have been applied in the foregoing Plan and in the Costs/Benefits 

Analysis.  Where applicable sources of information and limits have been identified: 

 

1. The cost of acquiring and renovating the Financed Facility is estimated to be $3,827,437.  

The cost of acquiring and installing the Financed Equipment is estimated to be 

$44,894,112.     

 

2. The Financed Facility and the Financed Equipment are assumed to be completed by 

December 31, 2023 but may be completed later than that date depending upon the Project 

phasing schedule and market demand.  In light of the uncertainty attending these factors as 

well as possible supply chain delays or events of force majeure this Plan and accompanying 

Costs/Benefits analysis has assumed that 100% of the Financed Facility and Financed 

Equipment will be completed in 2023. 

 

3. Renovation of the Financed Facility will begin in mid-2023.  The Property and existing 

improvements will be conveyed to the City at the initial closing on the Bonds.  Purchase 

of the Financed Equipment will also begin in 2023 and, for purposes of this Plan, have 

been assumed to be completed and installed not later than December 31, 2023.  Again, 

factors such as the phasing schedule, market demand, availability of materials and 

equipment, and events of force majeure may extend this period. 

 

4. The Property, the Financed Facility, and the Financed Equipment will be owned by the 

City and leased to the Company at all times during the term of the Lease. 

 

5. The Property, the Financed Facility, and the Financed Equipment will be excluded from 

the calculation of ad valorem property taxes for the term of the Lease.  Each year, the 

portions of the Financed Facility and Financed Equipment completed but not previously 

conveyed to the City shall be conveyed to the City, and the term of tax abatement shall 

commence for such portions.  The term of the tax abatement for the Property and each 

portion of Financed Equipment and Financed Facility shall be Twelve (12) years beginning 

in the year in which such portion was conveyed to the City.  At the end of the twelve-year 

period of abatement, the Property and the Financed Equipment and Financed Facility will 

be conveyed back to the Company, and taxing districts will begin receiving the full tax 

revenue from the Project. 

 

6. For the purposes of calculating the impact of the proposed abatement on real and personal 

property tax revenues, it is assumed that the Company will maintain at least 150 Jobs on 

the Property and therefore will not have to pay Additional Rent constituting PILOTs. 

 

31

WS #1.



Attachment A-2 

7. Taxes on commercial real property and personal property were calculated using the 

following formula: 

 

(Assessed Value x Tax Rate)/100 

 

8. Assessed value of the Property and Financed Facility was calculated using the following 

formula: 

 

Fair Market Value x Assessment Ratio of 32% 

 

9. Assessed value of the Financed Equipment was calculated using the following formula: 
 

(Cost * Depreciation Factor) x Assessment Ratio of 33.33% 

 

10. The most recent equalized assessed value ($478,420) was obtained from the Randolph 

County Assessor.  The estimated assessed value for the Property used to determine tax 

revenue if the Project is not completed was calculated using the cost method of valuation 

and assuming an increase in value of 1% every 2 years. 

 

11. To the extent that the actual value of the Property, Financed Facility, and Financed 

Equipment during and after completion of the Project differs from the figures provided, the 

impact on tax revenue may be more or less than described in this Plan. The City and the 

Company accept no responsibility or liability for such impacts or differences. 

 

12. For the purposes of calculating the assessed value of the real property (the completed 

Financed Facility, including land and improvements) if the Project is completed, it is 

assumed that the value of such real property will remain flat during the abatement period 

because any increase in the value of the Property will be offset by depreciation of the 

Financed Facility.   

 

13. It is assumed that the Financed Equipment has an average depreciable life of seven (7) 

years.  The depreciated fair market value of the Financed Equipment is calculated in this 

Costs/Benefits Analysis using a 7-year Missouri depreciation schedule.  In the year of the 

Financed Equipment’s purchase, the fair market value is assumed to be the Financed 

Equipment’s cost.  At the end of the year of purchase, a depreciation factor is applied to 

the cost to determine the value on January 1 of the next year.  Thereafter, at the end of each 

year, the applicable depreciation factor is applied to the original cost to determine the 

property’s value on January 1 of the following year.  The table below shows the assumed 

depreciation factors.  After the 7th year, the assumed fair market value of the property for 

personal property taxation purposes remains at 10% of its original purchase price.  The 

attached analysis assumes that no personal property is replaced during the term of the 

proposed tax abatement.   

32

WS #1.



Attachment A-3 

Year

After MO Depreciation

  Purchase Factor Rate

1 89.29% 10.71%

2 70.16% 19.13%

3 55.13% 15.03%

4 42.88% 12.25%

5 30.63% 12.25%

6 18.38% 12.25%

7 10.00% 8.38%  
 

14. For purposes of determining the impact of the sales tax exemption, it is assumed that: 

 

(a) The applicable sales tax rate is 8.475%, of which 4.225% is allocable to the State 

of Missouri, 2.500% is allocable to the City of Moberly, 1.250% is allocable to 

Randolph County, and 0.500% is allocable to Randolph County Ambulance 

District.  It is assumed that these rates remain constant through the period during 

which all purchases of equipment and personal property for the Project are expected 

to be made and that all purchase are made in the City. 

(b) 100% of the qualified construction materials and personal property will be 

purchased in 2023. 

(c) Of the total costs of renovation of the Financed Facility, $1,877,437 will be 

allocated to construction materials costs. 

(d) Only personal property not expected to benefit from the statutory manufacturing 

state and local sales and use tax exemption is included in the sales tax exemption 

value estimate in this Plan. Manufacturing-related personal property purchases are 

assumed to be exempt from state and local sales and use tax pursuant to the statutory 

exemption whether or not the sales tax exemption described in this Plan is provided.  

However, ultimate classification of the property as manufacturing or non-

manufacturing may affect the value of the sales tax exemption.   

(e) The sales tax exemption analyzed in this Plan will apply only to non-manufacturing 

personal property purchased as a part of Project development.  Based on 

conversations with the Company, this Plan assumes that $225,000 of the total 

expenditures for personal property in connection with the Project will be classified 

as non-manufacturing. However, some property assumed as manufacturing  

personal property for purposes of this Plan may not ultimately be classified as 

manufacturing-related and may therefore be statutorily subject to sales/use tax but 

will continue to be exempt from local sales and use tax per Chapter 100.   

 

15. The tax rates used in this Plan reflect the rates in effect for the tax year 2022.  The tax rates 

were held constant through the year 2034.  Should any taxing district increase or decrease 

its levy rate during the proposed term of tax abatement, the impact on tax revenue of such 

taxing district could be more or less, as applicable, than the estimates set forth in this Plan. 

33

WS #1.



A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

 

The Property - Legal Description 

 

 

Parcel No.  07-7.0-26.0-0.0-000-014.000 in the records of the Randolph County, known and 

numbered as 1855 Robertson Road, Moberly Missouri and partially described as: 

 
Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14 - PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE COR 
OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 146.57', SLY 
268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96', 
N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 

Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14 - PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE COR 

OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 146.57', SLY 
268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96', 
N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 
A total of 16.0 +/- acres. 
 

 

 

 

34

WS #1.



B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

 

The Project Location  

 

1855 Robertson Road, Moberly, Missouri 

 

 
 

35

WS #1.



C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

 

Summary of Project Revenues1 

 
 

 

Taxing Jurisdiction

Total Tax Revenue 

Without Project 

(over 12 Year 

Project Period)* 

Total Real Property 

Tax with Project 

(applying 

abatement + 

PILOTs)

Personal Property 

Tax with Project 

(applying 

abatement + 

PILOTs

Combined Tax 

Revenue 

Generated by 

Project **

Difference 

Project vs. No 

Project

State of Missouri 1,775.92$               808.44$                   896.98$                    1,705.43$          (70.49)$            

City of Moberly 63,836.01$             29,059.73$              31,929.65$               60,989.38$        (2,846.63)$       

Randolph County General 12,126.79$             5,520.41$                6,150.32$                 11,670.74$        (456.05)$          

County Road and Bridge 11,471.47$             5,222.09$                5,830.40$                 11,052.49$        (418.97)$          

Little Dixie Library District 14,346.95$             6,531.08$                7,265.57$                 13,796.66$        (550.29)$          

Randolph County Amb. Dist. 48.04$                    21.87$                     -$                         21.87$               (26.17)$            

Randolph County Health 8,602.31$               3,915.99$                4,353.36$                 8,269.35$          (332.96)$          

Development Disabilities 8,500.65$               3,869.71$                4,320.47$                 8,190.18$          (310.47)$          

Moberly Special Road Dist. 5,557.31$               2,529.83$                2,747.76$                 5,277.59$          (279.73)$          

Moberly School Dist. 283,702.31$           129,148.29$            141,873.03$             271,021.32$      (12,681.00)$     

Moberly Area Comm. College 19,943.10$             9,078.59$                9,950.55$                 19,029.14$        (913.96)$          

Commercial Surtax (combined jurisdictions) *** 1,542.38$               1,826.38$                N/A 1,826.38$          284.00$            

431,453.25$           197,532.41$            215,318.11$             412,850.52$      (18,602.73)$     

1 
Costs associated with the Project are discussed and analyzed in Part X of this Plan.

* This calculation of annual impact reflects the  assumption that no development would occur at the Property without tax abatement.

** Based on new additional ibvestment of $1,877,437 in acquisition and improvements to real property (total $3,827,437) and $44,894,112 of personal 

property placed in service on the Project site.

*** Includes only those jurisdictions not levying general property taxes within Project area; commercial surtax revenue is included in general revenue 

above for those jurisdictions levying a general property tax within Project area.

36

WS #1.



D-1 

EXHIBIT D 

 

Estimated Total Tax Revenue with No Project (Real and Personal Property) 

 

Assessed Value 478,120$      478,120$     482,901$      482,901$     487,730$     487,730$     492,608$     492,608$      

Taxing Jurisdiction

Tax Rate 

Per $100
Comm'l Surtax

Total Tax 

Per $100
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

State of Missouri 0.0300 0.000188 0.03019 144.34$        144.34$       145.78$        145.78$       147.24$       147.24$       148.71$       148.71$        

City of Moberly 1.0679 0.017229 1.08513 5,188.22$     5,188.22$    5,240.10$     5,240.10$    5,292.50$    5,292.50$    5,345.43$    5,345.43$     

City of Higbee - 0.000328 0.00033 1.57$            1.57$           1.58$            1.58$           1.60$           1.60$           1.62$           1.62$            

Village of Cairo - 0.000458 0.00046 2.19$            2.19$           2.21$            2.21$           2.23$           2.23$           2.26$           2.26$            

City of Clark - 0.000245 0.00025 1.17$            1.17$           1.19$            1.19$           1.20$           1.20$           1.21$           1.21$            

City of Clifton Hill - 0.000060 0.00006 0.29$            0.29$           0.29$            0.29$           0.30$           0.30$           0.30$           0.30$            

City of Huntsville - 0.001255 0.00126 6.00$            6.00$           6.06$            6.06$           6.12$           6.12$           6.18$           6.18$            

Village of Jacksonville - 0.000018 0.00002 0.08$            0.08$           0.09$            0.09$           0.09$           0.09$           0.09$           0.09$            

Village of Renick - 0.000053 0.00005 0.25$            0.25$           0.25$            0.25$           0.26$           0.26$           0.26$           0.26$            

Randolph County General 0.2057 0.000440 0.20614 985.59$        985.59$       995.45$        995.45$       1,005.41$    1,005.41$    1,015.46$    1,015.46$     

County Road and Bridge 0.1950 - 0.19500 932.33$        932.33$       941.66$        941.66$       951.07$       951.07$       960.58$       960.58$        

County Road and Bridge: Moberly - 0.005476 0.00548 26.18$          26.18$         26.44$          26.44$         26.71$         26.71$         26.98$         26.98$          

County Road and Bridge: Common #1 - 0.000091 0.00009 0.43$            0.43$           0.44$            0.44$           0.44$           0.44$           0.45$           0.45$            

Little Dixie Library District 0.2430 0.000879 0.24388 1,166.04$     1,166.04$    1,177.70$     1,177.70$    1,189.47$    1,189.47$    1,201.37$    1,201.37$     

Randolph County Amb. Dist. 0.0000 0.000817 0.00082 3.90$            3.90$           3.94$            3.94$           3.98$           3.98$           4.02$           4.02$            

Randolph County Health 0.1456 0.000628 0.14623 699.15$        699.15$       706.14$        706.14$       713.20$       713.20$       720.33$       720.33$        

Higbee Fire District - 0.000328 0.00033 1.57$            1.57$           1.59$            1.59$           1.60$           1.60$           1.62$           1.62$            

Development Disabilities 0.1445 - 0.14450 690.88$        690.88$       697.79$        697.79$       704.77$       704.77$       711.82$       711.82$        

Moberly Special Road Dist. 0.0919 0.002567 0.09447 451.67$        451.67$       456.18$        456.18$       460.74$       460.74$       465.35$       465.35$        

Common Road District - 0.000096 0.00010 0.46$            0.46$           0.46$            0.46$           0.47$           0.47$           0.47$           0.47$            

Moberly School Dist. 4.7450 0.077570 4.82257 23,057.67$   23,057.67$  23,288.25$   23,288.25$  23,521.13$  23,521.13$  23,756.34$  23,756.34$   

Chariton R-4 School District - 0.000024 0.00002 0.12$            0.12$           0.12$            0.12$           0.12$           0.12$           0.12$           0.12$            

Northeast R-4 School District - 0.008897 0.00890 42.54$          42.54$         42.96$          42.96$         43.39$         43.39$         43.83$         43.83$          

Renick R-5 School District - 0.001830 0.00183 8.75$            8.75$           8.84$            8.84$           8.92$           8.92$           9.01$           9.01$            

Sturgeon R-5 School District - 0.002155 0.00216 10.31$          10.31$         10.41$          10.41$         10.51$         10.51$         10.62$         10.62$          

Higbee R-8 School District - 0.001942 0.00194 9.29$            9.29$           9.38$            9.38$           9.47$           9.47$           9.57$           9.57$            

Westran R-1 School District - 0.000217 0.00022 1.04$            1.04$           1.05$            1.05$           1.06$           1.06$           1.07$           1.07$            

Moberly Area Comm. College 0.3328 0.006207 0.33901 1,620.86$     1,620.86$    1,637.07$     1,637.07$    1,653.44$    1,653.44$    1,669.97$    1,669.97$     

7.2014 0.13000 7.33140 35,052.89$   35,052.89$  35,403.42$   35,403.42$  35,757.45$  35,757.45$  36,115.03$  36,115.03$   

37

WS #1.



D-2 

Estimated Total Tax Revenue with No Project (Real and Personal Property) 

 
 

497,534$       497,534$      502,509$     502,509$     

Taxing Jurisdiction

Tax Rate 

Per $100
Comm'l Surtax

Total Tax Per 

$100
2031 2032 2033 2034

Total

State of Missouri 0.0300 0.000188 0.03019 150.20$         150.20$        151.70$       151.70$       1,775.92$             

City of Moberly 1.0679 0.017229 1.08513 5,398.88$      5,398.88$     5,452.87$    5,452.87$    63,836.01$           

City of Higbee - 0.000328 0.00033 1.63$             1.63$            1.65$           1.65$           19.30$                  

Village of Cairo - 0.000458 0.00046 2.28$             2.28$            2.30$           2.30$           26.95$                  

City of Clark - 0.000250 0.00025 1.22$             1.22$            1.23$           1.23$           14.44$                  

City of Clifton Hill - 0.000060 0.00006 0.30$             0.30$            0.30$           0.30$           3.56$                    

City of Huntsville - 0.001255 0.00126 6.25$             6.25$            6.31$           6.31$           73.84$                  

Village of Jacksonville - 0.000018 0.00002 0.09$             0.09$            0.09$           0.09$           1.04$                    

Village of Renick - 0.000053 0.00005 0.26$             0.26$            0.26$           0.26$           3.10$                    

Randolph County General 0.2057 0.000440 0.20614 1,025.61$      1,025.61$     1,035.87$    1,035.87$    12,126.79$           

County Road and Bridge 0.1950 0.000000 0.19500 970.19$         970.19$        979.89$       979.89$       11,471.47$           

County Road and Bridge: Moberly - 0.005476 0.00548 27.25$           27.25$          27.52$         27.52$         322.16$                

County Road and Bridge: Common #1 - 0.000091 0.00009 0.45$             0.45$            0.46$           0.46$           5.33$                    

Little Dixie Library District 0.2430 0.000879 0.24388 1,213.38$      1,213.38$     1,225.52$    1,225.52$    14,346.95$           

Randolph County Amb. Dist. 0.0000 0.000817 0.00082 4.06$             4.06$            4.10$           4.10$           48.04$                  

Randolph County Health 0.1456 0.000628 0.14623 727.53$         727.53$        734.81$       734.81$       8,602.31$             

Higbee Fire District - 0.000328 0.00033 1.63$             1.63$            1.65$           1.65$           19.32$                  

Development Disabilities 0.1445 0.000000 0.14450 718.94$         718.94$        726.13$       726.13$       8,500.65$             

Moberly Special Road Dist. 0.0919 0.002567 0.09447 470.01$         470.01$        474.71$       474.71$       5,557.31$             

Common Road District - 0.000096 0.00010 0.48$             0.48$            0.48$           0.48$           5.63$                    

Moberly School Dist. 4.7450 0.077570 4.82257 23,993.91$    23,993.91$   24,233.85$  24,233.85$  283,702.31$         

Chariton R-4 School District - 0.000024 0.00002 0.12$             0.12$            0.12$           0.12$           1.43$                    

Northeast R-4 School District - 0.008897 0.00890 44.26$           44.26$          44.71$         44.71$         523.37$                

Renick R-5 School District - 0.001830 0.00183 9.10$             9.10$            9.19$           9.19$           107.63$                

Sturgeon R-5 School District - 0.002155 0.00216 10.72$           10.72$          10.83$         10.83$         126.79$                

Higbee R-8 School District - 0.001942 0.00194 9.66$             9.66$            9.76$           9.76$           114.27$                

Westran R-1 School District - 0.000217 0.00022 1.08$             1.08$            1.09$           1.09$           12.78$                  

Moberly Area Comm. College 0.3328 0.006207 0.33901 1,686.67$      1,686.67$     1,703.54$    1,703.54$    19,943.10$           

7.2014 0.13000 7.33140 36,476.18$    36,476.18$   36,840.94$  36,840.94$  431,306.47$         

38

WS #1.



E-1 

EXHIBIT E 

 

Projected Real Property Tax Revenue With Abatement 

Estimated "True Value in Money" of Real Property 3,827,437$         

Assessment Rate 32.00%

Estimated Assessed Value ** 1,224,780$         1,224,780$         1,249,275$           1,249,275$          1,274,261$          1,274,261$          

PILOT requirement applied $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Taxing Jurisdiction

Tax Rate 

Per $100

Commercial 

Surtax Per 

$100

Total 

Tax Per 

$100

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

State of Missouri 0.0300 0.000188 0.03019 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

City of Moberly 1.0679 0.017229 1.08513 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

City of Higbee - 0.000328 0.00033 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Village of Cairo - 0.000458 0.00046 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

City of Clark - 0.000245 0.00025 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

City of Clifton Hill - 0.000060 0.00006 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

City of Huntsville - 0.001255 0.00126 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Village of Jacksonville - 0.000018 0.00002 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Village of Renick - 0.000053 0.00005 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Randolph County General 0.2057 0.000440 0.20614 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

County Road and Bridge 0.1950 - 0.19500 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

County Road and Bridge: Moberly - 0.005476 0.00548 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

County Road and Bridge: Common #1 - 0.000091 0.00009 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Little Dixie Library District 0.2430 0.000879 0.24388 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Randolph County Amb. Dist. 0.0000 0.000817 0.00082 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Randolph County Health 0.1456 0.000628 0.14623 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Higbee Fire District - 0.000328 0.00033 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Development Disabilities 0.1445 - 0.14450 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Moberly Special Road Dist. 0.0919 0.002567 0.09447 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Common Road District - 0.000096 0.00010 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Moberly School Dist. 4.7450 0.077570 4.82257 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Chariton R-4 School District - 0.000024 0.00002 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Northeast R-4 School District - 0.008897 0.00890 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Renick R-5 School District - 0.001830 0.00183 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Sturgeon R-5 School District - 0.002155 0.00216 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Higbee R-8 School District - 0.001942 0.00194 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Westran R-1 School District - 0.000217 0.00022 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

Moberly Area Comm. College 0.3328 0.006207 0.33901 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

7.2014 0.1300 7.3314 -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                    

39

WS #1.



E-2 

Projected Real Property Tax Revenue With Abatement 

 

Estimated EAV 1,299,746$            1,299,746$             1,325,741$          1,325,741$         1,352,256$            1,352,256$          

PILOTs Required $0 $0 50% 50% 50% 50%

Project Year 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
Cumulative 

Totals

State of Missouri -$                      -$                       200.11$               200.11$              204.11$                 204.11$               808.44$            

City of Moberly -$                      -$                       7,193.00$            7,193.00$           7,336.86$              7,336.86$            29,059.73$       

City of Higbee -$                      -$                       2.18$                   2.18$                  2.22$                     2.22$                   8.79$                

Village of Cairo -$                      -$                       3.04$                   3.04$                  3.10$                     3.10$                   12.27$              

City of Clark -$                      -$                       1.63$                   1.63$                  1.66$                     1.66$                   6.57$                

City of Clifton Hill -$                      -$                       0.40$                   0.40$                  0.41$                     0.41$                   1.62$                

City of Huntsville -$                      -$                       8.32$                   8.32$                  8.49$                     8.49$                   33.62$              

Village of Jacksonville -$                      -$                       0.12$                   0.12$                  0.12$                     0.12$                   0.47$                

Village of Renick -$                      -$                       0.35$                   0.35$                  0.36$                     0.36$                   1.41$                

Randolph County General -$                      -$                       1,366.44$            1,366.44$           1,393.77$              1,393.77$            5,520.41$         

County Road and Bridge -$                      -$                       1,292.60$            1,292.60$           1,318.45$              1,318.45$            5,222.09$         

County Road and Bridge: Moberly -$                      -$                       36.30$                 36.30$                37.03$                   37.03$                 146.65$            

County Road and Bridge: Common #1 -$                      -$                       0.60$                   0.60$                  0.61$                     0.61$                   2.43$                

Little Dixie Library District -$                      -$                       1,616.60$            1,616.60$           1,648.94$              1,648.94$            6,531.08$         

Randolph County Amb. Dist. -$                      -$                       5.41$                   5.41$                  5.52$                     5.52$                   21.87$              

Randolph County Health -$                      -$                       969.30$               969.30$              988.69$                 988.69$               3,915.99$         

Higbee Fire District -$                      -$                       2.18$                   2.18$                  2.22$                     2.22$                   8.80$                

Development Disabilities -$                      -$                       957.85$               957.85$              977.00$                 977.00$               3,869.71$         

Moberly Special Road Dist. -$                      -$                       626.19$               626.19$              638.72$                 638.72$               2,529.83$         

Common Road District -$                      -$                       0.63$                   0.63$                  0.65$                     0.65$                   2.56$                

Moberly School Dist. -$                      -$                       31,967.40$          31,967.40$         32,606.75$            32,606.75$          129,148.29$     

Chariton R-4 School District -$                      -$                       0.16$                   0.16$                  0.16$                     0.16$                   0.65$                

Northeast R-4 School District -$                      -$                       58.97$                 58.97$                60.15$                   60.15$                 238.25$            

Renick R-5 School District -$                      -$                       12.13$                 12.13$                12.37$                   12.37$                 49.00$              

Sturgeon R-5 School District -$                      -$                       14.29$                 14.29$                14.57$                   14.57$                 57.72$              

Higbee R-8 School District -$                      -$                       12.88$                 12.88$                13.13$                   13.13$                 52.02$              

Westran R-1 School District -$                      -$                       1.44$                   1.44$                  1.47$                     1.47$                   5.82$                

Moberly Area Comm. College -$                      -$                       2,247.18$            2,247.18$           2,292.12$              2,292.12$            9,078.59$         

-$                      -$                       48,597.69$          48,597.69$         49,569.64$            49,569.64$          196,334.67$     

40

WS #1.



F-1 

EXHIBIT F 

 

Projected Personal Property Tax Revenue With Abatement 

 

Estimated Cumulative Depreciated 

Value Subject to Taxation 44,894,112.00$  40,085,952.60$   31,497,708.98$  24,750,123.95$ 19,250,595.23$  13,751,066.51$ 

Assessment Rate 33.30% 33.30% 33.30% 33.30% 33.30% 33.30%

Assessed Value 14,949,739.30$     13,348,622.22$      10,488,737.09$     8,241,791.27$      6,410,448.21$       4,579,105.15$      

PILOT requirement applied N/A

Taxing Jurisdiction

Tax Rate Per 

$100
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

State of Missouri 0.0300 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

City of Moberly 1.0679 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

Randolph County General 0.2057 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

County Road and Bridge 0.1950 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

Little Dixie Library District 0.2430 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

Randolph County Amb. Dist. 0.0000 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

Randolph County Health 0.1456 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

Development Disabilities 0.1445 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

Moberly Special Road Dist. 0.0919 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

Moberly School Dist. 4.7450 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

Moberly Area Comm. College 0.3328 $                       - -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

7.2014 -$                      -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                      

41

WS #1.



F-2 

Projected Personal Property Tax Revenue With Abatement (Depreciation Applied) 

  

 

 FMV (Depreciated) 8,251,537.79$    4,489,411.20$     4,489,411.20$  4,489,411.20$  4,489,411.20$ 4,489,411.20$  

Assessment Rate 33.30% 33.30% 33.30% 33.30% 33.30% 33.30%

EAV 2,747,762.08$       1,494,973.93$        1,494,973.93$     1,494,973.93$     1,494,973.93$    1,494,973.93$     

PILOT Req'd 50% 50% 50% 50%

2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
Cumulative 

Totals

Annual  Total 

After Completion

State of Missouri -$                      -$                       224.25$               224.25$               224.25$              224.25$               896.98$           448.49$                   

City of Moberly -$                      -$                       7,982.41$            7,982.41$            7,982.41$           7,982.41$            31,929.65$      15,964.83$              

Randolph County General -$                      -$                       1,537.58$            1,537.58$            1,537.58$           1,537.58$            6,150.32$        3,075.16$                

County Road and Bridge -$                      -$                       1,457.60$            1,457.60$            1,457.60$           1,457.60$            5,830.40$        2,915.20$                

Little Dixie Library District -$                      -$                       1,816.39$            1,816.39$            1,816.39$           1,816.39$            7,265.57$        3,632.79$                

Randolph County Amb. Dist. -$                      -$                       -$                    -$                     -$                    -$                     -$                 -$                         

Randolph County Health -$                      -$                       1,088.34$            1,088.34$            1,088.34$           1,088.34$            4,353.36$        2,176.68$                

Development Disabilities -$                      -$                       1,080.12$            1,080.12$            1,080.12$           1,080.12$            4,320.47$        2,160.24$                

Moberly Special Road Dist. -$                      -$                       686.94$               686.94$               686.94$              686.94$               2,747.76$        1,373.88$                

Moberly School Dist. -$                      -$                       35,468.26$          35,468.26$          35,468.26$         35,468.26$          141,873.03$    70,936.51$              

Moberly Area Comm. College -$                      -$                       2,487.64$            2,487.64$            2,487.64$           2,487.64$            9,950.55$        4,975.27$                

-$                      -$                       53,829.53$          53,829.53$          53,829.53$         53,829.53$          215,318.11$    107,659.05$            

42

WS #1.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

________________ 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
Dated as of ________ 1, 2023 

 
________________ 

 
 
 

by and among 
 
 

CITY OF MOBERLY MISSOURI, 
 
 

MOBERLY AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
 

and 
 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. 
 
 
 

Relating to: 
 

Not to Exceed $55,000,000 
(Aggregate Maximum Principal Amount) 

City of Moberly, Missouri 
Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds 

(EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and  
Distribution Facility Project) 

Series 2023 

 

 

 

 

43

WS #1.



 

 

 

i 
 

 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 Page 

 Parties ........................................................................................................................... 1 

 Recitals  ........................................................................................................................ 1 

 

 ARTICLE I 

 MEANINGS OF TERMS 
 

Section 1.1. Definitions  ..................................................................................................................  2 

Section 1.2. Rules of Construction  .................................................................................................  7 

Section 1.3. Computation of Time  .................................................................................................  8 

 

ARTICLE II 

 CONVEYANCE AND ACCEPTANCE OF PROPERTY 

 

Section 2.1. Conveyance Required; Lease; Company Payments  ..................................................  8 

Section 2.2. City’s Due Diligence  ..................................................................................................  8 

Section 2.3. Closing; Company’s Representations  ........................................................................  9 

 

 ARTICLE III 

 CHAPTER 100 BONDS; LEASE; TARGET JOBS 
 

Section 3.1. Terms of Bonds  ........................................................................................................  10 

Section 3.2. Lease of Property, Project; Periodic Company Conveyances  ..............................  11 

Section 3.3. Obligations with Respect to Tax Forbearance  ........................................................ 12 

Section 3.4. Payments in Lieu of Taxes; Company’s Obligations;  

 City Remedies for Non-Payment  ............................................................................  13 

Section 3.5. Maintenance of Target Jobs Required; 

 Payments in Lieu of Taxes as Additional Rents  .....................................................  14 

Section 3.6. Treatment of Released Portions of Property, Project  ..............................................  16 

Section 3.7. Obligation to Purchase Project .................................................................................  17 

 

 ARTICLE IV 

 IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECT 
 

Section 4.1. Mutual Cooperation for Land Use Approvals  .......................................................... 17 

Section 4.2. Other Approvals  .......................................................................................................  17 

Section 4.3. Initiation of the Project; Infrastructure Assistance; Insurance and  

 Payment Bonds Required  .........................................................................................  18 

Section 4.4. Completion of the Project  ........................................................................................  21 

Section 4.5. Sales Tax Exemption ................................................................................................  21 

 

44

WS #1.



 

 

ii 
 

 

 ARTICLE V 

 FURTHER OBLIGATIONS OF THE COMPANY 
 

Section 5.1. Cooperation in Verification of Jobs Required  .......................................................  21 

Section 5.2. Indemnification  ........................................................................................................  22 

Section 5.3. Annual Report Filings  .............................................................................................. 24 

 

 ARTICLE VI 

COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 

Section 6.1. The Company, Generally  .......................................................................................... 24 

Section 6.2. Compliance with Laws  ............................................................................................. 25 

Section 6.3. Environmental Matters, Warranties, Covenants  ...................................................... 25 

Section 6.4. The City, Generally  ................................................................................................... 26 

Section 6.5. Survival of Covenants  .............................................................................................. 26 

 

 ARTICLE VII 

 MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Section 7.1. Term of Agreement   ................................................................................................. 26 

Section 7.2. Notices  ....................................................................................................................... 26 

Section 7.3. Further Assistance  ..................................................................................................... 27 

Section 7.4. Entire Agreement; Modification; No Waiver by Prior Actions  ............................. 28 

Section 7.5. Public Liability Strictly Limited; No Personal Liability  ........................................ 28 

Section 7.6. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity  ......................................................................... 28 

Section 7.7. Remedies Cumulative  ............................................................................................... 28 

Section 7.8. Default; Opportunity to Cure  ................................................................................... 28 

Section 7.9. Relationship of the Parties; Third Party Beneficiaries  ........................................... 29 

Section 7.10. Captions; Recitals and Exhibits; Agreement Preparation  ...................................... 29 

Section 7.11. Execution; Counterparts  ........................................................................................... 29 

Section 7.12. Severability  ............................................................................................................... 29 

Section 7.13. Governing Law; Choice of Forum; Waiver of Objections  ..................................... 30 

Section 7.14. Assignment Limited ................................................................................................... 30 

Section 7.15. Binding Effect  ........................................................................................................... 30 

Section 7.16. Force Majeure  ............................................................................................................ 30 

Section 7.17. Compliance with Section 285.530 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri  ............... 31 

  

 Signatures and Seals  ................................................................................. S-1, S-2, S-3 

 Acknowledgments  .................................................................................... S-1, S-2, S-3 

 

EXHIBIT A – Location of Financed Facilities  ............................................................................... A-1  

EXHIBIT B – Legal Description  ..................................................................................................... B-1 

EXHIBIT C-1 Form of Payment Bond and Dual Obligee Rider  ................................................... C-1 

EXHIBIT C-2 Certification of General Contractor  ........................................................................ C-7 

EXHIBIT D – Form of Substantial Completion Certificate   .......................................................... D-1 

EXHIBIT E – Form of Company Affidavit – Compliance with Section 285.530 RSMo.   ........... E-1

45

WS #1.



 

 

1 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made as of this _____ 

day of ____________, 2023 (the “Effective Date”) by and among the CITY OF MOBERLY, 

MISSOURI, a city of the third classification and Missouri municipal corporation having a principal 

office at 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the “City”); MOBERLY AREA 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Missouri nonprofit corporation having a 

principal office at 115 North Williams Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the “EDC”); and 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., a Delaware corporation duly authorized to do business in 

Missouri and having a principal office at 5710 Bull Run Drive, Columbia, Missouri 65201 

(together with its Affiliates, successors and assigns, the “Company”).  Capitalized terms used in 

this Agreement shall have the meanings ascribed to them in Article I of this Agreement. 

 

RECITALS 

 

 A. Section 100.020 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, authorizes the 

City’s governing body to carry out projects for industrial development pursuant to the terms of 

sections 100.010 to 100.200, inclusive, of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, and 

sections 70.210 through 70.220, inclusive, of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, 

authorize the City to contract with any private person, firm, association, or corporation for certain 

purposes which are within the scope of the powers of the City.  

.  

 B. Article VI, section 27(b) of the Missouri constitution and sections 100.010 through 

100.200, inclusive, of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, further authorize the City to 

issue and sell revenue bonds for the purpose of paying all or part of the cost of purchasing, 

constructing or improving any “project” to be leased to a private person or corporation for 

industrial development purposes. 

 

 C. The Company desires to develop the Project on the Property and in support thereof 

the Company further desires that the City cooperate to provide certain economic incentives for the 

Project involving the City’s acceptance of conveyance in fee of the Property and issuance of the 

Bonds to finance the Financed Equipment and the Financed Facilities and, while the Bonds remain 

outstanding, that the City continue to own the Property, the Project, the Financed Equipment and 

the Financed Facilities and lease the same to the Company, all as provided in this Agreement. 

 

 D. The Project will provide significant private investment and newly created jobs in 

the City and, accordingly, City is willing to accept conveyance of the Property and to issue the 

Bonds in support of the Project and seeks the cooperation and assistance of the EDC in the 

verification of provision by the Company of the Target Jobs, all as contemplated in this Agreement, 

and the EDC willing to cooperate with the City and to provide the aforesaid assistance to the City 

and the Project, all subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, the mutual covenants and 

agreements contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

46

WS #1.



 

2 

 
 

 

ARTICLE I 

MEANINGS OF TERMS 

 

  Section 1.1. Definitions.  As used in this Agreement, capitalized words and terms used 

in this Agreement shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 

 
 “Acquisition Fund” shall mean the “City of Moberly, Missouri, Acquisition Fund - 
EquipmentShare Manufacturing, Refurbishment and Distribution Facility Project,” together with 
any accounts and subaccounts therein created in Section 501 of the Indenture. 
 
 “Acts” shall mean, collectively, article VI, section 27(b) of the Missouri constitution and 

sections 100.010 through 100.200, inclusive, and 70.210 through 70.220, inclusive, of the Revised 

Statutes of Missouri, all as from time to time amended. 
 
 “Additional Payment” shall mean an additional payment made (or deemed made) by the 

Company to the Trustee with respect to the Bonds from time to time after the initial issuance of 

the Bonds in accordance with Section 208 of the Indenture, the Bond Purchase Agreement, and 

the Lease. 
 
 “Affiliate” shall mean an individual, corporation, association, partnership, limited liability 

company, joint venture, trust, estate, or other entity or organization, or any other such person or 

entity which, (i) directly or indirectly, Controls, is in common Control of, or is Controlled by the 

Company or a parent of the Company or (ii) a majority of the members of the Directing Body of 

which are members of the Directing Body of the Company.  

 

 “Agreement” shall mean this Development Agreement dated as of the Effective Date by 

and among the City, the EDC, and the Company including all duly authorized amendments thereto. 

 

 “Applicable Regulations” shall mean all federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules, regulations, executive orders and codes including, without limitation, those of the State of 

Missouri, the City, and the County pertaining to or affecting the Property or any portion thereof or 

the Project. 

 

 “Bonds” shall mean, collectively, the City’s Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds 

(EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and Distribution Facility Project) 

Series 2023 of any series issued from time to time pursuant to the Indenture, and subject to the 

terms of this Agreement, in a maximum total aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 

$55,000,000. 

 

 “Bond Counsel” shall have the meaning and use attributed to that term in the Indenture. 

 

“Bond Counsel Services” shall mean professional legal services specifically related to the 

issuance of the Bonds including, without limitation, coordination, drafting and review of Bond 

Documents; preparation of a transcript of the proceedings; preparation of notices and, as requested, 

attendance at meetings at which Bond Documents are approved and adopted; and if warranted and 

justified under application of customary practices and relevant ethical and legal standards, 

47

WS #1.



 

3 

 
 

 

rendering of an approving opinion of Bond Counsel for the Bonds regarding the validity and 

binding effect of the Bonds and the source of payment and security for the Bonds. 

 “Bond Documents” shall mean, collectively, the forms of the Bonds, the Indenture, the 

Lease, the Bond Purchase Agreement and such other transactional documents as are necessary or 

convenient to allow the City to issue and secure the Bonds and thereby to obtain the financing of 

the Project and the Financed Equipment and the Financed Facilities, all as contemplated in this 

Agreement. 

 

 “Bond Purchase Agreement” shall mean the agreement dated as of the date of closing on 

the Bonds, by and through which the City agrees to issue and the Company agrees to purchase the 

Bonds. 

 

 “Business Day” shall mean a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the 

State of Missouri.  All other references to “days” shall mean calendar days.  If the date for 

performance of any covenant or obligation under this Agreement shall fall on a Saturday, Sunday 

or legal holiday in the State of Missouri, then the date for performance thereof shall be extended 

to the next Business Day.  

  

 “City” shall mean the City of Moberly, Missouri, a city of the third classification and 

municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri and having a 

principal office at 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270, its successors and assigns. 

 

 “City Council” shall mean the duly elected and serving governing body of the City. 

 

 “Closing” shall mean the closing on the conveyance by the Company to the City of the 

Property and the contemporaneous issuance by the City of the Bonds. 

 

 “Closing Date” shall have the meaning and use attributed to this term in the Bond Purchase 

Agreement.   

 

“Collector” means the City Treasurer of the City or his designee or, at the direction of the 

City, the Collector of Revenue of Randolph County, Missouri. 

  

“Company” shall mean EquipmentShare.com Inc., a Delaware corporation duly 

authorized to do business in Missouri and having a principal office at 5710 Bull Run Drive, 

Columbia, Missouri 65201, together with its Affiliates, successors and assigns. 

 

 “Control” shall mean, with respect to any Affiliate, with respect to: (a) a corporation 

having stock, the ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the securities (as defined 

in Section 2(1) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) of any class or classes, the holders of 

which are ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, entitled to elect a majority of the Directing 

Body of such corporation; (b) a not for profit corporation not having stock, having the power to 

elect or appoint, directly or indirectly, at least a majority of the members of the Directing Body of 

such corporation; or (c) any other entity, the power to direct the management of such entity through 

48

WS #1.



 

4 

 
 

 

the ownership of at least a majority of its voting securities or the right to designate or elect at least 

a majority of the members of its Directing Body, by contract or otherwise. 

 

 “County” shall mean the County of Randolph, Missouri. 

 

 “Directing Body” shall mean with respect to: (a) a corporation having stock, such 

corporation’s board of directors and the owners, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the 

securities (as defined in Section 2(1) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) of any class or 

classes, the holders of which are ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, entitled to elect a 

majority of the corporation’s directors (both of which groups shall be considered a Directing 

Body); (b) a not for profit corporation not having stock, such corporation’s members if the 

members have complete discretion to elect the corporation’s directors, or the corporation’s 

directors if the corporation’s members do not have such discretion or if such corporation has no 

members; and (c) any other entity, its governing board or body. 

 

“EDC” shall mean the Moberly Area Economic Development Corporation, a Missouri 

nonprofit corporation having a principal office at 115 North Williams Street, Moberly, Missouri 

65270. 

 

 “Effective Date” shall mean ___________, 2023, the date first set forth in this Agreement. 

 

 “Environmental Laws” shall mean and include the Resource Conservation and Recovery 

Act (42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq.), as amended by the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 

1984; the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. 

§9601 et seq.), as amended by the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986; the 

Hazardous Materials Transportation Act (49 U.S.C. §5101 et seq.); the Toxic Substances Control 

Act (15 U.S.C. §2601 et seq.); the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.); the Clean Water Act 

(33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq.); the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (7 U.S.C. §136 

et seq.); the Occupational Safety and Health Act (29 U.S.C. §651 et seq.); any state super-lien and 

environmental clean-up statutes; and all other applicable federal, state and local environmental 

laws, including, without limitation, obligations under the common law, ordinances, rules, 

regulations and publications, and any other legal requirements, now or hereafter existing relating 

to the pollution and protection of the environment, the preservation or reclamation of natural 

resources, the management or release of Hazardous Substances, or to human health or safety.  

  

 “Financed Equipment” shall mean collectively, the machinery, equipment, furnishings, 

information systems hardware, special tools and other personal property acquired or installed or 

acquired for installation in the Project pursuant to the Lease and paid for in whole or in part from 

the Acquisition Fund, all as listed from time to time on Exhibit B to the Indenture which exhibit is 

hereby incorporated by reference in this Agreement as amended and supplemented from time to 

time as provided in the Indenture, together with all replacements thereof and substitutions therefor. 

 

 “Financed Facilities” shall mean collectively, the real property improvements at the 

Property in connection with the Project made or to be made subsequent to the Effective Date 

pursuant to this Agreement and the Lease and paid for in whole or in part from the Acquisition 

49

WS #1.



 

5 

 
 

 

Fund, all as further identified and described from time to time on Exhibit A to the Indenture, which 

exhibit is hereby incorporated by reference in this Agreement. 

 

 “Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Job” shall mean either: (i) a regular “full-time employee” 

performing duties at the Financed Facilities or (ii) in the case of part-time employment, two (2) or 

more persons performing duties at the Financed Facilities whose aggregate regular weekly hours 

total at least 35 hours and receiving healthcare and other customary Company benefits; provided 

that neither independent contractors, contract personnel utilized by the Company, nor any 

employee or agent not permanently based and occupied full time at the Financed Facilities shall 

constitute a Full Time Equivalent Job for purposes of this Agreement.  For purposes of this 

definition, a “full-time employee” is a regular employee that is paid by salary or that is paid, on 

the average, for over 35 hours per week at the Financed Facilities and receives healthcare and other 

customary Company benefits. 

 

 “Hazardous Substances” shall mean: (i) those substances (whether solid, liquid or gas), 

included within the definitions of or identified as “hazardous substances,” “hazardous materials,” 

or “toxic substances,” in or pursuant to, without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental 

Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq.), as amended by 

Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (Pub. L. 99-499, 100 Stat. 1613); the 

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (42 U.S.C., §6901 et seq.); the Clean Water Act 

(33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq.); the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. §651 et 

seq.); and the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §5101 et seq.; or in the 

regulations promulgated pursuant to the aforesaid laws, all as amended; (ii) those substances listed 

in the United States Department of Transportation Table (40 CFR 172.101 and amendments 

thereto) or by the Environmental Protection Agency (or any successor agency) as hazardous 

substances (40 CFR Part 302 and amendments thereto); (iii) any material, waste, substance, 

pollutant or contamination which is or contains (A) petroleum, its derivatives, by-products and 

other hydrocarbons, including crude oil or any fraction thereof, natural gas, or synthetic gas usable 

for fuel or any mixture thereof; (B) asbestos and/or asbestos-containing materials in any form that 

is or could become friable; (C) polychlorinated biphenyls; (D) flammable explosives; (E) 

infectious or medical waste; or (F) radioactive materials; and (iv) such other substances, materials, 

wastes, pollutants and contaminants which are or become regulated as hazardous, toxic or “special 

wastes” under applicable local, state or federal law, or the United States government, or which are 

classified as hazardous, toxic or as “special wastes” under any Environmental Laws. 

  

 “Indenture” shall mean the Trust Indenture for the Bonds, together with such amendments 

and supplements permitted thereto. 

 

 “Initial Funding Agreement” shall mean that certain Initial Funding Agreement dated as 

of February 1, 2022 by and between EDC and the Company. 

 

 “Industrial Development Plan” shall mean an Industrial Development Plan and Costs-

Benefits Analysis for the Project meeting the requirements of the Acts and specifically of section 

100.050 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended. 

 

50

WS #1.



 

6 

 
 

 

 “Jobs” shall mean the average number of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs at the Financed 

Facilities during the applicable Testing Period, as certified annually to the City by the Company 

subject to verification by the EDC on behalf of the City, all in accordance with Article IV of this 

Agreement; provided that, for purposes of compliance with Section 4.5 of this Agreement, Jobs 

shall be deemed to be the average, rounded to the nearest whole number, of monthly actual 

averages of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs at the Financed Facilities during such Testing Period 

such that, by way of illustration, if in a particular Testing Period Three (3) months thereof each 

average 100 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs, Four (4) months thereof each average 125 Full 

Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs, and Five (5) months thereof each average 130 Full Time Equivalent 

(FTE) Jobs, the number of Jobs for such testing Period shall be 121 as illustrated by the following 

formula: 

 

(100+100+100+125+125+125+125+130+130+130+130+130)/12=120.8 say 121 

 

 “Land Use Approvals” shall mean all applicable subdivision, plat, improvement plan, 

building permit, re-zoning, and other zoning change request approvals, site plan approvals, 

conditional use permit approvals, design approvals and similar required approvals of the City relating 

to the use of land and improvements. 

 

 “Lease” shall mean the lease purchase agreement between the City, as lessor, and the 

Company, as lessee related to the acquisition and financing of the Project, the Property, the 

Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment, as amended and supplemented from time to time 

in accordance with the Lease, the Indenture, and this Agreement. 

 

 “Notice of Acceptance” shall mean a written notice from the City to the Company 

indicating the City’s satisfaction with the due diligence activities conducted pursuant to Section 

2.2 of this Agreement and the City’s readiness to accept conveyance of the Property from the 

Company. 

 
 “Outstanding” with reference to the Bonds, shall have the meaning and use attributed to 
that term in the Indenture. 
 
 “Permitted Encumbrances” shall mean those encumbrances of record on the Project as 

shown on Schedule B to an Owner’s Policy of Title Insurance issued by the Title Company or 

other encumbrances accepted by the City in writing. 
 
 “Project” shall mean, collectively, the renovation and refurbishing of the Property as a 

construction equipment refurbishment, rental, sales, service and tracking facility including, 

without limitation, the construction and equipping of the Financed Facilities and the installation 

of the Financed Equipment all as and when annually accepted by the City in accordance with the 

Lease and the Indenture, and necessary to facilitate the implementation of the Project which is 

anticipated to result in significant job creation and capital investment within the City and the region 

provided that during the term of the Bonds, the Project shall be deemed at any time and from time 

to time to include only those portions of the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed 

Equipment actually conveyed to, accepted by, and then currently held by the City for a maximum 

period in each case of Twelve (12) years. 

51

WS #1.



 

7 

 
 

 

 

 “Property” shall mean the real property and improvements existing as of the Effective Date 

comprising a total of approximately Sixteen (16) acres within the corporate limits of the City and 

known and numbered as 1855 Robertson Road, all as more particularly described in Exhibit C to 

the Indenture, which exhibit is hereby incorporated by reference in this Agreement. 

 

 “Table” shall mean the Table of Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount on the Bonds, 

as reflected in the records maintained by the Trustee as provided in the Bonds and the Indenture. 

  

 “Target Jobs” shall mean, in the calendar year following the commencement of operations 

at  the Project, One Hundred Fifty (150), representing the total number of Full Time Equivalent 

(FTE) Jobs to be provided by the Company at the Financed Facilities in any Testing Period while 

any Bonds are Outstanding, all as provided in this Agreement. 

 

  “Testing Period” shall mean (a) the first full calendar year beginning on January 1 and 

ending on December 31 immediately following the calendar year in which operations are 

commenced at the Project or January 1, 2024, whichever is earlier; and (b) each full calendar year 

thereafter during which any Bonds are Outstanding, all as provided in this Agreement.  
 
 “Third Party Action” shall mean any action, proceeding or demand initiated at any time 

by a party other than a named party to this Agreement and directed to the City, the EDC, or the 

Trustee or naming the City, the EDC, or the Trustee or any of their respective officials, officers, 

agents, attorneys, employees or representatives as a party and arising out of the issuance of the 

Bonds, the Bond Documents, the Property (but only during the period held in fee by the City), the 

Project or any portion thereof (but only during the period held in fee by the City), the tax 

exemptions contemplated by this Agreement, the Lease, or this Agreement, or any portion thereof 

or any actions taken pursuant to any of the foregoing. 
 
 “Title Company” shall mean a title insurance company providing services in the County 
selected by the City with the consent of the Company, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed. 
 
 “Title Policy” shall mean an owner’s policy of title insurance for the Property issued in 

favor of the City in the amount of the initial issuance of the Bonds issued by the Title Company 

and containing terms reasonably acceptable to the City and subject to Permitted Encumbrances 

and such other exceptions as allowed by the City, in the City’s sole discretion. 
 
 “Trustee” shall mean any trustee or successor under the Indenture. 
 
 Section 1.2.  Rules of Construction.  Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed 

and construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders.  Unless the context 

shall otherwise indicate, the words importing the singular number shall include the plural and vice 

versa, and words importing person shall include firms, associations and corporations, including 

public bodies, as well as natural persons. 

 

52

WS #1.



 

8 

 
 

 

 Section 1.3. Computation of Time.  Wherever this Agreement calls for the performance 

of any act by reference to a day or number of days, to a month or number of months or to a year 

or number of years, each such computation shall be made based upon calendar days, calendar 

months, and calendar years, as applicable unless otherwise expressly provided. 

 

ARTICLE II 

CONVEYANCE AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY 

 

 Section 2.1 Conveyances Required; Lease; Company Payments.  Contemporaneous 

with the issuance of the Bonds: (i) the Company shall convey to the City marketable fee simple 

title to the Property, subject only to Permitted Encumbrances; and (ii) the City shall lease to the 

Company via the Lease the Property for a term co-terminus with the term of the Bonds, all in 

accordance with terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Documents.  At Closing, the Company 

shall (i) pay (or receive credit for if pre-paid) as purchase price for the Bonds: (a) all closing costs 

incurred in connection with the conveyance of the Property contemplated by this Agreement, 

including charges related to the issuance of the Title Policy; (b) all costs and expenses associated 

with the preparation and review of this Agreement in accordance with the Initial Funding 

Agreement; (c) all closing costs, fees and charges associated with issuance of the Bonds; (ii) deliver 

to the City a special warranty deed and any other necessary instruments of transfer for the Property; 

and (iii) deliver to the City the Title Policy or a written binding commitment to issue the Title Policy.  

From time to time, as the Company constructs the Project: (i) the City shall issue in multiple annual 

series Bonds in aggregate principal amounts in each such series corresponding to the costs of the 

portions of the Project then completed or installed, but not previously financed or conveyed to the 

City under this Agreement and the Bond Documents; (ii) using amounts then provided in the 

applicable accounts within the Acquisition Fund and from no other source whatsoever, the City 

shall acquire the applicable portions of the Project for the acquisition prices set forth in the 

Indenture or any applicable supplement thereto; and (iii) the City shall lease to the Company via 

the Lease or applicable amendments thereto the portions of the Project so acquired for a term co-

terminus with the term of the Bonds.  The Company and the City each intend that payments made 

from time to time under the Lease shall at all times be equal to and timed to coincide with the due 

dates of, and pledged to pay, all applicable principal and interest as the same shall become due and 

payable with respect to the applicable series of Bonds. 

 

Section 2.2. City’s Due Diligence.  Prior to Closing, the City  may take the following 

actions with respect to the Property, which, other than the costs of the Title Policy, shall be at the 

sole cost and expense of the City: 

 

(i) Obtain and review a commitment for the Title Policy; 

 

(ii) Obtain and review a survey of the Property prepared by a licensed Missouri 

land surveyor; and 

 

(iii) Perform or obtain such satisfactory inspections as the City deems necessary 

or appropriate, specifically including, without limitation, an environmental hazard 

assessment.   

 

53

WS #1.



 

9 

 
 

 

The delivery of the Notice of Acceptance shall be deemed to be an acceptance of the results 

of such inspections and matters and a waiver of any objection by the City as to all such matters. 

 

  The Company hereby grants permission to the City and its agents before delivery of the 

Notice of Acceptance to come upon the Property for the purpose of conducting the activities 

described in this Section 2.2 at the sole cost, expense, and risk of the City. 

 

 Section 2.3. Closing; Company’s Representations.  Closing on the conveyance of the 

Property shall be through an escrow with the Title Company acting as escrowee.  Conveyance 

shall be by special warranty deed in a form reasonably acceptable to the City and the Company 

subject to any lien for real property taxes and assessments for the year in which the Closing occurs, 

building and zoning laws, ordinances and restrictions, utility easements, recorded easements, rights 

of way of record, deed restrictions and all other matters of record, use and occupancy restrictions, 

and rights to coal and other minerals with the right to mine and remove the same.  At Closing, the 

City and the Company shall execute and deliver customary affidavits and such other reasonable 

documents as may be required by the Title Company and the City and the Company shall each 

deliver to the other such other documentation as is reasonably requested by such party.  The 

Company hereby represents and warrants to the City and to the EDC, jointly and severally, as of 

the date of this Agreement and as of the date of Closing as follows: 

 

 (i) The Company possesses the full right to convey fee title to the Property 

without the necessity of obtaining the consent of any person not a signatory to this 

Agreement and this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the 

Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with the terms hereof; 

 

(ii) The Company possesses good and marketable title to the Property, subject 

to those exceptions that may be disclosed in any commitment for title insurance obtained 

by the City and issued by the Title Company for the Property, and free and clear of liens, 

security interests, encumbrances, leases, options, rights of first refusal and restrictions of 

every kind and description and any liens pursuant to indebtedness for borrowed money 

which will be discharged at Closing and there are no leases, options, contracts, 

maintenance, management, repair or other contracts, equipment leases or other similar 

agreements of any kind relating to or affecting the Property or any part thereof which will 

survive the Closing or be binding upon the City.  The parties hereby agree that the 

Company’s representations in this Section 2.3(ii) shall be deemed merged into the special 

warranty deed for the Property to be executed and delivered by the Company at Closing; 

 

(iii) There are no claims, causes of action or litigation or administrative 

proceedings pending, or to the Company’s actual knowledge threatened, in respect to the 

ownership, operation or condition of the Property or the surface water on the Property or 

groundwater beneath the Property, including, without limitation, disputes of tenants, 

employees, government authorities, environmental groups, prior owners, utilities, 

contractors, adjoining landowners or suppliers of goods and services; 

 

(iv) The Company has not received any notice: (A) from any federal, state, 

county or municipal governmental authority alleging any fire, health, safety, building, 

54

WS #1.



 

10 

 
 

 

pollution, environmental, zoning or other violation of law, including, without limitation, 

any Environmental Law, in respect to the Property or any part thereof which has not been 

entirely corrected; or (B) from any insurance company of any defects or inadequacies in 

the portions of the Property or any part thereof which would adversely affect the 

insurability of the Property or cause the imposition of extraordinary premiums therefor; 

and  

 

(v) The condition of the portion of the Property do not violate any applicable 

governmental laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or codes, including, without limitation, 

any Environmental Law. 

 

 The Company shall promptly notify the City if any of the Company’s representations under 

this Section 2.3 are or become untrue immediately upon the Company’s discovery thereof.   

 

THE CITY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE CITY IS ACQUIRING THE 

PROPERTY IN “AS IS/WHERE IS” CONDITION WITH ALL FAULTS.  OTHER THAN 

AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 2.3, AND ENVIRONMENTAL 

WARRANTIES SET FORTH OR REFERENCED IN THIS AGREEMENT, THE 

COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION WHATSOEVER 

REGARDING THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, EXPRESS OR 

IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY 

PARTICULAR USE RELATIVE TO THE PROPERTY. 

ARTICLE III 

CHAPTER 100 BONDS; LEASE; TARGET JOBS 
 

 Section 3.1. Terms of Bonds.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement and the Bond 

Purchase Agreement, the City shall issue the Bonds in multiple annual series as evidenced by 

endorsements (each such endorsement after the initial issuance of the Bonds to be accompanied 

by an Additional Payment) in principal amounts as set forth from time to time on the Table, all in 

accordance with Section 208 of the Indenture, in the maximum total aggregate principal amount 

of not to exceed $55,000,000; provided that (i) the terms of each series of or endorsements to the 

Bonds issued pursuant to this Section 3.1 (and the accompanying period of ownership by the City 

of the Property or portion of the Financed Facilities or Financed Equipment to which such issuance 

of Bonds or Additional Payment pertains) shall be for a maximum period of Twelve (12) years 

after the date of such endorsement set forth on the Table, it being the intent of the City and the 

Company that the full value of the Property and all materials, construction, and equipment 

purchased by the Company for the Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment shall be exempt 

from all State of Missouri, City and County property taxes from the time ownership of such 

Property, Financed Facilities, and Financed Equipment or portion thereof is transferred to the City 

and continuing for a Twelve (12) year period beginning in the calendar year following the date of 

such transfer; and (ii) the initial issuance of the Bonds shall occur contemporaneous with the 

conveyance by the Company to the City of the Property.  Pursuant to the Initial Funding 

Agreement, the City has selected Bond Counsel, and, if the City desires to do so, the City may 

select such financial advisors and consultants as the City deems necessary from time to time for 

the issuance of the Bonds, the fees of Bond Counsel and such additional professional consultants 

55

WS #1.



 

11 

 
 

 

hired by the City to be paid pursuant to the terms of the Initial Funding Agreement and this Section 

3.1.  The City through Bond Counsel shall prepare all documents, including the Industrial 

Development Plan, required by the Acts, applicable Missouri law or otherwise necessary or 

desirable for issuance of the Bonds.  At Closing, the Company shall pay to the Trustee for the 

account of the City or EDC, as directed, (A) all closing, recording and titling costs incurred in 

connection with the conveyance of the Property to the City and the leasing of the Property from 

the City as contemplated by this Agreement, including charges related to the issuance of any title 

policy issued with respect to the Property, (B) all costs and expenses of EDC set forth in the Initial 

Funding Agreement and remaining unpaid; and (C) all Costs of Issuance (as that term is used and 

defined in the Indenture) of the initial issuance of Bonds; and, in consideration of the foregoing, 

the City shall issue the initial series of the Bonds; provided that in the event for any reason this 

Agreement or the Project is terminated by the Company prior to Closing and payment of all 

amounts due under the Initial Funding Agreement, the Company agrees to pay in addition to 

amounts indicated in the Initial Funding Agreement fees and expenses for Bond Counsel Services 

actually provided based upon time and expenses actually incurred through the date of termination 

at the firm’s then current standard hourly rates.  The Bonds shall bear interest at such rates, shall 

be subject to redemption and shall have such terms as the City shall reasonably determine.  The 

Bonds shall be secured solely by the payments under the Lease, and in no way shall the City have 

liability to make any payment with respect to the Bonds except from amounts credited to or 

received by the City under the Lease and other Bond Documents.  Other than the security interests 

in the Lease granted to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture in connection with the issuance of the 

Bonds, the City may not and will not otherwise encumber, pledge or grant any other security 

interest in or with respect to the Financed Equipment, the Financed Facilities, the Property or any 

portion thereof, or the Project. 

 

 Section 3.2. Lease of the Property, Project; Periodic Company Conveyances.  On 

the Closing Date the City shall lease the Property to the Company as provided in and subject to 

the terms of the Lease.  From time to time, as the Company constructs the Project or upon 

substantial completion thereof, all at the option and reasonable discretion of the Company (i) the 

Company shall convey to the City by special warranty deed or applicable amendment thereto, or 

by bill of sale, as applicable, the portions of the Project then completed or installed, but not 

previously financed or as substantially completed, as the Company elects;  provided that any such 

election shall be made not more frequently than annually on or about but not later than December 

1 in any year, and (ii) the City shall lease to the Company via supplements to the Lease the portions 

of the Project so conveyed for the term set forth in the Lease and co-terminus with the term of the 

applicable series of Bonds.  The Company and the City each intend that payments made from time 

to time under the Lease as supplemented from time to time shall at all times be equal to and timed 

to coincide with the due dates of, and pledged to pay, all applicable principal and interest as the 

same shall become due and payable with respect to the Bonds.  Upon the maturity of the Bonds as 

provided in Section 3.1 of this Agreement, the City shall promptly convey to the Company by 

special warranty deed or by bill of sale, as applicable, and at no cost to the Company other than 

the costs provided in the Indenture and the Lease, together with the costs of recording any such 

deed or bill of sale, the Property and the Project and shall notify the County’s assessor of such 

conveyance.  The City hereby represents and warrants that during the term of the Lease the City 

shall not take any action inconsistent with the Company’s rights under the Lease nor cause by City 

action an encumbrance on the Property other than that which may have existed as of the Closing 

56

WS #1.



 

12 

 
 

 

Date.  At the time of the termination of the Lease and conveyance of the Property the Company 

shall have the right, but not the obligation to purchase title insurance at the Company’s sole cost 

and expense. 

 

 Section 3.3. Obligations with Respect to Tax Forbearance.  The Company anticipates 

that upon conveyance to and titling in the name of the City of the Property and, from time to time, 

the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment in accordance with Section 3.2 of this 

Agreement, the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment will be exempt from 

property taxes (whether real, personal or otherwise) levied by any applicable taxing jurisdiction 

for so long as the City continues to own the Property, the Financed Facilities, or the Financed 

Equipment.  During the period the City owns the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed 

Equipment, the City agrees to take all actions within the City’s control to obtain and maintain in 

effect such exemption from property taxes related to the Property, the Financed Facilities and the 

Financed Equipment or portions thereof then owned by the City, including any filings required 

with any governmental authorities; provided, however, that neither the City nor the EDC is 

guaranteeing the exemption from taxation of the City’s fee interest in the Property, the Financed 

Facilities or the Financed Equipment or any portion thereof or of the leasehold interest of the 

Company therein as contemplated by the issuing of the Bonds, and the parties hereto acknowledge 

and agree that neither the City nor EDC nor their respective officials, officers, directors, agents, 

attorneys or employees, shall be liable for any failure of the State of Missouri, any agency thereof 

or any other taxing authority, or of any court of competent jurisdiction to recognize any exemption 

contemplated in this Section 3.3 or by this Agreement.  In the event a levy or assessment of 

property taxes is imposed on the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment, the 

City, at the Company’s written request and expense, shall fully cooperate with the Company in all 

commercially reasonable ways to prevent or remove any such levy or assessment; provided, 

however, that the City shall not be liable for any costs or expenses resulting from such cooperation 

and may withhold cooperation with the Company until evidence is provided, to the City’s 

reasonable satisfaction, that demonstrates that the City shall not incur such costs.  The City and 

the Company each covenant and agree that the property tax exemption contemplated in this 

Agreement by the issuance of the Bonds shall only apply to the City’s fee interest in the Property, 

the Financed Equipment and the Financed Facilities.  Any property taxes levied against the interest 

of the Company in the Property or the Project by any taxing jurisdiction shall be and remain solely 

the responsibility of the Company.  In the event such a levy or assessment should occur, the City 

shall, at the request and expense of the Company, fully cooperate with the Company in all 

commercially reasonable ways to prevent and/or challenge such levy or assessment.  In the event 

that it is finally determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that all or any part the Project, the 

Lease, the Bond Documents or any portion thereof, the Bonds or any endorsement thereto, or this 

Agreement, shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional in whole or in part such that the Company 

is prevented from enjoying the rights and privileges of the Company hereunder, the City, upon 

written request and at the expense of the Company, shall take such lawful steps to make available 

to the Company and the Property such alternative property tax relief available pursuant to then-

current Missouri law for a duration and in an amount to provide and restore to the Company to the 

extent lawfully available, the economic benefit to the Company of this Article III. 

 

 Section 3.4. Payments in Lieu of Taxes; Company’s Obligations; City Remedies for 

Non-Payment.  During the term of the Lease, the Company shall make with respect to the Property 

57

WS #1.



 

13 

 
 

 

payments in lieu of taxes (each a “PILOT”) indicated on the schedule below, as applicable, of that 

amount specified or that percentage which would have been levied and collected on the land and 

improvements to such Property and on the personalty located or installed therein or thereon in such 

year as determined from time to time by the Randolph County Assessor.  At any time during the 

term of the Lease reimbursements pursuant to section 100.050.4 of the Revised Statutes of 

Missouri, as amended, or successor enactments are required to be made, the Company shall be and 

shall remain solely responsible for making such reimbursements as and when due and the 

Company shall indemnify, defend and hold City, the EDC and their respective officials, agents, 

attorneys, employees and representatives acting in any capacity harmless from and against any 

action, proceeding, claim or demand initiated at any time by any party arising out of any 

reimbursement claimed, demanded or paid pursuant to section 100.050.4 of the Revised Statutes 

of Missouri, as amended, or successor enactments. 

 

Schedule of Required Payments in Lieu of Taxes 

Lease 

Year 

 Lease Term Start 

Date  

 Abatement 

Year 

 % 

Exemption 

 % PILOT 

Required 1     

1  ____/___/2023  1  N/A  -0- 

2  1/1/2024  2  100%  -0- 

3  1/1/2025  3  100%  -0- 

4  1/1/2026  4  100%  -0- 

5  1/1/2027  5  100%  -0- 

6  1/1/2028  6  100%  -0- 

7  1/1/2029  7  100%  -0- 

8  1/1/2030  8  100%  -0- 

9  1/1/2031  9  50%    50% 2 

10  1/1/2032  10  50%  50% 

11  1/1/2033  11  50%  50% 

12  1/1/2034  12  50%  50% 
 

1  
Lease Term ends on the earlier of (i) December 31, 2034 or (ii) with respect to each portion of the Bonds represented 

by an annual endorsement of principal, December 1 of that year which is twelve (12) years from the year of such annual 

endorsement as set forth on the Table to which an Additional Payment/Principal Amount Advanced (all as provided in 

Section 208(e) of the Indenture) pertains, unless earlier terminated in accordance with its terms. 
2  

Whether or not the Project is completed and conveyed in sequential phases, the percentage of PILOTs due in any 

year shall apply to all portions of the Property, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment then accepted and 

held in fee by the City.  Thus, each portion of the Project will obtain a maximum 12 year abatement. 

58

WS #1.



 

14 

 
 

 

 Payments in lieu of taxes required under this Section 3.4 shall be made as provided in 

section 100.050.3 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, amended, and shall be due and payable to 

the Collector not later than November 30 in the calendar year due.  The Company, for itself and 

its successors and assigns, hereby covenants and warrants to the City that the Company shall make 

payment promptly to the Collector upon notice of all payments in lieu of taxes as and when due 

from time to time under this Agreement.  The obligation to make payments in lieu of taxes 

including, without limitation, any and all additional payments in lieu of taxes required pursuant to 

Article III of this Agreement, shall constitute a personal obligation of the Company and a lien 

against the Property and the Project, enforceable by the City in the City’s sole discretion: (a) in the 

same manner as is provided for general real property taxes, (b) in the same manner as provided in 

section 67.469 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, or (c) any other means provided 

by law for the enforcement of liens, as the City may elect and the City and the Company each 

further agree that any unsatisfied obligation to make payments in lieu of taxes under this 

Agreement shall remain a lien on the Property and the Project until paid in full through voluntary 

payment by the Company or through collection by the City as provided in this Section 3.4.  The 

City shall be entitled to record a notice of lien in the records of the Randolph County Recorder of 

Deeds against the Property and the Project if any payment in lieu of taxes is not paid within thirty 

(30) days of notice by the City to the Company.  In the event the Company fails to pay any such 

payment in lieu of taxes within one hundred eighty (180) days of notice by the City to the 

Company, the City, in the City’s sole and absolute discretion and in addition to any other remedies 

that may be available to the City at law or in equity, may declare the Lease in default, immediately 

invoke the Company’s obligation under Section 3.7 of this Agreement to purchase the Property, 

the Project, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment and, upon conveyance of the 

Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment to the Company (which 

the Company hereby agrees to accept) and defeasance and cancellation of the Bonds, terminate 

this Agreement and any further rights of the Company to further property tax relief. 

 

 Section 3.5. Maintenance of Target Jobs Required; Payments in Lieu of Taxes as 

Additional Rent.  The parties hereto contemplate and intend that, notwithstanding the term of the 

Bonds and the duration of the City’s fee interests in the Property, or any portions of the Financed 

Facilities or the Financed Equipment or anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, that the 

Company shall enjoy property tax relief with respect to the Property, the Financed Equipment, and 

the Financed Facilities beginning at the time any portion of the Property, such Financed 

Equipment, or such Financed Facilities is conveyed to the City (it being understood that the intent 

of this Agreement is that the entire Project shall be so acquired by the City and held by the City) 

and continuing thereafter through the end of a period of Twelve (12) years from the date such 

portion of the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment is conveyed to and 

accepted by the City, all as further provided in the Indenture.  The parties hereto further 

acknowledge and agree that the Company anticipates the creation of at least one hundred fifty 

(150) new Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs at the Property and the Financed Facilities resulting 

from the Project and that the creation of such new Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs constitutes a 

material inducement to the City and the EDC to enter into this Agreement and to the City to issue 

the Bonds in accordance with this Agreement.  Accordingly, and to assure the foregoing, the 

Company hereby agrees that, with respect to each Testing Period, the Company shall, 

notwithstanding any tax exemption or abatement contemplated by this Agreement, make with 

respect to the Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment which are titled in the name of the City 

59

WS #1.



 

15 

 
 

 

on January 1 of such calendar year, such payments in lieu of taxes as are required by this Section 

3.5, if any, as Additional Rent under the Lease no later than April 15 of the year following each 

Testing Period.  Such Additional Rent, if any, shall be based upon the number of Full Time 

Equivalent (FTE) Jobs at the Financed Facilities in the applicable Testing Period as certified by 

the Company to the City and the EDC in accordance with the following procedure and schedule: 

 

 (i) On or before each January 31st following the end of each Testing Period, the 

Company shall determine and certify to the City and the EDC in an annual report the 

number of Jobs at the Facilities during the applicable Testing Period.  If the EDC so desires, 

the EDC may verify the number of Jobs certified in such report, provided that in the case 

of any such verification activities EDC shall notify the Company and the City in writing of 

the results of such activities on or before the 60th day following the Company’s submission 

of the applicable report.  If the EDC provides no such notice on or before such 60th day, the 

Company’s report shall be deemed verified and accurate as certified for purposes of this 

Section 3.4; and   

 

(ii) In the event in any such Testing Period the number of Jobs is less than the 

Target Jobs, the Company shall make with respect to such Testing Period not later than 

April 15 of the calendar year following such Testing Period as Additional Rent under the 

Lease a payment in lieu of taxes which shall be equal to the amount which would have 

been levied and collected upon the basis of the “true value in money” of such Property, 

Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment then titled in the name of the City during such 

Testing Period, as determined from time to time in accordance with applicable law 

including laws pertaining to re-assessment and rights of appeal applicable to real and 

personal property assessments.  Such Additional Rent shall be calculated as follows: the 

“true value in money” of the land, improvements, and personalty constituting the Project 

and titled in the name of the City determined as aforesaid (i) multiplied by 0.32 (in the case 

of the Property and the Financed Facilities) or 0.33 (in the case of the Financed Equipment); 

(ii) divided by $100; (iii) multiplied by the combined ad valorem levies for all affected 

taxing jurisdictions; and (iv) multiplied by the fraction resulting from the number of Target 

Jobs minus the number of Jobs at the Financed Facilities as certified by the Company and 

verified by the EDC divided by the number of Target Jobs.  By way of illustration, the 

applicable calculation formula is set forth below: 

 

“true value in money” x 0.32/0.33 ÷ $100 x combined ad valorem levy amount x 

(Target Jobs - Jobs, subject to verification) ÷ Target Jobs 

= Additional Rent payment; 

      

 provided that, in the event that in any Testing Period the number of Jobs equals or exceeds 

the Target Jobs, no such calculation shall be performed for such year and no Additional 

Rent in the form of payment in lieu of taxes shall be required for such year; and provided 

further that in the event of a sustained period of significant decline in the level of aggregate 

economic activity within the United States or the State of Missouri (as distinguished from 

(a) business or other decisions within the discretion or control of the Company or of 

Affiliates, including, without limitation, parent, assignees, subsidiaries, or nominees or any 

of them; or (b) other external factors not related to decline in national or state-wide 

60

WS #1.



 

16 

 
 

 

economic activity) and only in such event, which results in a substantial reduction in the 

number of Jobs at the Financed Facilities during a Testing Period, the Company may 

request in a writing specifying and documenting the conditions which affect or result in the 

reduction of Jobs submitted to the City Council that, notwithstanding the Company's failure 

to meet Target Job requirements during such Testing Period, the City waive or reduce the 

amount of Additional Rent due during for Testing Period and the City Council, upon due 

consideration and a finding in its sole discretion that: (i) a sustained period of significant 

decline in the level of aggregate national or state-wide economic activity has occurred; (ii) 

that such decline has caused a substantial reduction in the number of Jobs at the Financed 

Facilities; and (iii) that such reduction is not due to business or other decisions within the 

discretion or control of the Company, or of its Affiliates, parent, assignees, subsidiaries, or 

nominees or other external factors not related to decline in national economic activity, may 

waive or reduce such amount of Additional Rent due during for such Testing Period. 

 

Additional Rent payments required and made under this Section 3.5 shall be and shall be 

deemed to be payments in lieu of taxes and shall be made and distributed as provided in section 

100.050.3 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended.  The obligation to make the foregoing 

payments in lieu of taxes shall constitute a lien against the Property, the Financed Facilities and 

the Financed Equipment or portions thereof to which such obligation applies, enforceable by the 

City and subject to the same remedies for non-payment as provided in Section 3.4 of this 

Agreement; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, 

the Additional Rent payments constituting payments in lieu of taxes required by this Section 3.5 

shall be the sole remedy available to the City in the event the Company fails to produce the Target 

Jobs or if the number of Jobs at the Project in any Testing Period is less than the Target Jobs; 

provided further that notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, in no event 

shall the combination of the payments in lieu of taxes required under this Section 3.5 exceed the 

ad valorem taxes on the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment that would have been due 

had this Agreement not been executed.   

 

Section 3.6. Treatment of Released Portions of Property, Project.  The Company 

acknowledges and agrees that in the event that the Company effectuates at any time a release of 

any portion of the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities, or the Financed Equipment (but not 

the entirety of the aggregate Property, Project, Financed Facilities, or Financed Equipment) as 

provided in the Lease or otherwise (i) such portion shall no longer be entitled to any tax relief or 

tax forbearance under this Agreement or otherwise; and (ii) no such release by the Company of 

any portion of the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities, or the Financed Equipment shall 

excuse or diminish in any way (a) the Company’s obligations for payment, indemnification, 

provision of payment bonds as provided in Sections 4.3.4, 4.3.5 and 5.2 of this Agreement, or for the 

payment of payments in lieu of taxes as Additional Rent pursuant to Section 3.5 of this Agreement; 

or (b) the City’s rights to indemnification and to be protected by insurance coverages required under 

this Agreement or the Lease, whether with respect to the portion of the Project and the Property so 

released, the remaining portions of the Project and the Property, or otherwise.  Notwithstanding the 

preceding sentence, the Company may replace any equipment or portion of the Project deemed 

obsolete or unsuitable for the Project as determined in the reasonable discretion of the Company and 

constituting a portion of the Financed Facilities or Financed Equipment originally conveyed to and 

accepted by the City, and the City agrees to release the property being replaced and accept such 

61

WS #1.



 

17 

 
 

 

property’s replacements as part of the Financed Facilities or Financed Equipment, as applicable, and 

provide the Company with the benefits of such City ownership as if the replacements were originally 

part of the Financed Facilities or Financed Equipment, as applicable. 

 

Section 3.7. Obligation to Purchase Project.  When all principal and interest due on 

the Bonds shall have been paid in full, the Company or its permitted successors and assigns shall 

have the absolute obligation to purchase the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities and the 

Financed Equipment or portions thereof to which the Bonds paid in full relate for the purchase 

price(s) provided for in the Indenture and subject to the requirements of the Bond Documents. 

 

ARTICLE IV 

IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECT 

 

 Section 4.1. Mutual Cooperation for Land Use Approvals.  The parties to this 

Agreement contemplate that at the time following Closing and of initial issuance of the Bonds, fee 

title to the entire Property will be held by the City to facilitate the financing from time to time of 

the Project, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment.  Accordingly, the Company and 

the City agree to mutually cooperate in the undertaking, at the sole cost and expense of the 

Company, of all applications and supporting materials required for any Land Use Approvals which 

may be required and the Company shall pursue to completion in a commercially reasonable manner 

such Land Use Approvals in accordance with the applicable customary procedures therefor.  The City 

agrees to expeditiously process and timely review as received all applications for the Land Use 

Approvals and, in a commercially reasonable and timely manner, take all further actions as are 

consistent with this Agreement to obtain all such Land Use Approvals; provided that, the City shall 

not be obligated to grant any Land Use Approval other than in the lawful exercise of the City’s police 

powers.  The City further agrees that the City will not unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay any 

Land Use Approvals.  Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the Company from seeking in 

connection with the Project other or further permits, approvals, reviews or other actions of 

regulators other than the City as may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Company in its sole 

discretion. 

 

 Section 4.2. Other Approvals.  The City, at the Company’s cost and expense, shall 

assist and cooperate in good faith with the Company in connection with obtaining any (i) approvals 

and permits from other governmental or quasi-governmental agencies having jurisdiction over the 

Property or the Project and (ii) similar documents and instruments from third parties, as may be 

necessary or desirable in connection with the development or operation of the Project.  If City 

action is required in connection with obtaining any such approvals, permits, documents or 

instruments, the City shall promptly take action following receipt of a written request therefor; 

provided that such period shall be tolled for any period during which the City is awaiting revisions 

or additional information from the Company that are necessary to complete the requested City 

action. 

 Section 4.3. Initiation of the Project; Insurance and Payment Bonds Required.  
Subject to any applicable Land Use Approvals and the terms of the Lease, the Company shall 

implement, construct, and operate the Project as provided in this Section 4.3. 

 

62

WS #1.



 

18 

 
 

 

  Section 4.3.1. Generally.  Work on the Project shall be performed by the Company 

or contractors designated by the Company, in accordance with plans and specifications developed 

or approved in accordance with Section 4.3.2 of this Agreement by the Company in the Company’s 

sole discretion and at the Company’s sole cost.  The Company shall review and approve all 

construction documents for such work, including bids, prior to commencement of construction of 

such work.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is the understanding and agreement by the parties to 

this Agreement that the entire Project is being constructed as a private project, with the support of 

the City, but for the Company’s sole use and control.  It is further acknowledged and agreed by the 

parties that any such work items or other improvements which are located or installed or are to be 

located or installed on the Property are intended to be included within the Project for purposes of the 

Bonds and associated tax relief as provided in this Agreement and that, to facilitate the foregoing, 

fee title to all such work items or improvements which are located or installed or are to be located or 

installed on the Property shall be conveyed to and held in fee by the City in accordance with the 

terms of and for the duration provided in this Agreement and in the Indenture. 

 

  Section 4.3.2. Plans and Specifications.  The Company shall initiate preparation 

or cause to be initiated the preparation of plans and specifications for the Project as required for 

the orderly implementation of the Project and, solely for the purpose of satisfying the City that the 

Project will be constructed in accordance with all Applicable Regulations of the City and with the 

requirements of this Agreement, shall submit from time to time such plans and specifications for 

approval by the City in sufficient completeness and detail to show that all such construction will 

be in conformance with Applicable Regulations and this Agreement.  When and as required by 

Applicable Regulations, such plans and specifications shall be prepared by a professional engineer 

or architect licensed to practice in the State of Missouri.  Upon each submittal of such plans and 

specifications, together with required applications, the City shall expeditiously review and approve 

or reject same, in writing, solely on the basis of non-conformity with Applicable Regulations or 

with specific terms of this Agreement.  If the City rejects such plans and specifications, said 

rejection shall specify deficiencies relating to lack of conformity with this Agreement or with 

Applicable Regulations; provided, however, that the City’s failure to specify deficiencies in such 

plans and specifications relating to Applicable Regulations shall not relieve the Company of the 

Company’s obligations to install the Project and each portion thereof in accordance therewith.  

Following receipt of any such rejection, the Company shall submit new or corrected plans and 

specifications within sixty (60) days after the date the Company receives written notice of the 

City’s rejection referred to in the latest such notice (or at such later time as the Company may 

request in writing and the City may approve as being reasonably necessary to prepare such 

revisions or corrections for submission to the City).  The provisions of this Section 4.3.2 relating 

to approval, rejection and resubmittal of plans and specifications shall continue to apply until all 

plans and specifications for the Project have been approved by the City.  Notwithstanding anything 

in this Section 4.3.2 or this Agreement to the contrary, (a) the City shall not unreasonably withhold, 

condition, or delay approval of any of the plans and specifications submitted for the Project; and 

(b) the Company shall have the unfettered right to avail itself of any appeal process made available 

by the City or the State of Missouri, as applicable, including, without limitation, appeals to the 

City’s Board of Adjustment or Board of Building Appeals.   

 

  Section 4.3.3. Company to Construct Project.  The parties to this Agreement 

acknowledge and agree that the Company at the Company’s sole cost and expense will construct, 

63

WS #1.



 

19 

 
 

 

or cause the construction of, the Project.  In connection with the City’s issuance of the Bonds, the 

City hereby grants to the Company (which grant shall be reflected and incorporated in the Lease) 

an irrevocable right to access the Property and to construct and install from time to time portions 

of the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment which portions shall at all times remain 

titled in the Company and not in the City unless and until such time as the City acquires and accepts 

in writing such portions as evidenced by one or more deeds (in the case of Financed Facilities) or 

bills of sale (in the case of Financed Equipment) acknowledged by the City and at such time (and 

only at such time) such portions shall be deemed to be incorporated into the Project, all as further 

provided in and in full accordance with the Indenture and the Bond Documents.  The Company 

agrees that all construction work by the Company or its agents or independent contractors in 

connection with or to be incorporated within the Project shall be in substantial conformity with the 

plans and specifications therefor as finally approved by the City as in accordance with Applicable 

Regulations and this Agreement. 

 

  Section 4.3.4. Insurance.  In constructing or causing the construction of the 

Project, the Company may enter into one or more construction services contracts; provided that 

prior to the commencement of any construction or installation, the Company shall obtain, or shall 

ensure that each contractor obtains workers’ compensation, commercial general liability, and 

builder’s risk insurance coverage in amounts customary in the industry for similar type projects, 

and, if the Project or any portion thereof is determined to be in a flood hazard area, flood insurance, 

all with insurance companies with ratings reasonably acceptable to the City.  All policies of 

liability insurance required under this Section 4.3.4 shall name the City as an additional insured 

and, to the extent available, shall contain a clause providing that such policies may not be 

cancelled, reduced in coverage or otherwise modified without thirty (30) days prior written notice 

to the City.  Before initiating construction of any portion of the Financed Facilities, the Company 

shall provide or cause to be provided to the City certificates of insurance evidencing the insurance 

coverages required under this Section 4.3.4.  The Company shall ensure that the insurance required 

under this Section 4.3.4 is maintained by each contractor for the duration of construction services 

to be provided at the Project.  

 

  Section 4.3.5. Payment Bond Required; Indemnification.  As a condition 

precedent to Closing, the Company shall initially procure or cause to be procured and delivered to 

the City at or before Closing a dual obligee payment bond in substantially the form of Exhibit C-

1 to this Agreement naming and in favor of the City and meeting all requirements of section 

107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, or any successor enactment in the 

minimum aggregate penal amount of the greater of (i) $4,500,000, or (ii) the total costs of 

acquisition and renovation of the Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment as evidenced by 

construction contracts or orders therefor.  In addition, prior to initiation of any work under any 

contract (whether written or oral) with any contractor for the construction or installation of or for 

procurement or supplying of materials to be incorporated, consumed (other than raw materials to be 

utilized in a manufacturing process) or used in connection with the construction of the Financed 

Facilities or the Financed Equipment, and as a condition precedent to the future acceptance by the 

City of the conveyance of any portions of the Financed Facilities or Financed Equipment so 

constructed or installed, the Company shall for each such contract procure or cause to be procured 

a dual obligee payment bond in substantially the form of Exhibit C-1 naming and in favor of the 

City and meeting all requirements of section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as 

64

WS #1.



 

20 

 
 

 

amended, or any successor enactment in the minimum amount of One Hundred percent (100%) of 

the total amount of each such contract; and provided further that in the event that the amount of 

any such contract shall be increased at any time or from time to time by more than Twenty-Five 

percent (25%) in the aggregate of the initial contract amount, the Company shall promptly cause 

the amount of the corresponding payment bond to be increased to a total One Hundred percent 

(100%) of such increased amount.  All such payment bonds required under this Section 4.3.5, 

section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, or otherwise shall provide for 

and be maintained until the date which is One (1) year from the date the last labor or services were 

provided by anyone or last materials or equipment were furnished by anyone under or pursuant to 

the contract to which such payment bond applies.  Prior to the execution of any contract or 

order for labor, services, materials, equipment or other work at the Project, the Financed 

Facilities or the Financed Equipment the Company shall provide the City a certification from 

such contractor or supplier in the form of Exhibit C-2 acknowledging the payment bond 

obligations of this Section 4.3.5.  The parties hereby further agree that delivery of such 

certification shall be a condition precedent to the enforceability of any such contract.  Prior 

to initiation of any work under any such contract, the corresponding dual obligee payment bond 

fully executed by the surety, the Company and the contractor in the minimum amount of One 

Hundred percent (100%) of the total amount of each such contract shall be submitted to the City.  

It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that the Project comply at all times with the 

requirements of section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, and that 

one or more payment bonds shall provided in the aggregate amount of 100% of the Financed 

Facilities and the Financed Equipment to be accepted for acquisition by the City and that 

this condition shall be met to the sole satisfaction of the City prior to and as a pre-condition 

of the conveyance to and acceptance by the City. The Company hereby agrees to indemnify, 

defend with counsel of the City’s choosing, and hold harmless the City and the City Council in 

their official and individual capacities from and against all claims, demands, costs, liabilities, 

damages or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, by or on behalf of any person, firm or 

corporation arising out of the Company or the Company’s contractors failure to comply in all 

respects with the requirements of this Section 4.3.5 or any failure of the Company to obtain payment 

bonds as required by section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended.  The 

foregoing indemnification obligations shall survive termination of this Agreement or the Lease for 

any reason.  The parties hereto further agree to promptly take such further actions as may be 

required from time to time to assure that the Project complies with any subsequent amendments or 

successor enactments to such section 107.170 and with any final, non-appealable determinations 

by any court of competent jurisdiction affecting the procurement of payment bonds by or on behalf 

of public entities.   

 

    Section 4.3.6. Company to Adhere to All Applicable Regulations.  To the full 

extent that any Applicable Regulation applies to any aspect of construction of the Project and the 

installation of the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment or to construction, re-

construction, expansion, renovation or similar activity in connection with any portion of the 

Property at any time during the period the Bonds remain Outstanding, the Company covenants and 

agrees to take all such actions as are necessary to comply with such Applicable Regulation (subject, 

however, to all available rights of appeal).  This covenant shall survive termination of this 

Agreement for any reason until full payment, satisfaction and defeasance of the Bonds.   

 

65

WS #1.



 

21 

 
 

 

 Section 4.4. Completion of the Project.  Subject to force majeure, the Company shall 

cause construction and renovation of the Financed Facilities and installation of the Financed 

Equipment as finally approved by the City or as modified thereafter with the City’s written 

concurrence and the installation of the Financed Equipment at the Property all to be substantially 

complete not later than December 31, 2023; provided that all portions of the Financed Facilities 

and the Financed Equipment to be offered for acceptance and acquisition by the City shall be so 

tendered to the City, together with applicable conveyancing documentation as provided in the 

Indenture, in any event not later than December 31, 2028.  All such work shall be completed in a 

good and workmanlike manner and free from any lien, right of lien, or attachment upon, or claim 

affecting the right of any person, firm, or corporation to receive payment.  Evidence of substantial 

completion shall be in substantially the form of Exhibit D, attached to and incorporated by 

reference in this Agreement, provided by the Company to the City and countersigned by the City 

(which countersignature shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed). 

 

 Section 4.5. Sales Tax Exemption.  Contemporaneous with Closing on the conveyance 

to the City of the Property as provided in Article II of this Agreement, the City shall make available 

to the Company in connection with the purchase of tangible personal property and materials to be 

incorporated into the Project, the City’s sales tax exemption from purchases of such tangible 

personal property and materials to the extent permitted under Section 144.062 of the Revised 

Statutes of Missouri, as amended, and 12 CSR 10-112.010 of the Missouri Code of State 

Regulations, it being the intent of this Agreement that the full value of all materials, construction, 

and equipment purchased by the Company for the Project be exempt from all State of Missouri, 

City and County sales taxes; provided that the parties hereto acknowledge and agree that neither 

City nor the EDC is guaranteeing the exemption from taxation of such purchases.  The City hereby 

agrees to cooperate with the Company by providing upon request such certificates and other 

documentation as may be necessary for the Company to receive such sales tax exemption.  

 

ARTICLE V 

FURTHER OBLIGATIONS OF THE COMPANY 

 

 Section 5.1. Cooperation in Verification of Jobs Required.  The Company shall use 

commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with the City and the EDC in promptly making 

available at the Project upon request by the EDC such employment records and similar 

documentation prepared or maintained by the Company, its subsidiaries or nominees which the 

EDC may reasonably require to verify the number of Jobs in any Testing Period in accordance 

with the terms of Section 3.5 of this Agreement; provided that nothing in this Agreement shall 

require the Company to disclose confidential or proprietary information maintained by the 

Company, its parent, subsidiaries, or nominees.  The Company shall make such information 

available to the EDC and the City at the Project solely to enable the EDC and the City to verify 

the actual number of Jobs in any Testing Period in accordance with the terms of Section 3.5 of this 

Agreement. 

 

 Section 5.2. Indemnification.   

 

66

WS #1.



 

22 

 
 

 

 (a) Indemnification for Certain Third Party Actions; Release of City, EDC, and 

Trustee.  The Company hereby covenants, warrants and agrees to indemnify and hold the City, 

the EDC, and the Trustee, as applicable, and their respective officials, officers, agents, attorneys, 

employees and representatives acting in any capacity harmless from and to defend against (with 

legal counsel selected by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the City) all claims, demands, 

costs, liabilities, damages or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, by or on behalf of any 

person, firm or corporation arising from any Third Party Action except where the basis, in whole 

or in part, for such Third Party Action is the fraud, criminal malfeasance, gross negligence or 

willful misconduct of the City, the EDC, or any officer, employee, or agent thereof.  The 

indemnification obligations of the Company under this Section 5.2(a) shall be in force and effect 

at all times during the later of: (A) the time the Bonds are Outstanding; or (B) the time any portion 

of the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment is held in fee by 

the City; and (ii) shall not be assignable or delegable by the Company without the prior written 

consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.  In 

no event shall the City or the EDC, or their respective officials, officers, agents, attorneys, 

employees or representatives have any liability whatsoever at law or in equity to the Company or 

an Affiliate or to their parent respective directors, officers, agents, employees and representatives, 

in consequence of any such Third Party Action, except where the basis, in whole or in part, for 

such Third Party Action is the fraud, criminal malfeasance, gross negligence or willful misconduct 

of the City, the EDC or any officer, employee, or agent thereof.  The Company hereby further 

covenants, warrants and agrees that in no event shall the City or the EDC, or their respective 

officials, officers, agents, attorneys, employees or representatives have any liability to the 

Company or to any Affiliate, parent, assignee or sublessee of the Company for damages or 

otherwise in the event that all or any part the Project, the Lease, the Bonds, the Bond Documents 

or any portion thereof, or this Agreement, shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional in whole or 

in part by a final (as to which all rights of appeal have been exhausted or expired) judgment of a 

court of competent jurisdiction or as a result of initiation of a Third Party Action the Company is 

prevented from enjoying any of the rights and privileges of the Company hereunder. 

 

 (b) Other Indemnification Obligations of the Company.  The Company hereby 

covenants warrants and agrees to indemnify and hold the City, the EDC, and the Trustee, as 

applicable, and their respective officials, officers, agents, attorneys, employees and representatives 

acting in any capacity harmless from and defend against (with legal counsel selected by the 

Company and reasonably acceptable to the City) all claims, demands, costs, liabilities, damages 

or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, by or on behalf of any person, firm or 

corporation arising from: (i) the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done in, on 

or about, the Financed Facilities, the Project or the Property during the term of the Lease and the 

Bonds, (ii) any condition of the Financed Facilities, the Project or the Property, or any acts or 

omissions thereon by any person during the term of the Lease and the Bonds of any series; (iii) 

any breach or default on the part of the Company in the performance of any of the Company's 

obligations under this Agreement or the Lease affecting a third party; (iv) any contract, whether 

written or oral, entered into during the term of the Lease and the Bonds of any series in connection 

with the purchase, construction, extension or improvement of the Project; (v) any act of negligence 

of the Company or of any of its agents, parties to contract (whether written or oral), servants, 

employees or licensees during the term of the Lease and the Bonds of any series; (vi) the obtaining 

of any applicable exemptions from state or local sales or use taxes for materials or goods which 

67

WS #1.



 

23 

 
 

 

become part of the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment, but only during the later of (A) 

the time the Bonds remain Outstanding; or (B) the time any portion of the Property, the Project, 

the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment is held in fee by the City; (vii) any violation of 

section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended or successor enactment; and/or 

(viii) a final determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that the purchase of tangible 

personal property or materials and their incorporation in the Project as contemplated in this 

Agreement is not related to the City’s exempt functions and activities or that the City for any 

reason is liable for such tax, but only during the later of (A) the time the Bonds are Outstanding; 

or (B) the time any portion of the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities or the Financed 

Equipment is held in fee by the City.  Each of the foregoing phrases (i) through (viii) shall 

constitute independent obligations.  The indemnification obligations of the Company under this 

Section 5.2(c) shall not be assignable or delegable by the Company without the prior written 

consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

 

(c) Environmental Indemnification Obligations of the Company.  The Company hereby 

covenants warrants and agrees to indemnify and hold the City, the EDC, and the Trustee, as 

applicable, and their respective officials, officers, agents, attorneys, employees and representatives 

acting in any capacity harmless from and defend against (with legal counsel selected by the 

Company and reasonably acceptable to the City) all claims, demands, costs, liabilities, damages 

or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, by or on behalf of any person, firm or 

corporation arising from: (i) any release (as defined in 42 U.S.C. §9601 (22)) or threat of a release, 

actual or alleged, of any Hazardous Substances, upon the Property, the Financed Facilities, the 

Financed Equipment or the Project or respecting any products or materials introduced or delivered 

to or arising at the Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed Equipment or the Project 

regardless of whether such release occurs as a result of any act, omission, negligence or misconduct 

of the Company, or any third party or otherwise; (ii) (A) any violation now existing or hereafter 

arising (actual or alleged) or any other liability under or in connection with, any applicable 

Environmental Laws relating to or affecting the Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed 

Equipment, or the Project, or (B) any violation now existing or hereafter arising, actual or alleged 

or any other liability, under or in connection with, any applicable Environmental Laws relating to 

any products or materials now or hereafter located upon, delivered to or in transit to or from the 

Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed Equipment, or the Project regardless of whether 

such violation or alleged violation or other liability occurs or arises as the result of any act, 

omission, negligence or misconduct of the Company or any third party or otherwise; or (iii) any 

assertion by any third party of any claims or demands for any loss or injury arising out of, relating 

to or in connection with any Hazardous Substances on or allegedly on the Property, the Financed 

Facilities, the Financed Equipment, or the Project.  Each of the foregoing phrases (i) through (iii) 

and the portions thereof shall constitute independent obligations.  The indemnification obligations 

of the Company under this Section 5.2(d) shall apply and extend whether the event giving rise to 

such claim or action occurred prior to or during the term of the Lease.  Indemnification obligations 

of the Company shall not be assignable or delegable by the Company without the prior written 

consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.  

 

(d) Survival of Indemnification and Defense Obligations.  Each of the 

indemnification and defense obligations of the Company set forth in this Section 5.2 that arise 

from any Third Party Action or otherwise, including, without limitation those arising under Section 

68

WS #1.



 

24 

 
 

 

5.2(c) of this Agreement, from a party other than the parties to this Agreement shall survive 

termination of this Agreement or of the Lease for any reason, including, without limitation, 

payment, satisfaction and defeasance of the Bonds for a period of sixty (60) months following the 

re-acquisition for any reason of the entire Project by the Company. 

 

 Section 5.3. Annual Report Filings.  Pursuant to the Acts, the City may be required to 

file annual reports with the Missouri Department of Economic Development or other entities of 

the State of Missouri.  The Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with 

the City in causing such reporting requirements to be fulfilled. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 

 Section 6.1. The Company, Generally.  The Company hereby represents, warrants and 

covenants to the City and the EDC that, as of the date of this Agreement and during the term of 

this Agreement and so long as any Bonds remain Outstanding: 

 

(i) The Company is a Delaware corporation duly organized, validly existing 

and qualified and authorized to do business in Missouri and will lawfully maintain such 

status;  

 

(ii) The Company has the right, power and authority to enter into, execute, 

deliver and perform this Agreement and no other consents or authorization from any other 

persons or entities are required prior to the Company’s execution and delivery of this 

Agreement; 

 

(iii) The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this 

Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary action and does not violate the 

formation documents or operating agreement of the Company or any applicable provision 

of law, nor does the execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this 

Agreement constitute a breach of or default under or require any consent under any 

agreement, instrument or document to which the Company is now a party or by which the 

Company is now bound; 

 

(iv) To the Company’s actual knowledge, following reasonable due inquiry, 

there are no actions or proceedings by or before any court, governmental commission, 

board, bureau or any other administrative agency pending, threatened or affecting the 

Company which would impair the Company’s ability to perform under this Agreement; 

and 

 

(v) To the Company’s actual knowledge, following reasonable due inquiry, the 

Company has obtained or will obtain as and when required by Applicable Regulations, and 

shall maintain all government permits, certificates and consents (including, without 

limitation, environmental approvals required by any Applicable Regulations) necessary to 

conduct the Company’s business and to construct, complete and operate the Project. 

 

69

WS #1.



 

25 

 
 

 

Section 6.2. Compliance with Laws.  The Company covenants, represents and warrants 

to the City and the EDC that, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, following diligent inquiry, 

the Company’s actions related to the Property and the Project are or, when complete, will be in 

compliance with all Applicable Regulations, including, without limitation, Environmental Laws.  

The Company agrees that the City and the City’s duly authorized agents shall have the right at 

reasonable times during business hours, subject to at least Seventy-Two (72) hours advance notice 

to the Company, to enter upon the Project and the Property to examine and inspect the Project to 

assure material compliance with this Agreement; provided that such inspections in any year shall 

not occur more frequently that quarterly. 

 

 Section 6.3. Environmental Matters; Warranties, Covenants; Indemnification.  

 

 (a) The Company acknowledges, represents and warrants that there are no conditions 

on the Property or the Financed Facilities which materially violate any applicable Environmental 

Laws, and that no claims or demands have been asserted or made by any third parties arising out 

of, relating to or in connection with any Hazardous Substances on, or allegedly on the Property or 

the Financed Facilities for any injuries suffered or incurred, or allegedly suffered or incurred, by 

reason of a violation of applicable Environmental Laws.  The Company has not received notice 

from any federal, state, county or municipal governmental authority alleging violation of any 

Environmental Law, in respect to the Property, the Financed Facilities, or any part thereof which 

has not been entirely corrected.  

 

 (b) During the term of the Lease, the Company shall provide the City with copies of 

any notifications of releases of Hazardous Substances or of any environmental hazards or potential 

hazards which are given by or on behalf of the Company to any federal, state or local or other 

agencies or authorities or which are received by the Company from any federal, state or local or 

other agencies or authorities with respect to the Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed 

Equipment, or the Project.  Such copies shall be sent to the City concurrently with their being 

mailed or delivered to the governmental agencies or authorities or within Ten (10) days after they 

are made or received by the Company.  

 

 (c) At all times during the term of the Lease, the Company shall use commercially 

reasonable efforts to materially comply with and operate and at all times use, keep and maintain 

the Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed Equipment, and the Project and every part 

thereof (whether or not such property constitutes a Facilities, as defined in 42 U.S.C. §9601 et. 

seq.) in material conformance with all applicable Environmental Laws.  Without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, the Company will not use, generate, treat, store, dispose of or otherwise 

introduce or permit any agent, employee, contractor, subcontractor or other party to contract 

(whether written or oral) of the Company to use, generate, treat, store, dispose of or otherwise 

introduce any Hazardous Substance into or on the Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed 

Equipment, or the Project or any part thereof nor cause, suffer, allow or permit anyone else to do 

so except in material compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws.  

 

 Section 6.4. The City, Generally.  The City hereby represents and warrants to the 

Company that:  

 

70

WS #1.



 

26 

 
 

 

  (i) the City has the full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and 

to perform its obligations hereunder; 

 

  (ii) this Agreement is a valid and binding obligation, enforceable against the 

City in accordance with the terms hereof;  and  

 

  (iii)  the execution and delivery of this Agreement has been validly authorized 

by all necessary governmental or other action and does not conflict with any other 

agreements entered into by the City. 

 

 Section 6.5. Survival of Covenants.  All warranties, representations, covenants and 

agreements of the Company contained in this Article VI shall survive termination of this 

Agreement for any reason until full payment, satisfaction and defeasance of the Bonds. 

  

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

 Section 7.1. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall continue in force for so long 

as: (a) any Bonds shall remain Outstanding; or (b) any portion of the Property, the Financed 

Equipment or the Financed Facilities is titled in the name of the City, whichever is the later.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may terminate this Agreement in the event the 

Company notifies the City in writing that the Company has reasonably determined after due 

investigation that the Project is no longer economically viable; provided that promptly upon the 

giving of such notice the Company, at the Company’s sole cost and expense: (i) exercises the 

Company’s option to purchase the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment 

by payment of the purchase price therefor provided in the Indenture and taking such other steps as 

are required under the Lease and the Indenture; (ii) paying or acknowledging in writing payment 

of all principal and interest due and tendering all, but not less than all, Outstanding Bonds for 

redemption, defeasance and cancellation; (iii) paying all payments in lieu of taxes due for the year 

in which such termination occurs; and (iv) acknowledging in a writing the Company’s continuing 

indemnification obligations under this Agreement or providing a bond or other indemnification 

security satisfactory to the City in the City’s sole discretion.  Satisfaction of each for the foregoing 

shall be conditions precedent to the termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section 7.1.; 

provided that each of the Company’s indemnification obligations shall survive such termination.   

  

 Section 7.2. Notices.  Unless otherwise specified, any notice, demand or request 

required hereunder shall be given in writing at the addresses set forth below, by any of the 

following means: (a) personal service; (b) e-mail; (c) overnight courier; or (d) registered or 

certified mail, return receipt requested: 

 

  If to the Company: EquipmentShare.com Inc.  

     5710 Bull Run Drive 

Columbia, Missouri 65201  

     Attention:  ____________________ 

      

     with a copy to: 

71

WS #1.



 

27 

 
 

 

      _______________________________  

      _______________________________ 

      _______________________________ 

      Attention:  ______________________ 

 

  If to the City:  City of Moberly  

      101 West Reed Street - City Hall 

     Moberly, Missouri 65270 

     Attention:  City Manager 

      

     with a copy to: 

      Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 

      211 N. Broadway, Suite 2000 

      St. Louis, Missouri 63102 

      Attention:  Shannon Creighton, Esq. 

       

  If to the EDC:  Moberly Area Economic Development Corporation 

     115 North Williams Street 

     Moberly, Missouri 65270 

     Attention:  President 

           

     with a copy to: 

      Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 

      211 N. Broadway, Suite 2000 

      St. Louis, Missouri 63102 

      Attention:  Shannon Creighton, Esq. 

 

 Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other parties given in the same manner 

provided above.  Any notice, demand, or request sent pursuant to either clause (a) or (b) above 

shall be deemed received upon such personal service or upon dispatch. 

 

 Section 7.3. Further Assistance.  The City, the EDC, and the Company each agree to 

take such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the terms, provisions and intent 

of this Agreement and to aid and assist each other in carrying out said terms, provisions and intent.  

In addition, if legislation is proposed by or in any governmental body having jurisdiction over the 

Project which would have the effect of limiting the ability of the City to issue the Bonds to finance 

the Project, the City agrees to use its best efforts to issue the Bonds prior to the effective date of 

any such legislation.  The Company shall further cooperate with and assist the City, the EDC, and 

the Randolph County Assessor as necessary to describe and document from time to time those 

portions of the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment to be acquired by and 

conveyed to the City pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

 Section 7.4. Entire Agreement; Modification; No Waiver by Prior Actions.  This 

Agreement, together with the Bond Documents, the other agreements expressly referenced herein, 

constitute the entire agreement of the parties and no oral statement or prior written matter shall 

have any force or effect respecting the matters governed hereby.  The terms, covenants and 

72

WS #1.



 

28 

 
 

 

conditions of this Agreement may not be changed orally, but only by an instrument in writing 

signed by each of the parties or their authorized representatives.  The failure of any party hereto to 

insist in any one or more cases upon the strict performance of any term, covenant or condition of 

this Agreement to be performed or observed by another party shall not constitute a waiver or 

relinquishment for the future of any such term, covenant or condition. 

 

 Section 7.5. Public Liability Strictly Limited; No Personal Liability.  The parties 

hereto agree that remedies for any claim arising out of this Agreement, the Lease, the Bonds, the 

Bond Documents or any of them shall be limited to equitable relief including the availability of 

specific performance and in no event shall the City or the EDC or any of their respective officials, 

officers, agents, attorneys, employees, or representatives have any liability in damages or any other 

monetary liability to the Company or any Affiliate, parent, assignee, sublessee, successor, assign, 

heir or personal representative of the Company in respect of any suit, claim, or cause of action 

arising out of this Agreement, the Lease, the Bonds, the Bond Documents or any of them.  No 

official, officer, agent, attorney, employee, or representative of any of the parties hereto shall be 

personally liable to any of the other parties hereto, or the respective assignees, sublessees, 

successors, assigns, heirs or personal representatives of the other parties hereto in the event of any 

default or breach by any party under this Agreement, or for any amount which may become due 

to any party or on any obligations under the terms of this Agreement other than for fraud, criminal 

malfeasance, gross negligence or willful misconduct of such party or any officer, employee, or 

agent thereof. 

 

 Section 7.6. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

construed or deemed to constitute a waiver of the City’s sovereign immunity. 

 

 Section 7.7. Remedies Cumulative.  The remedies of a party under this Agreement shall 

be cumulative, and the exercise of any one or more of the remedies provided for in this Agreement 

shall not be construed as a waiver of any other remedies of such party unless specifically so 

provided herein. 

 

  

 Section 7.8. Default; Opportunity to Cure.  In the event of any default in or breach of 

any term or conditions of this Agreement by either party, other than the failure of the Company to 

make timely payments in lieu of taxes when and as due, the aggrieved party, prior to instituting 

any action at law or in equity, shall give written notice to the breaching or defaulting party (or 

successor) specifying, in the opinion of the aggrieved party, the nature of the breach, and the 

defaulting or breaching party (or successor) shall, upon receipt of such written notice from the 

other party, proceed to promptly, reasonably, and practically cure or remedy such default or breach, 

and, shall, in any event, within Thirty (30) days after receipt of notice, commence to cure or remedy 

such default.  In case such cure or remedy is not taken or not promptly, reasonably, and practically 

pursued, or the default or breach shall not be cured or remedied within Thirty (30) days or such 

longer time as is reasonable under the circumstances, the aggrieved party may then institute such 

proceedings as may be necessary or desirable in its opinion to cure and remedy such default or 

breach, including, but not limited to proceedings to compel specific performance by the defaulting 

or breaching party.  

 

73

WS #1.



 

29 

 
 

 

 Section 7.9. Relationship of the Parties; Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing 

contained in this Agreement nor any act of the City or of the EDC shall be deemed or construed to 

create a partnership or agency relationship between or among any party and this Agreement is and 

shall be limited to the specific purposes set out herein.  Other than as expressly provided in this 

Agreement, no party shall be the agent of, or have any rights to create any obligations or liabilities 

binding on, another party.  The parties do not intend to and do not confer any benefit under this 

Agreement on any other person or entity other than the parties hereto. 

 

 Section 7.10. Captions; Recitals and Exhibits; Agreement Preparation.  The headings 

and captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference only, and in no way define, 

limit, or describe the scope or intent of this Agreement of any provision thereof and shall in no 

way be deemed to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation or construction of the 

provisions of this Agreement.  The Recitals found at the beginning of this Agreement are 

incorporated herein by reference and are important and material parts of this Agreement.  Each 

party to this Agreement and their attorneys have had full opportunity to review and participate in 

the drafting of the final form of this Agreement and all documents attached as exhibits and 

schedules.  This Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption or other rule of 

construction whereby ambiguities within this Agreement or such other document would be 

construed or interpreted against the party causing the document to be drafted.  The parties each 

further represent that the terms of this Agreement and the documents attached to this Agreement 

as exhibits and schedules have been completely read by them and that those terms are fully 

understood and voluntarily accepted by them.  In any interpretation, construction or determination 

of the meaning of any provision of this Agreement, no presumption whatsoever shall arise from 

the fact that the Agreement was prepared by or on behalf of any party. 

 

 Section 7.11. Execution; Counterparts.  Each person executing this Agreement in a 

representative capacity warrants and represents that he or she has authority to do so and upon 

request by another party proof of such authority in customary form will be furnished to the 

requesting party.  This Agreement may be executed at different times and in two or more 

counterparts and all counterparts so executed shall for all purposes constitute one agreement, 

binding on the parties hereto, notwithstanding that both parties may not have executed the same 

counterpart.  In proving this Agreement it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more 

than one such counterpart executed by the party against whom enforcement is sought. 

 

 Section 7.12. Severability. If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this 

Agreement or the application of this Agreement to any person or circumstance shall, at any time 

or to any extent, be finally declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to 

persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not 

be affected by the partial invalidity, and each term, covenant, condition and provision of this 

Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law unless such partial 

invalidity prevents a party from realizing the full benefit of the bargain represented by the entire 

Agreement. 

 

 Section 7.13. Governing Law; Choice of Forum; Waiver of Objections.  This 

Agreement and its performance shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of 

74

WS #1.



 

30 

 
 

 

Missouri applicable to contracts made and to be performed wholly within such state, without 

regard to choice or conflict of laws provisions.  The parties hereto agree that any action at law, suit 

in equity, or other judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted only in the 

Circuit Court of Randolph County, Missouri or in the Federal District Court for the Eastern District 

of Missouri and waive any objections based upon venue or forum non conveniens or otherwise and 

waive any and all objections to the application of Missouri law and/or to the foregoing selection 

of fora. 

 

 Section 7.14. Assignment Limited.  The Company may not sell, assign or otherwise 

transfer its interest in this Agreement in whole or in part to any individual or entity other than to 

an Affiliate without the written consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably 

withheld, conditioned or delayed.  Any such Affiliate or successor in interest to the Company 

under this Agreement, as a condition precedent to the validity of such assignment or transfer, shall 

certify in writing to the City its agreement: (i) to abide by all remaining executory terms of this 

Agreement (and the representations, warranties and covenants related thereto) through the term of 

this Agreement, or such other period as may be expressly provided for herein, (ii) to purchase or 

otherwise assume ownership in accordance with the terms thereof of all of the Bonds then 

Outstanding, and (iii) to assume the obligations of “Lessee” under the Lease.   

 

 Section 7.15. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the City, the EDC, 

and the Company and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns. 

 

 Section 7.16. Force Majeure.  Neither the City, the EDC, nor the Company nor any 

permitted successor in interest to any of them shall be considered in breach of or in default of any 

of their respective obligations under this Agreement including, without limitation, the Company’s 

obligation to construct the Project or any portion thereof and the City’s obligation to issue the 

Bonds, in the event of any delay caused by damage or destruction by fire or other casualty, strike; 

shortage of material; any government order or action of any sort; failure, after diligent pursuit, to 

obtain approvals or permits from applicable governmental entities including, without limitation, 

environmental permits; acts of war or terrorism; civil disturbance; unusually adverse weather 

conditions such as, by way of illustration and not limitation, severe rain storms or below freezing 

temperatures of abnormal degree or for an abnormal duration, tornadoes or cyclones; and other 

events or conditions beyond the reasonable control of the party affected which in fact interferes 

with the ability of such party to discharge its obligations hereunder.  Any delay described under 

this Section 7.16 shall result in a day-for-day extension of any obligations, deadlines or dates set 

forth in this Agreement that are directly affected by such delay.  The individual or entity relying 

on this Section 7.16 with respect to any such delay shall, upon the occurrence of the event causing 

such delay, promptly, reasonably, and practically give written notice to the other parties to this 

Agreement. 

 

 Section 7.17. Compliance with Section 285.530 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri. 

Contemporaneous with the execution of this Agreement, the Company shall by sworn affidavit 

and provision of documentation, affirm the Company’s enrollment and participation in a federal 

work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with the Project, 

all as required by Section 285.530 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, in the form 

set forth in Exhibit E, attached to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement.  The Company 

75

WS #1.



 

31 

 
 

 

shall also sign and deliver to the City an affidavit affirming that the Company does not and will 

not knowingly employ in connection with the Project any person who is an unauthorized alien and, 

if and as required by Section 285.530 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, the 

Company shall obtain from each general contractor and subcontractor or other party engaged by 

the Company in connection with the Project affidavits affirming that such contractors and 

subcontractors do not and will not knowingly employ in connection with the Project any person 

who is an unauthorized alien. 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 

76

WS #1.



 

 

S-1 

 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on or as of 

the day and year first above written. 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 

 

 

By:  ________________________________ 

 Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH  ) 

 

 I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that Jerry Jeffrey, personally known to me to be the Mayor of the CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI and personally known to me to be the same person whose name is 

subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged 

that he signed, sealed, and delivered said instrument, pursuant to the authority given to him by the 

Council of the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI as his free and voluntary act and as the free and 

voluntary act of the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 

 

 GIVEN under my hand and official seal this ____ day of___________, 2023. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

My Commission Expires:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77

WS #1.



 

S-2 

 
 

 

 MOBERLY AREA ECONOMIC  

 DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

  

 

  

 By:  _________________________________ 

  Randy Asbury, President 

 

  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 

    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH ) 

  

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that Randy Asbury, personally known to me to be the President of 

MOBERLY AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION and personally known to 

me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before 

me this day in person and acknowledged that he signed, sealed, and delivered said instrument, 

pursuant to the authority given to him by the governing body of MOBERLY AREA ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION as his free and voluntary act and as the free and voluntary act 

of MOBERLY AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION for the uses and purposes 

therein set forth. 

 

 GIVEN under my hand and official seal this ____ day of _______________, 2023. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

 

78

WS #1.



 

S-3 

 
 

 

 EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. 

  

 

  

 By:  _________________________________ 

  Printed Name: _____________________ 

  Title:_____________________________ 

 

  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

STATE OF _____________ ) 

    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ___________ ) 

  

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that ________________________, personally known to me to be the 

________________ of EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., and personally known to me to be the 

same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day 

in person and acknowledged that he/she signed, sealed, and delivered said instrument, pursuant to 

the authority given to him/her by the board of directors of EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., as 

his/her free and voluntary act and as the free and voluntary act of EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM 

INC., for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 

 

 GIVEN under my hand and official seal this ____ day of _______________, 2023. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

 

79

WS #1.



 

A-1 

 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

LOCATION OF FINANCED FACILITIES  

 

 

 

80

WS #1.



 

B-1 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

Parcel No.  07-7.0-26.0-0.0-000-014.000 in the records of the Randolph County, known and 

numbered as 1855 Robertson Road, Moberly Missouri and further partially described as: 
 

PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE CORNER OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 
146.57', SLY 268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96',N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF 
FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 

Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14, a total 16.0+/- acres. 

 

81

WS #1.



 

C-1 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT C-1 

 

FORM OF PAYMENT BOND 

 

 

82

WS #1.



 

C-2 
 

 

 

83

WS #1.



 

C-3 
 

 

84

WS #1.



 

C-4 
 

 

 

 

85

WS #1.



 

C-5 
 

 

  

DUAL OBLIGEE RIDER (form) 
 

This Rider is executed concurrently with and shall be attached to and form a part of Bond No. 

______________ dated the _________ day of ______________, 20__ issued by 

____________________________________________________________, [Insert name of 

Surety] a corporation organized under the laws of the State of ___________,  as SURETY on 

behalf of _________________________________ [Insert name of Contractor], as PRINCIPAL 

and in favor of EQUIPMENTSHARE,COM INC., a Delaware limited liability company duly 

authorized to do business in Missouri, 5710 Bull Run Drive, Columbia, Missouri 65201 

(“Obligee”) and the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, a city of the third classification and 

municipal corporation of the State of Missouri, 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 64270 

(“City of Moberly”), as co-obligees. 
 

WHEREAS, on or about the ________ day of ___________, 20__, Principal entered into a 

contract (the “Contract”) with Obligee, for the performance of 

______________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________; and 
 

WHEREAS, Principal and Surety made, executed and will deliver the attached payment bond No. 

___________ (the “Bond”) as required by the Contract; and 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, 

the City of Moberly is a required Co-Obligee under the Bond; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, Principal, Surety, and Obligee each hereby agree that the City of Moberly 

is a Co-Obligee under the Bond jointly with and to the same extent as the Obligee, upon the 

following conditions: 
 

1. Surety’s total liability to the Co-Obligees, jointly and severally, is limited in the aggregate 

to the penal sum of the Bond; the Co-Obligee’s rights hereunder are subject to the same 

defenses Principal and/or Surety have against the Obligee. 
 

2. The Surety may, at the Surety's option, make any payments under the Bond by check issued 

jointly to the Co-Obligees. 

 

IN WITNESS TO and in acknowledgement whereof the Principal, Surety and Obligees hereto 

have each affixed their signatures and seals this ___________ day of _____________, 20__. 

 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC.   [Insert name of and address of Contractor] 

5710 Bull Run Drive     ____________________________________ 

Columbia, Missouri 65201    ____________________________________ 

OBLIGEE      PRINCIPAL 

 

By: __________________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Print Name and Title:     Print Name and Title: 

86

WS #1.



 

C-6 
 

 

 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY     [Insert name and address of Surety] 

101 West Reed Street     ____________________________________ 

Moberly, Missouri 65270    ____________________________________ 

CO-OBLIGEE     SURETY 

 

 

By: __________________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Print Name and Title:            Attorney-In-Fact 

              Print Name and Title: 

 

 

 

87

WS #1.



 

C-7 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT C-2 

 

CERTIFICATION OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR 

 

CERTIFICATION OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR IN REGARD TO PAYMENT BOND 

OBLIGATIONS 

 
EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and  

Distribution Facility Project  

Moberly, Missouri (the “Project”) 

 

Capitalized terms used and not defined in this Certificate of Substantial Completion shall have the 

meanings ascribed to such terms in the Development Agreement, dated as of ________ 1, 2023, 

(the “Development Agreement”) by and among the City of Moberly, Missouri (the “City’), 

Moberly Area Economic Development Corporation (the “EDC”) and EquipmentShare.com Inc. (the 

“Company”). 

 

____________________________________, general contractor (the “Contractor”) 

under a construction contract with the Company in connection with the Project hereby certifies, 

represents, and warrants to the City that the Contractor is fully informed of and will comply with 

all requirements of the Development Agreement to supply and maintain a payment bond meeting 

requirements of section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, in the amount 

and for the duration provided in  Section 4.3.5 of the Development Agreement  

 

The Contractor hereby further certifies, represents, and warrants to the City that the 

undersigned has full authority from the Contractor to execute this Certification.  As such, the 

Contractor irrevocably waives any argument, defense, or claim that the Contractor has or may have 

relating to or arising from any argument, defense, or contention that the Contractor did not provide 

full, complete, proper, binding, and/or effective authorization(s) and approval(s) for this 

Certification. 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

      the “Contractor” 

 

 

            By: ___________________________________ 

Printed name:___________________________ 

Title: __________________________________ 

 

 

 

88

WS #1.



 

D-1 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 

 

FORM OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION CERTIFICATE 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. MANUFACTURING, REFURBISHMENT AND  

DISTRIBUTION FACILITY PROJECT  

MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 

TO: City of Moberly, Missouri             

 101 West Reed Street              

 Moberly, Missouri 65270  
 

Capitalized terms used and not defined in this Certificate of Substantial Completion shall have the 

meanings ascribed to such terms in the Development Agreement, dated as of ________ 1, 2023, 

(the “Development Agreement”) by and among the City of Moberly, Missouri (the “City’), 

Moberly Area Economic Development Corporation (the “EDC”) and EquipmentShare.com Inc. (the 

“Company”). 

 

Pursuant to the Development Agreement, the undersigned hereby certifies and warrants to the City 

and EDC as follows: 
 

1. As of _________, 202__ the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment, 

including acquisition and installation of all necessary facilities and infrastructure required for the 

Project, are Substantially Complete and in conformity, in all material respects, with the plans and 

specifications therefor as finally approved by the City or as modified thereafter with the City's 

concurrence in accordance with the Development Agreement.  “Substantially Complete” for purposes 

of this certificate means that the Project is sufficiently complete so that the Company can utilize the 

Project for its intended use. 
 

2. Except for costs incurred less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of this Certificate, 

the Company has made or caused to be made all payments to contractors and sub-contractors 

required to be made in connection with the construction of the Project, and there are no outstanding 

statements for which payment is requested in connection with the Project for labor, wages, 

materials, supplies, or services which could become the basis of a vendors’, mechanics’, laborers’ 

or materialmen’s statutory or other similar lien upon the Project or any portion thereof (subject to 

the Company’s right to contest to the extent permitted under the Development Agreement). 
 

3. To the best of the Company’s knowledge, (i) neither the Company nor any entity 

affiliated with the Company is in default or breach of any term or condition of the Development 

Agreement, and (ii) the Company has satisfied the obligations of the Company under the 

Development Agreement with respect to the substantial completion of the Project. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this Certificate on the _______ 

day of ____________, 202__. 

89

WS #1.



 

D-2 
 

 

 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., a Delaware 

corporation 

 

 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 

ACCEPTED: 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 

 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 

90

WS #1.



 

E-1 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

 

FORM OF COMPANY'S AFFIDAVIT – COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 285.530 RSMO. 

 
STATE OF _________ ) 
    )  SS 
COUNTY OF _______ ) 

AFFIDAVIT 

I, the undersigned, am over the age of 18 years and have personal knowledge of the matters 

stated herein. 

 

I am a duly authorized officer of EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., a corporation duly 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware duly authorized to do business in 

Missouri (the “Company”) and am authorized by the Company to attest to the matters set forth 

herein. 

 

I hereby affirm the Company’s enrollment and participation in a “federal work 

authorization program” as defined in Section 285.525 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as 

amended, with respect to the employees working in connection with improvements to a facility 

located in Moberly, Missouri (the “Project”). 

 

The Company does not and will knowingly employ any person who is an “unauthorized 

alien” as defined in Section 285.525 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, in connection 

with the Project. 

 

Further Affiant Sayeth Not. 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC.,  

 

 

 

            By:  ______________________________ 

        Printed name: 

        Title:   

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of ___________, 2023. 

 

 

 

        _____________________________ 

        Notary Public 

 

My commission expires: 

91

WS #1.



 

 

$55,000,000 

(Aggregate Maximum Principal Amount) 

City of Moberly, Missouri 

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds 
(EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and  

Distribution Facility Project) 
Series 2023 

 

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 

_________ 1, 2023  

 

 

City of Moberly, Missouri 

101 West Reed - City Hall 

Moberly, Missouri 652705 

 

 On the basis of the representations, and covenants and upon the terms and conditions 

contained in this Bond Purchase Agreement (this “Purchase Agreement”), EquipmentShare.com 

Inc. a Delaware corporation (the “Purchaser”), offers to purchase from the City of Moberly, 

Missouri (the “City”), the above-referenced Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond 

(EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and Distribution Facility Project) 

Series 2023, dated as provided in the Indenture (as hereinafter defined), in the maximum aggregate 

principal amount of $55,000,000 (collectively, the “Bonds”), to be issued by the City, under and 

pursuant to an Ordinance adopted by the governing body of the City on February 21, 2023 (the 

“Bond Ordinance”) and a Trust Indenture, dated as of __________1, 2023 (the “Indenture”) by 

and between the City and BOKF, N.A., St Louis, Missouri, as trustee (the “Trustee”).  Capitalized 

terms used and not otherwise defined in this Purchase Agreement shall have the meanings 

respectively set forth in the Indenture. 

 

SECTION 1. REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS 

 

 (a) By the City’s acceptance of this Purchase Agreement the City hereby represents 

and warrants to the Purchaser that: 

 

  (1) Organization and Existence.  The City is a city of the third classification 

duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of Missouri.  The City is 

authorized pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of Missouri, and the laws and 

ordinances of the City, and all necessary action has been taken to authorize, issue and 

deliver the Bonds and to consummate all transactions contemplated by the Bond 

Ordinance, this Purchase Agreement, the Bond Ordinance, the Indenture, the Lease, and 

the Development Agreement and any and all other certifications and instruments relating 

thereto.  The proceeds of the Bonds shall be used to finance the Project and to pay for the 

costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. 

 

92

WS #1.



2 

 

  (2) No Litigation.  There is no controversy, suit or other proceeding of any kind 

pending or, to the actual knowledge of the City, threatened questioning, disputing or 

affecting in any way the legal organization of the City, or the right or title of any of the 

City’s officers to their respective offices, or the legality of any official act leading up to the 

issuance of the Bonds or the constitutionality or validity of the obligations represented by 

the Bonds or the validity of the Bonds, the Lease, the Indenture or the Development 

Agreement. 

 

 (b) The Purchaser represents and warrants to the City as follows: 

 

(1) Organization and Existence.  The Purchaser is a corporation organized, 

validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware and is duly 

authorized to do business in and be subject to service of process in Missouri.  The Purchaser 

has obtained or will obtain all necessary licenses and permits required to carry on the 

Purchaser’s business to be conducted on the Property and has caused to be obtained or will 

cause to be obtained all necessary licenses and permits in connection with the purchase, 

construction and operation of the Project.  The Purchaser is not in violation of and has not 

received any notice of an alleged violation of or liability under any zoning, land use, 

environmental, pollution control, hazardous waste or similar laws or regulations that would 

have a material adverse effect on the Purchaser’s operations or financial condition and has 

full right, power and authority to authorize, approve, enter into, execute and deliver the 

Lease, the Development Agreement, the Special Warranty Deed from the Purchaser, as 

grantor, to the City, as grantee, and this Purchase Agreement (collectively, the “Company 

Documents”) and to perform such other acts and things as are provided in the Company 

Documents. 

 

(2) No Conflict or Breach.  The execution, delivery, performance (where 

applicable) and approval by the Purchaser of the Company Documents, and full compliance 

by the Purchaser with the provisions of the Company Documents, have been duly 

authorized by all necessary action of the Purchaser and do not and will not conflict with or 

result in the breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default 

under, the Purchaser’s organizational documents, any law, court or administrative 

regulation, decree or order applicable to or binding upon Purchaser, or any agreement, 

indenture, mortgage, lease or instrument to which the Purchaser is a party or by which the 

Purchaser is bound. 

 

(3) Approvals.  The Purchaser has duly authorized all necessary action to be 

taken by the Purchaser for: (i) the purchase of the Bonds from the City upon the terms and 

conditions set forth herein and in the Indenture, and (ii) the execution, delivery and 

performance (where applicable) of the Company Documents and any and all such other 

agreements and documents as may be required to be executed, delivered and performed by 

the Purchaser to carry out, effectuate and consummate the transactions contemplated 

hereby and by such Company Documents. 

 

(4) No Litigation.  There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation 

at law or in equity or before or by any court, public board or body pending or, to the 

93

WS #1.



3 

 

knowledge of the Purchaser, threatened against or affecting the Purchaser wherein an 

unfavorable decision, ruling or finding could have a material and adverse effect on the 

financial condition of the Purchaser or the operation by the Purchaser of the Purchaser’s 

property or of the transactions contemplated by the Company Documents or on the validity 

or enforceability in accordance with their respective terms of the Company Documents or 

any other agreement or instrument to which the Purchaser is a party or by which the 

Purchaser is or may be bound or would in any way contest the existence or powers of the 

Purchaser or any amounts to be received by the City pursuant to the Indenture, the Lease 

or the Development Agreement. 

 

(5) Documents Legal, Valid and Binding.  The Purchaser shall, on or before the 

Closing Date (as hereinafter defined), execute and deliver the Company Documents.  When 

executed and delivered by the Purchaser, the Company Documents will be legal, valid and 

binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, subject, as to 

enforcement, to any applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or 

other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and further subject to the 

availability of equitable remedies. 

 

(6) Purchaser’s Certificates.  Any certificate signed by an authorized officer or 

agent of the Purchaser and delivered to the City shall be deemed a representation and 

warranty by Purchaser to such parties as to the statements made therein. 

 

(7) No Default Under Company Documents.  No event has occurred and is 

continuing which with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a 

breach of or an event of default by Purchaser under the Company Documents. 

 

(c) The representations and warranties provided under paragraphs (a) and (b), above 

shall survive closing on the initial issue of Bonds and shall be deemed reaffirmed as to paragraph 

(a) by the City and as to paragraph (b) by the Purchaser from time to time as of each making of 

Additional Payment, all as provided in the Indenture, the Lease and this Purchase Agreement. 

 

SECTION 2. PURCHASE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF THE BONDS 
 

 On the basis of the representations and covenants contained in this Purchase Agreement 

and in the other agreements referred to herein, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in 

this Purchase Agreement and in the Indenture, the Purchaser agrees to purchase from the City and 

the City agrees to sell to the Purchaser the Bonds on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 

 The Bonds shall be sold to the Purchaser by the City on the Closing Date upon payment of 

an amount equal to the Closing Price (as hereinafter defined), which amount shall be applied as 

provided in the Indenture and the Lease.  The Purchaser shall make Additional Payments from 

time to time after the Closing Date to the Trustee under the Indenture which Additional Payments 

shall be applied to the payment of Project Costs or as provided by the Indenture and the Lease; 

provided that the sum of the Closing Price and all such Additional Payments shall not, in the 

aggregate, exceed $55,000,000, plus the Costs of Issuance of the Bonds.  As used in this Purchase 

Agreement, the term “Closing Date” shall mean the date of this Purchase Agreement or such other 

94

WS #1.



4 

 

date as shall be mutually agreed upon by the City and the Purchaser; the term “Closing Price” shall 

mean the payment by the Purchaser on or before the Closing Date of all amounts specified in 

Section 4.1 of the Development Agreement. 

 

 The Bonds shall be issued under and secured as provided in the Bond Ordinance, the 

Indenture, and the Lease, and the Bonds shall have the maturity, interest rate and shall be subject 

to redemption as set forth therein.  The delivery of the Bonds shall be made in definitive form as 

a single fully registered bond in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $55,000,000; 

provided that the principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding at any time shall be that amount 

recorded on the Register maintained by the Trustee; and provided further that interest shall be 

payable on the Bonds only on the Outstanding principal amount of the Bonds, as more fully 

provided in the Indenture.  Any certificate signed by an authorized officer or agent of the Purchaser 

and delivered to the City shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the Purchaser to such 

parties as to the statements made therein. 

 

 The Purchaser agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, the Trustee or any 

member, officer, official, attorney or employee of the City or of the Trustee (collectively, the 

“Indemnified Parties”), against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses 

whatsoever caused by any violation or failure to comply with Section 15 of the Securities Act of 

1933, as amended and any other applicable any federal or state securities laws in connection with 

the Bonds. 

 

 In case any action shall be brought against one or more of the Indemnified Parties based 

upon the foregoing indemnification and in respect of which indemnity may be sought against the 

Purchaser, the Indemnified Parties shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing and the Purchaser 

shall promptly assume the defense thereof, including the employment of counsel, the payment of 

all expenses and the right to negotiate and consent to settlement.  Any one or more of the 

Indemnified Parties shall have the right to employ separate counsel (each, an “Additional 

Counsel”) in any such action and to participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses 

of such Additional Counsel shall be at the expense of such Indemnified Party or Indemnified 

Parties unless employment of such Additional Counsel has been specifically authorized by the 

Purchaser or unless there exists a conflict of interest which would prevent counsel for the Purchaser 

from adequately representing both the Purchaser and the Indemnified Party.  The Purchaser shall 

not be liable for any settlement of any such action effected without the Purchaser’s consent by any 

of the Indemnified Parties, but if settled with the consent of the Purchaser or if there be a final 

judgment for the plaintiff in any such action against the Purchaser or any of the Indemnified 

Parties, with or without the consent of the Purchaser, the Purchaser agrees to indemnify, defend, 

and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties to the extent provided in this Purchase Agreement. 

 

SECTION 3. CONDITIONS TO THE OBLIGATIONS 
 

 The obligations under this Purchase Agreement shall be subject to the due performance by 

the parties of the obligations and agreements to be performed hereunder on or prior to the Closing 

Date and to the accuracy of and compliance with the representations contained herein, as of the 

date of this Purchase Agreement and as of the Closing Date and, with respect to the making of 

95

WS #1.



5 

 

Additional Payments, as of the date of each subsequent Additional Payment, and are also subject 

to the following conditions: 

 

  (a) There shall be delivered to the Purchaser on or prior to the Closing Date a 

duly executed copy of this Purchase Agreement, the Bond Ordinance, the Indenture, the 

Lease and the Development Agreement, and any other instrument contemplated thereby 

and such documents shall be in full force and effect and shall not have been modified or 

changed except as may have been agreed to in writing by the Purchaser. 

 

  (b) The City shall confirm by a certificate that at and as of the Closing Date the 

City has taken all action necessary to issue the Bonds and that there is no controversy, suit 

or other proceeding of any kind pending or, to the actual knowledge of the City, threatened 

wherein any question is raised affecting in any way the legal organization of the City or 

the legality of any official act shown to have been done in the transcript of proceedings 

leading up to the issuance of the Bonds, or the constitutionality or validity of the obligations 

represented by the Bonds or the validity of the Bonds or any proceedings in relation to the 

issuance or sale thereof. 

 

(c) There shall be delivered to the City a certificate of the Purchaser, dated as 

of the Closing Date to the effect that (i) no litigation, proceeding or investigation is pending 

against the Purchaser or the Purchaser’s Affiliates or, to the knowledge of the Purchaser, 

threatened which would (A) contest, affect, restrain or enjoin the issuance, validity, 

execution, delivery or performance of the Company Documents, or (B) in any way contest 

the existence or powers of the Purchaser or the Purchaser’s Affiliates, (ii) no litigation, 

proceeding or investigation is pending or, to the knowledge of the Purchaser, threatened 

against the Purchaser or the Purchaser’s Affiliates except litigation, proceedings or 

investigations in which the probable ultimate recoveries and the estimated costs and 

expenses of defense, in Purchaser’s reasonable judgment, will not have a material adverse 

effect on the operations or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Purchaser and the 

Purchaser’s Affiliates; (iii) the representations and warranties of the Purchaser in this 

Purchase Agreement and in the Company Documents were and are true and correct in all 

material respects and not misleading as of the date made and the Closing Date; (iv) at the 

Closing Date, no event of default has occurred and is continuing and no event has occurred 

and is continuing which with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 

constitute a breach of or an event of default under any of the Company Documents; and (v) 

such other matters as are reasonably requested by the other parties in connection with the 

initial issuance of the Bonds. 

 

(d) In the case of each Additional Payment, the delivery by the Purchaser of 

such Additional Payment and the acceptance by the City of the portion of the Project to be 

acquired in connection with such Additional Payment shall be deemed to be reaffirmation 

as of the date of such Additional Payment by the parties of the accuracy of and their 

respective compliance with the representations and warranties set forth in this Purchase 

Agreement, including, without limitation, the foregoing paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) , and 

given as of the date hereof and the Closing Date.  

SECTION 4. PURCHASER’S RIGHT TO CANCEL 

96

WS #1.



6 

 

 

 The Purchaser shall have the right to cancel the Purchaser’s obligation to purchase the 

Bonds by notifying the City in writing of the Purchaser’s election to make such cancellation at any 

time prior to the Closing Date; provided that the Purchaser has paid or caused to be paid all costs 

of the City in connection with the Project, the Development Agreement, the Initial Funding 

Agreement (as that term is used and defined in the Development Agreement) and the Bonds 

accrued through the date of the City’s receipt of such notice. 

 

SECTION 5. CONDITIONS OF OBLIGATIONS 
 

 The obligations of the parties hereto are subject to the receipt of the approving opinion of 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Bond Counsel, with respect to the validity of the authorization and issuance 

of the Bonds. 

 

SECTION 6. REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS TO SURVIVE DELIVERY 
 

 The representations and warranties of each party are made as of the date of this Purchase 

Agreement and the Closing Date.  All of the representations and agreements by either party shall 

survive delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser and shall be reaffirmed by such parties from time 

to time at the times of the making of each Additional Payment by the Purchaser; provided that the 

delivery by the Purchaser of such Additional Payment and the acceptance by the City of the portion 

of the Project to be acquired in connection with such Additional Payment shall be deemed to be 

reaffirmation as of the date of such Additional Payment by the parties of the accuracy of and their 

respective compliance with the representations and warranties set forth in this Purchase Agreement 

and given as of the date hereof and the Closing Date. 

 

SECTION 7. NOTICE 
 

 Any notice or other communication to be given to the City under this Purchase Agreement 

may be given by mailing or delivering the same in writing to the City of Moberly, Missouri, 101 

West Reed Street - City Hall, Moberly, Missouri 65270, Attention: City Manager; and any notice 

or other communication to be given to the Purchaser under this Purchase Agreement may be given 

by delivering the same in writing to EquipmentShare.com Inc., 5710 Bull Run Drive, Columbia, 

Missouri 65201. 
 
SECTION 8. PAYMENT OF EXPENSES 
 

 On the Closing Date the Purchaser shall pay all unpaid amounts due from the Purchaser 

under the Initial Funding Agreement and the Development Agreement. 

 

SECTION 9. APPLICABLE LAW; CHOICE OF FORUM; ASSIGNABILITY 
 

 This Purchase Agreement and its performance shall be governed by and construed under 

the laws of the State of Missouri applicable to contracts made and to be performed wholly within 

such state, without regard to choice or conflict of laws provisions.  The parties hereto agree that 

97

WS #1.



7 

any action at law, suit in equity, or other judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be 

instituted only in the Circuit Court of Randolph County, Missouri or in federal court of the Eastern 

District of Missouri and waive any objections based upon venue or forum non conveniens or 

otherwise.  This Purchase Agreement may be assigned by the Purchaser to any entity controlled 

by, under common control with, or controlling the Purchaser.  As a condition precedent to such 

assignment, any such assignee shall agree in writing to be bound by the terms of this Purchase 

Agreement.  

 

SECTION 10.  EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS 
 

 This Purchase Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be 

regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., as 

Purchaser 

 

 

 

 By:    

  Name: 

  Title: 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

       Name: 

       Title: 

 

 

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED as of this ______ day of ___________, 2023. 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 

 

 

By: _______________________________ 

       Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:    

 Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

98

WS #1.



 

 

 

 

 

________________ 

 

LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 

Dated as of ________ 1, 2023 

 

________________ 

 

 

Between 

 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 

 

AND 

 

 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. 

as Lessee 

 

 

Relating to: 

 

$55,000,000 

(Aggregate Maximum Principal Amount) 

City of Moberly, Missouri 

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds 
(EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and  

Distribution Facility Project) 
Series 2023 

 

________________ 

 

 

 

The interest of certain rights of the City of Moberly, Missouri (the “City”), in this Lease 

Purchase Agreement has been pledged and assigned to BOKF, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”) 

under the Trust Indenture dated as of _______ 1, 2023, between the City and the Trustee (the 

“Indenture”). 

99

WS #1.



i 

 
 

 

LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 Page 

 

 Parties ........................................................................................................................... 1 

 Recitals  ........................................................................................................................ 1 

 

 ARTICLE I 

 DEFINITIONS 
 

Section 1.1. Definitions of Words and Terms  ...............................................................................  2 

Section 1.2. Rules of Interpretation  ................................................................................................  4 

Section 1.3. Computation of Time  .................................................................................................  5 

 

 ARTICLE II 

 REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Section 2.1. Representations by the City  .......................................................................................  5 

Section 2.2. Representations by the Company  ..............................................................................  6 

 

 ARTICLE III 

 GRANTING PROVISIONS 
 

Section 3.1. Granting of Leasehold Estate  .....................................................................................  7 

Section 3.2. Lease Term  .................................................................................................................  7 

Section 3.3. Possession and Use of the Property; Company Covenants  .......................................  7 

 

 ARTICLE IV 

 ACQUISITION AND EQUIPPING OF THE PROJECT 
 

Section 4.1. Issuance of Bonds  .......................................................................................................  8 

Section 4.2. Purchase of Financed Facilities, Financed Equipment   ............................................  8 

Section 4.3. Project Costs  .............................................................................................................  10 

Section 4.4. Payment for Project Costs  ........................................................................................  10 

Section 4.5. Establishment of Completion Date  ........................................................................... 11 

Section 4.6. Surplus or Deficiency in Acquisition Fund  .............................................................  11 

Section 4.7. Project Property  ........................................................................................................  11 

Section 4.8. Non-Project Improvements, Machinery and Equipment Property of Company .....  12 

 

 ARTICLE V 

 RENT PROVISIONS 
 

Section 5.1. Basic Rent  .................................................................................................................  12 

Section 5.2. Additional Rent  ........................................................................................................  13 

Section 5.3. Obligations of Company Absolute and Unconditional  ...........................................  13 

100

WS #1.



ii 

 
 

Section 5.4. Prepayment of Basic Rent  ........................................................................................  14 

Section 5.5. Redemption of Bonds  ...............................................................................................  14 

 

 ARTICLE VI 

 MAINTENANCE, TAXES AND UTILITIES 
 

Section 6.1. Maintenance and Repairs  .........................................................................................  15 

Section 6.2. Taxes, Assessments and Other Governmental Charges  ..........................................  15 

Section 6.3. Utilities  .....................................................................................................................  16 

Section 6.4. Tax Forbearance  .......................................................................................................  16 

 

 ARTICLE VII 

 INSURANCE 
 

Section 7.1. Property Insurance  ....................................................................................................  16 

Section 7.2. Commercial General Liability Insurance  ................................................................  17 

Section 7.3. Blanket Insurance Policies  .......................................................................................  17 

Section 7.4. Workers’ Compensation ...........................................................................................  17 

 

 ARTICLE VIII 

 ALTERATION OF THE PROJECT 

 

Section 8.1. Additions, Modifications and Improvements  ..........................................................  17 

Section 8.2. Removal or Substitution of Fixtures and Equipment  ..............................................  18 

Section 8.3. Additional Improvements on the Property  ..............................................................  18 

Section 8.4. Permits and Authorizations  ......................................................................................  18 

Section 8.5. Mechanics’ Liens; Payment Bonds  .........................................................................  19 

 

 ARTICLE IX 

 DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION 
 

Section 9.1. Damage or Destruction  ............................................................................................  20 

Section 9.2. Condemnation  ..........................................................................................................  21 

Section 9.3. Bondowner Approval ................................................................................................  23 

 

 ARTICLE X 

 SPECIAL COVENANTS 
 

Section 10.1. No Warranty of Condition or Suitability by the City; Exculpation  

 and Indemnification ..................................................................................................  23 

Section 10.2. Surrender of Possession  ...........................................................................................  23 

Section 10.3. Compliance with Laws; Right of Access .................................................................  23 

Section 10.4. Granting of Leasehold Mortgages  ...........................................................................  24 

Section 10.5. Depreciation, Investment Tax Credit and Other Tax Benefits ................................  25 

Section 10.6. Company to Maintain Existence  ..............................................................................  25 

101

WS #1.



iii 

 
 

Section 10.7. Environmental Warranties, Covenants and Indemnities   ........................................  25 

Section 10.8. Security Interests  ......................................................................................................  27 

Section 10.9. Release and Indemnification of City, EDC and Trustee  .........................................  27 

 

 ARTICLE XI 

 OPTION AND OBLIGATION TO PURCHASE THE PROJECT 
 

Section 11.1. Options and Obligation to Purchase; Survival of Obligation  .................................  28 

Section 11.2. Conveyance of the Project ........................................................................................  29 

Section 11.3. Releases of Portions of the Property .........................................................................  29 

 

 ARTICLE XII 

 DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 

Section 12.1. Events of Default  ......................................................................................................  30 

Section 12.2. Remedies on Default  ................................................................................................  31 

Section 12.3. Survival of Obligations  ............................................................................................  32 

Section 12.4. Rights and Remedies Cumulative  ............................................................................  32 

Section 12.5. Waiver of Breach  .....................................................................................................  32 

Section 12.6. Opportunity of Company to Cure Defaults  .............................................................  32 

Section 12.7. Trustee’s Exercise of the City’s Remedies  ..............................................................  32 

 

 ARTICLE XIII 

 ASSIGNMENT  
 

Section 13.1. Limited Assignment  .................................................................................................  33 

Section 13.2. Assignment of Revenues by City  ............................................................................  33 

Section 13.3. Prohibition Against Fee Mortgage and/or Security Agreement  .............................  33 

Section 13.4. Restrictions on Sale or Encumbrance by City  .........................................................  33 

 

ARTICLE XIV 

 AMENDMENTS, CHANGES AND MODIFICATIONS 
 

Section 14.1. Amendments, Changes and Modifications  ..............................................................  34 

 

 ARTICLE XV 

 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

Section 15.1. Notices  ......................................................................................................................  34 

Section 15.2. Net Lease  ..................................................................................................................  35 

Section 15.3. No Pecuniary Liability  .............................................................................................  35 

Section 15.4. Governing Law  .........................................................................................................  35 

Section 15.5. Binding Effect  ..........................................................................................................  35 

Section 15.6. Captions; Recitals and Exhibits; Lease Preparation  ................................................  35 

Section 15.7. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity  .........................................................................  36 

Section 15.8. Relationship of the Parties; Third Party Beneficiaries  ............................................  36 

102

WS #1.



iv 

 
 

Section 15.9. Severability  ...............................................................................................................  36 

Section 15.10. Execution in Counterparts  ........................................................................................  36 

Section 15.11. Recordation ...............................................................................................................  36 

Section 15.12. Reference Date  .........................................................................................................  37 

 

 Signatures and Seals  ......................................................................................... S-1, S-2 

 Acknowledgments  ............................................................................................ S-1, S-2 

 

EXHIBIT A – The Property  ............................................................................................................  A-1 

EXHIBIT B – Form of Requisition Certificate for Project Costs  .................................................  B-1 

EXHIBIT C – Form of Memorandum of Lease Agreement  ..........................................................  C-1 

EXHIBIT D – Form of Supplemental Lease  ..................................................................................  D-1 

 

 

 

  

103

WS #1.



-1- 

 
 

LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT, is made and dated as of _______ 1, 2023 

(this “Lease”), by and between the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, a city of the third 

classification and municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

Missouri and having a principal office at 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270, as lessor 

(the “City”), and EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., a Delaware corporation duly authorized to do 

business in Missouri and having a principal office at 5710 Bull Run Drive, Columbia, Missouri 

65201, together with Affiliates, successors and permitted assigns, as lessee (the “Company”).  

Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Lease shall have the meanings set forth in 

Section 1.1 of this Lease. 

 

WITNESSETH: 
 

 WHEREAS, the City is authorized under the Acts to issue revenue bonds to provide funds 

for the carrying out of a "project" (as that term is defined in section 100.010 of the Revised Statutes 

of Missouri, as amended) and to sell, lease or mortgage to private persons, partnerships or 

corporations the facilities purchased, constructed or extended by the City which may consist of 

warehouses, distribution facilities, research and development facilities, office industries, 

agricultural processing industries, service facilities which provide interstate commerce and 

industrial plants; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Acts, the City Council on February 21, 2023 after duly noticed 

public hearing adopted Ordinance No. _____ (1) approving a plan for the Project, (2) approving the 

Development Agreement and (3) authorizing, among other things, the issuance by the City of its 

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and 

Distribution Facility Project) Series 2023 in a maximum aggregate principal amount of not to 

exceed $55,000,000 for the purpose of financing the Project on the Property; execution and 

delivery by the City of this Indenture for the purpose of issuing and securing the Bonds; to entering 

by the City into the Lease under which the City as lessor will lease the Property and the Project as 

renovated and completed to the Company as lessee, in consideration of rentals which will be 

sufficient to pay when and as due the principal of and interest on the then-current Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount of Bonds, and annually acceptance, but not later than December 31, 

2028, by the City of completed portions of the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment, all 

as provided in the Lease and in accordance with the Acts; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to and in consideration of the foregoing, the City desires to lease to 

the Company the Property and the Project and the Company desires to lease the Property and the 

Project from the City, for the rentals and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth;  

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual representations, 

covenants and agreements herein contained, and of other good and valuable consideration the receipt 

and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the City and the Company do hereby represent, 

covenant and agree as follows: 

 

104

WS #1.



 

- 2 - 

 
 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

 

 Section 1.1. Definitions of Words and Terms.  In addition to any words and terms 

defined elsewhere in this Lease and the words and terms defined in Section 101 of the Indenture, 

which definitions are hereby incorporated in this Lease by reference, the following words and terms 

as used in this Lease shall have the following meanings: 

 

 “Additional Rent” shall mean the additional rentals described in Section 5.2 of this Lease. 

 

 “Allowable Encumbrances” shall mean, as of any particular time (a) liens for ad valorem 

taxes and special assessments not then delinquent or which are being contested in accordance with 

Section 6.2 of this Lease; (b) the Indenture, this Lease, or any Leasehold Mortgage; (c) utility, access 

and other easements and rights-of-way, mineral rights, restrictions, environmental covenants, or use 

restrictions that will not materially interfere with or impair the operations being conducted on the 

Property by the Company or easements granted to or by the City; (d) filed mechanics liens which 

are discharged or contested in accordance with Section 8.5 of this Lease; (e) such minor defects, 

irregularities, encumbrances, easements, and rights-of-way as normally exist with respect to 

properties similar in character to the Property and as do not in the aggregate materially impair the 

Property or the Project for the purpose for which the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment 

were acquired or are held by the City or the operations of the Company under this Lease; (f) any 

other liens, encumbrances, leases, easements, restrictions or covenants consented to in writing by the 

owner of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding; and (g) any liens or security 

interests granted pursuant to any financing documents in furtherance of a Leasehold Mortgage. 

 

 “Applicable Regulations” shall have the meaning ascribed to this term in the Development 

Agreement. 

 

 “Basic Rent” shall mean the rental payments described in Section 5.1 of this Lease. 

 

 “Bond Documents” shall mean, collectively, the forms of the Bonds, the Indenture, this 

Lease, the Bond Purchase Agreement and such other transactional documents as are necessary or 

convenient to allow the City from time to time to issue and secure the Bonds for the acquisition 

and financing of the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment. 

 

 “Completion Date” shall mean the date set forth in the certificate furnished pursuant to 

Section 4.5 of this Lease which date shall in no event be later than December 31, 2028, unless 

extended due to force majeure in accordance with the terms of Section 7.16 of the Development 

Agreement. 

 

 “EDC” shall mean the Moberly Area Economic Development Corporation, a Missouri 

nonprofit corporation having a principal office at 115 North Williams Street, Moberly, Missouri 

65270. 

 “Environmental Laws” shall mean and include the Resource Conservation and Recovery 

Act (42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq.), as amended by the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 

1984; the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. 

105

WS #1.



 

- 3 - 

 
 

§9601 et seq.), as amended by the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986; the 

Hazardous Materials Transportation Act (49 U.S.C. §5101 et seq.); the Toxic Substances Control 

Act (15 U.S.C. §2601 et seq.); the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.); the Clean Water Act 

(33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq.); the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (7 U.S.C. §136 

et seq.); the Occupational Safety and Health Act (29 U.S.C. §651 et seq.); any state super-lien and 

environmental clean-up statutes; and all other applicable federal, state and local environmental 

laws, including, without limitation, obligations under the common law, ordinances, rules, 

regulations and publications, and any other legal requirements, now or hereafter existing relating 

to the pollution and protection of the environment, the preservation or reclamation of natural 

resources, the management or release of Hazardous Substances, or to human health or safety.  

 

 “Event of Default” shall mean, with respect to this Lease, the occurrence and continuing 

beyond any applicable notice and cure period of any one or more of the events described in Section 

12.1 of this Lease. 

 

 “Financing Document” shall mean any loan agreement, credit agreement, security 

agreement, mortgage, participation agreement, lease agreement, sublease, hedging agreement or 

other document executed by or on behalf of a Financing Party. 

 

 “Financing Party” shall mean any Person providing debt, lease, or equity financing 

(including equity contributions or commitments) or hedging arrangements, or any renewal, 

extension, or refinancing of any such financing or hedging arrangements, or any guarantee, 

insurance, letters of credit, or credit support for or in connection with such financing or hedging 

arrangements, in connection with the acquisition, installation, ownership, lease, operation, or 

maintenance of the Project or interests or rights in the Lease or any part thereof, including any trustee 

or agent acting on such Person’s behalf. 

 

“Full Insurable Value” shall mean the reasonable replacement cost of the Financed 

Facilities and the Financed Equipment, less physical depreciation and exclusive of land, excavations, 

footings, foundation and parking lots as determined in accordance with Section 7.2(a) of this Lease. 

 

 “Hazardous Substances” shall mean: (i) those substances (whether solid, liquid or gas), 

included within the definitions of or identified as "hazardous substances," "hazardous materials," 

or "toxic substances," in or pursuant to, without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental 

Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq.), as amended by 

Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (Pub. L. 99-499, 100 Stat. 1613); the 

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (42 U.S.C., § 6901 et seq.); the Clean Water 

Act (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.); the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. § 651 

et seq.); and the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. § 5101 et seq.; or in the 

regulations promulgated pursuant to the aforesaid laws, all as amended; (ii) those substances listed 

in the United States Department of Transportation Table (40 CFR 172.101 and amendments 

thereto) or by the Environmental Protection Agency (or any successor agency) as hazardous 

substances (40 CFR Part 302 and amendments thereto); (iii) any material, waste, substance, 

pollutant or contamination which is or contains (A) petroleum, its derivatives, by-products and 

other hydrocarbons, including crude oil or any fraction thereof, natural gas, or synthetic gas usable 

for fuel or any mixture thereof; (B) asbestos and/or asbestos-containing materials in any form that 

106

WS #1.



 

- 4 - 

 
 

is or could become friable; (C) polychlorinated biphenyls; (D) flammable explosives; (E) 

infectious or medical waste; or (F) radioactive materials; and (iv) such other substances, materials, 

wastes, pollutants and contaminants which are or become regulated as hazardous, toxic or "special 

wastes" under applicable local, state or federal law, or the United States government, or which are 

classified as hazardous, toxic or as "special wastes" under any Environmental Laws. 

 

 “Leasehold Mortgage” shall mean any leasehold mortgage, leasehold deed of trust, 

assignment of rents and leases, security agreement or other financing arrangement or agreement 

relating to the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment permitted pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 10.4 of this Lease. 

 

 “Lease Term” shall mean the period from the effective date of this Lease until the expiration 

thereof pursuant to Section 3.2 of this Lease. 

 

 “Net Proceeds” shall mean, when used with respect to any insurance or condemnation award 

with respect to the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment, the gross proceeds 

from the insurance or condemnation award with respect to which that term is used remaining after 

payment of all expenses (including attorneys’ fees, trustee’s fees and any other reasonable out-of-

pocket expenses of the City and the Trustee) incurred in the collection of such gross proceeds. 

 

 “Person” shall mean an individual, partnership, corporation, business trust, joint stock 

company, limited liability company, bank, insurance company, unincorporated association, joint 

venture, or other entity of whatever nature. 

 

 Section 1.2. Rules of Interpretation. 
 

 (a) Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include correlative 

words of the feminine and neuter genders.   

 

 (b) Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing the singular number 

shall include the plural and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms, associations 

and corporations, including governmental entities, as well as natural persons.   

 

 (c) Wherever this Lease provides that either party shall or will make any payment or 

perform or refrain from performing any act or obligation, each such provision shall, even though not 

so expressed, be construed as an express covenant to make such payment or to perform, or not to 

perform, as the case may be, such act or obligation.   

 

 (d) All references in this instrument to designated “articles,” “sections” and other 

subdivisions are, unless otherwise specified, to the designated articles, sections and subdivisions of 

this instrument as originally executed.  The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder” and other words 

of similar import refer to this Lease as a whole and not to any particular article, section or other 

subdivision. 

 

 (e) The Table of Contents and the article and section headings of this Lease shall not be 

treated as a part of this Lease or as affecting the true meaning of the provisions hereof.  

107

WS #1.



 

- 5 - 

 
 

 

 Section 1.3. Computation of Time.  Wherever this Lease calls for the performance of 

any act by reference to a day or number of days, to a month or number of months or to a year or 

number of years, each such computation shall be made based upon calendar days, calendar months, 

and calendar years, as applicable unless otherwise expressly provided. 

 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

 Section 2.1. Representations by the City.  The City makes the following representations 

as the basis for the undertakings on the City’s part contained in this Lease: 

 

 (a) The City is a city of the third classification duly organized and validly existing under 

the laws of the State of Missouri.  Under the provisions of the Acts, the City has lawful power and 

authority to enter into this Lease and to carry out the City’s obligations hereunder.  By proper action 

of the City Council, the City has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease, acting by 

and through the City’s duly authorized officers. 

 

 (b) The City will acquire the Property and the Financed Facilities and the Financed 

Equipment subject to Allowable Encumbrances, all on the terms and conditions set forth in the 

Development Agreement.  The City proposes to lease the Property, the Financed Facilities and the 

Financed Equipment and the portions thereof from time to time to the Company and to sell the 

Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment to the Company pursuant to the 

Company’s purchase option and obligation set forth in Article XI of this Lease, all for the purpose 

of furthering the public purposes of the Acts, and the City Council has found and determined that 

the acquisition of the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment and the leasing 

of the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment to the Company in accordance 

with the terms of this Lease will further the public purposes of the Acts. 

 

 (c) To finance the acquisition of the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment, 

the City proposes to issue the Bonds which will be scheduled to mature and will be subject to 

redemption prior to maturity in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture.  

 

 (d) The Bonds shall be issued under and secured by the Indenture pursuant to which all 

rents, revenues and receipts to be derived by the City from the leasing or sale of the Property, the 

Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment will be pledged and assigned to the Trustee as 

security for payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

 

 (e) The City will not mortgage, grant any interest in or otherwise encumber the Property, 

the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment or pledge the revenues derived therefrom or 

hereunder for any bonds or other obligations other than the Bonds except with the written consent 

of the Authorized Company Representative and the owners of 100% of the principal amount of the 

Bonds then Outstanding. 

 

 (f) The City shall have no authority to operate the Project, the Property, the Financed 

Facilities or the Financed Equipment or any portion thereof as or for a business or in any other 

108

WS #1.



 

- 6 - 

 
 

manner except as the lessor thereof pursuant to the terms of this Lease including, without 

limitation, during any period subsequent to any termination of this Lease should the City continue 

to own such assets. 

 

 (g) No member of the City Council or any other officer or elected official of the City has 

any significant or conflicting interest, financial, employment or otherwise, in the Company or in the 

transactions contemplated hereby. 

 

 (h) The Property and the Project are located wholly within the City. 

 

 Section 2.2. Representations by the Company.  The Company makes the following 

representations as the basis for the undertakings on the Company’s part contained in this Lease: 

 

 (a) The Company is a corporation, validly existing and in good standing under the laws 

of the State of Delaware and is duly authorized to conduct business in the State of Missouri. 

 

 (b) The Company has lawful power and authority to enter into this Lease and to carry 

out the Company’s obligations under this Lease and the Company has been duly authorized to 

execute and deliver this Lease, acting by and through the Company’s duly authorized officers and 

representatives.  

 

 (c) The execution and delivery of this Lease, the consummation of the transactions 

contemplated hereby, and the performance of or compliance with the terms and conditions of this 

Lease by the Company will not conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms, conditions 

or provisions of, or constitute a default under, any mortgage, deed of trust, lease or any other 

restrictions or any agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which the 

Company or any of the Company’s property is bound, or the Company’s organizational documents 

or any order, rule or regulation applicable to the Company or any of the Company’s property of 

any court or governmental body, or constitute a default under any of the foregoing, or result in the 

creation or imposition of any prohibited lien, charge or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever 

upon any of the property or assets of the Company under the terms of any instrument or agreement 

to which the Company is a party. 
 

 (d) The Company and not the City, will be subject to, and remain the party responsible 

and liable for, all matters related to compliance in all material respects with applicable ordinances, 

laws, rules and regulations, including, without limitation, Environmental Laws, for the Property, the 

Project, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment.  The Company further covenants, 

represents and warrants to the City that the Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed 

Equipment and the Project are, as of the date of this Lease, and will continue to be at all times 

during the term of this Lease in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 

statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, executive orders and codes pertaining to or affecting the 

Project the Financed Facilities, the Financed Equipment or the Property, including, without 

limitation, all Environmental Laws. 

 

ARTICLE III 

GRANTING PROVISIONS 

109

WS #1.



 

- 7 - 

 
 

 

 Section 3.1. Granting of Leasehold Estate.  The City hereby rents, leases and lets the 

Property and, as renovated, installed, and accepted by the City pursuant to the terms and conditions 

of the Development Agreement and the Indenture, the Financed Facilities and the Financed 

Equipment to the Company, and the Company hereby rents, leases and hires the Property, subject to 

Allowable Encumbrances, and as renovated, installed, and accepted by the City pursuant to the terms 

and conditions of the Development Agreement and the Indenture, the Financed Facilities and the 

Financed Equipment from the City for the rentals and upon and subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Lease. 

 

 Section 3.2. Lease Term.  This Lease shall become effective upon execution and 

delivery, and subject to earlier termination pursuant to the provisions of this Lease, shall have a term 

commencing as of the date of this Lease and expiring on the later of: (i) December 31, 2034 (12 

years following the last date for acceptance by the City of any portion of the Financed Facilities 

or the Financed Equipment;) or (ii) with respect to each portion of the Bonds represented by an 

annual endorsement of principal, December 1 of that year which is Twelve (12) years from the year 

of such annual endorsement as set forth on the Table to which an Additional Payment/Principal 

Amount Advanced (all as provided in Section 208(e) of the Indenture) pertains. 

 

 Section 3.3. Possession and Use of the Project; Company Covenants. 
 

 (a) The City covenants and agrees that as long as neither the City nor the Trustee has 

exercised any of the remedies set forth in Section 12.2 of this Lease following the occurrence and 

continuance beyond any applicable notice and cure period of an Event of Default, the Company shall 

have sole and exclusive possession of the Project (subject to Allowable Encumbrances and the City’s 

and the Trustee’s right of access pursuant to Section 10.3 of this Lease) and shall and may peaceably 

and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Project during the Lease Term.  The City covenants and agrees 

that the City will not take any action, other than expressly pursuant to Article XII of this Lease, to 

prevent the Company from having quiet and peaceable possession and enjoyment of the Project 

during the Lease Term and will, at the request and expense of the Company, cooperate with the 

Company in order that the Company may have quiet and peaceable possession and enjoyment of the 

Project and will defend, at the sole expense of the Company and subject to the terms of the Indenture, 

the Development Agreement and this Lease, the Company’s enjoyment and possession thereof 

against all parties. 

 

 (b) Subject to the provisions of this Section 3.3, the Company shall have the right to use 

the Project for any lawful purpose contemplated by the Acts and consistent with the terms of the 

Development Agreement.  The Company shall comply with all Applicable Laws.  The Company 

shall also comply with the mandatory requirements, rules and regulations of all insurers under the 

policies carried under the provisions of the Development Agreement and Article VII of this Lease.  

The Company shall pay all costs, out-of-pocket costs and expenses, claims, fines, penalties and 

damages that may in any manner arise out of, or be imposed as a result of, the failure of the Company 

to comply with the provisions of this Section 3.3 or with the provisions of the Development 

Agreement applicable to the Company.  Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Section 

3.3, however, the Company shall have the right, at the Company’s own cost and expense, to contest 

or review by legal or other appropriate procedures the validity or legality of any such governmental 

110

WS #1.



 

- 8 - 

 
 

statute, law, ordinance, order, judgment, decree, regulation, direction or requirement, or any such 

requirement, rule or regulation of an insurer, and during such contest or review the Company may 

refrain from complying therewith. 

 

ARTICLE IV 

ACQUISITION OF THE PROPERTY AND EQUIPPING OF THE PROJECT 
 

 Section 4.1. Issuance of Bonds.   
 

 (a) To provide for the acquisition by the City of the Property, the Financed Facilities and 

the Financed Equipment, and the payment of Project Costs, the City shall issue the Bonds as provided 

in the Indenture.  Contemporaneously with the execution and delivery of this Lease, proceeds from 

the initial sale of the Bonds in the amount of the Closing Price (as that term is used and defined in in 

the Bond Purchase Agreement) shall be paid over to the Trustee for the account of the City and the 

Trustee shall endorse the Bonds in an amount equal to the Closing Price and shall hold the Bonds 

in trust for the Bondowner. 

 

 (b) Following the initial issuance and delivery of the Bonds, the Company may submit 

additional requisition certificates in accordance with Section 4.4 of this Lease but not more 

frequently than annually on or about but not later than December 1 in any year, each of which 

requisition certificates shall be deemed an Additional Payment and in each such case (i) the 

Company shall be deemed to have paid over to the Trustee and the Trustee shall be deemed to 

have deposited and applied such amounts as provided in Section 208 and in Article V of the 

Indenture and (ii) the Trustee shall endorse the Bonds on the Table by adding the amount of each 

such Additional Payment as “Principal Amount Advanced” thereon up to the maximum aggregate 

principal amount of not to exceed $55,000,000.  The Trustee shall promptly deposit such Additional 

Payments, when and as received, as provided in the Indenture to be used and applied as provided 

therein.  Alternatively, the Trustee may (pursuant to Section 208(e) of the Indenture) endorse the 

Bonds from time to time in the amounts of Additional Payments received or deemed to have been 

received, all as set forth in the requisition certificates submitted pursuant to Section 4.4 of this 

Lease and, in such event, the Bondowner shall be deemed to have deposited funds with the Trustee 

in an amount equal to the amount stated in such requisition certificate. 

 

 Section 4.2. Purchase of Property, Financed Facilities, Financed Equipment.  The 

City and the Company further agree that the Company shall, but solely from monies deposited in or 

credited to the Acquisition Fund pursuant to the Indenture and this Article IV, from time to time, 

renovate the Property and install the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment and the City 

shall purchase the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment as follows: 

 

 (a) The City will acquire the Property contemporaneous with the execution and 

delivery of this Lease on the terms and conditions specified in the Development Agreement.  

Following the City’s acquisition of the Property, the City shall acquire the portions of the Financed 

Facilities and the Financed Equipment, as constructed, furnished, installed, and completed by the 

Company in accordance with the Development Agreement and not more frequently than once in 

each calendar year and in each such case in exchange for the making of Additional Payments in 

amounts equal to the value of the portions of the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment 

111

WS #1.



 

- 9 - 

 
 

transferred in fee to and accepted by the City, as evidenced by the written approval by the City from 

time to time of requisitions executed and delivered by the Company to the Trustee, all pursuant to 

the Development Agreement and applicable Supplemental Leases, each in substantially the form 

attached as Exhibit D to and incorporated by reference in this Lease. 

 

 (b) The Company shall install the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment at and 

on the Property; provided that the City and the Company recognize that the Financed Equipment is 

subject to change during the Lease Term and agree that the definitive lists of Facilities and Financed 

Equipment shall be the respective lists provided by the Company to the Trustee pursuant to Section 

4.7 of this Lease.  The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Financed Facilities and the 

Financed Equipment as so acquired and installed are or will be suitable for use by the Company for 

the Company’s purposes. 

 

 (c) So long as no Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing beyond any 

applicable notice and cure period, the City will assign to the Company all rights or interests in the 

warranties and guaranties of all contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, architects and engineers for 

the furnishing of labor, materials or equipment or supervision or design in connection with the 

Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment and any rights or causes of action arising from or 

against any of the foregoing, and the City will cooperate, at the sole cost of the Company, in the 

enforcement of such warranties and guaranties in any manner reasonably requested by the Company. 

 

 (d) Conveyance of title to the Financed Facilities shall be by special warranty deed.  Title 

to the Financed Equipment shall be evidenced by bills of sale or other instruments of transfer, 

including purchase orders or other instruments pursuant to which the City acquires title to personal 

property.  On or before March 1 of each year or such other date required by law for reporting personal 

property declarations, the Company shall furnish to the City and the Trustee a list of items (based on 

the Company’s internal record keeping) comprising the Financed Equipment as of January 1 of such 

year.  The improper inclusion or exclusion of any Financed Equipment pursuant to such list may be 

rectified by the Company within thirty (30) days after notice of such improper inclusion or exclusion.  

The improper inclusion or exclusion of an item on or from such list shall not affect the items 

comprising the Financed Equipment for the purpose of this Lease, any applicable Supplemental 

Lease or title thereto as intended by the parties hereto.  The Company shall provide such information 

to the City and the Trustee as may be requested in order to ensure that such list corresponds to the 

list maintained by the Trustee pursuant to Section 4.7 of this Lease.  Each bill of sale or other 

instrument of transfer and each personal property declaration form shall be of sufficient specificity 

so as to enable the City and applicable officials of the County of Randolph (including, without 

limitation, the Randolph County Assessor) to determine which personal property as reported on the 

annual personal property declaration constitutes Financed Equipment (and therefore is owned by the 

City) and which personal property does not constitute Financed Equipment (and therefore is owned 

by the Company).  The City and the Company agree that, pursuant to Section 4.8 of this Lease, any 

property purchased in whole or in part by the Company with the Company’s own funds, and not paid 

or reimbursed from Bond proceeds, shall not constitute part of the Financed Equipment or Financed 

Facilities and shall remain the property of the Company and therefore subject to taxation. 

 

 Section 4.3. Project Costs.  The City hereby agrees to pay or cause to be paid, but solely 

from amounts deposited in or deemed to be deposited in the Acquisition Fund pursuant to Sections 

112

WS #1.



 

- 10 - 

 
 

208(d) or (e)of the Indenture, and hereby authorizes and directs the Trustee to pay for, but solely 

from such amounts deposited in or deemed to be deposited in the Acquisition Fund, any Project 

Costs upon receipt by the Trustee of a certificate pursuant to Section 4.4 of this Lease; provided 

that all such disbursements shall be made in strict accordance with Section 503 of the Indenture 

and in no event shall the City or the Trustee be liable for or in respect of any actual deficiencies in 

the Acquisition Fund. 

 

 Section 4.4. Payment for Project Costs.  For the purpose of paying Project Costs as 

specified in Section 4.3 of this Lease, the City hereby authorizes and directs the Trustee to make 

disbursements from the Acquisition Fund upon receipt by the Trustee of certificates which shall 

be submitted not more frequently than annually on or about but not later than December 1 in any 

year in substantially the form attached as Exhibit B to and incorporated by reference in this Lease, 

signed by an Authorized Company Representative and acknowledged by an Authorized City 

Representative: 

 

 (a) requesting payment of a specified amount of such funds (which amount shall be 

equal to the value of the property being transferred to and subject to acceptance by the City 

simultaneously with any request) and directing to whom such amount shall be paid (which may 

include the Company in the event of a reimbursement); 

 

 (b) describing each item of Project Costs for which payment is being requested; 

 

 (c) stating that each item for which payment is requested is a proper charge against the 

Acquisition Fund, that the amount requested is justly due, and has not been the basis of any 

previous requisition from the Acquisition Fund; and  

 

 (d) representing and warranting that, except for the amounts, if any, stated in said 

certificate, there are no outstanding disputed statements for which payment is requested for labor, 

wages, materials, supplies or services which might become the basis of a vendors’, mechanics’, 

laborers’, or materialmen’s statutory or other similar lien upon the Property or any part thereof or 

improvement thereto. 

 

 The Trustee may rely conclusively on any such certificate and shall not be required to make 

any independent investigation in connection therewith.  The approval of any requisition certificate 

by the Authorized Company Representative and acknowledgement by an Authorized City 

Representative shall constitute, unto the Trustee, an irrevocable determination that all conditions 

precedent to the payments requested have been completed. 

 

 Section 4.5. Establishment of Completion Date.  The Completion Date shall be 

evidenced to the Trustee by a certificate signed by an Authorized Company Representative and 

acknowledged by an Authorized City Representative stating (a) that the purchase, installation, 

extension and improvement of the Project has been completed, and (b) that all costs and expenses 

incurred in the purchase, installation, extension and improvement of the Financed Facilities and 

the Financed Equipment have been paid except costs and expenses the payment of which is not 

yet due or is being retained or contested in good faith.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, such 

certificate shall state that it is given without prejudice to any rights against third parties which exist 

113

WS #1.



 

- 11 - 

 
 

at the date of such certificate or which may subsequently come into being.  The Company and the 

City agree to cooperate in causing such certificate to be furnished to the Trustee.   

 

 Section 4.6. Surplus or Deficiency in Acquisition Fund.   
 

 (a) Upon receipt of the certificate described in Section 4.5 of this Lease, the Trustee 

shall, as provided in Section 504 of the Indenture, transfer any remaining moneys then in the 

Acquisition Fund to the Bond Fund to be applied as directed by the City solely to the payment of 

principal and premium, if any, of the Bonds through the payment (including regularly scheduled 

principal payments, if any) or redemption thereof at the earliest date permissible under the terms 

of the Indenture.  Any amount so deposited in the Bond Fund may be invested as permitted by 

Section 702 of the Indenture. 

 

 (b) If the Acquisition Fund shall be insufficient at any time to pay fully all Project Costs 

when and as due, the Company shall pay or cause to be paid into the Acquisition Fund the full 

amount of any such deficiency, and the Trustee shall use those Acquisition Fund moneys to pay 

when and as due all such Project Costs, all in accordance with the provisions for payment of Project 

Costs set forth in Section 4.4 of this Lease, and the Company shall save the City and the Trustee 

whole and harmless from any obligation to pay such deficiency.  

 

 Section 4.7. Project Property.  Upon transfer to and acceptance by the City, the Financed 

Facilities and all additions or enlargements thereto or thereof, together with the Financed Equipment 

and all substitutions and replacements therefor and anything under this Lease or applicable 

Supplemental Lease which becomes, is deemed to be, or constitutes a part of the Project, as repaired, 

rebuilt, rearranged, restored or replaced by the Company under the provisions of this Lease, except 

as otherwise specifically provided in this Lease, shall immediately upon transfer by the Company to 

the City be titled in the name of the City, and shall be held by the City solely as lessor subject only 

to this Lease, the Indenture, and any Leasehold Mortgage; provided that the City shall have no right 

or authority to use, operate or control the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities or the 

Financed Equipment or any portion thereof.  The Company shall develop, maintain and update from 

time-to-time, a complete list of all Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment which are titled in 

the name of the City and subject to the terms of this Lease and shall promptly provide upon request 

of the City, but not more than annually, copies of the list to the City and to the Trustee; provided 

that, any failure of the Company to provide such list shall not be deemed to be an Event of Default 

under this Lease.  In addition, the Company shall prepare and submit timely to the Randolph 

County Assessor, personal property tax returns covering the Financed Equipment owned by the 

City and leased to the Company under this Lease. 

  

 Section 4.8. Non-Project Improvements, Machinery and Equipment Property of the 

Company.  Any improvements or items of machinery or equipment which do not constitute part of 

the Project, shall be the property of the Company and shall not constitute a part of the Project for 

purposes of Section 6.4 of this Lease. 

 

ARTICLE V 

RENT PROVISIONS 
 

114

WS #1.



 

- 12 - 

 
 

 Section 5.1. Basic Rent.  The Company covenants and agrees to pay to the Trustee in 

same day funds for the account of the City during the Lease Term, for deposit in the Bond Fund on 

or before 11:00 a.m., Trustee’s local time, on the appropriate dates and in the appropriate amounts, 

the amount of principal of and interest on the Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the 

Indenture and the Bonds, as Basic Rent for the Project in a total amount which, when added to any 

collected funds then on deposit in the Bond Fund and available for the payment of principal on the 

Bonds and the interest thereon on such payment date, shall be equal to the amount payable on such 

payment date as principal of the Bonds then Outstanding and the interest thereon, all as provided in 

the Indenture; provided that amounts of Basic Rent due on such payment dates and deposited in the 

Bond Fund shall consist of: (A) payments of accrued interest only on amounts listed from time to 

time as “Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount” on Schedule 1, Table of Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount to the Bonds until the earlier of (i) maturity of the Bonds or portions 

thereof or (ii) redemption of the Bonds in whole, but not in part; and (B) payments of principal on 

the Bonds or portions thereof upon maturity, or upon redemption of the Bonds, whether in whole or 

in part, all as provided in the Indenture.  Except as offset pursuant to the right of the Company set 

forth below, all payments of Basic Rent provided for in this Section 5.1 shall be paid directly to 

the Trustee and shall be deposited in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture into the Bond 

Fund and shall be used and applied by the Trustee in the manner and for the purposes set forth in 

this Lease and the Indenture.  In furtherance of the foregoing, and notwithstanding any other 

provision in this Lease, the Indenture or the Bond Purchase Agreement to the contrary, and 

provided that (i) the Company is the sole holder of all of the Bonds then Outstanding; and (ii) the 

Company is the lessee under this Lease, the Company may set-off the then-current Basic Rent 

payment against the City’s obligation to the Company as Bondholder under the Indenture in lieu 

of delivery of the Basic Rent on any Payment Date, without obtaining consent of any party prior 

to exercising such set-off.  Absent actual receipt by the Trustee of written notice to the contrary 

from the Company, it shall be presumed for each Basic Rent payment that such set-off has occurred 

on and as of the date such payment of Basic Rent is due, and the Trustee may conclusively rely on 

absence of such notice as evidence that such set-off has occurred.  At the Company’s option, the 

Company may deliver to the Trustee for cancellation portions of the Bonds not previously paid and 

the Company shall receive a credit against the Basic Rent payable by the Company in an amount 

equal to the principal amount of the Bonds so tendered for cancellation plus accrued interest thereon. 

 

 Section 5.2. Additional Rent.  The Company shall pay directly to the City as Additional 

Rent the following amounts: 

 

 (a) All out-of-pocket fees, charges and expenses, including agent and counsel fees and 

expenses, of the City, the Trustee and Paying Agent incurred under the Indenture, this Lease, the 

Development Agreement, or any Leasehold Mortgage as and when the same become due; 

 

 (b) All Costs of Issuance and out-of-pocket costs incident to the issuance of any series 

of Bonds at or before closing on the Bonds and all costs and out-of-pocket expenses in connection 

with the call, redemption and payment of all Outstanding Bonds; 

 

 (c) All out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the reasonable and necessary 

enforcement of any rights under this Lease, the Indenture, or the Development Agreement by the 

City, the Trustee or the Bondowners; 

115

WS #1.



 

- 13 - 

 
 

 

 (d) All amounts payable by the Company under the Development Agreement;  

 

 (e) All other payments of whatever nature which the Company has agreed in writing to 

pay or assume under the provisions of this Lease or of the Development Agreement including, 

without limitation, amounts required under any indemnification obligation of the Company;  

 

 (f) All payments made pursuant to Section 11.1 of this Lease, such payments to be 

made directly to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Fund pursuant to Section 602 of the Indenture; 

and  

 

 (g) All payments in lieu of taxes required under Sections 3.4 or 3.5 of the Development 

Agreement. 

 

The Additional Rents set forth in paragraphs (a) through (e), above, shall each be made within thirty 

(30) days after receiving an invoice therefor.  Additional Rents set forth in Section 5.2(f),  above 

shall be made pursuant to Section 11.1 of this Lease.  Additional Rents set forth in Section 5.2(g), 

above, shall be made without further demand or notice as provided in Sections 3.4 and 3.5 of the 

Development Agreement.  

 

 Section 5.3. Obligations of Company Absolute and Unconditional. 
 

 (a) The obligations of the Company under this Lease to make payments of Basic Rent 

and Additional Rent on or before the date the same become due, and to perform all of the Company’s 

other obligations, covenants and agreements hereunder shall be absolute and unconditional, without 

notice or demand, and without abatement, deduction, set-off (except as set forth in Section 5.1 of 

this Lease with respect to the set-off by the Company of any Basic Rent payment against the City's 

obligation to pay the Company as Bondholder such amount), counterclaim, recoupment or defense 

or any right of termination or cancellation arising from any circumstance whatsoever, whether now 

existing or hereafter arising, irrespective of whether the City’s title to the Project or to any part 

thereof is defective or nonexistent, and notwithstanding any damage to, loss, theft or destruction of 

the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment or any part or portion thereof, any failure of 

consideration or frustration of commercial purpose, the taking by eminent domain of title to or of the 

right of temporary use of all or any part of the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment, legal 

curtailment of the Company’s use thereof, the lawful eviction or constructive eviction of the 

Company, any change in the tax or other laws of the United States of America, the State of Missouri 

or any political subdivision thereof, any change in the City’s legal organization or status, or any 

default of the City hereunder, and regardless of the invalidity of any action of the City or the 

invalidity of any portion of this Lease, the Indenture, or the Development Agreement; provided, 

however, that nothing in this Section 5.3(a) or in Section 5.3(b) of this Lease is intended or shall 

be deemed to affect or impair in any way the rights of the Company to tender the Bonds for 

redemption in satisfaction of Basic Rent as provided in Sections 5.1 and 5.4 of this Lease. 

 

 (b) Nothing in this Lease shall be construed to release the City from the performance of 

any agreement on the City’s part herein contained or as a waiver by the Company of any rights or 

claims the Company may have against the City under this Lease or otherwise, but any recovery upon 

116

WS #1.



 

- 14 - 

 
 

such rights and claims shall be had from the City separately, it being the intent of this Lease that the 

Company shall be unconditionally and absolutely obligated to perform fully all of the Company’s 

obligations, agreements and covenants under this Lease (including the obligation to pay Basic Rent 

and Additional Rent) for the benefit of the Bondowners and the City.  The Company may, however, 

at the Company’s own cost and expense and in the Company’s own name or in the name of the City, 

prosecute or defend any action or proceeding or take any other action involving third persons which 

the Company deems reasonably necessary in order to secure or protect the Company’s right of 

possession, occupancy and use hereunder, and in such event the City hereby agrees to cooperate 

fully with the Company and to take all action necessary to effect the substitution of the Company for 

the City in any such action or proceeding if the Company shall so request. 

 

 Section 5.4. Prepayment of Basic Rent.  The Company may at any time and from time 

to time prepay all or any part of the Basic Rent provided for hereunder without penalty.  During such 

times as the amount held by the Trustee in the Bond Fund shall be sufficient to pay, at the time 

required, the principal of and interest on all of the Bonds then Outstanding, the Company shall be 

entitled to credit against payments of Basic Rent or Additional Rent under the provisions of this 

Lease. 

 

 Section 5.5. Redemption of Bonds.  The City and the Trustee, at the written direction of 

the Company, at any time the aggregate moneys in the Bond Fund are sufficient for such purposes, 

shall, if the same are then redeemable under the provisions of Article III of the Indenture, use their 

best efforts to effectuate the redemption of all or such part of the then Outstanding Bonds as may be 

specified by the Company, on such redemption date as may be specified by the Company.  At the 

Company’s option, the Company may deliver to the Trustee for redemption portions of the Bonds 

not previously paid and the Company shall receive a credit against the Basic Rent or other amounts 

payable by the Company for the redemption of such Bonds in an amount equal to the principal 

amount of such Bonds so tendered for redemption plus accrued interest. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

MAINTENANCE, TAXES AND UTILITIES 
 

 Section 6.1. Maintenance and Repairs.  Throughout the Lease Term the Company shall, 

at the Company’s own expense, keep the Project, the Financed Facilities, the Financed Equipment 

and the Property in reasonably safe condition and keep the Property, the Financed Facilities and the 

Financed Equipment at all times in good repair, reasonable wear, tear, depreciation, condemnation, 

casualty, and obsolescence excepted, making from time to time all repairs thereto and renewals and 

replacements thereof the Company determines in the Company’s sole discretion to be necessary. 

 

 Section 6.2. Taxes, Assessments and Other Governmental Charges. 
 

 (a) The Company shall promptly pay and discharge as the same become due, all taxes 

and assessments, general and special, and other governmental charges of any kind whatsoever that 

may be lawfully taxed, charged, levied, assessed or imposed upon or against or be payable for or in 

respect of the Financed Facilities, the Financed Equipment, and the Property, or any part thereof or 

interest therein or any buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment at any time installed 

thereon by the Company, or the income therefrom or Basic Rent and other amounts payable under 

117

WS #1.



 

- 15 - 

 
 

this Lease, including any new taxes and assessments not of the kind enumerated above to the extent 

that the same are lawfully made, levied or assessed in lieu of or in addition to taxes or assessments 

now customarily levied against real or personal property, and further including all utility charges, 

assessments and other general governmental charges and impositions whatsoever, foreseen or 

unforeseen, which if not paid when due would impair the security of the Bonds or encumber the 

City’s title to the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment; provided that with 

respect to any special assessments or other governmental charges that are lawfully levied and 

assessed which may be paid in installments, the Company shall be obligated to pay only such 

installments thereof as become due and payable during the Lease Term.  

 

 (b) The Company shall have the right, in the Company’s own name or in the City’s name, 

at the sole expense of the Company, to contest the validity or amount of any tax, assessment or other 

governmental charge which the Company is required to bear, pay and discharge pursuant to the terms 

of this Article VI by appropriate legal proceedings instituted at least Ten (10) days before the tax, 

assessment or other governmental charge complained of becomes delinquent if and provided that (1) 

the Company, before instituting any such contest, gives the City written notice of the Company’s 

intention so to do, (2) the Company diligently prosecutes any such contest, at all times effectively 

stays or prevents any official or judicial sale therefor, under execution or otherwise, and (3) the 

Company promptly pays any final judgment enforcing the tax, assessment or other governmental 

charge so contested and thereafter promptly procures record release or satisfaction thereof.  Upon 

written request, the City agrees to cooperate fully with the Company in connection with any and all 

administrative or judicial proceedings related to any tax, assessment or other governmental charge 

and in such event the Company shall indemnify, defend with counsel of the Company’s choosing 

and reasonably acceptable to the City, which acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld or 

delayed, and shall hold the City its officials, officers, agents, employees, Bond Counsel, attorneys, 

and assigns, each whole and harmless from any loss, costs or expenses the City or any of the 

foregoing may incur related to any of the above.  

 

 Section 6.3. Utilities.  All utilities and utility services used by the Company in, on or about 

the Property or the Project shall be paid by the Company and shall be contracted by the Company in 

the Company’s own name, and the Company shall, at the Company’s sole cost and expense, procure 

any and all permits, licenses or authorizations necessary in connection therewith. 

 

 Section 6.4. Tax Forbearance.  The Company anticipates that upon conveyance to and 

titling in the name of the City from time to time of the portions of the Project, the same will be 

exempt from property taxes (whether real, personal or otherwise) levied by any applicable taxing 

jurisdiction for as long as the City continues to own such portions of the Project.  The City agrees 

to take all actions within the City’s control to obtain and maintain in effect such exemption from 

property taxes related to such portions of the Project, including any filings required with any 

governmental authorities; provided, however, that the City is not guaranteeing the exemption from 

taxation of the City’s fee or ownership interest in the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities 

or the Financed Equipment or any portion thereof or of the leasehold interest of the Company 

contemplated by this Lease and the issuing of the Bonds and the parties hereto acknowledge and 

agree that the City shall not be liable for any failure of the State of Missouri, any agency thereof 

or any other taxing authority, or of any court of competent jurisdiction to recognize any exemption 

contemplated in this Section 6.4 or in the Development Agreement or any Bond Document.  In the 

118

WS #1.



 

- 16 - 

 
 

event of a levy or assessment of property taxes on the Property, the Financed Facilities or the 

Financed Equipment or any portion thereof should occur, the City shall, at the Company’s request 

and sole expense, fully cooperate with the Company in all reasonable ways to prevent or remove 

any such levy or assessment; provided, however, that the City shall not be liable for any costs or 

expenses resulting from such cooperation and may withhold cooperation with the Company until 

accommodations have been provided, to the City’s satisfaction, that ensure that the City does not 

incur such costs.  The City and the Company each covenant and agree that the property tax 

exemption contemplated in this Lease, the Development Agreement and the issuance of the Bonds 

shall only apply to the City’s fee and ownership interests in the portions of the Project held by the 

City at any time.  Any property taxes levied against the interest of the Company in the Property, 

the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment or portions thereof by any taxing jurisdiction 

shall be and remain solely the responsibility of the Company.  In the event such a levy or 

assessment should occur, the City shall, at the request and sole expense of the Company fully 

cooperate with the Company in all reasonable ways to prevent and/or challenge such levy or 

assessment. 

 

ARTICLE VII 

INSURANCE 
 

 Section 7.1. Property Insurance. 
 

 (a) The Company shall obtain at the Company’s sole cost and expense a policy or 

policies of property “all risk” insurance including, if appropriate, builders’ risk insurance, to keep 

the Property, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment constantly insured against loss or 

damage.  The insurance required pursuant to this Section 7.1 shall be maintained throughout the 

Lease Term with a generally recognized responsible insurance company or companies authorized to 

do business in the State of Missouri or generally recognized international insurers or reinsurers with 

an A.M. Best rating of “A-“ or the equivalent thereof as may be selected by the Company.  Copies 

of insurance certificates for the insurance required under this Section 7.1 shall be delivered by the 

Company to the City and, upon request, to the Trustee.  All such policies of insurance pursuant to 

this Section 7.1, and all renewals thereof, shall name the City and the Trustee as loss payees as their 

respective interests may appear, and shall contain a provision, to the extent that such provision is 

commercially available, that such insurance may not be canceled by the issuer thereof or the amount 

and scope of insurance coverage materially reduced by the issuer or by the Company without at least 

Thirty (30) days’ advance written notice to the City and the Trustee. 

 

 (b) In the event of loss or damage to the Property, the Financed Facilities, or the Financed 

Equipment or any portion thereof, the Net Proceeds of insurance carried pursuant to this Section 7.1 

shall be paid and applied as provided in Article IX of this Lease, or as may be directed by, or on 

behalf of, the Bondowners of 100% in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding.  

 

 Section 7.2. Commercial General Liability Insurance.  The Company shall maintain at 

the Company’s sole cost and expense at all times during the Lease Term commercial general liability 

and commercial auto liability insurance, under which the City and the Trustee shall be named as 

additional insureds, in an amount not less than $5,000,000.  Copies of certificates of insurance for 

the coverages required under this Section 7.2, shall be promptly delivered by the Company to the 

119

WS #1.



 

- 17 - 

 
 

City and the Trustee.  The policies of said insurance shall contain a provision, to the extent that such 

provision is commercially available, that such insurance may not be canceled by the issuer thereof 

without at least Thirty (30) days’ advance written notice to the City and the Trustee. 

 

 Section 7.3. Blanket Insurance Policies.  The Company may satisfy any of the insurance 

requirements set forth in this Article VII by using blanket policies of insurance, including self-

insurance arrangements recognized and customary within the construction equipment manufacturing 

industry; provided that each and all of the requirements and specifications of this Article VII 

respecting insurance are complied with.  

 

 Section 7.4. Workers’ Compensation.  The Company agrees throughout the Lease Term 

to the full extent required by Missouri law to maintain Workers’ Compensation coverage as required 

by the laws of the State of Missouri. 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

ALTERATION OF THE PROJECT 
 

 Section 8.1. Additions, Modifications and Improvements.  The Company shall have 

and is hereby given the sole right, at the Company’s sole cost and expense, to make such additions, 

modifications and improvements in and to any part of the Project, the Property, the Financed 

Facilities or the Financed Equipment as the Company from time to time may deem necessary or 

desirable in the Company’s sole discretion for the Company’s business purposes.  All additions, 

modifications and improvements made by the Company pursuant to the authority of this Section 8.1 

shall (i) be made in a good and workmanlike manner and in compliance with all Applicable 

Regulations, (ii) when commenced, be prosecuted to completion with due diligence, and (iii) when 

completed, be deemed a part of the Project; provided, however, that additions of machinery, 

equipment or other improvements installed by the Company (a) not accepted by the City; or (b) not 

originally purchased or acquired from funds deposited with the Trustee under this Lease shall remain 

the property of the Company and may be removed by the Company, and are not part of the Project. 

 

 Section 8.2. Removal or Substitution of Fixtures or Equipment.  The Company shall 

have the sole right, provided the Company is not in default in the payment of Basic Rent or 

Additional Rent under this Lease beyond any applicable grace, notice or cure period, to remove 

from the Property and sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of, without responsibility or accountability 

to the City or the Trustee with respect thereto, any fixtures or equipment which the Company 

determines in the Company’s sole judgment to be or has become inadequate, obsolete, worn out, 

unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary or is otherwise no longer useful to the Company in the 

Company’s operations conducted on the Property.  In all cases, the Company shall promptly pay all 

the costs and expenses of any such removal and shall promptly repair at no cost or expense to the 

City all damage to the Property or the Financed Facilities caused thereby in a good and workmanlike 

manner. 

 

 Section 8.3. Additional Improvements on the Property.  The Company shall have and 

is hereby given the right, at the Company’s sole cost and expense, from time to time during the Lease 

Term to construct on portions of the Property other than those portions occupied or to be occupied 

by the Financed Facilities such additional buildings and improvements as the Company from time 

120

WS #1.



 

- 18 - 

 
 

to time may deem necessary or desirable for the Company’s business purposes.  All such additional 

buildings and improvements constructed on the Property by the Company pursuant to the authority 

of this Section 8.3 shall, during the Lease Term, remain the property of the Company and may be 

added to, altered or razed and removed by the Company at any time.  All such additional buildings 

and improvements shall be made in compliance with Applicable Regulations.  The Company 

covenants and agrees (a) to make any repairs and restorations required to be made to the Property 

and the Financed Facilities because of the construction of, addition to, alteration or removal of said 

additional buildings or improvements, and (b) to promptly and with due diligence either raze and 

remove or repair, replace or restore any of said additional buildings and improvements as may from 

time to time be damaged by fire or other casualty.  The Company shall pay all applicable ad valorem 

taxes, payments in lieu of taxes, and assessments payable with respect to such additional buildings 

and improvements which remain the property of the Company. 

 

 Section 8.4. Permits and Authorizations.  The Company shall not do or permit others 

under the Company’s control to do any work on the Financed Facilities related to any repair, 

rebuilding, restoration, replacement, modification or addition to the Financed Facilities, or any part 

thereof, unless all requisite municipal and other governmental permits and authorizations shall have 

been first procured.  The City agrees to act promptly on all requests for such municipal permits and 

authorizations; provided that nothing in this Lease shall obligate the City to grant any permits, 

authorizations or approvals other than those which the City would grant in the lawful exercise of the 

City’s police powers and pursuant to the City’s normal review procedures and standards for such 

matters.  All such work shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner and in compliance with all 

Applicable Regulations and in accordance with the requirements all insurance policies required to 

be carried under the provisions of Article VII of this Lease. 

 

 Section 8.5. Mechanics’ Liens; Payment Bonds. 
 

 (a) The Company shall not directly or indirectly create, incur, assume or suffer to exist 

any lien on or with respect to the Property (other than Allowable Encumbrances) or the Project and 

the Company shall promptly, at the Company’s sole expense, take such action as may be necessary 

to fully discharge or release any such lien by payment, bond or otherwise.  Whenever and as often 

as any mechanics’ or other similar lien is filed against the Property or any part thereof, purporting to 

be for or on account of any labor done or materials or services furnished in connection with any work 

in or about the Property, the Company shall discharge the same of record.  Notice is hereby given 

that the City shall not be liable for any labor or materials furnished the Company or anyone claiming 

by, through or under the Company upon credit, and that no mechanics' or other similar lien for any 

such labor, services or materials shall attach to or affect the reversionary or other estate of the City 

in and to the Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed Equipment or any part thereof. 

 

 (b) Notwithstanding Section 8.5(a) above, the Company shall have the right to contest 

any such mechanics’ or other similar lien if the Company notifies the City and the Trustee in writing 

of the Company’s intention so to do, and provided the Company diligently prosecutes such contest, 

at all times effectively stays or prevents any official or judicial sale of the Property, the Financed 

Facilities, or the Financed Equipment or any part thereof or interest therein, under execution or 

otherwise, and pays or otherwise satisfies any final judgment enforcing such contested lien claim 

and thereafter promptly procures record release or satisfaction thereof.  The Company shall defend 

121

WS #1.



 

- 19 - 

 
 

with counsel of the Company’s choosing and reasonably acceptable to the City, which acceptance 

shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, indemnify and hold the City, its officials, officers, 

agents, employees, the Trustee, Bond Counsel, attorneys, and assigns, each whole and harmless any 

loss, costs or expenses the City may incur related to any such contest.  The City shall cooperate fully 

with the Company in any such contest. 

 

 (c) Not later than the date of this Lease and as a condition precedent to the execution 

and delivery of this Lease by the City, the Company shall procure or cause to be procured and 

delivered to the City a dual obligee payment bond in substantially the form of Exhibit C-1 to the 

Development Agreement naming and in favor of the City and meeting all requirements of section 

107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, or any successor enactment in the 

minimum aggregate penal amount of the greater of (i) $4,500,000, or (ii) the total costs of 

acquisition and renovation of the Financed Facilities as evidenced by construction contracts 

therefor.  In addition, prior to initiation of any work under any contract (whether written or oral) 

with any contractor for the construction or installation of or for procurement or supplying of 

materials to be incorporated, consumed (other than raw materials to be utilized in a manufacturing 

process) or used in connection with the construction of the Financed Facilities or the Financed 

Equipment, and as a condition precedent to the future acceptance by the City of the conveyance of 

any portions of the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment so constructed or installed, the 

Company shall for each such contract procure or cause to be procured a dual obligee payment bond 

in substantially the form of Exhibit C-1 to the Development Agreement naming and in favor of the 

City and meeting all requirements of section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as 

amended, or any successor enactment in the minimum amount of One Hundred percent (100%) of 

the total amount of each such contract; and provided further that in the event that the amount of 

any such contract shall be increased at any time or from time to time by more than Twenty-Five 

percent (25%) in the aggregate of the initial contract amount, the Company shall promptly cause 

the amount of the corresponding payment bond to be increased to a total One Hundred percent 

(100%) of such increased amount.  All such payment bonds required under this Section 8.5(c), 

section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, or otherwise, shall provide for 

and be maintained until the date which is One (1) year from the date the last labor or services were 

provided by anyone or last materials or equipment were furnished by anyone under or pursuant to 

the contract to which such payment bond applies.  Prior to the execution of any general contract 

for labor, services, materials, equipment or other work at the Project, the Financed Facilities 

or the Financed Equipment the Company shall provide the City a certification from such 

general contractor in the form of Exhibit C-2 to the Development Agreement acknowledging 

the payment bond obligations of the Development Agreement and this Section 8.5(c).  The 

Company and the City hereby further agree that delivery of such certification shall be a 

condition precedent to the enforceability of any such general contract.  Prior to initiation of 

any work under any such contract, the corresponding dual obligee payment bond fully executed 

by the surety, the Company and the contractor in the minimum penal amount of One Hundred 

percent (100%) of the total amount of each such contract shall be submitted to the City.  

Compliance with the requirements of this Section 8.5(c) shall be a condition precedent to the 

acceptance by the City of any conveyance or purported conveyance by the Company of the 

Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed Equipment or any portion thereof.  It is the intent of 

the Company and the City that the Project comply at all times with the requirements of section 

107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, and the Company hereby agrees to 

122

WS #1.



 

- 20 - 

 
 

indemnify, defend with counsel of the City’s choosing, and hold harmless the City and the City 

Council in their official and individual capacities from and against all claims, demands, costs, 

liabilities, damages or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, by or on behalf of any 

person, firm or corporation arising out of the Company or the Company’s contractors failure to 

comply in all respects with the requirements of Section 4.3.5. of the Development Agreement and 

this Section 8.5(c) or any failure of the Company to obtain payment bonds as required by section 

107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended.  The foregoing indemnification 

obligations shall survive termination of this Lease for any reason.  The parties hereto further agree 

to promptly take such further actions as may be required from time to time to assure that the Project 

complies with any subsequent amendments or successor enactments to such section 107.170 and 

with any final, non-appealable determinations by any court of competent jurisdiction affecting the 

procurement of payment bonds by or on behalf of public entities.   

 

ARTICLE IX 

DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION 
 

 Section 9.1. Damage or Destruction. 
 

 (a) If any portion of the Project shall be damaged or destroyed by fire or any other 

casualty, whether or not covered by insurance, the Company, as promptly as practicable, shall either 

(i) make the determination described in Section 9.1(f), below, or (ii) repair, restore, replace or rebuild 

or cause to be repaired, restored, replaced or rebuilt the same so that upon completion of such repairs, 

restoration, replacement or rebuilding such portion of the Project shall be of a value not less than the 

value thereof immediately prior to the occurrence of such damage or destruction or, at the 

Company’s option, shall construct upon the Property new buildings and improvements thereafter 

together with all new machinery, equipment and fixtures which are either to be attached to or are to 

be used in connection with the operation or maintenance thereof, provided that (A) the value thereof 

shall not be less than the value of such destroyed or damaged portions of the Project immediately 

prior to the occurrence of such damage or destruction; and (B) the nature of such new buildings, 

improvements, machinery, equipment and fixtures will not impair the character of the Project as an 

enterprise permitted by the Acts.  If the Company shall elect to construct any such new buildings 

and improvements, for all purposes of this Lease, any reference to the term “Project” shall be deemed 

to also include any such new buildings and improvements and all additions thereto; provided that 

nothing in this Section 9.1(a) shall be construed to extend the Lease Term.  Unless the Company 

makes the determination described in Section 9.1(f), below, the Net Proceeds required by Article 

VII of this Lease received with respect to such damage or loss to portions of the Project shall be used 

to pay the cost of repairing, restoring, replacing or rebuilding such portions of the Project.  If the 

Company makes the determination described in Section 9.1(f), below, the Net Proceeds shall be 

deposited with the Trustee and used to redeem the Bonds then Outstanding as provided in paragraph 

9.1(f) of this Lease. 

 

 (b) If any of the insurance monies paid by the insurance company as hereinabove 

provided shall remain after the completion of such repairs, restoration, replacement or rebuilding, 

and this Lease shall not have terminated, the excess shall be deposited in the Bond Fund, subject to 

the rights pursuant to any Leasehold Mortgage.  If the Net Proceeds shall be insufficient to pay the 

123

WS #1.



 

- 21 - 

 
 

entire cost of such repairs, restoration, replacement or rebuilding, the Company shall pay the 

deficiency. 

 

 (c) Except as otherwise provided in this Lease, in the event of any such damage by fire 

or any other casualty, the provisions of this Lease shall be unaffected and the Company shall remain 

and continue liable for the payment of all Basic Rent and Additional Rental and all other charges 

required hereunder to be paid by the Company, as though no damage by fire or any other casualty 

has occurred. 

 

 (d) The City and the Company agree that they will cooperate with each other, to such 

extent as such other party may reasonably require, in connection with the prosecution or defense, at 

the expense of the Company, of any action or proceeding arising out of, or for the collection of any 

insurance monies that may be due in the event of, any loss or damage, and that they will execute and 

deliver to such other parties such instruments as may be required to facilitate the recovery of any 

insurance monies. 

 

 (e) The Company agrees to give prompt notice to the City and the Trustee with respect 

to all fires and any other casualties resulting in damages of $500,000 or more occurring in, on, at or 

about the Financed Facilities. 

 

 (f) If the Company shall determine that rebuilding, repairing, restoring or replacing the 

Project or the Financed Facilities is not practicable or desirable, any Net Proceeds of casualty 

insurance required by Article VII of this Lease received with respect to such damage or loss shall, 

after payment of all Additional Rent then due and payable, be paid into the Bond Fund, subject to 

the rights pursuant to any Leasehold Mortgage, and shall be used, at the option of the Company, to 

redeem the Bonds on the earliest practicable redemption date or to pay the principal of Outstanding 

Bonds as the same becomes due.  The Company agrees to be commercially reasonable in exercising 

the Company’s judgment pursuant to this Section 9.1(f).   

 

 (g) The Company shall not, by reason of the Company’s inability to use all or any part 

of the Project during any period in which any portion of the Project is damaged or destroyed or is 

being repaired, rebuilt, restored or replaced, nor by reason of the payment of the costs of such 

rebuilding, repairing, restoring or replacing, be entitled to any reimbursement from the City, the 

Trustee or the Bondowners or to any abatement or diminution of the Rentals or Additional Rentals 

payable by the Company under this Lease or of any other obligations of the Company under this 

Lease except as expressly provided in this Section 9.1.  

 

 Section 9.2. Condemnation. 
 

 (a) If during the Lease Term, title to, or the temporary use of, all or any part of the Project 

shall be condemned by or sold under threat of condemnation to any authority possessing the power 

of eminent domain, to such extent that the claim or loss resulting from such condemnation is greater 

than $5,000,000, the Company shall, within ninety (90) days after the date of entry of a final order 

in any eminent domain proceedings granting condemnation or the date of sale under threat of 

condemnation, notify the City, the Trustee, the mortgagee under any Leasehold Mortgage (if any) in 

124

WS #1.



 

- 22 - 

 
 

writing as to the nature and extent of such condemnation or loss of title and whether it is practicable 

and desirable to acquire or construct substitute improvements. 

 

 (b) If the Company shall determine that such substitution is practicable or desirable, the 

Company shall proceed promptly with and complete with reasonable dispatch the acquisition or 

construction of such substitute improvements, so as to place the Project in substantially the same 

condition as existed prior to the exercise of the said power of eminent domain, including, without 

limitation, the acquisition or construction of other improvements suitable for the Company’s 

operations at the Project (which improvements will be deemed a part of the Project, owned by the 

City, and available for use and occupancy by the Company without the payment of any rent other 

than herein provided, to the same extent as if such other improvements were specifically described 

herein and demised hereby); provided, that such improvements will be acquired or constructed, 

subject to the obtaining of payment bonds as required by Section 8.5(c) of this Lease, by the 

Company and conveyed to the City subject to no liens, security interests or encumbrances prior to 

the lien and/or security interest afforded by the Indenture and this Lease other than Allowable 

Encumbrances.  In such case, any Net Proceeds received from any award or awards with respect to 

the Project or any part thereof made in such condemnation or eminent domain proceedings, or of the 

sale proceeds, shall be applied in the same manner as provided in Section 9.1 of this Lease (with 

respect to the receipt of insurance proceeds). 

 

 (c) If the Company shall determine that it is not practicable or desirable to acquire or 

construct substitute improvements, any Net Proceeds of condemnation awards received by the 

Company shall, after payment of all Additional Rent then due and payable, be paid into the Bond 

Fund, subject to the rights under any Leasehold Mortgage, and shall be used at the option of the 

Company to redeem the Bonds on the earliest practicable redemption date or to pay the principal of 

any Bonds of any series as the same becomes due and payable. 

 

 (d) The Company shall not, by reason of the Company’s inability to use all or any part 

of the Project during any such period of restoration or acquisition nor by reason of the payment of 

the costs of such restoration or acquisition, be entitled to any reimbursement from the City, the 

Trustee or the Bondowners or to any abatement or diminution of the Rentals or Additional Rentals 

payable by the Company under this Lease nor of any other obligations hereunder except as expressly 

provided in this Section. 9.2. 

 

 (e) The City shall cooperate fully with the Company in the handling and conduct of any 

prospective or pending condemnation proceedings with respect to the Project or any part thereof, 

and shall, to the extent the City may lawfully do so, permit the Company to litigate in any such 

proceeding in the name and on behalf of the City.  In such case, the Company shall defend with 

counsel of the Company’s choosing and reasonably acceptable to the City, which acceptance shall 

not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, indemnify and hold the City, the Moberly Area Economic 

Development Corporation (the “EDC”) and their respective officials, officers, agents, employees, 

Bond Counsel, attorneys, and assigns, and the Trustee each whole and harmless from any loss, costs 

or expenses the City or any of the foregoing may incur related to any such proceeding.  In no event 

will the City voluntarily settle or consent to the settlement of any prospective or pending 

condemnation proceedings with respect to the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed 

125

WS #1.



 

- 23 - 

 
 

Equipment or any part thereof without the prior written consent of the Company which consent may 

be granted or withheld in the Company’s sole discretion. 

 

 Section 9.3. Bondowner Approval.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 

in this Article IX, the proceeds of any insurance received subsequent to a casualty or of any 

condemnation proceedings (or threats thereof) may be applied as directed by the Bondowners of 

100% of the principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, subject and subordinate to the rights 

of the City and the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, this Lease and the Development Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE X 

SPECIAL COVENANTS 
 

 Section 10.1. No Warranty of Condition or Suitability by the City; Exculpation and 

Indemnification.  The City makes no warranty, either express or implied, as to the condition of the 

Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities, or the Financed Equipment or that any of the same will 

be suitable for the Company’s purposes or needs.  The Company hereby releases the City from, 

agrees that the City shall not be liable for, and agrees to indemnify, defend with counsel of the City’s 

choosing, and hold the City, the EDC, and their respective officials, officers, agents, employees, 

Bond Counsel, attorneys, and assigns, each whole and harmless against any loss or damage to 

property or injury or death of any person that may be occasioned by any cause whatsoever pertaining 

to the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment or the use thereof.   

 

 Section 10.2. Surrender of Possession.  Upon accrual of the City’s right of re-entry 

because of the occurrence and continuation of an Event of  Default beyond any applicable notice 

and cure period or upon the cancellation or termination of this Lease for any reason other than the 

Company’s purchase of the Property and the Project pursuant to Article XI of this Lease, the 

Company shall peacefully surrender possession of the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities 

and the Financed Equipment to the City; provided that nothing in this Section 10.2 shall be deemed 

to release the Company from the obligation to purchase the Project the Property, the Financed 

Facilities and the Financed Equipment under the terms set forth in this Lease. 

 

 Section 10.3. Compliance with Applicable Regulations; Right of Access.  At all times 

during the Lease Term the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to use, keep and 

maintain and operate the Project and every part thereof in compliance with all Applicable 

Regulations, including, without limitation, all Environmental Laws.  The Company agrees that the 

City and the Trustee and their duly authorized agents shall have the right at reasonable times during 

normal business hours and, except in the event of emergencies, upon not less than Five (5) Business 

Day’s prior written notice, subject to the Company’s usual safety, confidentiality, and security 

requirements, to enter upon the Property and the Financed Facilities solely to examine and inspect 

the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment without interference or prejudice to 

the Company’s operations; provided that such inspection rights shall be limited to not more 

frequent than quarterly unless and until the occurrence and continuation of an Event of  Default 

beyond any applicable notice and cure period.  

 

 Section 10.4. Granting of Leasehold Mortgages. 
 

126

WS #1.



 

- 24 - 

 
 

 (a) Subject to Section 10.4(c) of this Lease, if no Event of Default under this Lease 

shall have happened and be continuing beyond any applicable notice and cure period, the Company 

may mortgage or grant a security interest in the leasehold estate created by this Lease, without the 

City’s consent, provided and upon condition that: (i) a duplicate original or certified copy or 

photostatic copy of each such mortgage or security agreement, and the note or other obligation 

secured thereby, is delivered to the City within thirty (30) days after the execution thereof; and (ii) 

each such mortgage or security agreement shall contain a covenant to the effect that the net proceeds 

of all insurance policies and the condemnation award shall be held, used and applied for the purposes 

and in the manner provided for in this Lease. 

 

 (b) The City acknowledges and agrees that the Company may finance and refinance the 

Company’s rights and interests in the Project, this Lease and the leasehold estate created hereby.  

Notwithstanding anything contained to the contrary in this Lease, the Company shall have the right, 

at any time and from time to time, to execute one or more Financing Documents with one or more 

Financing Parties without the consent of the City upon the terms contained in this Section 10.4.  

 

 (c) Upon notice by the Company to the City in writing that the Company has executed 

one or more Financing Documents under which the Company has granted rights in this Lease, then 

the following provisions shall apply with respect to the Financing Party named therein: 

 

  (i) There shall be no merger of this Lease or of the leasehold estate created 

hereby with the fee title to the Project, notwithstanding that this Lease or said leasehold estate 

and said fee title shall be owned by the same person or persons; 

 

  (ii) The City shall serve upon each such Financing Party (but only at the address, 

if any, provided by the Company to the City in writing at the time of execution of the 

applicable Financing Document) a copy of each notice of the occurrence of an Event of 

Default and each notice of termination given to the Company under this Lease, at the same 

time as such notice is served upon the Company; 

 

  (iii) Each such Financing Party shall have the same period of time which the 

Company has, after the service of any notice upon such Financing Party, within which to 

remedy or cause to be remedied any payment default under this Lease which is the basis of 

the notice plus Thirty (30) days, and the City shall accept performance by such Financing 

Party as timely performance by the Company; 

 

  (iv) The City may exercise any of the City’s rights or remedies with respect to 

any other Event of Default by the Company; 

 

  (v) In case of the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default by the 

Company under this Lease beyond any applicable notice and cure period, other than a 

default in the payment of money, the City shall take no action to effect a termination of 

this Lease by service of a notice or otherwise, without first giving notice thereof to each 

such Financing Party (but only at the address, if any, provided by the Company to the City 

in writing at the time of execution of the applicable Financing Document or thereafter) and 

permitting such Financing Party (or designee, nominee, assignee or transferee) a reasonable 

127

WS #1.



 

- 25 - 

 
 

time within which to remedy such default in the case of an Event of Default which is 

susceptible of being cured (provided that the period to remedy such Event of Default shall 

continue beyond any period set forth in the Lease to effect said cure so long as such 

Financing Party (or designee, nominee, assignee or transferee) is diligently prosecuting 

such cure); provided that such Financing Party (or designee, nominee, assignee or 

transferee) shall pay or cause to be paid to the City and the Trustee all out-of-pocket 

expenses, including counsel fees, court costs and disbursements incurred by the City or the 

Trustee in connection with any such default; and 

 

  (vi) Such Financing Parties (and designees, nominees, assignees, or transferees) 

shall have the right to enter, possess and use the Project at such reasonable times and 

manner as are necessary to effectuate the remedies and enforce the rights of such Financing 

Parties under the applicable Financing Documents. 

 

 Section 10.5. Depreciation, Investment Tax Credit and Other Tax Benefits.  The City 

agrees that any depreciation, investment tax credit or any other tax benefits with respect to the Project 

or any part thereof shall be made available to the Company, and the City will fully cooperate, at the 

sole cost and expense of the Company, with the Company in any effort by the Company to avail 

itself of any such depreciation, investment tax credit or other tax benefits. 

 

 Section 10.6. Company to Maintain Existence.  The Company agrees that so long as any 

Bonds remain Outstanding, until all such Bonds are paid in full or payment in full is provided for in 

accordance with the terms of the Indenture, the Company will maintain the Company’s existence, 

and will not dissolve or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets; 

provided, however, that the Company may, without violating the agreement contained in this Section 

10.6, consolidate with or merge into another person or entity or permit one or more other persons or 

entities to consolidate with or merge into the Company, or may sell or otherwise transfer to another 

person or entity all or substantially all of the Company’s assets as an entirety and thereafter dissolve; 

provided, however, the surviving, resulting or transferee entity: (a) expressly assumes in writing all 

the obligations of the Company contained in this Lease, and (b) such entity is controlled by, under 

common control with or controls the Company.   

 

 Section 10.7. Environmental Warranties, Covenants and Indemnities.  

 

 (a) During the Lease Term, the Company shall provide the City with copies of any 

notifications of releases of Hazardous Substances or of any environmental hazards or potential 

hazards which are given by or on behalf of the Company to any federal, state or local or other 

agencies or authorities or which are received by the Company from any federal, state or local or 

other agencies or authorities with respect to the Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed 

Equipment, or the Project.  Such copies shall be sent to the City concurrently with their being 

mailed or delivered to the governmental agencies or authorities or within Ten (10) Business Days 

after they are made or received by the Company; provided that failure of the Company to comply 

with the provision of this paragraph shall not constitute an Event of Default under this Lease. 

 

 (b) At all times during the Lease Term, the Company shall use commercially 

reasonable efforts to materially comply with and operate and at all times use, keep and maintain 

128

WS #1.



 

- 26 - 

 
 

the Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed Equipment, and the Project and every part 

thereof (whether or not such property constitutes a “facility,” as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et. 

seq.) in material conformance with all applicable Environmental Laws.  Without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, the Company will not use, generate, treat, store, dispose of or otherwise 

introduce or permit any agent, employee, contractor, subcontractor or other party to contract 

(whether written or oral) of the Company to use, generate, treat, store, dispose of or otherwise 

introduce any Hazardous Substance into or on the Property, the Financed Facilities, the Financed 

Equipment, or the Project or any part thereof nor cause, suffer, allow or permit anyone else to do 

so except in material compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws. 

 

 (c) Except as may be caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the City, 

its agents or employees, the Company agrees to indemnify, defend with legal counsel selected by 

the Company and reasonably acceptable to the City, which acceptance shall not be unreasonably 

withheld or delayed, and hold harmless the City, the EDC, and each of their respective officials, 

officers, agents, employees, Bond Counsel, attorneys, and assigns, and the Trustee, whole and 

harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, costs, liabilities, damages or expenses, 

including attorneys’ fees, arising from (i) any release (as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 9601 (22)) or 

threat of a release, actual or alleged, of any Hazardous Substances, upon the Project, the Property, 

the Financed Facilities, or the Financed Equipment or respecting any products or materials 

introduced or delivered to or arising at the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities, or the 

Financed Equipment occurring during the Lease Term regardless of whether such release occurs 

as a result of any act, omission, negligence or misconduct of the Company, or any third party or 

otherwise, (ii) (A) any violation hereafter arising (actual or alleged) during the Lease Term of, or 

any other liability under or in connection with, any applicable Environmental Laws including, 

without limitation, obligations arising under common law, relating to or affecting the Project, the 

Property, the Financed Facilities, or the Financed Equipment during the Lease Term, or (B) any 

violation hereafter arising, actual or alleged during the Lease Term, or any other liability, under or 

in connection with, any applicable Environmental Laws including, without limitation, obligations 

arising under common law, relating to any products or materials previously, now or hereafter 

located upon, delivered to or in transit to or from the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities, 

or the Financed Equipment during the Lease Term regardless of whether such violation or alleged 

violation or other liability is asserted or has occurred or arisen prior to the date hereof or hereafter 

is asserted or occurs or arises and regardless of whether such violation or alleged violation or other 

liability occurs or arises, as the result of any act, omission, negligence or misconduct of the 

Company or any third party or otherwise, (iii) any loss or injury arising out of, relating to or in 

connection with any Hazardous Substances on or allegedly on the Project, the Property, the 

Financed Facilities, or the Financed Equipment introduced or occurring during the Lease Term, or 

(iv) any breach, falsity or failure of any of the representations, warranties, covenants and 

agreements contained in this Section 10.7.  Obligations arising under this paragraph 10.7(d) shall 

survive expiration or termination of this Lease for any reason. 

 

 Section 10.8. Security Interests.  At the written request of the Bondowners of all of the 

Bonds then Outstanding, the City and the Company agree to enter into all instruments (including 

financing statements and statements of continuation) necessary for perfection of and continuance 

of the perfection of the security interests of the City and the Trustee in and to the Basic Rent under 

this Lease.  Upon the written instructions of the Bondowners of all of the Bonds then Outstanding, 

129

WS #1.



 

- 27 - 

 
 

the Trustee shall file all instruments such Bondowners shall deem reasonably necessary to be filed 

and shall continue or cause to be continued such instruments for so long as such Bonds shall be 

Outstanding.  The City and the Company shall cooperate with the Trustee by executing such 

continuation statements and providing such information as the Trustee may reasonably require to 

renew such statements. 

 

 Section 10.9. Release and Indemnification of City, EDC and Trustee.   
 

(a) Except in the case of gross negligence or willful misconduct of the City, its agents 

or employees, the Company hereby releases the City and the Trustee from, and agrees that neither 

the City, the EDC or the Trustee shall be liable for, any claim relating to the Project, the Property, 

the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment, or the use thereof, including any loss or damage 

to property or any injury to or death of any person that may be occasioned by any cause whatsoever 

pertaining to the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment or the 

use of any of them. 

 

(b) Except as may be caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the City, 

its agents or employees, the Company shall indemnify, defend with legal counsel selected by the 

Company and reasonably acceptable to the City, which acceptance shall not be unreasonably 

withheld or delayed, and hold harmless the City, its officials, officers, agents, employees, Bond 

Counsel, attorneys, and assigns, and the Trustee each whole and harmless from any loss, costs or 

expenses the City or any of the foregoing from any and all claims, demands, costs, liabilities, 

damages or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation 

arising from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done in, on or about the 

Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment during the Lease Term, 

and against and from all claims, demands, costs, liabilities, damages or expenses, including 

attorneys’ fees, arising during the Lease Term from (a) any condition of the Project, the Property, 

the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment or any acts or omissions thereon by any person 

(other than willful misconduct or gross negligence of the City, its agents or employees); (b) any 

breach or default beyond any applicable notice and cure period on the part of the Company in the 

performance of any of the Company’s obligations under the Development Agreement or this 

Lease; (c) any contract entered into in connection with the purchase, construction, extension or 

improvement of the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment; (d) 

any act of negligence of the Company or of any assignee of the Company or of any of their agents, 

contractors, servants, employees or licensees; or (e) the obtaining of any applicable exemptions 

from state or local sales or use taxes for materials or goods which become part of the Project, the 

Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment.  The foregoing indemnification 

obligations of the Company shall survive expiration or termination of this Lease for any reason. 

  

ARTICLE XI 

OPTION AND OBLIGATION TO PURCHASE THE PROJECT 

 

Section 11.1. Options and Obligation to Purchase; Survival of Obligation.   
 

(a) Provided that no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing beyond any 

applicable notice and cure period, the Company shall have the option to purchase the Project, the 

130

WS #1.



 

- 28 - 

 
 

Property, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment at any time following initial issuance 

of the Bonds and prior to the expiration of the Lease Term at a purchase price equal to the sum of 

the following: 

 

  (i) An amount of money which, when added to the amount then on deposit in 

the Bond Fund, will be sufficient to redeem all the then Outstanding Bonds on the earliest 

redemption date as determined in accordance with Article III of the Indenture next 

succeeding the closing date of the purchase, including, without limitation, principal and 

interest to accrue to said redemption date and redemption expense; plus 

 

  (ii) An amount of money equal to the Trustee’s agreed to fees and expenses under 

the Indenture accrued and to accrue until redemption of such Bonds then Outstanding; plus 

 

  (iii) the sum of $5,000.00. 

 

 At the Company’s election, to be exercised at least Five (5) Business Days prior to the 

exercise of the foregoing option to purchase, the Company may deliver to the Trustee for cancellation 

any portion of the Bonds not previously paid, and the Company shall receive a credit against the 

purchase price payable by the Company in an amount equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 

Bonds so delivered for cancellation, plus accrued interest thereon.  The Company shall make 

arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee for giving of all required notices of redemption. 

 

 (b) Upon the earliest of: (i) the occurrence of an uncured material breach of or Event of 

Default under this Lease by the Company continuing beyond any applicable notice and cure period; 

(ii) the redemption of all of the Bonds then Outstanding pursuant Article III of the Indenture; (iii) 

the maturity from time to time of any portion of the Bonds in accordance with their terms; and (iv) 

expiration of the Lease Term, (each, a “Purchase Date”), the Company shall have the obligation to 

purchase and the City shall have the obligation to sell the Project, the Property, the Financed 

Facilities and the Financed Equipment or applicable portion(s) thereof for a purchase price equal to 

the Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount of the Bonds as of the Purchase Date; provided that 

if the Company tenders all or any applicable portion of Outstanding Bonds to the Trustee for 

cancellation with instructions that such tender is in lieu of payment under this Section 11.1, such 

tender shall be deemed to satisfy the amount of funds required under this Section 11.1(b); and 

provided, further, that if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable 

notice and cure period and such default is curable by payment of Additional Rent, then the 

Company must cure such default by the payment of such Additional Rent prior to the conveyance 

of the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment by the City to the 

Company under this Section 11.1; and provided further, that the Company’s obligation to purchase 

those portions of the Project financed through the Bonds shall be effective upon expiration of the 

Lease Term with respect to the corresponding portions of the Project; provided that the Company’s 

obligation to purchase the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment 

under this Section 11.1 and the City’s obligation to sell the same shall each survive expiration or 

termination of this Lease for any reason. 

 

131

WS #1.



 

- 29 - 

 
 

 Section 11.2. Conveyance of the Project.  At the closing(s) of the purchase of the portions 

of the Project in accordance with Section 11.1 of this Lease, the City will, in each case, upon receipt 

of the applicable purchase price, deliver or cause to be delivered to the Company the following: 

 

 (a) A release from the Trustee of the applicable portion of the Project from the lien and/or 

security interest of the Indenture and this Lease; and 

 

 (b) Documents conveying to the Company legal title to the applicable portion of the 

Project, as then existing, subject to the following:  (i) those liens and encumbrances, if any, to which 

title to Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment were subject when 

conveyed to the City; (ii) those liens and encumbrances created by the Company or to the creation 

or suffering of which the Company consented; (iii) those liens and encumbrances resulting from the 

failure of the Company to perform or observe any of the agreements of the Company contained in 

this Lease; (iv) Allowable Encumbrances other than the Indenture and this Lease; and (v) if the 

Project or any part thereof is being condemned, the rights and title of any condemning authority. 

 

 Section 11.3. Release of Portions of the Property.   
 

 (a) In the event that the Company, in the Company’s reasonable discretion, determines 

that any portion of the Project has become unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary for continued 

use, the Company shall have the option to release such portion of the Project from the requirements 

of this Lease and of the Indenture.  Upon removal of: (i) any portion of the Property or the Financed 

Facilities, the Company shall provide written notice so stating to the City, to the Trustee, and to 

the office of the County of Randolph Assessor, and, upon delivery of such notices, such portion of 

the Property or the Financed Facilities shall be deemed removed from the Project; or (ii) any 

Financed Equipment, the Company shall promptly update the list of Financed Equipment 

maintained in accordance with Section 4.7 of this Lease and shall provide a copy of such list to 

the City and to the Trustee and, upon delivery of such updated list any items of Financed 

Equipment not set forth on such updated list shall be deemed to have been removed from the 

Project and shall be reflected on the Company’s annual personal property filing with the office of 

the County of Randolph Assessor; provided that removal of any such portion of the Project 

pursuant to the provisions of this Section 11.3 shall not entitle the Company to any postponement 

of or diminution in the Basic Rent or Additional Rent required to be made by the Company under 

this Lease or in any payment obligation under the Development Agreement.  The Company and 

the City mutually agree, upon the request of any party, to promptly execute and deliver, or cause 

or direct the Trustee to execute and deliver, appropriate documents, conveying to the Company 

title to any property comprising the portion of the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed 

Equipment being removed from the Project pursuant to this Section 11.3 and releasing the same 

from this Lease and from any lien of the Indenture or any other Bond Document. 

 

(b) The Company acknowledges and agrees that in the event the Company effectuates 

at any time a release of any portion of the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities, or the 

Financed Equipment under this Section 11.3: (i) such portion shall no longer be entitled to any tax 

relief or tax forbearance under the Development Agreement or otherwise; and (ii) no release by 

the Company of any portion of the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities, or the Financed 

Equipment shall excuse or diminish in any way (a) the Company’s obligations for payments, 

132

WS #1.



 

- 30 - 

 
 

indemnification, provision of payment bonds, or for Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Job (as that term 

is defined in the Development Agreement) creation and maintenance under the Development 

Agreement; or (b) the City’s rights to indemnification and to be protected by insurance coverages 

and payment bonds or similar security required under this Lease, whether with respect to the portion 

of the Project so released, the remaining portions of the Project, or otherwise. 

 

ARTICLE XII 

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 

 Section 12.1. Events of Default.  If any one or more of the following events shall occur 

and be continuing, it is hereby defined as and declared to be and to constitute an “Event of Default” 

under this Lease: 

 

 (a) Default in the due and punctual payment of Basic Rent or Additional Rent, and such 

default shall continue for Ten (10) days after the City or the Trustee has given the Company written 

notice specifying such default (or such longer period as shall be reasonably required to cure such 

default; provided that (i) the Company has commenced such cure within said 10-day period, and (ii) 

the Company diligently prosecutes such cure to completion); or 

 

 (b) Default in the due observance or performance of any other material covenant, 

agreement, obligation or provision of this Lease on the Company’s part to be observed or performed, 

which would significantly impair the Company’s ability to make timely payments of Basic Rent or 

Additional Rent and such default shall continue for Sixty (60) days after the City or the Trustee has 

given the Company written notice specifying such default (or such longer period as shall be 

reasonably required to cure such default; provided that (i) the Company has commenced such cure 

within said 60-day period, and (ii) the Company diligently prosecutes such cure to completion); or 

 

 (c) The Company shall: (i) admit in writing the Company’s inability to pay the 

Company’s debts as they become due; or (ii) file a petition in bankruptcy or for reorganization, 

arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or similar relief under the United 

States Bankruptcy Code as now or in the future amended or any other similar present or future federal 

or state statute or regulation, or file a pleading asking for such relief; or (iii) make an assignment for 

the benefit of creditors; or (iv) consent to the appointment of a trustee, receiver or liquidator for all 

or a major portion of the Company’s property or shall fail to have the appointment of any trustee, 

receiver or liquidator made without the Company’s consent or acquiescence, vacated or set aside; or 

(v) be finally adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent under any federal or state law; or (vi) be subject 

to any proceeding, or suffer the entry of a final and non-appealable court order, under any federal or 

state law appointing a trustee, receiver or liquidator for all or a major part of the Company’s property 

or ordering the winding-up or liquidation of the Company’s affairs, or approving a petition filed 

against the Company under the United States Bankruptcy Code, as now or in the future amended, 

which order or proceeding, if not consented to by the Company, shall not be dismissed, vacated, 

denied, set aside or stayed within Ninety (90) days after the day of entry or commencement; or (vii) 

suffer a writ or warrant of attachment or any similar process to be issued by any court against all or 

any substantial portion of the Company's property, and such writ or warrant of attachment or any 

similar process is not contested, stayed, or is not released within Sixty (60) days after the final entry, 

or levy or after any contest is finally adjudicated or any stay is vacated or set aside; or 

133

WS #1.



 

- 31 - 

 
 

 

 (d) Any default by the Company in the performance of the Company’s obligations under 

the Development Agreement which arises out of: (i) the City’s right to receive any payment for the 

City’s own account required by the Development Agreement; or (ii) the City’s rights to 

indemnification (including, without limitation, such rights of its officials, officers, agents, 

employees, Bond Counsel, attorneys, and assigns of its acting in any capacity) or to be protected 

from liabilities by insurance coverages and payment bonds or similar security as required by the 

Development Agreement; or (iii) the Company’s failure to obtain or maintain or cause to be 

obtained and maintained insurance coverages and payment bonds or similar security required by 

the Development Agreement, and such default shall continue for sixty (60) days after the City has 

given the Company written notice specifying such default (or such longer period as shall be 

reasonably required to cure such default; provided that (A) the Company has commenced such cure 

within such 60-day period, and (B) the Company diligently prosecutes such cure to completion. 

 

 Section 12.2. Remedies on Default.  If any Event of Default referred to in Section 12.1 of 

this Lease shall have occurred and be continuing beyond any applicable grace, notice or cure period, 

then the City may at the City’s sole election then or at any time thereafter, and while such default 

shall continue, take any one or more of the following actions: 

 

 (a) Cause all amounts payable with respect to the Bonds for the remainder of the Lease 

Term to become due and payable, as provided in the Indenture; or 

 

 (b) Give the Company written notice of the City’s intention to terminate this Lease on a 

date specified therein, which date shall not be earlier than Sixty (60) days after such notice is given, 

and if all defaults have not then been cured, or if such defaults are not curable within such notice 

period, the Company is diligently and expeditiously pursuing such cure, on the date so specified, the 

Company’s rights to possession of the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed 

Equipment shall cease and this Lease shall thereupon be terminated, and the City may re-enter and 

take possession of the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment; 

provided that the Company shall remain obligated to purchase the Project, the Property, the Financed 

Facilities and the Financed Equipment and the City shall be obligated to sell the same under the 

terms set forth in this Lease. 

 

 Section 12.3. Survival of Obligations.  The Company covenants and agrees with the City, 

the Trustee and the Bondowner that the Company’s obligations under this Lease shall survive the 

cancellation and termination of this Lease, for any cause, and that the Company shall continue to 

pay the Basic Rent and Additional Rent and perform all other obligations provided for in this Lease, 

all at the time or times provided in this Lease; provided, however, that upon the payment of all Basic 

Rent and Additional Rent required under Article V of this Lease, and upon the satisfaction and 

discharge of the Indenture under Section 1301 thereof, the Company’s obligation under this Lease 

shall thereupon cease and terminate and the City shall convey to the Company, the Project, the 

Property, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment in accordance with this Article XII.  

 

 Section 12.4. Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  The rights and remedies reserved by the 

City and the Company hereunder and those provided by law shall be construed as cumulative and 

continuing rights.  No one of them shall be exhausted by the exercise thereof on one or more 

134

WS #1.



 

- 32 - 

 
 

occasions.  The City and the Company shall each be entitled to specific performance and injunctive 

or other equitable relief for any breach or threatened breach of any of the provisions of this Lease, 

notwithstanding availability of an adequate remedy at law, and each party hereby waives the right to 

raise such defense in any proceeding in equity. The City further agrees that neither the City nor the 

Trustee shall enforce any right or obligation hereunder (except for the City’s or the Trustee’s 

respective right to receive any payment for its own account under the Indenture, the Lease, the 

Development Agreement or any other agreement related to the Bonds or for their rights of 

indemnification under this Lease or the Development Agreement or to be protected from liabilities 

by insurance coverages and payment bonds or similar security required by this Lease or the 

Development Agreement) if so directed in writing by the Bondowners of 100% of the Outstanding 

Bonds. 

 

 Section 12.5. Waiver of Breach.  No waiver of any breach of any covenant or agreement 

contained in this Lease shall operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same covenant or 

agreement or as a waiver of any breach of any other covenant or agreement, and in case of a breach 

by the Company of any covenant, agreement or undertaking by the Company, the City may 

nevertheless accept from the Company any payment or payments hereunder without in any way 

waiving City’s right to exercise any of the City’s rights and remedies provided for in this Lease with 

respect to any such default or defaults of the Company which were in existence at the time such 

payment or payments were accepted by the City. 

 

 Section 12.6. Opportunity of Company to Cure Defaults.  With regard to any alleged 

default concerning which notice is given to the Company under the provisions of this Article XII, 

the City hereby grants the Company full authority for account of the City to perform any covenant 

or obligation, the nonperformance of which is alleged in said notice to constitute a default, in the 

name and stead of the City, with full power to do any and all things and acts to the same extent that 

the City could do and perform any such things and acts in order to remedy such default. 

 

 Section 12.7. Trustee’s Exercise of the City’s Remedies.  Whenever any Event of Default 

shall have occurred and be continuing, the Trustee may, but except as otherwise provided in the 

Indenture shall not be obliged to, exercise any or all of the rights of the City under this Article XII, 

upon notice as required of the City unless the City has already given the required notice.  In addition, 

the Trustee shall have available to the Trustee all of the remedies prescribed by the Indenture. 

 

ARTICLE XIII 

ASSIGNMENT 
 

 Section 13.1. Limited Assignment.  The Company shall have the limited right to assign, 

transfer, and encumber this Lease as set forth in Section 10.4 of this Lease.  The Company shall have 

the further right to assign or sublease any interests in this Lease without the prior consent of the City 

to a successor entity Controlled by or under common Control with or Controlling the Company and 

which becomes the owner of all of the Bonds upon the effectiveness of such assignment. With 

respect to any such assignment, the Company shall comply with the following conditions:  

 

  (i) Such assignment shall be in writing, duly executed and acknowledged by 

the assignor and by the assignee and in proper form for recording; 

135

WS #1.



 

- 33 - 

 
 

 

  (ii) Such assignment shall include the entire then unexpired Lease Term; and 

 

  (iii) A duplicate original of such assignment shall be delivered to the City and 

the Trustee within Ten (10) Business Days after the execution thereof, together with an 

assumption agreement, duly executed and acknowledged by the assignee in proper form 

for recording, by which the assignee shall assume all of the terms, covenants and conditions 

of this Lease, the Development Agreement, the Bond Purchase Agreement, and any other 

documents related to the issuance of the Bonds on the part of the Company to be performed 

and observed. 

 

 Section 13.2. Assignment of Revenues by City.  The City shall assign and pledge any 

rents, revenues and receipts receivable under this Lease, to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture as 

security for payment of the principal of, interest and premium, if any, on the Bonds and the Company 

hereby consents to such pledge and assignment. 

 

 Section 13.3. Prohibition Against Fee Mortgage and/or Security Agreement.  The City 

shall not mortgage or grant a security interest in the City’s fee interest in the Project or any portion 

thereof but may assign the City’s interest in and pledge any moneys receivable under this Lease to 

the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture as security for payment of the principal of and interest on the 

Bonds. 

 

 Section 13.4. Restrictions on Sale or Encumbrance by City.  During the Lease Term, the 

City agrees that, except to secure the Bonds issued pursuant to the Indenture, the City will not sell, 

assign, encumber, mortgage, transfer or convey the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities or 

the Financed Equipment or any portion thereof or any interest therein.  The Company consents to 

the assignment of the City’s interests in this Lease solely to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture 

to secure the Bonds. 

 

ARTICLE XIV 

AMENDMENTS, CHANGES AND MODIFICATIONS 
 

 Section 14.1. Amendments, Changes and Modifications.  Except as otherwise provided 

in this Lease or in the Indenture, subsequent to the initial issuance of the Bonds and prior to the 

payment in full of all of the Bonds Outstanding (or provision for the payment thereof having been 

made in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture), this Lease may not be effectively amended, 

changed, modified, or altered without the prior written consent of the Trustee, given in accordance 

with the provisions of the Indenture, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, 

or delayed. 

 

ARTICLE XV 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

 Section 15.1. Notices.  All notices, certificates or other communications required or desired 

to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly given when (a) mailed by 

136

WS #1.



 

- 34 - 

 
 

registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or (b) sent by overnight delivery or other delivery 

service which requires written acknowledgment of receipt by the addressee, addressed as follows: 

 

  (a) To the City:   City of Moberly, Missouri 

       101 West Reed Street - City Hall 

       Moberly, Missouri 65270 

       ATTN:  City Manager 

 

    with a copy to:  Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 

       211 N. Broadway, Suite 2000 

       St. Louis, Missouri 63102 

       ATTN:  Shannon Creighton, Esq. 

 

  (b) To the Trustee:   BOKF, N.A. 

     200 North Broadway, Suite 1710 

     St. Louis, Missouri 63102 

       ATTN:  Corporate Trust Department 
 

  (c) If to the Company:  EquipmentShare.com Inc.  

       5710 Bull Run Drive 

Columbia, Missouri 65201  

       Attention:  ____________________ 

      

       with a copy to: 

       _______________________________ 

       _______________________________ 

       _______________________________ 

       Attention:  ______________________ 

 

 All notices given by certified or registered mail as aforesaid shall be deemed fully given as 

of the date they are so mailed.  A duplicate copy of each notice, certificate or other communication 

given hereunder by either the City or the Company to the other shall also be given to the Trustee.  

The City, the Company, and the Trustee may from time to time designate, by notice given hereunder 

to the others of such parties, such other address to which subsequent notices, certificates or other 

communications shall be sent. 

 

 Section 15.2. Net Lease.  The parties hereto agree: (a) that this Lease shall be deemed and 

construed to be a net lease, (b) that the payments of Basic Rent are designed to provide the City and 

the Trustee funds adequate in amount to pay all principal of and interest accruing on the Bonds as 

the same become due and payable, (c) that to the extent that the payments of Basic Rent are not 

sufficient to provide the City and the Trustee with funds sufficient for the purposes aforesaid, the 

Company shall be obligated to pay, and the Company does hereby covenant and agree to pay, upon 

demand therefor, as Additional Rent, such further sums of money, in cash, as may from time to time 

be required for such purposes, and (d) that if after the principal of and interest on the Bonds and all 

costs incident to the payment of the Bonds (including the fees and expenses of the City and the 

Trustee) have been paid in full the Trustee or the City holds unexpended funds received in 

accordance with the terms hereof, such unexpended funds shall, after payment therefrom of all sums 

137

WS #1.



 

- 35 - 

 
 

then due and owing by the Company under the terms of this Lease, and except as otherwise provided 

in this Lease and the Indenture, become the absolute property of and be paid over forthwith to the 

Company. 

 

 Section 15.3. No Pecuniary Liability.  No provision, covenant or agreement contained in 

this Lease, the Development Agreement, the Indenture or any Bond of any series, or any obligation 

herein or therein imposed upon the City, or the breach thereof, shall constitute or give rise to or 

impose upon the City a pecuniary liability or a charge upon the general credit or taxing powers of 

the City or of the County of Randolph or of the State of Missouri or any political subdivision thereof.  

 

 Section 15.4. Governing Law.  This Lease and its performance shall be governed by and 

construed under the laws of the State of Missouri, without regard to choice or conflict of laws 

provisions.  The parties hereto agree that any action at law, suit in equity, or other judicial 

proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Randolph 

County, Missouri or in the Federal District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri and waive 

any objections based upon venue or forum non conveniens or otherwise. and waive any and all 

objections to the application of Missouri law and/or to the foregoing selection of fora. 

 

 Section 15.5. Binding Effect.  This Lease shall be binding upon and shall inure to the 

benefit of the City and the Company and their respective successors and assigns.  

 

 Section 15.6. Captions; Recitals and Exhibits; Lease Preparation.  The headings and 

captions of this Lease are for convenience and reference only, and in no way define, limit, or 

describe the scope or intent of this Lease of any provision thereof and shall in no way be deemed 

to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation or construction of the provisions of this 

Lease.  The Recitals found at the beginning of this Lease are incorporated herein by reference and 

are important and material parts of this Lease.  Each party to this Lease and their attorneys have 

had full opportunity to review and participate in the drafting of the final form of this Lease and all 

documents attached as exhibits and schedules.  This Lease shall be construed without regard to 

any presumption or other rule of construction whereby ambiguities within this Lease or such other 

document would be construed or interpreted against the party causing the document to be drafted.  

The parties each further represent that the terms of this Lease and the documents attached to this 

Lease as exhibits and schedules have been completely read by them and that those terms are fully 

understood and voluntarily accepted by them.  In any interpretation, construction or determination 

of the meaning of any provision of this Lease, no presumption whatsoever shall arise from the fact 

that the Lease was prepared by or on behalf of any party. 

 

 Section 15.7. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.  Nothing in this Lease shall be 

construed or deemed to constitute a waiver of the City’s sovereign immunity. 

 

 Section 15.8. Relationship of the Parties; Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing 

contained in this Lease nor any act of the City or of the Company shall be deemed or construed to 

create a partnership or agency relationship between or among any party.  Other than as expressly 

provided in this Lease, no party shall be the agent of, or have any rights to create any obligations 

or liabilities binding on, another party.  The parties do not intend to and do not confer any benefit 

138

WS #1.



 

- 36 - 

 
 

under this Lease on any other person or entity other than the Trustee and the EDC, as expressly 

provided herein and parties hereto. 

 

 Section 15.9. Severability.  If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Lease or 

the application of this Lease to any person or circumstance shall, at any time or to any extent, be 

finally declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 

of this Lease, or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than 

those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected by the partial invalidity, 

and each term, covenant, condition and provision of this Lease shall be valid and be enforced to 

the fullest extent permitted by law unless such partial invalidity prevents a party from realizing the 

full benefit of the bargain represented by the entire Lease. 

 

 Section 15.10. Execution in Counterparts.  Each person executing this Lease in a 

representative capacity warrants and represents that he or she has authority to do so and upon 

request by another party proof of such authority in customary form will be furnished to the 

requesting party.  This Lease may be executed at different times and in two or more counterparts 

and all counterparts so executed shall for all purposes constitute one and the same instrument, 

binding on the parties hereto, notwithstanding that both parties may not have executed the same 

counterpart.  In proving this Lease it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than 

one such counterpart executed by the party against whom enforcement is sought. 

 

 Section 15.11. Recordation.  This Lease shall not be recorded; provided that the parties to 

this Lease agree to execute concurrently with the execution of this Lease and promptly cause to be 

recorded in the Office of the Randolph County Recorder a Memorandum of Lease Purchase 

Agreement in substantially the form of Exhibit C, attached to and incorporated by reference in this 

Lease. 

 

 Section 15.12. Reference Date.  This Lease is dated for reference purposes only as of the 

first day of _________________, 2023 and will not be effective and binding on the parties hereto 

unless and until the closing on the initial issuance of the Bonds and the conveyance of the Property 

to the City occur. 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK--SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]

139

WS #1.



S-1 

 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed in their 

respective names by their duly authorized signatories, all as of the date first above written. 

 

       CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
       as “Lessor” 

 

        

 

       By: _______________________________ 

        Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor 

 

 

(Seal) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

  

140

WS #1.



 

S-2 

 
 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. 
       as “Lessee” 

 

        

       By: ________________________________ 

 Name: 

 Title: 

 

      

 

 

 

 

  

141

WS #1.



A-1 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

THE PROPERTY 

 

Parcel No.  07-7.0-26.0-0.0-000-014.000 in the records of the Randolph County, known and 

numbered as 1855 Robertson Road, Moberly Missouri and partially described as: 

 
Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14 - PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE COR 
OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 146.57', SLY 
268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96', 
N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 

Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14 - PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE COR 

OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 146.57', SLY 
268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96', 
N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 
A total of 16.0 +/- acres. 

 

142

WS #1.



B-1 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 

 

FORM OF REQUISITION CERTIFICATE 
 

Requisition No. ___ 

 Date:  __________, 202___ 
 

REQUISITION CERTIFICATE 

PROJECT COSTS 

 

TO: BOKF, N.A., AS TRUSTEE (THE “TRUSTEE”) UNDER THAT CERTAIN TRUST 

INDENTURE DATED AS OF _________ 1, 2023 (THE “INDENTURE”), 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI (THE “CITY”) AND THE 

TRUSTEE, AND THAT CERTAIN LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT OF EVEN 

DATE THEREWITH (THE “LEASE”), BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY, AS 

LESSOR, AND EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., AS LESSEE (THE 

“COMPANY”). 

 

 The undersigned hereby acknowledges that a total of $_______________has been deemed 

paid for Project Costs (as defined in said Trust Indenture) in such amounts and for such purposes 

as set forth on Schedule 1 and Schedule 2 attached hereto.  Such payment has been deemed 

satisfied through the delivery to the Company of or an endorsement to the Bonds in accordance 

with the terms of the Lease and of the Indenture.  Accordingly, no funds have been deposited or 

withdrawn from the Acquisition Fund.  In accordance with the terms of the Lease and the Indenture 

the Company hereby certifies as follows: 

 

 1. The Company has conveyed to the City and the City has accepted all of the 

Company’s rights, title and interest in and to the property described in Schedule 1 and Schedule 

2 hereto pursuant to a Special Warranty Deed or bill of sale dated the date hereof. 

 

 2. Each item for which payment is requested under this Certificate is a proper charge 

against the applicable account within the Acquisition Fund, that the amount requested is justly due, 

and has not been the basis of any previous requisition from the Acquisition Fund.  

 

 3. The Company hereby represents and warrants to the City that there are no 

outstanding disputed statements (other than those which constitute Allowable Encumbrances 

under the Lease) for which payment is requested hereunder for labor, wages, materials, supplies 

or services which could become the basis of a vendors’, mechanics’, laborers’, or materialmen’s 

statutory or other similar lien upon the Property or any part thereof or improvement thereto. 

 

       EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. 

        the “Company”    
        

 

       By: ________________________________ 

             Authorized Company Representative 

 

143

WS #1.



 

B-2 

 
 

 

            Acknowledged:  _________________, 202___ 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

            the “City” 

 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

Authorized City Representative 

 

144

WS #1.



 

B-3 

 
 

SCHEDULE 1 

TO REQUISITION CERTIFICATE NO. ____ 

 

THE PROPERTY AND FINANCED FACILITIES 

 

Payee and Address Description     Deemed Amount 

 

        . (For Financed Equipment,  $___________ 

  See Schedule 2 attached)    

   

  

 

 

145

WS #1.



 

B-4 

 
 

SCHEDULE 2 

TO REQUISITION CERTIFICATE NO. ___ 

 

FINANCED EQUIPMENT 

 

 Item 

 (Description) Serial or Identification Number 
 

 

 

 

 
 

146

WS #1.



C-1 

 
   

EXHIBIT C 

 

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (form) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    [Space Above this Line for Recording Data]     

 

 

Title of Document:   Memorandum of Lease Purchase Agreement 

 

 

Date of Document:   _________ 1, 2023 

 

 

Grantor’s/Lessor’s Name:  City of Moberly, 

  a Missouri municipal corporation 

  

 

Grantor’s/Lessor’s Address:  101 West Reed - City Hall 

 Moberly, Missouri 65270 

  

 

Grantees/Lessees Name:  EquipmentShare.com Inc., 

 a Delaware corporation 

 

 

Grantee’s/Lessee’s Address:  5710 Bull Run Drive 

Columbia, Missouri 65201  

 

 

Full Legal Description:  

Legal Description is contained on page ___ hereof. 

 

 

Reference Book(s) and Page(s), if required:  

 

147

WS #1.



 

C-2 

 
 

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS MEMORANDUM OF LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this 

“Memorandum”) is made as of __________1, 2023, by and between the CITY OF MOBERLY, 

a Missouri municipal corporation and city of the third classification and having an office at 101 

West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri, as Lessor  (the “City”) and EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM 

INC. a Delaware corporation duly authorized to do business in Missouri and having a principal 

office at 5710 Bull Run Drive, Columbia, Missouri 65201 (the “Company”).  Capitalized terms 

used and not defined in this Memorandum shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Lease 

(as hereinafter defined).  
 

RECITALS 

 

A.  In furtherance of providing certain economic incentives to the Company in 

connection with a “project” under the Acts, the City has acquired and is the fee owner of a parcel 

of real property comprising the Property located with the City and legally described on Exhibit A 

attached hereto, as of the date of the Lease (the “Property”); 

 

B. The City and the Company have made and entered into that certain Lease Purchase 

Agreement dated as of ___________1, 2023 (the “Lease”) pursuant to which, among other things, 

the City, as lessor, did agree to demise and lease to the Company and the Company, as lessee, did 

agree to lease and take from the City, the Property, subject to the provisions set forth therein;  

 

C. Pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, the City, among other things, has pledged to 

the Trustee in trust for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds, the rents received under the Lease, 

and the City and the Company are desirous of entering into this Memorandum; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound hereby, the City and the Company, 

hereby set forth the following information with respect to the Lease: 

 

1. The recitals noted above are incorporated herein by reference. 

 

2. The name and identity of the Lessor is the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, a 

Missouri municipal corporation and city of the third classification. 

 

3. The name and identity of the Lessee is EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. a 

Delaware corporation duly authorized to do business in Missouri. 

 

4. The addresses set forth in the Lease Agreement as addresses of the parties are: 
 

the Company  EquipmentShare.com Inc. 

    5710 Bull Run Drive 

Columbia, Missouri 65201  
      

 the City  City of Moberly, Missouri 

    101 West Reed Street - City Hall 

   Moberly, Missouri 65270 
     

148

WS #1.



 

C-3 

 
 

 5. The Lease is dated as of _______ 1, 2023. 

 

 6. Under the Indenture, the City, among other things, has pledged and assigned to the 

Trustee in trust for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds (which, as of the date hereof, is the 

Company), all right, title and interest in the Property and, as and when acquired by the City, the 

Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment, and the rents, revenues 

and receipts derived by the City under the Lease. 

 

 7. The Company has an option and an obligation to purchase the Project, the Property, 

the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment under Article XI of the Lease. 

 

 8. The term of the lease contained in the Lease commenced on __________1, 2023, 

and expires on the later of: (i) December 31, 2034 (12 years following the last date for acceptance 

by the City of any portion of the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment;) or (ii) with respect 

to each portion of the Bonds represented by an annual endorsement of principal, December 1 of that 

year which is Twelve (12) years from the year of such annual endorsement as set forth on the Table 

to which an Additional Payment/Principal Amount Advanced (all as provided in Section 208(e) of 

the Indenture) pertains. 

 

  WITNESS the due execution hereof as of the date first written above. 

 

       CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
       as “Lessor” 

 

 

       By: ________________________________ 

        Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor 

(Seal) 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

 

CITY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

     ) SS. 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH  ) 

 

 On this _____ day of  _________________, 2023, before me, the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said State, personally appeared Jerry Jeffrey and Shannon Hance, who 

acknowledged themselves to be, respectively, the Mayor and City Clerk of CITY OF MOBERLY, 

MISSOURI, a city of the third classification organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

Missouri, and that they, as such Mayor and such City Clerk are authorized by the City Council of 

149

WS #1.



 

C-4 

 
 

such City, to execute the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing the 

name of the City by themselves as Mayor and City Clerk. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 

day and year last above written. 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

         Notary Public 

 

My commission expires: 

  

 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC.  
       as “Lessee” 

 

        

       By: ________________________________ 

 Name: 

 Title: 

 

COMPANY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

STATE OF_____________ ) 

    )  SS. 

COUNTY OF__________ ) 

 

 On this _______ day of ________________, 2023, before me, the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said State, personally appeared ________________________________, who 

acknowledged himself/herself to be ___________________________ of 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Delaware and duly authorized to do business in Missouri, and that such officer being 

authorized by said company so to do executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein 

contained by authority of such corporation’s board of directors. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 

day and year last above written. 

 

        

       ___________________________________ 

         Notary Public 

My Commission expires: 

 

  

150

WS #1.



 

C-5 

 
 

EXHIBIT A (to Memorandum of Lease Purchase Agreement) 

 

THE PROPERTY (legal description) 

 

Parcel No.  07-7.0-26.0-0.0-000-014.000 in the records of the Randolph County, known and 

numbered as 1855 Robertson Road, Moberly Missouri and partially described as: 

 
Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14 - PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE COR 
OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 146.57', SLY 
268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96', 
N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 

Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14 - PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE COR 

OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 146.57', SLY 
268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96', 
N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 
A total of 16.0 +/- acres. 

 

 

 

151

WS #1.



 

 

D-1 
 

 

EXHIBIT D 

 

FORM OF SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE 

 

 

 

_______________ 

 

_______ SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

Dated as of ______________ , 20___ 

 

 

By and between 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, 

as Lessor, 

 

 and 

 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., INC., 

as Lessee 

 

 

 

Relating to: 

 

$55,000,000.00 

(Aggregate Maximum Principal Amount) 

City of Moberly, Missouri 

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds 
(EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and  

Distribution Facility Project) 

Series 2023 

 

 

 

 

The interest of certain rights of the City of Moberly, Missouri (the “City”), in this ______ 

Supplemental Lease Purchase Agreement has been pledged and assigned to BOKF, N.A., as 

Trustee (the “Trustee”) under that certain Trust Indenture dated as of __________1, 2023, 

between the City and the Trustee (the “Indenture”). 

152

WS #1.



 

D-2 
 

 

______ SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS _______ SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “_____ 

Supplement”) is made as of ____________, 20___ to a certain Lease (as hereinafter defined) by 

and between the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, a city of the third classification organized 

and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri (the “City”), as lessor, and 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., a Delaware corporation duly authorized to transact business in 

Missouri (the “Company”), as lessee.  Capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall have 

the meanings ascribed to them in that certain Indenture of Trust dated as of _______ 1, 2023 (the 

“Indenture”)by and between the City and BOKF, N.A., as trustee. 

 

WITNESSETH: 
 

 WHEREAS, the City is authorized under the Acts to issue revenue bonds to provide funds 

for the carrying out of a “project” (as that term is defined in section 100.010 of the Revised Statutes 

of Missouri, as amended) and to sell, lease or mortgage to private persons, partnerships or 

corporations the facilities purchased, constructed or extended by the City which may consist of 

warehouses, distribution facilities, research and development facilities, office industries, 

agricultural processing industries, service facilities which provide interstate commerce and 

industrial plants; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Acts, the City Council on February 21, 2023 after duly noticed public 
hearing adopted Ordinance No. _____ (1) approving a plan for the Project, (2) approving the 
Development Agreement and (3) authorizing, among other things, the issuance by the City of its 
Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and 
Distribution Facility Project) Series 2023 in a maximum aggregate principal amount of not to 
exceed $55,000,000 for the purpose of financing the Project on the Property; execution and 
delivery by the City of this Indenture for the purpose of issuing and securing the Bonds; to entering 
by the City into the Lease under which the City as lessor will lease the Property and the Project as 
constructed and completed to the Company as lessee, in consideration of rentals which will be 
sufficient to pay when and as due the principal of and interest on the then-current Cumulative 
Outstanding Principal Amount of Bonds, and annual acceptance, but not later than December 31, 
2028, by the City of completed portions of the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment, all 
as provided in the Lease and in accordance with the Acts; and 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, the City and the Company have entered into 

the Lease [and applicable Supplemental Leases] pursuant to which the City has acquired and 

obtained title to the entire the Property [and to certain portions of the Project] and has leased same 

to the Company in consideration of rental payments by the Company which will be sufficient to 

pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds and which Lease additionally contemplates the 

further acquisition, installation and leasing from time to time by or on behalf of the City to the 

Company of certain other portions of the Project as and when constructed and installed; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the foregoing, the City and the Company desire to enter into this 

_____ Supplement to provide for the acquisition by or on behalf of the City of the portions of the 

Project described in Exhibit A attached to and incorporated by reference in this ____ Supplement, 

153

WS #1.



 

D-3 

 
   

the leasing from the City, for the rentals and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth to 

the Company of the aforesaid portions of the Project, all as provided in the Lease and the Indenture; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual representations, 

covenants and agreements herein contained, the City and the Company do hereby represent, 

covenant and agree as follows: 

 

 Section 1. Exhibit A Amended and Supplemented.  The Lease is hereby amended 

and supplemented by deleting therefrom Exhibit A thereto and by substituting therefor a new 

Exhibit A as set forth on Appendix A hereto. 

 

 Section 2. No Other Amendment.  Portions of the Lease not expressly amended and 

supplemented in Section 1 hereof, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Supplement to be executed 

in their respective names by their duly authorized signatories, all as of the date first above written. 

     CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 “Lessor” 

 

 

                   By: ________________________________ 

 Mayor   

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

      City Clerk 

CITY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

     ) SS. 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH  ) 

 

 On this _____ day of______________, 202__, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public 

in and for said State, personally appeared __________________and__________________, who 

acknowledged themselves to be, respectively, the Mayor and City Clerk of CITY OF MOBERLY, 

MISSOURI, a city of the third class organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, 

and that they, as such Mayor and such City Clerk are authorized by the City Council of such City, 

to execute the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing the name of the 

City by themselves as Mayor and City Clerk. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 

day and year last above written. 

 

       __________________________________ 

154

WS #1.



 

D-4 

 
   

         Notary Public 

 

My commission expires: 

 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC.  

       “Lessee” 

 

        

       By: ________________________________ 

 Name: 

 Title: 

 

COMPANY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

STATE OF_____________ ) 

    )  SS. 

COUNTY OF__________ ) 

 

 On this _______ day of ________________, 202___, before me, the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said State, personally appeared ________________________________, who 

acknowledged himself/herself to be ___________________________of 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Delaware and duly authorized to do business in Missouri, and that such officer being 

authorized by said company so to do executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein 

contained by authority of such corporation’s board of directors. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 

day and year last above written. 

        

 

       ___________________________________ 

         Notary Public 

My Commission expires: 

        
 

155

WS #1.



 

D-5 

 
   

EXHIBIT A (to ____Supplement) 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PROJECT [AND SCHEDULE OF 

FINANCED EQUIPMENT] 

 

156

WS #1.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________ 

 

TRUST INDENTURE 

 

Dated as of ________ 1, 2023 

 

________________ 

 

 

 

Between 

 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 

 

AND 

 

 

BOKF, N.A.,  

as Trustee 

 

 

 

Relating to: 

 

$55,000,000  

(Aggregate Maximum Principal Amount) 

City of Moberly, Missouri 

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds 
(EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and  

Distribution Facility Project) 
Series 2023 

 

 

 

 

157

WS #1.



 

 -i- 
 

TRUST INDENTURE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 Page 

 

  Parties  ......................................................................................................................  1 

  Recitals  ....................................................................................................................  1 

  Granting Clauses  .....................................................................................................  1 

 

 ARTICLE I 

 DEFINITIONS 
 

Section 101. Definitions of Words and Terms  ............................................................................  3 

Section 102. Rules of Interpretation  .............................................................................................  9 

Section 103. Computation of Time  ............................................................................................  10 

 

 ARTICLE II 

 THE BONDS 
 

Section 201. Title and Aggregate Principal Amount of Bonds  .................................................. 10 

Section 202. Nature of Obligations  ............................................................................................. 10 

Section 203. Denomination, Number and Dating of Bonds  ....................................................... 10 

Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of Bonds ................................................................ 11 

Section 205. Execution and Authentication of Bonds  ................................................................ 12 

Section 206. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds  ..................................................... 12 

Section 207. Persons Deemed Owners of Bonds  ....................................................................... 13 

Section 208. Authorization of the Bonds  .................................................................................... 13 

Section 209. No Additional Bonds .............................................................................................. 15 

Section 210. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds  ......................................................... 15 

Section 211. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment ........................................ 15 

 

 ARTICLE III 

 REDEMPTION OF BONDS 
 

Section 301. Redemption Generally  ........................................................................................... 16 

Section 302. Redemption of Bonds  ............................................................................................. 16 

Section 303. Effect of Call for Redemption  ................................................................................ 16 

Section 304. Notice of Redemption  ............................................................................................ 16 

 

 ARTICLE IV 

 FORM OF BONDS 
 

Section 401. Generally  ................................................................................................................ 17 

Section 402. Form of Bonds ......................................................................................................... 17 

Section 403. Form of Certificate of Authentication  ................................................................... 22 

 

  

158

WS #1.



 

 -ii- 
 

ARTICLE V 

 CUSTODY AND APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS 
 

Section 501. Creation of the Acquisition Fund ........................................................................... 22 

Section 502. Deposits into the Acquisition Fund  ....................................................................... 22 

Section 503. Disbursements from the Acquisition Fund  ............................................................ 22 

Section 504. Completion of the Project  ...................................................................................... 23 

Section 505. Disposition Upon Acceleration  .............................................................................. 23 

 

 ARTICLE VI 

 REVENUES AND FUNDS 
 

Section 601. Creation of the Bond Fund  ..................................................................................... 23 

Section 602. Deposits into the Bond Fund .................................................................................. 23 

Section 603. Application of Moneys in the Bond Fund  ............................................................. 24 

Section 604. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays  ............................................ 24 

Section 605. Nonpresentment of Bonds  ...................................................................................... 25 

Section 606. Repayment to the Company from the Bond Fund  ................................................ 25 

 

 ARTICLE VII 

 SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT OF FUNDS 
 

Section 701. Moneys to be Held in Trust  ................................................................................... 25 

Section 702. Investment of Moneys in Acquisition Fund and Bond Fund  ................................ 25 

Section 703. Record Keeping  ...................................................................................................... 26 

 

 ARTICLE VIII 

 GENERAL COVENANTS AND PROVISIONS 
 

Section 801. Payment of Principal and Interest  .......................................................................... 26 

Section 802. Authority to Execute Indenture and Issue Bonds  .................................................. 26 

Section 803. Performance of Covenants  ..................................................................................... 26 

Section 804. Instruments of Further Assurance  .......................................................................... 27 

Section 805. Recordings and Filings  ........................................................................................... 27 

Section 806. Inspection of Books  ................................................................................................ 27 

Section 807. Enforcement of Rights Under the Lease  ............................................................... 27 

 

 ARTICLE IX 

 DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 

Section 901. Events of Default; Notice; Opportunity to Cure  ................................................... 28 

Section 902. Acceleration of Maturity in Event of Default ........................................................ 28 

Section 903. Surrender of Possession of Trust Estate; Rights and Duties  

  of Trustee in Possession  ......................................................................................... 29 

Section 904. Appointment of Receivers in Event of Default  ..................................................... 29 

Section 905. Exercise of Remedies by the Trustee ..................................................................... 29 

159

WS #1.



 

 -iii- 
 

Section 906. Limitation on Exercise of Remedies by Bondowners  ........................................... 30 

Section 907. Right of Bondowners to Direct Proceedings  ......................................................... 31 

Section 908. Application of Moneys in Event of Default  .......................................................... 31 

Section 909. Remedies Cumulative  ............................................................................................ 32 

Section 910. Waivers of Events of Default  ................................................................................. 32 

 

 ARTICLE X 

 THE TRUSTEE 
 

Section 1001. Acceptance of the Trusts  ........................................................................................ 33 

Section 1002. Fees, Charges and Expenses of the Trustee ........................................................... 35 

Section 1003. Notice to Bondowners if Default Occurs  .............................................................. 36 

Section 1004. Intervention by the Trustee  .................................................................................... 36 

Section 1005. Successor Trustee Upon Merger, Consolidation or Sale  ...................................... 36 

Section 1006. Resignation of Trustee  ........................................................................................... 36 

Section 1007. Removal of Trustee  ................................................................................................ 37 

Section 1008. Appointment of Successor Trustee  ........................................................................ 37 

Section 1009. Vesting of Trusts in Successor Trustee  ................................................................. 37 

Section 1010. Right of Trustee to Pay Taxes and Other Charges  ................................................ 37 

Section 1011. Trust Estate May be Vested in Co-trustee  ............................................................. 38 

Section 1012. Accounting  ............................................................................................................. 39 

Section 1013. Performance of Duties under the Lease  ................................................................. 39 

 

 ARTICLE XI 

 SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES 
 

Section 1101. Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of Bondowners  ....................... 39 

Section 1102. Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Bondowners  .............................. 39 

Section 1103. Company's Consent to Supplemental Indentures  .................................................. 40 

 

 ARTICLE XII 

 SUPPLEMENTAL LEASES 
 

Section 1201. Supplemental Leases Not Requiring Consent of Bondowners  ............................. 40 

Section 1202. Supplemental Leases Requiring Consent of Bondowners  .................................... 40 

 

 ARTICLE XIII 

 SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE 
 

Section 1301. Satisfaction and Discharge of this Indenture  ......................................................... 41 

Section 1302. Bonds Deemed to be Paid  ...................................................................................... 41 

 

 ARTICLE XIV 

 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

Section 1401. Consents and Other Instruments by Bondowners  ................................................. 42 

160

WS #1.



 

 -iv- 
 

Section 1402. Limitation of Rights Under this Indenture  ............................................................ 43 

Section 1403. Notices  .................................................................................................................... 43 

Section 1404. Severability  ............................................................................................................. 43 

Section 1405. Execution in Counterparts  ...................................................................................... 44 

Section 1406. Governing Law  ....................................................................................................... 44 
 

  Signatures and Seals; Acknowledgements  ...................................................... 44, 45 

   

List of Exhibits 

 

 Exhibit A - The Financed Facilities (Realty) ......................................................... A-1 

 Exhibit B - The Financed Equipment (Personalty) ............................................... B-1 

 Exhibit C - The Property ........................................................................................ C-1 

 Exhibit D - Form of Purchaser’s Letter of Representations .................................. D-1 

  

 

 

161

WS #1.



 

 

TRUST INDENTURE 
 

 THIS TRUST INDENTURE (this “Indenture”) dated as of __________ 1, 2023, by and 

between the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, a city of the third classification and municipal 

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri (the “City”), and BOKF, 

N.A., St. Louis, Missouri, a national banking association duly organized and existing and authorized 

to accept and execute trusts of the character set forth in this Indenture, as trustee (the “Trustee”).  

Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Indenture shall have the meanings 

respectively ascribed to them in Article I of this Indenture. 

 

WITNESSETH: 
 

 WHEREAS, the City is authorized by the Acts, to issue revenue bonds to provide funds for 

the carrying out of a “project” (as that term is defined in section 100.010 of the Revised Statutes of 

Missouri, as amended) and to sell, lease or mortgage to private persons, partnerships or corporations 

the facilities purchased, constructed or extended by the City which may consist of warehouses, 

distribution facilities, research and development facilities, office industries, agricultural processing 

industries, service facilities which provide interstate commerce and industrial plants; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Acts, the City Council on February 21, 2023 after duly noticed 

public hearing adopted Ordinance No. _____ (1) approving a plan for the Project, (2) approving the 

Development Agreement and (3) authorizing, among other things, the issuance by the City of its 

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and 

Distribution Facility Project) Series 2023 in a maximum aggregate principal amount of not to 

exceed $55,000,000 for the purpose of financing the Project on the Property; execution and 

delivery by the City of this Indenture for the purpose of issuing and securing the Bonds; to entering 

by the City into the Lease under which the City as lessor will lease the Property and the Project as 

renovated and completed to the Company as lessee, in consideration of rentals which will be 

sufficient to pay when and as due the principal of and interest on the then-current Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount of Bonds, and annually acceptance, but not later than December 31, 

2028, by the City of completed portions of the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment, all 

as provided in the Lease and in accordance with the Acts; and 

 

 WHEREAS, all things necessary to make the Bonds, when authenticated by the Trustee and 

issued as in this Indenture provided, the valid and legally binding obligations of the City, and to 

constitute this Indenture a valid and legally binding pledge and assignment of the trust estate herein 

made for the security of the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, have been done 

and performed, and the execution and delivery of this Indenture and the execution and issuance of 

the Bonds, subject to the terms hereof, have in all respects been duly authorized; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS TRUST INDENTURE WITNESSETH: 
 

 GRANTING CLAUSES 
 

 That the City, in consideration of the above premises, the acceptance by the Trustee of the 

trusts hereby created, the purchase and acceptance of the Bonds by the Bondowners thereof, and of 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 

162

WS #1.



 

 -2- 
 

and to secure the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds issued and Outstanding under 

this Indenture from time to time according to their tenor and effect, and to secure the performance 

and observance by the City of all the covenants, agreements and conditions in this Indenture and in 

the Bonds contained, does hereby pledge and assign to the Trustee and its successors and assigns 

forever, the property described in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) below (said property being herein 

referred to as the “Trust Estate”), to-wit: 

 

 (a) All right, title and interest in and to the Project, the Financed Facilities and the 

Financed Equipment, together with the tenements, hereditaments, appurtenances, rights, privileges 

and immunities thereunto belonging or appertaining; 

 

 (b) All right, title and interest of the City in, to and under the Lease and any Supplemental 

Lease (excluding the City’s right to receive moneys for the City’s own account and the City’s rights 

to indemnification under the Development Agreement and the Lease or to be protected from 

liabilities by insurance policies, payment bonds or other similar security required by the Lease or the 

Development Agreement, as provided therein or herein), and all rents, revenues and receipts derived 

by the City from the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment including, without 

limitation, all rentals and other amounts to be received by the City and paid by the Company under 

and pursuant to and subject to the provisions of the Lease; and 

 

 (c) All moneys and securities from time to time held by the Trustee under the terms of 

this Indenture, and any and all other real or personal property of every kind and nature from time to 

time hereafter, by delivery or by writing of any kind, pledged, assigned or transferred as and for 

additional security hereunder by the City or by anyone in its behalf, or with its written consent, to 

the Trustee, which is hereby authorized to receive any and all such property at any and all times and 

to hold and apply the same subject to the terms hereof. 

 

 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, all and singular, the Trust Estate with all rights and privileges 

hereby pledged and assigned or agreed or intended so to be, to the Trustee and its successors and 

assigns forever; 

 

 IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, upon the terms and subject to the conditions herein set 

forth, for the equal and proportionate benefit, protection and security of all Bondowners from time 

to time of the Bonds Outstanding under this Indenture, without preference, priority or distinction as 

to lien or otherwise of any of the Bonds over any other of the Bonds except as expressly provided in 

or permitted by this Indenture; 

 

 PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that if the City shall well and truly pay, or cause to be paid, the 

principal of and interest on the Bonds, at the time and in the manner mentioned in the Bonds, 

according to the true intent and meaning thereof, or shall provide for the payment thereof (as 

provided in Article XIII of this Indenture), and shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee all other 

sums of money due or to become due to the City in accordance with the terms and provisions hereof, 

then upon such final payments, this Indenture and the rights thereby granted shall cease, determine 

and be void; otherwise, this Indenture shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

 

163

WS #1.



 

 -3- 
 

 THIS INDENTURE FURTHER WITNESSETH, and it is hereby expressly declared, 

covenanted and agreed by and between the parties hereto, that all Bonds issued and secured 

hereunder are to be issued, authenticated and delivered and that all the Trust Estate is to be held and 

applied under, upon and subject to the terms, conditions, stipulations, covenants, agreements, trusts, 

uses and purposes as hereinafter expressed, and the City does hereby agree and covenant with the 

Trustee and with the respective Bondowners from time to time of the Bonds, as follows: 

 

 ARTICLE I 

 DEFINITIONS 
 

 Section 101. Definitions of Words and Terms.  In addition to words and terms defined 

in Section 1.1 of the Lease, which definitions shall be deemed to be incorporated in this Article I and 

this Indenture, and terms defined elsewhere in this Indenture, the following words and terms as used 

in this Indenture shall have the following meanings, unless some other meaning is plainly intended: 

 

 “Acquisition Fund” shall mean the “City of Moberly, Missouri, Acquisition Fund - 

EquipmentShare Manufacturing, Refurbishment and Distribution Facility Project,” together with 

any accounts and subaccounts therein created in Section 501 of this Indenture. 

 

 “Acts” shall mean, collectively, article VI, section 27(b) of the Missouri Constitution and 

sections 70.210 through 70.220, inclusive, and sections 100.010 through 100.200, inclusive, of the 

Revised Statutes of Missouri, all as from time to time amended. 

 

 “Additional Payments” shall mean, collectively, all additional payments made (or deemed 

made) by the Company to the Trustee with respect to the Bonds from time to time after the initial 

issuance of the Bonds in accordance with Section 208 of this Indenture, the Bond Purchase 

Agreement, and the Lease. 

 

 “Affiliate” shall mean an individual, corporation, association, partnership, limited liability 

company, joint venture, trust, estate, or other entity or organization, or any other such person or 

entity which, (i) directly or indirectly, Controls, is in common Control of, or is Controlled by the 

Company or a parent of the Company or (ii) a majority of the members of the Directing Body of 

which are members of the Directing Body of the Company.  

 

 “Authorized City Representative” shall mean the City Manager or such other person at the 

time designated to act on behalf of the City as evidenced by a written certificate furnished to the 

Company and the Trustee containing the specimen signature of such person and signed on behalf of 

the City by the Mayor.  Such certificate may designate an alternate or alternates each of whom shall 

be entitled to perform all duties of the Authorized City Representative. 

 

 “Authorized Company Representative” shall mean the person designated as of the date of 

this Indenture to act on behalf of the Company as evidenced by a written certificate furnished to the 

City and the Trustee containing the specimen signature of such person and signed on behalf of the 

Company by authorized officers or employees.  Such certificate may designate an alternate or 

alternates each of whom shall be entitled to perform all duties of the Authorized Company 

Representative. 

164

WS #1.



 

 -4- 
 

 

 “Bonds” shall mean, collectively, the City’s Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds 

(EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and Distribution Facility Project) 

Series 2023 of any series issued from time to time pursuant to the Indenture, and subject to the 

terms of this Agreement, in a maximum total aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 

$55,000,000.  

 

 “Bond Counsel” shall mean Gilmore & Bell, P.C. or other firm of attorneys nationally 

recognized on the subject of municipal bonds and selected by the City. 

 

 “Bond Fund” shall mean the “City of Moberly, Missouri, Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond 

Fund - EquipmentShare.Com, Inc Manufacturing Facility Project,” together with the accounts and 

subaccounts therein created in Section 601 of this Indenture. 

 

 “Bond Ordinance” shall mean Ordinance No. ______ of the City adopted and approved by 

the City Council on February 21, 2023 authorizing the issuance by the City of the Bonds for the 

purpose of financing the Project on the Property; authorizing the City to execute and deliver this 

Indenture for the purpose of issuing and securing the Bonds; authorizing the City to enter into the 

Lease under which the City as lessor will lease the Property and the Project as renovated and 

completed to the Company as lessee, in consideration of rentals which will be sufficient to pay when 

and as due the principal of and interest on the then-current Cumulative Outstanding Principal 

Amount of Bonds, and authorizing the City to annually accept, but not later than December 31, 2028, 

completed portions of the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment, all as provided in the 

Lease and in accordance with the Acts. 

 

 “Bondowner” shall mean the registered owner of any Bond as recorded on the Register 

maintained by the Trustee on behalf of the City. 

 

 “Bond Purchase Agreement” shall mean the agreement dated as of the date of closing on 

the Bonds, by and through which the City agrees to issue and the Company agrees to purchase the 

Bonds. 

 

 “Business Day” shall mean a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the 

State of Missouri.  All other references to “days” shall mean calendar days.  If the date for 

performance of any covenant or obligation under this Agreement shall fall on a Saturday, Sunday 

or legal holiday in the State of Missouri, then the date for performance thereof shall be extended 

to the next Business Day. 

 

 “City” shall mean the City of Moberly, Missouri, a city of the third classification and 

municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri and having a 

principal office at 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270, its successors and assigns. 

 

 “City Clerk” shall mean the duly appointed and serving Clerk of the City or designee. 

  

 “City Council” shall mean the duly elected and serving governing body of the City. 

 

165

WS #1.



 

 -5- 
 

 “City Manager” shall mean the duly appointed and serving City Manager of the City or 

designee. 

 

“Closing” shall mean the closing on the conveyance by the Company to the City of the 

Property and the contemporaneous issuance by the City of the Bonds. 

 

 “Closing Date” shall have the meaning and use attributed to this term in the Bond Purchase 

Agreement.   

 

 “Closing Price” shall mean shall have the meaning and use attributed to this term in the 

Bond Purchase Agreement.   

 

 “Company” shall mean EquipmentShare.com Inc., a Delaware corporation duly 

authorized to do business in Missouri and having a principal office at 5710 Bull Run Drive, 

Columbia, Missouri 65201, together with its Affiliates, successors and assigns. 

 

 “Control” shall mean, with respect to any Affiliate, with respect to: (a) a corporation 

having stock, the ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the securities (as defined 

in Section 2(1) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) of any class or classes, the holders of 

which are ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, entitled to elect a majority of the Directing 

Body of such corporation; (b) a not for profit corporation not having stock, having the power to 

elect or appoint, directly or indirectly, at least a majority of the members of the Directing Body of 

such corporation; or (c) any other entity, the power to direct the management of such entity through 

the ownership of at least a majority of its voting securities or the right to designate or elect at least 

a majority of the members of its Directing Body, by contract or otherwise.  

 

“Costs of Issuance” shall mean, collectively, all reasonable and customary costs of issuance 

of the Bonds, including, but not limited to Bond Counsel and attorneys’ fees, fees of financial 

consultants, Trustee and fiscal agent fees, and bond registration fees, if any. 

 

 “Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount” shall mean the aggregate principal amount 

of all Bonds issued in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture and Outstanding, as reflected 

in the records maintained by the Trustee as provided in the Bonds and this Indenture. 

 

 “Development Agreement” shall mean the Development Agreement dated as of  

___________ 1, 2023 by and among the City, the Moberly Area Economic Development 

Corporation, and the Company respecting, among other things, the implementation of the Project. 

 

 “Directing Body” shall mean with respect to: (a) a corporation having stock, such 

corporation’s board of directors and the owners, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the 

securities (as defined in Section 2(1) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) of any class or 

classes, the holders of which are ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, entitled to elect a 

majority of the corporation’s directors (both of which groups shall be considered a Directing 

Body); (b) a not for profit corporation not having stock, such corporation’s members if the 

members have complete discretion to elect the corporation’s directors, or the corporation’s 

166

WS #1.



 

 -6- 
 

directors if the corporation’s members do not have such discretion or if such corporation has no 

members; and (c) any other entity, its governing board or body. 

 

 “Event of Default” shall mean, with respect to this Indenture, any Event of Default as 

defined in Section 901 of this Indenture and, with respect to the Lease, means any Event of Default 

as defined in the Lease. 

 

 “Financed Equipment” shall mean collectively, the machinery, equipment, furnishings, 

information systems, hardware, special tools and other personal property acquired or installed or 

acquired for installation in the Project pursuant to the Lease and paid for in whole or in part from 

the Acquisition Fund, all as listed on Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated by reference in this 

Indenture and as amended and supplemented from time to time as provided in this Indenture, 

together with all replacements thereof and substitutions therefor. 

 

 “Financed Facilities” shall mean collectively, the real property improvements at the 

Property in connection with the Project made or to be made subsequent to the Effective Date of 

the Development Agreement and the Lease and paid for in whole or in part from the Acquisition 

Fund, all as further identified and described from time to time on Exhibit A, attached to and 

incorporated by reference in this Indenture. 

 

 “Government Securities” shall mean direct obligations of, or obligations the payment of 

principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America. 

 

 “Indenture” shall mean this Trust Indenture, as from time to time amended in accordance 

with the provisions of Article XI of this Indenture. 

 

 “Investment Securities” shall mean any of the following securities: 

 

  (a) Government Securities; 

 

  (b) obligations of Fannie Mae, the Government National Mortgage Association, 

the Federal Financing Bank, the Federal Intermediate Credit Corporation, Federal Banks for 

Cooperatives, Federal Land Banks, Federal Home Loan Banks, Farmers Home 

Administration and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation; 

 

  (c) direct and general obligations of any state of the United States of America, to 

the payment of the principal of and interest on which the full faith and credit of such state is 

pledged, provided that at the time of their purchase under this Indenture such obligations are 

rated in either of the two highest rating categories by a nationally recognized bond rating 

agency; 

 

  (d) certificates of deposit, whether negotiable or nonnegotiable, issued by any 

bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state of the United States of America 

or any banking association or corporation (including the Trustee), provided that such 

certificates of deposit shall be either (1) continuously and fully insured by the Federal 

Deposit Insurance Corporation, or (2) continuously and fully secured by such securities as 

167

WS #1.



 

 -7- 
 

are described above in clauses (a) through (c), inclusive, which shall have a market value at 

all times at least equal to the principal amount of such certificates of deposit and shall be 

deposited with the Trustee or a custodian bank, trust company or national banking 

association.  The bank, trust company or national banking association holding each such 

certificate of deposit required to be so secured shall furnish the Trustee written evidence 

satisfactory to it that the aggregate market value of all such obligations securing each such 

certificate of deposit will at all times be an amount at least equal to the principal amount of 

each such certificate of deposit and the Trustee shall be entitled to rely on each such 

undertaking. 

 

  (e) Shares of a fund registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as 

amended, whose shares are registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, having 

assets of at least $100,000,000, and which shares, at the time of purchase, are rated by 

Standard & Poor's and Moody's in one of the two highest rating categories (without regard 

to any refinements or gradation of rating category by numerical modifier or otherwise) 

assigned by such rating agencies for obligations of that nature. 

 

  (f) Any other investment approved in writing by all of the Bondowners of all of 

the Bonds then Outstanding. 

 

  (g) A cash escrow product offered by the Trustee, which may consist of trust 

funds, trust accounts, or interest-bearing demand or time deposits, including certificates of 

deposit, which are held by any commercial bank having a short term deposit rating at the 

time of purchase of at least A-2 or the equivalent thereof by Standard and Poor's or at least 

P-2 or the equivalent thereof by Moody’s.  

 

 “Lease” shall mean the Lease Purchase Agreement dated of even date with this Indenture by 

and between the City, as lessor, and the Company, as lessee, related to the acquisition and financing 

of the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment, as from time to 

time amended and supplemented by Supplemental Leases in accordance with the provisions thereof, 

of Article XII of this Indenture, and of the Development Agreement. 

 

  “Mayor” shall mean the duly elected and serving Mayor of the City. 

 

 “Moody’s” shall mean Moody’s Investors Services, a bond and credit rating agency and 

subsidiary of Moody’s Corporation, having a principal office at 7 World Trade Center 250 Greenwich 

Street New York, NY 10007. 

 

 “Outstanding” when used with reference to Bonds, shall mean any Bond theretofore 

authenticated and delivered, except: 

 

  (a) any Bond theretofore cancelled by the Trustee or delivered to the Trustee for 

cancellation; 

 

  (b) any Bond deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of Section 

1302 of this Indenture; and 

168

WS #1.



 

 -8- 
 

 

  (c) any Bond in exchange for or in lieu of which another Bond has been 

authenticated and delivered pursuant to this Indenture. 

 

 “Paying Agent” shall mean the Trustee and any other bank or trust company designated by 

this Indenture as paying agent for the Bonds at which the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall 

be payable. 

 

 “Project” shall mean, collectively, the acquisition and renovation of the Property as a 

construction equipment refurbishment, rental, sales, service and tracking facility including, 

without limitation, the construction and equipping of the Financed Facilities and the installation 

of the Financed Equipment as and when annually accepted by the City in accordance with the 

Lease and this Indenture, all as necessary to facilitate the implementation of the Project which is 

anticipated to result in significant job creation and capital investment within the City and the 

region; provided that during the term of the Bonds, the Project shall be deemed at any time and 

from time to time to include only those portions of the Property, the Financed Facilities and the 

Financed Equipment actually conveyed to, accepted by, and then currently held by the City for a 

maximum period in each case of Twelve (12) years. 

 

 “Project Costs” shall mean all costs of acquisition, renovation, improvement, and 

installation of the Project, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment, including the 

following:   

 

  (a) all costs and expenses necessary or incident to the acquisition by the City of 

the Property for which the Company is responsible under the Development Agreement;  

 

  (b) the cost of title insurance policies required by the Development Agreement 

and the cost of any other insurance coverages required by the Lease; 

 

  (c) all costs and expenses necessary or incident to the construction of the portions 

of the Financed Facilities which the Company conveys to the City including the actual cost 

of labor, materials, machinery, furnishings, and equipment as payable to contractors, 

builders, and materialmen in connection therewith; 

 

  (d) all costs and expenses necessary or incident to the purchasing and installing 

of the Financed Equipment which the Company conveys to the City; 

 

  (e) interest accruing on the Bonds during the construction period of the Project;  

 

  (f) reasonable expenses of administration, supervision and inspection properly 

allocable to the Bonds, the Financed Equipment, or the Financed Facilities and the extending 

and improving thereof pursuant to the Development Agreement; Costs of Issuance, legal fees 

and expenses, fees and expenses of accountants and other consultants, publication and 

printing expenses, and initial fees and expenses of the Trustee to the extent that said fees and 

expenses are necessary or incident to the issuance and sale of the Bonds or the purchasing, 

169

WS #1.



 

 -9- 
 

titling, monitoring, construction, extending and improving of the Financed Equipment or the 

Financed Facilities and 

 

  (g) all other items of expense not elsewhere specified in this definition as may be 

necessary or incident to: (1) the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds; (2) the 

construction and improvement of the Financed Facilities; (3) the purchase and installation of 

the Financed Equipment; and (4) the financing of the foregoing in accordance with this 

Indenture. 

 

 “Property” shall mean the real property and improvements existing as of the date of the 

Development Agreement comprising a total of approximately Sixteen (16) acres within the 

corporate limits of the City and known and numbered as 1855 Robertson Road, all as more 

particularly described in Exhibit C, attached to and incorporated by reference in this Indenture. 

 

“Register” shall mean the registration books kept by the Trustee to evidence, among other 

things, the ownership of the Bonds and the transfer and exchange thereof. 

 

 “Registrar” shall mean the Trustee when acting as such under this Indenture. 

 

 “Supplemental Indenture” shall mean any indenture supplemental or amendatory to this 

Indenture entered into by the City and the Trustee pursuant to Article XI of this Indenture. 

 

 “Supplemental Lease” shall mean any supplement or amendment to the Lease entered into 

pursuant to Article XII of this Indenture. 

 

 “Table” shall mean the Table of Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount on the Bonds, 

as reflected in the records maintained by the Trustee as provided in the Bonds and this Indenture. 

 

 “Trust Estate” shall mean the Trust Estate described in the Granting Clauses of this 

Indenture. 

 

 “Trustee” shall mean BOKF, N.A., St. Louis, Missouri, a national banking association duly 

organized and existing under the laws of the United States, and its successor or successors and any 

other corporation which at the time may be substituted in its place pursuant to and at the time serving 

as Trustee under this Indenture. 

 

 Section 102. Rules of Interpretation. 
 

 (a) Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, the words importing the singular number 

shall include the plural and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms, associations 

and corporations, including public bodies, as well as natural persons. 

 

 (b) Wherever in this Indenture it is provided that either party shall or will make any 

payment or perform or refrain from performing any act or obligation, each such provision shall, even 

though not so expressed, be construed as an express covenant to make such payment or to perform, 

or not to perform, as the case may be, such act or obligation.   

170

WS #1.



 

 -10- 
 

 

 (c) All references in this instrument to designated “Articles,” “Sections” and other 

subdivisions are, unless otherwise specified, to the designated articles, sections and subdivisions of 

this instrument as originally executed.  The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder” and other words 

of similar import refer to this Indenture as a whole and not to any particular article, section or 

subdivision. 

 

 (d) The Table of Contents and the article and section headings of this Indenture shall not 

be treated as a part of this Indenture or as affecting the true meaning of the provisions of this 

Indenture. 

 

 Section 103. Computation of Time.  Wherever this Indenture calls for the performance 

of any act by reference to a day or number of days, to a month or number of months or to a year 

or number of years, each such computation shall be made based upon calendar days, calendar 

months, and calendar years, as applicable unless otherwise expressly provided. 

 

 ARTICLE II 

 THE BONDS 
 

 Section 201. Title and Aggregate Principal Amount of Bonds.  No Bonds may be issued 

under this Indenture except in accordance with the provisions of this Article II.  The Bonds 

authorized to be issued under this Indenture shall be designated as “City of Moberly, Missouri 

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond (EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and 

Distribution Facility Project) Series 2023” of applicable series   The maximum total aggregate 

principal amount of the Bonds that may be issued hereunder is hereby expressly limited to 

$55,000,000. 

 

 Section 202. Nature of Obligations.  The Bonds and the interest thereon shall be special 

obligations of the City payable solely out of the rents, revenues and receipts derived by the City from 

the Property and the Project under the Lease, and not from any other fund or source of the City and 

are secured by a pledge and assignment of the Trust Estate to the Trustee in favor of the Bondowners, 

all as provided in this Indenture.  The Bonds and the interest thereon shall not constitute a general 

obligation of the City, the County of Randolph, or the State of Missouri or any political subdivision 

thereof, and neither the City, said County, nor said State shall be liable thereon, and the Bonds shall 

not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation 

or restriction, and are not payable in any manner by taxation. 

 

 Section 203. Denomination, Number and Dating of Bonds. 
 

 (a) The Bonds shall be issuable in the form of one fully registered Bond without coupons 

in denominations of $100,000 or integral multiples of $1.00 in excess thereof.  The Bonds shall be 

substantially in the form hereinafter set forth in Article IV of this Indenture. 

 

 (b) The Bonds shall be dated by the Trustee as of the date of initial delivery thereof as 

provided in this Indenture.  If the Bonds are at any time thereafter transferred, any Bonds replacing 

such Bonds shall be dated as of the date of authentication thereof. 

171

WS #1.



 

 -11- 
 

 

 Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of Bonds. 
 

 (a) The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency 

of the United States of America which on the respective dates of payment thereof is legal tender for 

payment of public and private debts or as otherwise provided in this Indenture. 

 

 (b) Payment of the principal of the Bonds shall be made upon the presentation and 

surrender of such Bonds at the principal payment office of any Paying Agent and the Trustee is 

authorized to make payments of principal on such Bonds (i) by check or draft mailed by the Trustee 

to the Bondowner at such Bondowner’s address as such address appears on the Register; or (ii) by 

internal bank transfer or by wire transfer or other electronic transfer to an account at a commercial 

bank or savings institution located in the continental United States and designated in writing by 

such Bondowner to the Trustee with a copy to the City at least Five (5) Business Days prior to any 

principal payment date; provided, that so long as the Company or any entity Controlled by, under 

common Control with or Controlling the Company is the sole Bondowner of all Bonds then 

Outstanding and the lessee under the Lease, the Company may offset a portion of the Basic Rent 

due under the Lease against principal payments due under such Bonds and shall give the Trustee 

notice of such offset.  If any such Bond is presented to the Trustee together with such payment, or 

for such payment, or upon receipt of such notice of offset, as applicable, the Trustee shall enter the 

amount of such principal payment on the Table of Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount on 

such Bond in the manner provided by Section 402 of this Indenture and on the Register.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Register maintained by the Trustee shall be the official record 

of the Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount on any such series of Bonds at any time, and the 

Bondowner is not required to present such Bonds for action by the Trustee, as Registrar, with each 

payment of principal on such Bonds.   

 

 (c) Payment of the interest on the Bonds shall be made by the Trustee on each 

December 1, commencing on December 1, 2023, and continuing thereafter until the Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount is paid in full, but in no event later than the date provided in Section 

208(a) of this Indenture.  Interest shall be paid either: (i) by check or draft mailed by the Trustee 

to the Bondowner at such Bondowner’s address as such address appears on the Register; or (ii) by 

internal bank transfer or by wire transfer to an account at a commercial bank or savings institution 

located in the continental United States and designated by such Bondowner to the Trustee with a 

copy to the City at least Five (5) Business Days prior to any interest payment date; provided that 

so long as the Company or any entity Controlled by, under common Control with or Controlling 

the Company is the sole Bondowner of all Bonds then Outstanding and the lessee under the Lease, 

the Company may set-off the then-current Basic Rent payment against the City’s obligation to the 

Company as Bondholder under this Indenture in lieu of delivery of the Basic Rent on any payment 

date, without obtaining consent of any party prior to exercising such set-off.  Absent actual receipt 

by the Trustee of written notice to the contrary from the Company, it shall be presumed for each 

Basic Rent payment that such set-off has occurred on and as of the date such payment of Basic 

Rent is due, and the Trustee may conclusively rely on absence of such notice as evidence that such 

set-off has occurred.  Upon such payment or occurrence of offset, as applicable, the Trustee shall 

record the amount of such interest payment on the Register.  

 

172

WS #1.



 

 -12- 
 

 Section 205. Execution and Authentication of Bonds. 
 

 (a) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile 

signature of the Mayor and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk and shall 

have the corporate seal of the City affixed thereto or imprinted thereon.  In case any officer whose 

signature or facsimile thereof appears on the Bonds shall cease to be such officer before the delivery 

of the Bonds, such signature or facsimile thereof shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all 

purposes, the same as if such person had remained in office until delivery.  The Bonds may be signed 

by such persons as at the actual time of the execution of such Bond shall be the proper officers to 

sign such Bonds although at the date of such Bonds such persons may not have been such officers. 

 

 (b) The Bonds shall have endorsed thereon a Certificate of Authentication substantially 

in the form set forth in Section 403 of this Indenture, which shall be manually executed by the 

Trustee.  No Bonds shall be entitled to any security or benefit under this Indenture or shall be valid 

or obligatory for any purposes unless and until such Certificate of Authentication shall have been 

duly executed by the Trustee.  Such executed Certificate of Authentication upon the Bonds shall be 

conclusive evidence that the Bonds have been duly authenticated and delivered under this Indenture.  

The Certificate of Authentication shall be deemed to have been duly executed if signed by any 

authorized officer or signatory of the Trustee. 

 

 Section 206. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. 
 

 (a) The Trustee shall keep at the corporate trust office of the Trustee the Register for the 

registration and for the transfer of the Bonds as provided in this Indenture and any applicable 

Supplemental Indenture. 

 

 (b) The Bonds may be transferred only upon the Register upon surrender thereof to the 

Trustee duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the 

Bondowner or such Bondowner’s attorney or legal representative in such form as shall be 

satisfactory to the Trustee.  The Bonds have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as 

amended, or any state securities law, and the Bonds may not be transferred unless the City and the 

Trustee are furnished a written legal opinion from counsel acceptable to the City and the Trustee, to 

the effect that such transfer is exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 

1933, as amended, and any applicable state securities law together with an executed representation 

letter signed by the proposed assignee containing substantially the same representations contained 

in the representation letter delivered to the Trustee from the Bondowner upon the initial issuance of 

the Bonds.  Upon any such transfer, the City shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and 

deliver in exchange for such Bond a new fully registered Bond, registered in the name of the 

transferee, of any denomination or denominations authorized by this Indenture, in an aggregate 

principal amount equal to the Outstanding principal amount of such Bond, of the same maturity and 

bearing interest at the same rate. 

 

 (c) In all cases in which a Bond shall be exchanged or transferred under this Indenture, 

the provisions of any legend restrictions on such Bond shall be complied with and the City shall 

execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver at the earliest practicable time a new Bond of 

equal tenor in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture.  Each Bond surrendered in any such 

173

WS #1.



 

 -13- 
 

exchange or transfer shall forthwith be cancelled by the Trustee.  The City or the Trustee may make 

a reasonable charge for every such exchange or transfer sufficient to reimburse any tax, fee or other 

governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, and such charge 

shall be paid before any such new Bond shall be delivered.  Neither the City nor the Trustee shall be 

required to make any such exchange or transfer during the F\fifteen (15) days immediately preceding 

an interest payment date on such Bond or, in the case of any proposed redemption of any Bond, 

during the Fifteen (15) days immediately preceding the selection of such Bond for redemption or 

after such Bond has been selected for redemption. 

 

 Section 207. Persons Deemed Owners of Bonds.  As to any Bond, the person in whose 

name the same shall be registered as shown on the Register required by Section 206 of this Indenture 

shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of or on 

account of the principal of and interest on any such Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of 

the registered owner thereof or a legal representative thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and 

effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond, including the interest thereon, to the 

extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

 

 Section 208. Authorization of the Bonds. 
 

 (a) There shall be issued and secured by this Indenture a series of Bonds in the maximum 

aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $55,000,000 which shall be designated “City of 

Moberly, Missouri Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond (EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, 

Refurbishment and Distribution Facility Project) Series 2023” of applicable series for the purpose 

of providing funds for paying Project Costs.  The Bonds shall be dated as provided in Section 203(b) 

of this Indenture.  The Bonds and applicable portions thereof shall become due (subject to prior 

redemption as hereinafter provided in Article III of this Indenture) on the later of: (i) December 1, 

2034; or (ii) with respect to each portion of the Bonds represented by an annual endorsement of 

principal, December 1 of that year which is Twelve (12) years from the year of such annual 

endorsement as set forth on the Table to which an Additional Payment/Principal Amount Advanced 

(all as provided in Section 208(e) of this Indenture) pertains, the corresponding portion of the 

Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount reflected on Column D to the Table.  The Bonds shall 

bear interest as specified in Section 208(f) of this Indenture, payable on the dates specified in Section 

208(f) of this Indenture. 

 

 (b) The Trustee is hereby designated as the City’s Paying Agent for the payment of the 

principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

 

 (c) The Bonds shall be executed without material variance from the form and in the 

manner set forth in Article IV of this Indenture and delivered to the Trustee for authentication, but 

prior to or simultaneously with the authentication and delivery of the Bonds by the Trustee, there 

shall be filed with the Trustee the following: 

 

  (1) An original or certified copy of the Bond Ordinance; 

 

  (2) An original or certified copy of executed counterparts of this Indenture, the 

Lease, and the Bond Purchase Agreement; 

174

WS #1.



 

 -14- 
 

 

  (3) A representation letter from the purchaser of the Bonds in substantially the 

form attached as Exhibit D to and incorporated by reference in this Indenture and reasonably 

satisfactory to the City and the Trustee;   

 

  (4) A request and authorization to the Trustee on behalf of the City, executed by 

the Authorized City Representative, to authenticate the Bonds and deliver the same to the 

purchaser identified in the Bond Purchase Agreement upon payment to the Trustee, for the 

account of the City, of the purchase price thereof specified in the Bond Purchase Agreement.  

The Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely upon such request and authorization as to 

names of the purchaser and the amount of such purchase price; 

 

  (5) An opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the Bonds constitute a valid 

and legally binding limited and special revenue obligation of the City; and 

 

  (6) Such other certificates, statements, receipts and documents as the City or the 

Trustee shall reasonably require for the delivery of the Bonds. 

 

 (d) When the documents specified in Section 208(c) of this Indenture shall have been 

filed with the Trustee, and when the Bonds shall have been executed and authenticated as required 

by this Indenture the Company shall deliver to the Trustee the Closing Price and the Trustee shall 

endorse the Bonds in an amount equal to the Closing Price and shall hold the Bonds in trust for 

the Company. 

 

 (e) Following the initial issuance and delivery of the Bonds, the Company may submit 

additional requisition certificates in accordance with Section 4.4 of the Lease but not more 

frequently than annually on or about but not later than December 1 in any year, each of which 

requisition certificates shall be deemed an Additional Payment and in each such case (i) the 

Company shall be deemed to have paid over to the Trustee and the Trustee shall be deemed to 

have deposited and applied such amounts as provided in this Section 208 and in Article V of this 

Indenture and (ii) the Trustee shall endorse the Bonds on the Table by adding the amount of each 

such Additional Payment as “Principal Amount Advanced” thereon up to the maximum aggregate 

principal amount of not to exceed $55,000,000.  The date of endorsement of each such Additional 

Payment shall be the date of the City’s approval of such requisition certificate.  The City and the 

Company further agree that, in the case of each Additional Payment, the delivery by the Company 

of such Additional Payment and the acceptance by the City of the portion of the Project to be 

acquired in connection with such Additional Payment shall be deemed to be reaffirmation as of 

the date of such Additional Payment by the parties of the accuracy of and their respective 

compliance with the representations and warranties set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement and 

given as of the date of the Bond Purchase Agreement and as of the Closing Date. 

 

 (f) The Bonds shall bear interest at the rate of 5.00% per annum on the Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount of the Bonds, and such interest shall be payable in arrears on each 

December 1 commencing on December 1, 2023 and continuing thereafter until the said Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount is paid in full, but in no event later than the date provided in Section 

175

WS #1.



 

 -15- 
 

208(a) of this Indenture.  Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days consisting of 

twelve months of 30 days each. 

 

 (g) The Trustee shall keep and maintain a record of the amounts deposited or deemed to 

be deposited into the Acquisition Fund pursuant to the terms of this Indenture, representing the then 

current amount of the Bonds including all Additional Payments and other real property or personal 

property transferred to the City in exchange for the issuance by the City of the Bonds in accordance 

with this Indenture and the Lease and applicable Supplemental Lease, as “Principal Amount 

Issued/Advanced,” and shall enter the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding as 

the “Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount” on the Table and on the Register.  On each date 

upon which a portion of the Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount is paid to Bondowners, 

pursuant to the redemption provisions of this Indenture, the Trustee shall enter the principal amount 

paid on the Bonds on the Table and on the Register as “Principal Amount Paid Pursuant to 

Redemption Provisions” and shall reduce by the principal amount so paid the Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount on the Table and on the Register; provided that, in the event Bonds 

are delivered to the order of the purchaser or the Company, as applicable, pursuant to Section 

208(d) of this Indenture, on each date upon which a portion of the Cumulative Outstanding Principal 

Amount is paid to the Bondowner pursuant to the redemption provisions of this Indenture, the 

Bondowner may enter the principal amount paid on the Bonds under the column headed “Principal 

Amount Paid Pursuant to Redemption Provisions” on the Table and may enter the then Outstanding 

principal amount of the Bonds under the column headed “Cumulative Outstanding Principal 

Amount” on the Table.  However, the portions of the Register maintained by the Trustee as to 

principal amount issued or principal amounts paid on the Bonds shall be the official records of the 

Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount for all purposes. 

 

 Section 209. No Additional Bonds.  Other than the Bonds, the City shall not issue any 

bonds or other long-term obligations payable from the amounts due to the City under the Lease. 

 

 Section 210. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds.  In the event any Bonds shall 

become mutilated, or be lost, stolen or destroyed, the City shall execute and the Trustee shall 

authenticate and deliver new Bond of like date and tenor as the Bonds mutilated, lost, stolen or 

destroyed; provided that, in the case of any mutilated Bonds, such mutilated Bonds shall first be 

surrendered to the Trustee, and in the case of any lost, stolen or destroyed Bonds, there shall be first 

furnished to the City and the Trustee evidence of such loss, theft or destruction satisfactory to the 

City and the Trustee, together with indemnity satisfactory to them.  In the event any such Bond shall 

have matured, instead of issuing a substitute Bond, the City may pay or authorize the payment of the 

same without surrender thereof.  Upon the issuance of any substitute Bond, the City and the Trustee 

may require the payment of an amount sufficient to reimburse the City and the Trustee for any tax 

or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other reasonable fees 

and expenses incurred in connection therewith. 

 

 Section 211. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment. 
 

 (a) All Bonds which have been paid or redeemed or which the Trustee has purchased or 

which have otherwise been surrendered to the Trustee under this Indenture, either at or before 

176

WS #1.



 

 -16- 
 

maturity shall be cancelled by the Trustee immediately upon the payment, redemption or purchase 

of such Bonds and the surrender thereof to the Trustee. 

 

 (b) All Bonds cancelled under any of the provisions of this Indenture shall be destroyed 

by the Trustee.  The Trustee shall execute a certificate describing the Bonds so destroyed and shall 

file executed counterparts of such certificate with the City and the Company. 

 

 ARTICLE III 

 REDEMPTION OF BONDS 
 

 Section 301. Redemption Generally.  The Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to 

maturity in accordance with the terms and provisions set forth in this Article III.   

 

 Section 302. Redemption of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be subject to redemption and 

payment in whole or in part, as follows: 

 

 (a) At any time prior to the stated maturity thereof, at the option of the City, upon written 

instructions from the Company, at a price equal to the par value thereof being redeemed, plus accrued 

interest thereon, without premium or penalty, to the date of payment; or   

 

 (b) At any time prior to the stated maturity thereof, to the extent amounts are deposited 

into the Bond Fund in accordance with clauses (c) through (g) of Section 602 of this Indenture, at a 

price equal to the par value thereof being redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon, without premium 

or penalty, to the date of payment.   

 

 Section 303. Effect of Call for Redemption.  Prior to the date fixed for redemption, funds 

or Government Securities shall be placed with the Trustee which are sufficient to pay the Bonds or 

portions thereof called for redemption and accrued interest thereon, if any, to the redemption date.  

Upon the happening of the above conditions and appropriate written notice having been given, the 

Bonds or the portions of the principal amount thereof thus called for redemption shall cease to bear 

interest on the specified redemption date, and shall no longer be entitled to the protection, benefit or 

security of this Indenture and shall not be deemed to be Outstanding under the provisions of this 

Indenture.  If all of the Bonds are fully redeemed prior to maturity and an amount of money equal to 

the Trustee’s and the Paying Agent’s agreed to fees and expenses hereunder accrued and to accrue 

in connection with such redemption is paid or provided for, the City shall, at the Company's direction, 

deliver to the Company the items described in Section 11.2 of the Lease. 

 

 Section 304.  Notice of Redemption.  In the event the Bonds or any portions thereof are to 

be called for redemption as provided in Section 302 of this Indenture, the Company shall deliver 

written notice to the City and the Trustee of the principal amount of such Bonds that the Company 

has elected to redeem, such notice to be delivered at least Forty (40) days (Ten (10) days if the 

Company, or any entity Controlled by the Company is the Bondowner of all of the Bonds to be 

redeemed) prior to the scheduled redemption date.  The Trustee shall then deliver written notice to 

the Bondowner at least Thirty (30) days (Five (5) days if the Company, or any entity Controlled by 

the Company is the Bondowner of all of the Bonds to be redeemed) prior to the scheduled redemption 

177

WS #1.



 

 -17- 
 

date by first class mail stating the principal amount of such Bonds to be redeemed and the date upon 

which such Bonds will be redeemed and paid. 

 

 ARTICLE IV 

 FORM OF BONDS 
 

 Section 401. Generally.  The Bonds and the Trustee’s Certificate of Authentication to be 

endorsed thereon shall be issued in substantially the forms set forth in this Article IV.  The Bonds 

may have endorsed thereon such legends or text as may be necessary or appropriate to conform to 

any applicable rules and regulations of any governmental authority or any custom, usage or 

requirements of law with respect thereto. 

 

 Section 402. Form of Bonds. 
 

 (FORM OF BOND) 

 

This Bond has not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any state 

securities laws and this Bond may not be transferred unless the City and the Trustee are furnished a 

written legal opinion from counsel acceptable to the City and the Trustee to the effect that such 

transfer is exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and 

any applicable state securities laws.  This Bond may be transferred to any entity Controlled by the 

Company without the necessity of obtaining such an opinion.  Capitalized terms used and not defined 

in this Bond shall have the meanings ascribed to them in that certain Trust Indenture, dated as of 

___________ 1, 2023 between the City and the Trustee (as may be amended and supplemented from 

time to time in accordance with the provisions thereof, the “Indenture”). 

 

 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

 STATE OF MISSOURI 

 

 CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 TAXABLE INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BOND 
(EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. MANUFACTURING, REFURBISHMENT  

AND DISTRIBUTION FACILITY PROJECT) 

SERIES 2023 

  

REGISTERED OWNER:  EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. 

 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:    SEE COLUMN D, SCHEDULE 1, ATTACHED HERETO 

 

 THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, a city of the third classification organized and 

existing under the laws of the State of Missouri (the “City”), for value received, promises to pay to 

the order of the registered owner identified above or registered assigns, but solely from the source 

hereinafter referred to, on the later of: (i) December 31, 2034 (12 years following the last date for 

acceptance by the City of any portion of the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment;) or 

(ii) with respect to each portion of the Bonds represented by an annual endorsement of principal, 

December 1 of that year which is Twelve (12) years from the year of such annual endorsement as 

set forth on the Table to which an Additional Payment/Principal Amount Advanced (all as provided 

178

WS #1.



 

 -18- 
 

in Section 208(e) of the Indenture) pertains, the corresponding portion of the Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount reflected on Column D to the Table and recorded as provided in the 

Indenture.  The City agrees to pay such principal amount to the registered owner in any coin or 

currency of the United States of America which on the date of payment thereof is legal tender for 

the payment of public and private debts, or as otherwise provided in the Indenture, and in like manner 

to pay to the registered owner hereof, either by check or draft mailed to the registered owner at a 

stated address as it appears on the Register kept by the Trustee under the Indenture or, in certain 

situations authorized in the Indenture, by internal bank transfer or by wire transfer to an account in 

a commercial bank or savings institution located in the continental United States, interest on the 

Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount (as hereinafter defined) at the rate of 5.00% per annum 

payable annually in arrears on each December 1 commencing on December 1, 2023, and continuing 

thereafter until the said Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount is paid in full.  Interest shall be 

computed on the basis of a year of 360 days consisting of 12 months of 30 days each.  Principal on 

this Bond shall be payable in full on the later of: (i) December 1, 2034; or (ii) with respect to any 

annual endorsement of principal, December 1 of that year which is Twelve (12) years from the year 

of such annual endorsement as set forth on the Table to which an Additional Payment/Principal 

Amount Advanced pertains, as provided above.   

 

 The Trustee shall keep and maintain a record of the amounts deposited or deemed to be 

deposited into the Acquisition Fund pursuant to the terms of the Indenture representing the then 

current amount of the Bonds including all Additional Payments and other property or amounts 

transferred to the City in exchange for the issuance by the City of this Bond, as “Principal Amount 

Issued/Advanced” and shall enter the aggregate principal amount of this Bond then Outstanding as 

the “Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount” on its records maintained for this Bond.  On each 

date upon which a portion of the Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount is paid to the registered 

owner thereof, pursuant to the redemption provisions of this Indenture, the Trustee shall enter on its 

records the principal amount paid on this Bond as “Principal Amount Paid Pursuant to Redemption 

Provisions,” and on its records shall reduce by the principal amount so paid the Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount.  On each date upon which a portion of the Cumulative Outstanding 

Principal Amount is paid to the registered owner thereof pursuant to the redemption provisions of 

the Indenture, the registered owner may enter the principal amount paid on this Bond under the 

column headed “Principal Amount Paid Pursuant to Redemption Provisions” on the Table and may 

enter the then-Outstanding principal amount of this Bond under the column headed “Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount” on the Table.  However, the records maintained by the Trustee as to 

principal amount issued or principal amounts paid on this Bond shall be the official records of the 

Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount for all purposes. 

 

 THIS BOND is a duly authorized Bond of the City designated “City of Moberly, Missouri 

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond (EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and 

Distribution Facility Project) Series 2023” of applicable series in the maximum aggregate principal 

amount of not to exceed $55,000,000, to be issued for the purpose of providing funds to pay Project 

Costs and the Property and the Project shall be leased to the Company, under the terms of a Lease, 

between the City and the Company, all pursuant to the authority of and in full compliance with the 

provisions, restrictions and limitations and constitution and statutes of the State of Missouri, 

including particularly the Acts, and pursuant to proceedings duly had by the governing body of the 

City. 

179

WS #1.



 

 -19- 
 

 

 THIS BOND is issued under and is equally and ratably secured and entitled to the protection 

given by the  Indenture.  Reference is hereby made to the Indenture for a description of the 

provisions, among others, with respect to the nature and extent of the security for this Bond, the 

rights, duties and obligations of the City, the Trustee and the owners of this Bond, and the terms 

upon which this Bond is issued and secured. 

 

 THIS BOND shall be subject to redemption and payment in whole or in part, as follows: 

 

 (a) At any time prior to the stated maturity thereof, at the option of the City, upon 

instructions from the Company, at a price equal to the par value thereof being redeemed, plus accrued 

interest thereon, without premium or penalty, to the date of payment; or   

 

 (b) At any time prior to the stated maturity thereof, to the extent amounts are deposited 

into the Bond Fund, at a price equal to the par value thereof being redeemed, plus accrued interest 

thereon, without premium or penalty, to the date of payment.   

 

 In the event this Bond is to be called for redemption, the Company shall deliver written notice 

to the City and the Trustee that the Company has elected to redeem all or a portion of this Bond at 

least 40 days (10 days if the Company, or any entity Controlled by the Company, is the Bondowner) 

prior to the scheduled redemption date.  The Trustee shall then deliver written notice to the owner of 

this Bond at least 30 days (5 days if the Company, or any entity Controlled by the Company, is the 

Bondowner) prior to the scheduled redemption date by first class mail stating the date upon which 

this Bond will be redeemed and paid. 

 

 THIS BOND, including interest thereon, is a special limited obligation of the City and is 

payable solely out of the rents, revenues and receipts derived by the City from the Project and the 

Lease and not from any other fund or source of the City, and is secured by a pledge and assignment 

of such rents, revenues and receipts, including all rentals and other amounts to be received by the 

City under and pursuant to the Lease, all as provided in the Indenture.  This Bond does not constitute 

a general obligation of the City, of the County of Randolph, or of the State of Missouri or any political 

subdivision thereof, and neither the City, said County, nor said State shall be liable thereon, and this 

Bond shall not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt 

limitation or restriction, and is not payable in any manner by taxation.  Pursuant to the provisions of 

the Lease, rental payments sufficient for the prompt payment when due of the principal of and 

interest on this Bond are to be paid by the Company directly to the Trustee for the account of the 

City and deposited in a special account created by the City in the Indenture and designated the “City 

of Moberly, Missouri, Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond Fund – EquipmentShare Manufacturing 

Facility Project;” provided that, so long as the Company, or any entity Controlled by the Company, 

is the sole Bondowner of all Bonds then Outstanding and the lessee under the Lease, the Company 

may offset a portion of the Basic Rent due under the Lease against principal and interest payments 

due under the Bonds. 

 

 THE OWNER of this Bond shall have no right to enforce the provision of the Indenture or 

to institute action to enforce the covenants therein, or to take any action with respect to any event of 

default under the Indenture, or to institute, appear in or defend any suit or other proceedings with 

180

WS #1.



 

 -20- 
 

respect thereto, except as provided in the Indenture.  In certain events, on the conditions, in the 

manner and with the effect set forth in the Indenture, the principal of this Bond issued under the 

Indenture and then Outstanding may become or may be declared due and payable before the stated 

maturity thereof, together with interest accrued thereon.  Modifications or alterations of this Bond or 

the Indenture may be made only to the extent and in the circumstances permitted by the Indenture. 

 

 THIS BOND is transferable, only as provided in the Indenture, and only upon the Register 

kept for that purpose at the above-mentioned office of the Trustee by the registered owner hereof in 

person or by such person’s duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of this Bond together with a 

written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed by the registered owner or 

such person’s duly authorized attorney, and thereupon a new fully registered Bond, without coupons, 

and in the same aggregate principal amount, shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as 

provided in the Indenture, and upon payment of the charges therein prescribed.  The City, the Trustee 

and any Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the 

absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or 

redemption price hereof and interest due hereon and for all other purposes. 

 

 THIS BOND may be issuable in denominations authorized under the Indenture. 

 

 THIS BOND shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purposes or be entitled to any 

security or benefit under the Indenture until the Certificate of Authentication hereon shall have been 

executed by the Trustee. 

 

 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND DECLARED that all acts, conditions and things required 

to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the execution and delivery of the Indenture 

and the issuance of this Bond do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form 

and manner as required by the constitution and laws of the State of Missouri. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City of Moberly, Missouri, has caused this Bond to be executed 

in its name by the manual or facsimile signature of its Mayor, attested by the manual or facsimile 

signature of its City Clerk and its corporate seal to be affixed hereto or imprinted hereon, and has 

caused this Bond to be dated as of ___________ 1, 2023. 
 

       CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
        

        

       By: _________________________________ 

                Mayor 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

 

By: ________________________________ 

       City Clerk 

 

 

181

WS #1.



 

 -21- 
 

 

SCHEDULE 1 

TABLE OF CUMULATIVE OUTSTANDING PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
 

           A                B   C          D      E 
   Principal Amount Cumulative 

              Principal Paid Pursuant to Outstanding  Notation 

   Endorsement            Amount Redemption Principal  Made 

        Date             Issued/Advanced Provisions Amount  By 
 

_______  1, 2023         $___________            $___________ 

_________, 2024   $___________ $___________          $___________ 

_________, 2025   $___________ $___________          $___________ 

_________, 2026   $___________ $___________          $___________ 

 
 

 (FORM OF ASSIGNMENT) 

 (NOTE RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERS) 
 

 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 Print or Typewrite Name, Address and Social Security or 

 other Taxpayer Identification Number of Transferee 
 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

_____________________________ attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept by the 

Trustee for the registration and transfer of Bonds, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

Dated: ______________________   ____________________________________ 

       NOTICE:  The signature to this assignment 

must correspond with the name as it appears 

upon the face of the within Bond in every 

particular. 
 

       Signature Guaranteed By: 

       _________________________________ 

       (Name of Eligible Guarantor Institution as  

defined by SEC Rule 17 Ad-15 (17 CFR 

240.17 Ad-15) or such other similar rule as  

        the Trustee may deem applicable) 
 

       By: _________________________________ 

       Title: _______________________________ 

  

182

WS #1.



 

 -22- 
 

 Section 403. Form of Certificate of Authentication. 
 

 (FORM OF TRUSTEE’S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION) 

 

 

 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

 This Bond is the City of Moberly, Missouri Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond 

(EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and Distribution  Facility Project) Series 

2022, described in the Indenture.  The effective date of registration of this Bond is set forth below. 

 

 

       BOKF, N.A., as Trustee 

 

 

__________________     By _______________________________ 

              Date      Name: ____________________________ 

                    Authorized Officer 

 

  

ARTICLE V 

 CUSTODY AND APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS 
 

 Section 501. Creation of the Acquisition Fund.  There is hereby created and ordered to 

be established in the custody of the Trustee a special trust fund in the name of the City to be 

designated the “City of Moberly, Missouri, Acquisition Fund - EquipmentShare Manufacturing 

Facility Project,” (the “Acquisition Fund”). 

 

 Section 502. Deposits into the Acquisition Fund.  The proceeds of the sale of the Bonds 

(whether actually paid or deemed to be paid pursuant to Section 208(d) of this Indenture) together 

with such additional payments as provided for in the Bond Purchase Agreement, when received, 

excluding such amounts required to be paid into the Bond Fund pursuant to Section 602 of this 

Indenture, shall be deposited by the Trustee into the Acquisition Fund.  Any money received by the 

Trustee from any other source for the purpose of acquisition, construction, extension or improvement 

of improvements to the Project or for other projects authorized hereunder shall also be deposited into 

the Acquisition Fund. 

 

 Section 503. Disbursements from the Acquisition Fund. 
 

 (a) The amounts in the Acquisition Fund shall be disbursed by the Trustee for the 

payment of, or reimbursement to the Company for payment of Project Costs upon receipt of 

requisition certificates signed by the Company and approved in writing by the Authorized City 

Representative in accordance with the provisions of Article IV of the Lease, and the Trustee hereby 

covenants and agrees to disburse such moneys in accordance with such provisions.  In paying any 

requisition certificate under this Section 503, the Trustee may rely as to the completeness and 

accuracy of all statements in such requisition certificate if such requisition certificate is signed by 

183

WS #1.



 

 -23- 
 

the Authorized City Representative.  The Trustee shall not be required to make any inspections of 

the Project, the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment or otherwise supervise 

the progress or completion thereof.  The execution of each requisition certificate by the Authorized 

City Representative shall constitute unto the Trustee an irrevocable determination that the conditions 

precedent to payment of the specified amounts from the applicable account within the Acquisition 

Fund have occurred. 

 

 (b) If, pursuant to Sections 208(d) or 208(e) of this Indenture, the Trustee is deemed to 

have deposited into the Acquisition Fund the Closing Price or an Additional Payment as specified in 

a requisition certificate submitted by the Company, the Trustee, upon endorsement of the Bonds in 

such amount, shall be deemed to have disbursed such amount from the Acquisition Fund to the 

Company as the full payment of the applicable Project Costs as specified in and in accordance with 

such requisition certificate. 

  

 (c) The City hereby authorizes and directs the Trustee to make disbursements in the 

manner and as provided for by the aforesaid provisions of the Lease. 

 

 (d) The Trustee shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to the Acquisition 

Fund and all disbursements therefrom and shall provide a statement of receipts and disbursements 

with respect thereto to the City on a quarterly basis.  After a certificate of payment of all Project 

Costs has been filed as provided in Section 504 of this Indenture, the Trustee, to the extent it has not 

already done so pursuant to this Section 504 or Section 1012 of this Indenture, shall file a final 

statement of receipts and disbursements with respect thereto with the City and the Company. 

 

 Section 504. Completion of the Project.  The completion of the Project and the payment 

of all Project Costs and expenses incident thereto shall be evidenced by the filing with the Trustee 

and the City of the certificate required by the provisions of Section 4.5 of the Lease.  As soon as 

practicable after the filing of such certificate any balance remaining in the Acquisition Fund shall 

without further authorization be deposited in the Bond Fund. 

 

 Section 505. Disposition Upon Acceleration.  If the principal of the Bonds shall have 

become due and payable pursuant to Section 902 of this Indenture, upon the date of payment by the 

Trustee of any moneys due as hereinafter provided in Article IX of this Indenture, any balance 

remaining in the Acquisition Fund shall without further authorization be deposited in the Bond Fund 

by the Trustee with notice to the City and to the Company of such action. 

 

 ARTICLE VI 

 REVENUES AND FUNDS 
 

 Section 601. Creation of the Bond Fund.  There is hereby created and ordered established 

in the custody of the Trustee a special trust fund in the name of the City to be designated the “City 

of Moberly, Missouri, Bond Fund – EquipmentShare Manufacturing Facility Project,” (the “Bond 

Fund”). 

 

 Section 602. Deposits Into the Bond Fund.  The Trustee shall deposit into the Bond Fund, 

as and when received, (a) all accrued interest on the Bonds, if any, paid by the purchaser of such 

184

WS #1.



 

 -24- 
 

Bonds; (b) all rent payments payable by the Company to the City specified in Section 5.1 of the 

Lease and amounts due under Section 5.2 of the Lease for deposit in the Bond Fund; (c) any amount 

in the Acquisition Fund to be transferred to the Bond Fund pursuant to Section 504 of this Indenture 

upon payment of all Project Costs; (d) the balance of any Net Proceeds (as defined in the Lease) of 

condemnation awards or insurance received by the Trustee pursuant to Article IX of the Lease; (e) 

the amounts to be deposited in the Bond Fund pursuant to Section 9.1 and Section 9.2 of the Lease; 

(f) all interest and other income derived from investments of Bond Fund moneys as provided in 

Section 702 of this Indenture; and (g) all other moneys received by the Trustee under and pursuant 

to any of the provisions of the Lease when accompanied by directions from the person depositing 

such moneys that such moneys are to be paid into the Bond Fund. 

 

 Section 603. Application of Moneys in the Bond Fund. 
 

 (a) Except as provided in Section 606 and Section 908 of this Indenture or in paragraph 

4.6(a) of the Lease, moneys in the Bond Fund shall be expended solely for the payment of the 

principal of and the interest on the Bonds on a parity basis as the same matures and becomes due or 

upon the redemption thereof prior to maturity; provided, however, that any amounts received by the 

Trustee as Additional Rent under Section 5.2 of the Lease and deposited to the Bond Fund as 

provided in Section 602 of this Indenture, shall be expended by the Trustee for such items of 

Additional Rent as they are received or due without further authorization from the City. 

 

 (b) The City hereby authorizes and directs the Trustee to withdraw sufficient funds from 

the Bond Fund to pay the principal of and the interest on the Bonds as the same becomes due and 

payable and to make said funds so withdrawn available to the Paying Agent for the purpose of paying 

said principal and interest. 

 

 (c) Whenever the amount in the Bond Fund from any source whatsoever is sufficient to 

redeem all of the Bonds Outstanding and to pay interest to accrue thereon prior to such redemption, 

the City covenants and agrees, upon request of the Company, to take and cause to be taken the 

necessary steps to redeem all such Bonds on the next succeeding redemption date for which the 

required redemption notice may be given or on such later redemption date as may be specified by 

the Company.  The Trustee may use any moneys in the Bond Fund to redeem a part of the Bonds 

Outstanding in accordance with and to the extent permitted by Article III of this Indenture so long 

as the Company is not in default with respect to any payments under the Lease and to the extent said 

moneys are in excess of the amount required for payment of Bonds theretofore matured or called for 

redemption and past due interest, if any, in all cases when such Bonds have not been presented for 

payment. 

 

 Section 604. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays.  In any case where 

the date of maturity of principal of or interest, if any, on the Bonds or the date fixed for redemption 

of any Bonds shall be a Saturday, a Sunday or a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions 

in the city of payment are authorized by law to close, then payment of principal or interest, if any, 

need not be made on such date but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the same 

force and effect as if made on the date of maturity or the date fixed for redemption, and no interest, 

if any, shall continue to accrue for the period after such date. 

 

185

WS #1.



 

 -25- 
 

 Section 605. Nonpresentment of Bonds.  In the event any Bonds shall not be presented 

for payment when the principal thereof becomes due, either at maturity or otherwise, or at the date 

fixed for redemption thereof, if funds sufficient to pay such Bonds shall have been made available 

to the Trustee, all liability of the City to the Bondowner thereof for the payment of such Bonds shall 

forthwith cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the 

Trustee to hold such fund or funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the 

Bondowner of such Bonds who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such fund or funds for 

any claim of whatever nature on his part under this Indenture or on, or with respect to, said Bonds.  

If any Bonds shall not be presented for payment within One (1) year following the date when such 

Bonds become due, whether by maturity or otherwise, the Trustee shall repay to the Company the 

funds theretofore held by the Trustee for payment of such Bonds, and such Bonds shall, subject to 

the defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter be an unsecured obligation of the 

Company, and the Bondowner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the Company for payment, 

and then only to the extent of the amount so repaid, and the Company shall not be liable for any 

interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money. 

 

 Section 606. Repayment to the Company from the Bond Fund.  After payment in full 

of the principal of and interest, if any, on all Bonds (or provision has been made for the payment 

thereof) as provided in this Indenture, and of the fees, charges and expenses of the Trustee, the City 

and any Paying Agent and of any other amounts required to be paid under this Indenture and the 

Lease (including, without limitation, any amounts payable under the Development Agreement), all 

amounts remaining in the Bond Fund shall be paid to the Company upon the expiration or sooner 

termination of the Lease. 

 

 ARTICLE VII 

 SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT OF FUNDS 
 

 Section 701. Moneys to be Held in Trust.  All moneys deposited with or paid to the 

Trustee for account of the Bond Fund or the Acquisition Fund under any provision of this Indenture, 

and all moneys deposited with or paid to any Paying Agent under any provision of this Indenture, 

shall be held by the Trustee or Paying Agent in trust and shall be applied only in accordance with 

the provisions of this Indenture, the Lease and the Development Agreement, as applicable, and, until 

used or applied as herein provided, shall constitute part of the Trust Estate and be subject to the lien 

of this Indenture.  Neither the Trustee nor any Paying Agent shall be under any liability for interest 

or any moneys received hereunder except such as may be agreed upon. 

 

 Section 702. Investment of Moneys in Acquisition Fund and Bond Fund.  Moneys held 

in the Acquisition Fund and the Bond Fund shall, pursuant to written direction of the City, signed by 

the Authorized City Representative, be separately invested and reinvested by the Trustee in 

Investment Securities which mature or are subject to redemption by the owner prior to the date such 

funds will be needed.  In the event the City fails to provide written directions concerning investment 

of moneys held in the Acquisition Fund and the Bond Fund, the Trustee may invest in such 

Investment Securities specified in paragraph (e) of the definition of Investment Securities, provided 

they mature or are subject to redemption prior to the date such funds will be needed.  Any such 

Investment Securities shall be held by or under the control of the Trustee and shall be deemed at all 

times a part of the fund in which such moneys are originally held, and the interest accruing thereon 

186

WS #1.



 

 -26- 
 

and any profit realized from such Investment Securities shall be credited to such fund, and any loss 

resulting from such Investment Securities shall be charged to such fund.  After the Trustee has notice 

pursuant to Section 1001(h) of this Indenture of the existence of an Event of Default, the Trustee 

shall direct the investment of moneys in the Bond Fund and the Acquisition Fund.  The Trustee shall 

sell and reduce to cash a sufficient amount of such Investment Securities whenever the cash balance 

in any fund is insufficient for the purposes of such fund.  In determining the balance in any fund, 

investments in such fund shall be valued at the lower of their original cost or their fair market value 

as of the most recent payment date.  The Trustee may make any and all investments permitted by the 

provisions of this Section 702 through its own bond department or any affiliate or short-term 

investment department. 

 

 Section 703. Record Keeping.  The Trustee shall maintain records designed to show 

compliance with the provisions of this Article VII and with the provisions of Article VI of this 

Indenture for at least Six (6) years after the payment of all of the Outstanding Bonds. 

 

 ARTICLE VIII 

 GENERAL COVENANTS AND PROVISIONS 
 

 Section 801. Payment of Principal and Interest.  The City covenants and agrees that the 

City will, but solely from the rents, revenues and receipts derived from the Property, the Project, and 

the Lease as described herein, deposit or cause to be deposited in the Bond Fund sufficient sums 

payable under the Lease promptly to meet and pay the principal of and the interest on the Bonds as 

they become due and payable at the place, on the dates and in the manner provided in this Section 

801 and in the Bonds according to the true intent and meaning thereof.  Notwithstanding anything 

elsewhere to the contrary in this Indenture or in the Bonds, amounts of Basic Rent required to be 

deposited in the Bond Fund shall consist of: (A) payments of accrued interest only on amounts listed 

from time to time as “Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount” on Schedule 1, Table of 

Cumulative Outstanding Principal Amount to the Bonds until the earlier of (i) maturity of the Bonds 

or (ii) redemption of the Bonds in whole, but not in part; and (B) payments of principal on the Bonds 

upon maturity, or upon redemption of the Bonds, whether in whole or in part.  Such payments by the 

City of principal and interest may be made by credit as contemplated in Section 1302(d) of this 

Indenture.  Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring or authorizing the City to operate the 

Project, the Property or any portion thereof as a business other than as lessor or to use any funds or 

revenues from any source other than funds and revenues derived from the Property, the Project and 

the Lease. 

 

 Section 802. Authority to Execute Indenture and Issue Bonds.  The City covenants that 

it is duly authorized under the constitution and laws of the State of Missouri to execute this Indenture, 

to issue the Bonds and to pledge and assign the Trust Estate in the manner and to the extent herein 

set forth; that all action on its part for the execution and delivery of this Indenture and the issuance 

of the Bonds has been duly and effectively taken; that the Bonds in the hands of the Bondowners 

thereof are and will be a valid and enforceable obligation of the City according to the import thereof. 

 

 Section 803. Performance of Covenants.  The City covenants that the City will faithfully 

perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations and provisions contained in 

this Indenture, in the Bonds and in all proceedings of the City Council pertaining thereto.  The 

187

WS #1.



 

 -27- 
 

Trustee may take such action as the Trustee deems appropriate to enforce all such covenants, 

undertakings, stipulations and provisions of the City hereunder. 

 

 Section 804. Instruments of Further Assurance.  The City covenants that the City will 

do, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be done, executed, acknowledged and delivered, 

such Supplemental Indentures and such further acts, instruments, financing statements and other 

documents as the Trustee may reasonably require for the better pledging and assigning unto the 

Trustee the revenues herein described to the payment of the principal of and interest, if any, on the 

Bonds.  The City covenants and agrees that, except as in this Indenture and in the Lease provided, 

the City will not sell, convey, mortgage, encumber or otherwise dispose of any part of the Property 

or the Project or the rents, revenues and receipts derived therefrom or from the Lease, or of the City’s 

rights under the Lease. 

 

 Section 805. Recordings and Filings.  Upon request of the purchaser or purchasers of the 

Bonds or the Trustee, the City will cooperate in causing this Indenture and all Supplemental 

Indentures, the Lease and all Supplemental Leases and all appropriate financing and continuation 

statements and other security instruments to be recorded and filed in such manner and in such places 

as may be required by law in order to fully preserve and protect the security of the Bondowners and 

the rights of the Trustee hereunder. 

 

 Section 806. Inspection of Books.  The City covenants and agrees that all books and 

documents in its possession relating to the Project and the rents, revenues and receipts derived from 

the Project shall at all times be open to inspection by such accountants or other agencies as the 

Trustee may from time to time designate. 

 

 Section 807. Enforcement of Rights Under the Lease.  The City covenants and agrees 

that the City shall enforce all of the City’s rights and all of the obligations of the Company (at the 

expense of the Company) under the Lease to the extent necessary to preserve the Property, the 

Project, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment in good repair and reasonably safe 

operating condition, and to protect the rights of the Trustee and the Bondowners with respect to the 

pledge and assignment of the rents, revenues and receipts coming due under the Lease; provided 

that, the City and the Trustee, as its assignee, shall not enforce any such right or obligation (except 

for the rights of the City or the Trustee to receive payments owing to either of them for their own 

account under this Indenture or any Supplemental Indenture, the Lease, the Development Agreement 

or any other agreement related to the Bonds or for their rights of indemnification or to be protected 

from liabilities by insurance policies, payment bonds or similar security required by the Lease or by 

the Development Agreement) unless and until directed to do so in writing by the Bondowners of 

100% of the Outstanding Bonds.  The City agrees that the Trustee, as assignee of the rentals and 

other amounts to be received by the City and paid by the Company under the Lease, or in the 

Company’s name or in the name of the City, may enforce all rights of the City to receive such rentals 

and other amounts and all obligations of the Company to pay such rentals and other amounts under 

and pursuant to the Lease for and on behalf of the Bondowner, whether or not the City is in default 

hereunder.  So long as not otherwise provided in this Indenture, the Company shall be permitted to 

possess, use and enjoy the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment 

and appurtenances thereto so as to carry out the Company’s obligations under the Lease; provided 

188

WS #1.



 

 -28- 
 

that the option to purchase the Property and the Project granted to the Company in Article IX of the 

Lease shall be and remain superior to this Indenture. 

 

 ARTICLE IX 

 DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 

 Section 901. Events of Default; Notice; Opportunity to Cure.  If any of the following 

events occur, it is hereby defined as and declared to be and to constitute an “Event of Default”: 

 

  (a) Default in the due and punctual payment of the principal on any Bond, 

whether at the stated maturity or accelerated maturity thereof, or at the date fixed for 

redemption thereof; 

 

  (b) Default in the due and punctual payment of the interest on any Bond, whether 

at the stated maturity or accelerated maturity thereof, or at the date fixed for redemption 

thereof; 

 

  (c) An Event of Default as defined in the Lease shall have occurred; or 

 

  (d) Any uncured default by the Company in the performance of the Company’s 

obligations under the Development Agreement which arises out of: (i) the City’s right to 

receive any payment for the City’s own account under the Development Agreement; or (ii) 

the City’s rights to indemnification or to be protected from liabilities by insurance 

coverages, payment bonds or similar security required by the Development Agreement or 

the Lease; or (iii) the Company’s failure to obtain or maintain or cause to be obtained and 

maintained insurance coverages, payment bonds or similar security required by the 

Development Agreement or the Lease. 

 

 Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, no default specified above shall constitute 

an Event of Default until actual notice of such default by registered or certified mail shall be given 

by the City, the Trustee or by the Bondowners of 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 

Outstanding to the Company and the Company shall have had Thirty (30) days after receipt of such 

notice to correct said default or cause said default to be corrected, and shall not have corrected said 

default or caused said default to be corrected within such period; provided, however, if any such 

default (other than a default in the payment of any money) shall be such that it cannot be corrected 

within such period, it shall not constitute an Event of Default if corrective action is instituted by the 

Company within such period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected.  In addition, 

anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, to the extent the Company makes an applicable 

payment of Additional Rents pursuant to the Lease, and the City or Trustee fails to use the funds 

from such payment to make the corresponding payment under the Lease no Event of Default shall 

have occurred under this Indenture. 

 

 Section 902. Acceleration of Maturity in Event of Default.  If an Event of Default shall 

have occurred and be continuing, the Trustee may, and upon the written request of the Bondowners 

of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, or upon the 

written request of the City in the case of an Event of Default set forth in Section 901(d) of this 

189

WS #1.



 

 -29- 
 

Indenture, shall, by notice in writing delivered to the Company, declare the principal of all Bonds 

then Outstanding and the interest accrued thereon immediately due and payable, and such principal 

and interest shall thereupon become and be immediately due and payable. 

 

 Section 903. Surrender of Possession of Trust Estate; Rights and Duties of Trustee in 

Possession.  If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the City, upon demand of 

the Trustee, shall forthwith surrender the possession of, and it shall be lawful for the Trustee, by such 

officer or agent as it may appoint, to take possession of all or any part of the Trust Estate, together 

with the books, papers and accounts of the City pertaining thereto, and including the rights and the 

position of the City under the Lease, and to hold, operate and manage the same, and from time to 

time make all needful repairs and improvements; the Trustee may lease the Project, the Property, the 

Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment or any part thereof, in the name and for account of 

the City, and collect, receive and sequester the rents, revenues and receipts therefrom, and out of the 

same and any moneys received from any receiver of any part thereof pay, and set up proper reserves 

for the payment of all proper costs and expenses of so taking, holding and managing the same, 

including without limitation (a) reasonable compensation to the Trustee, the Trustee’s agents and 

counsel, (b) any reasonable charges of the Trustee hereunder, (c) any taxes and assessments and 

other charges prior to the lien of this Indenture, (d) all expenses of such repairs and improvements, 

and (e) any amounts payable under the Development Agreement (except for the rights of the City to 

receive payments owing to the City for its own account under the Lease, the Development 

Agreement or any other agreement related to the Bonds or for the City’s rights of indemnification or 

to be protected from liabilities by insurance policies, payment bonds or similar security required by 

the Lease or by the Development Agreement), and the Trustee shall apply the remainder of the 

moneys so received in accordance with the provisions of Section 908 of this Indenture.  Whenever 

all that is due upon the Bonds shall have been paid and all defaults made good, the Trustee shall 

surrender possession of the Trust Estate to the City, its successors or assigns, the same right of entry, 

however, to exist upon any subsequent Event of Default.  While in possession of such property, the 

Trustee shall render annually to the City and the Company a summarized statement of receipts and 

expenditures in connection therewith. 

 

 Section 904. Appointment of Receivers in Event of Default.  If an Event of Default shall 

have occurred and be continuing, and upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial 

proceedings to enforce the rights of the Trustee and of the Bondowners under this Indenture, the 

Trustee shall be entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of the 

Trust Estate or any part thereof, pending such proceedings, with such powers as the court making 

such appointment shall confer. 

 

 Section 905. Exercise of Remedies by the Trustee. 
 

 (a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Trustee may pursue any available 

remedy at law or in equity by suit, action, mandamus or other proceeding to enforce the payment of 

the principal of and interest on the Bonds then Outstanding, and to enforce and compel the 

performance of the duties and obligations of the City or the Company as set forth in this Indenture,  

the Lease or the Development Agreement, respectively. 

 

190

WS #1.



 

 -30- 
 

 (b) If an Event of Default arising under Sections 901(a), (b) or (c) of this Indenture shall 

have occurred and be continuing, and if requested to do so by the owners of 25% in aggregate 

principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding and indemnified as provided in Section 1001(l) of this 

Indenture, the Trustee shall be obligated to exercise such one or more of the rights and powers 

conferred by this Article IX as the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most expedient and 

in the interests of the Bondowner. 

 

 (c) All rights of action under this Indenture or under any of the Bonds (other than the 

City’s rights of indemnification or to be protected from liabilities by insurance policies, payment 

bonds and similar security required by the Lease or by the Development Agreement) may be 

enforced by the Trustee without the possession of such Bonds or the production thereof in any trial 

or other proceedings relating thereto, and any such suit or proceeding instituted by the Trustee shall 

be brought in the name of the Trustee without necessity of joining as plaintiffs or defendants any 

Bondowner, and any recovery of judgment shall be, subject to the provisions of Section 908 of this 

Indenture and the provisions of the Development Agreement and the rights of the City thereunder, 

for the equal benefit of all the Bondowners of the Outstanding Bonds. 

 

 Section 906. Limitation on Exercise of Remedies by Bondowners.  No Bondowner shall 

have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law for the enforcement of 

this Indenture or for the execution of any trust hereunder or for the appointment of a receiver or any 

other remedy hereunder, unless (i) a default arising under Sections 901(a), (b) or (c) of this Indenture 

has occurred of which the Trustee has been notified as provided in Section 1001(h) of this Indenture 

or of which by said Section 1001(h) the Trustee is deemed to have notice, (ii) such default shall have 

become an Event of Default, (iii) the Bondowners of 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 

then Outstanding shall have made written request to the Trustee, shall have offered the Trustee 

reasonable opportunity either to proceed and to exercise the powers hereinbefore granted or to 

institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name, and shall have offered to the Trustee 

indemnity as provided in subsection (l) of Section 1001 of this Indenture, and (iv) the Trustee shall 

thereafter fail or refuse to exercise the powers herein granted or to institute such action, suit or 

proceeding in its own name; such notification, request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared in 

every case, at the option of the Trustee, to be conditions precedent to the execution of the powers 

and trusts of this Indenture, and to any action or cause of action for the enforcement of this Indenture, 

or for the appointment of a receiver or for any other remedy hereunder, it being understood and 

intended that no one or more Bondowners shall have any right in any manner whatsoever to affect, 

disturb or prejudice this Indenture by their action or to enforce any right hereunder except in the 

manner herein provided, and that all proceedings at law or equity shall be instituted, had and 

maintained in the manner herein provided and for the equal benefit of the Bondowners of the Bonds 

then Outstanding.  Nothing in this Indenture contained shall, however, affect or impair the right of 

any Bondowner to payment of the principal of and interest on any Bonds at and after the maturity 

thereof or the obligation of the City to pay the principal of and interest on such Bonds issued 

hereunder to the respective Bondowners thereof at the time, place, from the source and in the manner 

herein and in such Bonds expressed. 

 

191

WS #1.



 

 -31- 
 

 Section 907. Right of Bondowners to Direct Proceedings. 

 

 (a) Anything in this Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the Bondowners of a 

majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, at any 

time, by an instrument or instruments in writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the 

time, method and place of conducting all proceedings to be taken in connection with the enforcement 

of the terms and conditions of this Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or any other 

proceedings hereunder; provided that such direction shall not be otherwise than in accordance with 

the provisions of law and of this Indenture; and provided further that the Trustee shall have the right 

to decline to follow any such direction if the Trustee shall in good faith determine that the 

proceedings so directed would involve the Trustee in personal liability; and provided further that 

nothing in this Section 907 shall affect any City right under the Development Agreement.  

 

 (b) Notwithstanding any provision in this Indenture to the contrary, the Bondowners 

shall not have the right to control or direct any remedies hereunder if an Event of Default has 

occurred or is occurring pursuant to paragraph 12.1(e) of the Lease or in the event the City or the 

Trustee are enforcing rights (a) to collect moneys for their own account as required by the Lease or 

by the Development Agreement, or (b) to indemnification or to be protected from liabilities by 

insurance policies or payment bonds as required by the Lease or by the Development Agreement. 

 

 Section 908. Application of Moneys in Event of Default. 
 

 (a) All moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken under 

the provisions of this Article IX shall, after payment of the cost and expenses of the proceedings 

resulting in the collection of such moneys and of the fees, expenses, liabilities and advances incurred 

or made by the Trustee (including any attorneys fees and expenses) or to be paid to the City under 

the Development Agreement or to the Trustee pursuant to Section 903 of this Indenture, be deposited 

in the Bond Fund and all moneys so deposited in the Bond Fund shall be applied as follows: 

 

  (1) Unless all of the principal of all of the Bonds shall have become or shall have 

been declared due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied: 

 

  FIRST -- To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest, 

if any, then due and payable on the Bonds, in the order in which such installments of interest 

became due and payable, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full 

any particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according to the amounts due on such 

installment, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or privilege;  

 

  SECOND -- To the payment to the persons entitled thereof of the unpaid principal of 

the Bonds which shall have become due and payable (other than portions of the Bonds called 

for redemption for the payment of which moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of this 

Indenture), in the order of their due dates, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient 

to pay in full the Bonds due on any particular date, together with such interest, then to the 

payment, ratably, according to the amount of principal due on such date, to the persons 

entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege. 

 

192

WS #1.



 

 -32- 
 

  (2) If all of the principal of the Bonds shall have become due or shall have been 

declared due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied to the payment of the principal 

and interest, if any, then due and unpaid on all of the Bonds, without preference or priority 

of principal over interest or of interest over principal or of any installment of interest over 

any other installment of interest or of any Bond over any other Bond, ratably, according to 

the amounts due respectively for principal and interest, to the person entitled thereto, without 

any discrimination or privilege. 

 

  (3) If all of the principal of the Bonds shall have been declared due and payable, 

and if such declaration shall thereafter have been rescinded and annulled under the provisions 

of Section 910 of this Indenture, then, subject to the provisions of subsection (2) of this 

Section 908 in the event that all of the principal of the Bonds shall later become due or be 

declared due and payable, the moneys shall be applied in accordance with the provisions of 

subsection (1) of this Section 908. 

 

 (b) Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of this Section 908, 

such moneys shall be applied at such times and from time to time as the Trustee shall determine, 

having due regard to the amount of such moneys available and which may become available for such 

application in the future.  Whenever the Trustee shall apply such moneys, the Trustee shall fix the 

date (which shall be an interest payment date unless the Trustee shall deem another date more 

suitable) upon which such application is to be made and upon such date interest on the amounts of 

principal to be paid on such dates shall cease to accrue. 

 

 (c) Whenever all of the Bonds and interest thereon, if any, have been paid in full under 

the provisions of this Section 908, and all fees, expenses and charges of the City and the Trustee 

have been paid in full (including any amounts payable under the Development Agreement), any 

balance remaining in the Bond Fund shall be paid to the Company as provided in Section 606 of this 

Indenture. 

 

 Section 909. Remedies Cumulative.  No remedy by the terms of this Indenture conferred 

upon or reserved to the Trustee or to the Bondowners is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, 

but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy 

given to the Trustee or to the Bondowners hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity 

or by statute.  No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing upon any Event 

of Default shall impair any such right, power or remedy or shall be construed to be a waiver of any 

such Event of Default or acquiescence therein; every such right, power or remedy may be exercised 

from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.  In case the Trustee shall have proceeded 

to enforce any right under this Indenture by the appointment of a receiver, by entry, or otherwise, 

and such proceedings have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been 

determined adversely, then and in every such case the City, the Company, the Trustee and the 

Bondowners shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, and all rights, remedies 

and powers of the Trustee shall continue as if no such proceedings had been taken. 

 

 Section 910. Waivers of Events of Default.  The Trustee may in its discretion waive any 

Event of Default hereunder and its consequences and rescind any declaration of maturity of principal 

of and interest, if any, on the Bonds, and shall do so upon the written request of the Bondowners of 

193

WS #1.



 

 -33- 
 

at least 50% in aggregate principal amount of all of the Bonds then Outstanding (except for any 

Event of Default hereunder as a result of any Event of Default under paragraph 12.1(e) of the Lease 

or arising under Section 901(d) of this Indenture, which Events of Default may only be waived by 

the City); provided, however, that there shall not be waived without the consent of all the 

Bondowners of all of the Bonds then Outstanding (a) any Event of Default in the payment of the 

principal of any Outstanding Bonds when due (whether at the date of maturity or redemption 

specified therein), or (b) any Event of Default in the payment when due of the interest on any such 

Bonds, unless prior to such waiver or rescission, all arrears of interest, or all arrears of payments of 

principal when due, as the case may be, and all reasonable expenses of the Trustee (including 

attorneys fees and expenses), in connection with such default, shall have been paid or provided for.  

In case of any such waiver or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the Trustee on account 

of any such default shall have been discontinued or abandoned or determined adversely, then and in 

every such case the City, the Company, the Trustee and the Bondowners shall be restored to their 

former positions, rights and obligations hereunder, respectively, but no such waiver or rescission 

shall extend to any subsequent or other default or impair any right consequent thereon. 

 

 ARTICLE X 

 THE TRUSTEE 
 

 Section 1001. Acceptance of the Trusts.  The Trustee hereby accepts the trusts imposed 

upon it by this Indenture, but only upon and subject to the following express terms and conditions, 

and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Indenture against the Trustee: 

 

  (a) The Trustee, prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default and after the 

curing of all Events of Default which may have occurred, undertakes to perform such duties 

and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Indenture.  If any Event of Default 

shall have occurred and be continuing, subject to Section 1001(l) of this Indenture, the 

Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and powers vested in the Trustee by this Indenture 

and shall use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise, as a prudent corporate trust 

department would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of the Trustee’s 

own affairs. 

 

  (b) The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereunder or perform 

any duties hereunder either directly or through agents, attorneys or receivers and shall not be 

responsible for any misconduct or negligence on the part of any agent, attorney or receiver 

appointed or chosen by the Trustee with due care, and the Trustee shall be entitled to act 

upon the opinion or advice of counsel, who may be counsel to the City or to the Company, 

concerning all matters of trust hereof and the duties hereunder, and may in all cases pay such 

reasonable compensation to all such agents, attorneys and receivers as may reasonably be 

employed in connection with the trusts hereof.  The Trustee shall not be responsible for any 

loss or damage resulting from any action or nonaction by the Trustee taken or omitted to be 

taken in good faith in reliance upon such opinion or advice of counsel addressed to the City 

and the Trustee. 

 

  (c) Except as provided in the Lease and particularly Section 10.8 thereof, the 

Trustee shall not be responsible for any recital herein or in the Bonds (except with respect to 

194

WS #1.



 

 -34- 
 

the Certificate of Authentication of the Trustee endorsed on such Bonds), or for the recording 

or rerecording, filing or refiling of this Indenture or for insuring the Property, the Project, the 

Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment or for collecting any insurance moneys, or 

for the validity of the execution by the City of this Indenture or of any Supplemental 

Indentures or instruments of further assurance, or for the sufficiency of the security of the 

Bonds.  The Trustee shall not be responsible or liable for any loss suffered in connection with 

any investment of funds made by the Trustee in accordance with Article VII of this Indenture. 

 

  (d) The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use of any Bonds authenticated 

and delivered under this Indenture.  The Trustee, in its individual or any other capacity, may 

become the owner or pledgee of such Bonds with the same rights which the Trustee would 

have if it were not Trustee. 

 

  (e) The Trustee may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from 

acting upon any ordinance, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, 

direction, consent, order, affidavit, letter, telegram or other paper or document provided for 

under this Indenture believed by the Trustee to be genuine and correct and to have been 

signed, presented or sent by the proper person or persons.  Any action taken by the Trustee 

pursuant to this Indenture upon the request or authority or consent of any person who, at the 

time of making such request or giving such authority or consent is a Bondowner of any Bond, 

shall be conclusive and binding upon all future Bondowners of the same Bond including 

those issued in exchange therefor or upon transfer or in place thereof. 

 

  (f) As to the existence or nonexistence of any fact or as to the sufficiency or 

validity of any instrument, paper or proceeding, or whenever in the administration of this 

Indenture the Trustee shall deem it desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to 

taking, suffering or omitting any action hereunder, the Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon 

a certificate signed by the Authorized City Representative or an Authorized Company 

Representative as sufficient evidence of the facts therein contained, and prior to the 

occurrence of a default of which the Trustee has been notified as provided in paragraph 

1001(h) of this Indenture or of which by said paragraph the Trustee is deemed to have notice, 

the Trustee shall also be at liberty to accept a similar certificate to the effect that any particular 

dealing, transaction or action is necessary or expedient, but may at the Trustee's discretion 

secure such further evidence deemed necessary or advisable, but shall in no case be bound 

to secure the same. 

 

  (g) The permissive right of the Trustee to do things enumerated in this Indenture 

shall not be construed as a duty, and the Trustee shall not be answerable for other than its 

negligence or willful misconduct. 

 

  (h) The Trustee shall not be required to take notice or be deemed to have notice 

of any default hereunder except failure by the City to cause to be made any of the payments 

to the Trustee required to be made in Article VI of this Indenture, unless the Trustee shall be 

specifically notified in writing of such default by the City or by the Bondowners of at least 

25% in aggregate principal amount of all of the Bonds then Outstanding. 

 

195

WS #1.



 

 -35- 
 

  (i) At any and all reasonable times and subject to the Company’s reasonable and 

standard security procedures, the Trustee and the Trustee’s duly authorized agents, attorneys, 

experts, engineers, accountants and representatives shall have the right, but shall not be 

required, to inspect any and all of the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities or the 

Financed Equipment and all books, papers and records of the City pertaining to the Property, 

the Project, the Financed Facilities, the Financed Equipment and the Bonds, and to take such 

memoranda from and in regard thereto as may be desired.  The Trustee shall treat all 

proprietary information of the Company as confidential. 

 

  (j) The Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surety in respect to the 

execution of its trusts and powers hereunder or otherwise in respect of the Property, the 

Project, the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment. 

 

  (k) The Trustee shall have the right, but shall not be required, to demand, in 

respect of the authentication of any Bond, the withdrawal of any cash, the release of any 

property, or any action whatsoever within the purview of this Indenture, any showings, 

certificates, opinions, appraisals or other information, or corporate action or evidence thereof, 

in addition to that by the terms hereof required, as a condition of such action by the Trustee 

deemed desirable for the purpose of establishing the right of the City to the authentication of 

any Bond, the withdrawal of any cash, or the taking of any other action by the Trustee. 

 

  (l) Before taking any action under this Indenture other than the payments from 

moneys on deposit in the Acquisition Fund or the Bond Fund, as provided in this Indenture, 

the Trustee may require that satisfactory indemnity be furnished to the Trustee for the 

reimbursement of all costs and expenses to which the Trustee may be put and to protect the 

Trustee against all liability which the Trustee may incur in or by reason of such action, except 

liability which is adjudicated to have resulted from the Trustee's negligence or willful 

misconduct by reason of any action so taken. 

 

  (m) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture to the contrary, any 

provision intended to provide to the Trustee authority to act, right to payment of fees and 

expenses, or protection, immunity and indemnification shall include any action of the Trustee 

whether deemed to be in the capacity of trustee, Paying Agent, or Registrar. 

 

  (n) In executing or accepting additional trusts created by any Supplemental 

Indenture or Supplemental Lease or modifications thereby of the trusts created under this 

Indenture, the Trustee shall be entitled to receive, and shall be fully protected in relying upon, 

an opinion of counsel stating that the execution of such Supplemental Indenture or 

Supplemental Lease is authorized and permitted by this Indenture and that all conditions 

precedent have been complied with by the City and the Company. 

 

 Section 1002. Fees, Charges and Expenses of the Trustee.  The Trustee shall be entitled 

to payment of and/or reimbursement for reasonable fees for the Trustee’s ordinary services rendered 

under this Indenture and all advances, agent and counsel fees and other ordinary expenses reasonably 

made or incurred by the Trustee in connection with such ordinary services and, in the event that it 

should become necessary that the Trustee perform extraordinary services, the Trustee shall be 

196

WS #1.



 

 -36- 
 

entitled to reasonable compensation therefor and to reimbursement for reasonable expenses in 

connection therewith; provided that if such extraordinary services or expenses are occasioned by the 

neglect or willful misconduct of the Trustee, the Trustee shall not be entitled to compensation or 

reimbursement therefor.  The Trustee shall be entitled to payment and reimbursement for the 

reasonable fees and charges of the Trustee as Paying Agent for the Bonds.  Pursuant to the provisions 

of Section 5.2 of the Lease, the Company has agreed to pay to the Trustee all reasonable fees, charges 

and expenses of the Trustee under this Indenture.  The Trustee agrees that the City shall have no 

liability for any fees, charges and expenses of the Trustee, and the Trustee agrees to look only to the 

Company for the payment of all reasonable fees, charges and expenses of the Trustee and any Paying 

Agent as provided in the Lease.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and during its 

continuance, the Trustee shall have a lien with right of payment prior to any payment on account of 

principal of or interest on the Bonds, upon all moneys in its possession under any provisions hereof 

for the foregoing reasonable advances, fees, costs and expenses incurred. 

 

 Section 1003. Notice to Bondowners if Default Occurs.  If a default occurs of which the 

Trustee is by Section 1001(h) of this Indenture required to take notice or if notice of default be given 

as in said Section 1001(h) provided, then the Trustee shall give written notice thereof to the last 

known Bondowners of all Bonds then Outstanding as shown by the Register required by Section 206 

of this Indenture to be kept at the corporate trust office of the Trustee. 

 

 Section 1004. Intervention by the Trustee.  In any judicial proceeding to which the City 

is a party and which, in the opinion of the Trustee and the Trustee’s counsel, has a substantial bearing 

on the interests of Bondowners of the Bonds (other than for the rights of the City to receive payments 

owing to the City for its own account under the Lease, the Development Agreement or any other 

agreement related to the Bonds or for the City's rights of indemnification or to be protected from 

liabilities by insurance policies, payment bonds or similar security required by the Lease or by the 

Development Agreement), the Trustee may intervene on behalf of Bondowners and, subject to the 

provisions of Section 1001(l) of this Indenture, shall do so if requested in writing by the Bondowners 

of at least 25% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. 

 

 Section 1005. Successor Trustee Upon Merger, Consolidation or Sale.  With the prior 

written consent of the City and the Company, any corporation or association into which the Trustee 

may be merged or converted or with or into which the Trustee may be consolidated, or to which the 

Trustee may sell or transfer its corporate trust business and assets as a whole or substantially as a 

whole, or any corporation or association resulting from any merger, conversion, sale, consolidation 

or transfer to which the Trustee is a party, shall be and become successor Trustee hereunder and shall 

be vested with all the trusts, powers, rights, obligations, duties, remedies, immunities and privileges 

hereunder as was its predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or any further act 

on the part of any of the parties hereto. 

 

 Section 1006. Resignation of Trustee.  The Trustee and any successor Trustee may at any 

time resign from the trusts hereby created by giving Thirty (30) days’ written notice to the City, the 

Company and the Bondowners, and such resignation shall take effect at the end of such 30 days, or 

upon the earlier appointment of a successor Trustee by the City.  The Trustee shall resign at any time 

the Trustee determines that the Trustee has a conflict of interest (as defined in the Trust Indenture 

Act of 1939), and shall, within Ninety (90) days after ascertaining that the Trustee has a conflict of 

197

WS #1.



 

 -37- 
 

interest, or within Thirty (30) days after receiving written notice from the City or the Company (so 

long as the Company is not in default under the Lease) that the Trustee has a conflict of interest, 

either eliminate such conflicting interest or resign in the manner and with the effect specified in this 

Indenture. 

 

 Section 1007. Removal of Trustee.  The Trustee may be removed at any time, with or 

without cause, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing (a) delivered to the Trustee, the 

City and the Company and signed by the Bondowners of a majority in aggregate principal amount 

of the Bonds then Outstanding, or (b) so long as no Event of Default under this Indenture (including, 

without limitation,  such Event of Default under Section 901(d) of this Indenture) or the Lease shall 

have occurred and be continuing, delivered to the Trustee, the City and the Bondowners of the Bonds 

and signed by the Company. 

 

 Section 1008. Appointment of Successor Trustee.  In case the Trustee shall resign or be 

removed, or shall otherwise become incapable of acting hereunder, or in case the Trustee shall be 

taken under the control of any public officer or officers or of a receiver appointed by a court, a 

successor Trustee (a) may be appointed by the City, or (b) reasonably acceptable to the City may be 

appointed by the Bondowners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then 

Outstanding, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing; provided, nevertheless, that in 

case of such vacancy, the City, by an instrument executed and signed by the Mayor and attested by 

the City Clerk under the City’s seal, may appoint a temporary Trustee to fill such vacancy until a 

successor Trustee shall be appointed in the manner above provided.  Any such temporary Trustee so 

appointed by the City shall hold such appointment no longer than Ninety (90) days and shall 

immediately and without further acts be superseded by the successor Trustee so appointed as 

provided above.  Every such Trustee appointed pursuant to the provisions of this Section 1008 shall 

be a trust company or bank in good standing and qualified to accept such trust having, or whose 

obligations are guaranteed by a financial institution having, a reported capital, surplus and undivided 

profits of not less than $50,000,000. 

 

 Section 1009. Vesting of Trusts in Successor Trustee.  Every successor Trustee appointed 

hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor and also to the City and the 

Company an instrument in writing accepting such appointment hereunder, and thereupon such 

successor shall, without any further act, deed or conveyance, become fully vested with all the trusts, 

powers, rights, obligations, duties, remedies, immunities and privileges of its predecessor; but such 

predecessor shall, nevertheless, on the written request of the City, execute and deliver an instrument 

transferring to such successor Trustee all the trusts, powers, rights, obligations, duties, remedies, 

immunities and privileges of such predecessor hereunder; every predecessor Trustee shall deliver all 

securities and moneys held as Trustee hereunder to its successor.  Should any instrument in writing 

from the City be required by any successor Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in such 

successor the trusts, powers, rights, obligations, duties, remedies, immunities and privileges hereby 

vested in the predecessor, any and all such instruments in writing shall, on request, be executed, 

acknowledged and delivered by the City. 

 

 Section 1010. Right of Trustee to Pay Taxes and Other Charges.  In case any tax, 

assessment, payment in lieu of taxes, or governmental or other charge upon, or insurance premium 

with respect to, any part of the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities, or the Financed 

198

WS #1.



 

 -38- 
 

Equipment is not paid as required in this Indenture, the Development Agreement, or in the Lease, 

and after than Thirty (30) days’ written notice by the Trustee to the Company the Trustee may pay 

such tax, payment in lieu, assessment or governmental charge or insurance premium, without 

prejudice, however, to any rights of the Trustee or the Bondowners hereunder arising in consequence 

of such failure; any amount at any time so paid under this Section 1010, with interest thereon from 

the date of payment at the rate of 10% per annum, shall become an additional obligation secured by 

this Indenture, and the same shall be given a preference in payment over any payment of principal 

of or interest on the Bonds, and shall be paid out of the proceeds of rents, revenues and receipts 

collected from the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment, if not 

otherwise caused to be paid; but the Trustee shall be under no obligation to make any such payment 

unless the Trustee shall have been requested to do so by the Bondowners of at least 25% of the 

aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding and shall have been provided adequate 

funds for the purpose of such payment. 

 

 Section 1011. Trust Estate May be Vested in Co-trustee. 
 

 (a) It is the purpose of this Indenture that there shall be no violation of any law of any 

jurisdiction (including, particularly, the State of Missouri) denying or restricting the right of banking 

corporations or associations to transact business as trustee in such jurisdiction.  It is recognized that 

in case of litigation under this Indenture or the Lease, and in particular in case of the enforcement of 

either on default or in case the Trustee deems that by reason of any present or future law of any 

jurisdiction the Trustee may not exercise any of the powers, rights or remedies herein granted to the 

Trustee, or take any other action which may be desirable or necessary in connection therewith, it 

may be necessary or desirable that the Trustee appoint an additional individual or institution as a co-

trustee or separate trustee, and the Trustee is hereby authorized to appoint such co-trustee or separate 

trustee in such instance. 

 

 (b) In the event that the Trustee appoints an additional individual or institution as a co-

trustee or separate trustee (which appointment shall be subject to the approval of the City and the 

Company), each and every remedy, power, right, claim, demand, cause of action, immunity, title, 

interest and lien expressed or intended by this Indenture to be exercised by the Trustee with respect 

thereto shall be exercisable by such co-trustee or separate trustee but only to the extent necessary to 

enable such co-trustee or separate trustee to exercise such powers, rights and remedies, and every 

covenant and obligation necessary to the exercise thereof by such co-trustee or separate trustee shall 

run to and be enforceable by either of them. 

 

 (c) Should any deed, conveyance or instrument in writing from the City or the Company 

be required by the co-trustee or separate trustee so appointed by the Trustee for more fully and 

certainly vesting in and confirming to such co-trustee such properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties 

and obligations, any and all such deeds, conveyances and instruments in writing shall, on request, be 

executed, acknowledged and delivered by the City or the Company, as applicable. 

 

 (d) In case any co-trustee or separate trustee shall die, become incapable of acting, resign 

or be removed, all the properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of such co-trustee or 

separate trustee, so far as permitted by law, shall vest in and be exercised by the Trustee until the 

appointment of a successor to such co-trustee or separate trustee. 

199

WS #1.



 

 -39- 
 

 

 Section 1012. Accounting.  The Trustee shall render an annual accounting for the period 

ending December 31 of each year to the City, the Company and to any Bondowner requesting the 

same and, upon the request of the Company or the Bondowner, a monthly accounting to the 

Company and the Bondowner, showing in reasonable detail all financial transactions relating to the 

Trust Estate during the accounting period and the balance in any funds or accounts created by this 

Indenture as of the beginning and close of such accounting period. 

 

 Section 1013.  Performance of Duties Under the Lease.  The Trustee hereby accepts and 

agrees to perform all duties and obligations assigned to the Trustee under the Lease. 

 

 ARTICLE XI 

 SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES 
 

 Section 1101. Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of Bondowners.  The 

City and the Trustee may from time to time, without the consent of or notice to any of the 

Bondowners, enter into such Supplemental Indenture or Supplemental Indentures as shall not be 

inconsistent with the terms and provisions hereof, for any one or more of the following purposes: 

 

 (a) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Indenture, or to make any 

other change not materially adverse to the security for the Bondowners; 

 

 (b) To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondowners any 

additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon 

the Bondowners or the Trustee or either of them; 

 

 (c) To more precisely identify the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities, or the 

Financed Equipment or to add additional property thereto; or 

 

 (d) To subject to this Indenture additional revenues, properties or collateral. 

 

 Section 1102. Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Bondowners. 
 

 (a) Exclusive of Supplemental Indentures covered by Section 1101 of this Indenture and 

subject to the terms and provisions contained in this Section 1102, and not otherwise, the 

Bondowners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding 

shall have the right, from time to time, anything contained in this Indenture to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to consent to and approve the execution by the City and the Trustee of such other 

Supplemental Indenture or Supplemental Indentures as shall be deemed necessary and desirable by 

the City for the purpose of modifying, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of 

the terms or provisions contained in this Indenture or in any Supplemental Indenture; provided, 

however, that without the consent of the Bondowners of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds 

then Outstanding, nothing in this Section 1102 contained shall permit or be construed as permitting 

(1) an extension of the maturity or a shortening of the redemption date of the principal of or the 

interest, if any, on any Bond issued hereunder, or (2) a reduction in the principal amount of any Bond 

or the rate of interest thereon, if any, or (3) a privilege or priority of any Bond over any other Bond, 

200

WS #1.



 

 -40- 
 

or (4) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds the Bondowners of which are 

required for consent to any such Supplemental Indenture. 

 

 (b) If at the time the City shall request the Trustee to enter into any such Supplemental 

Indenture for any of the purposes of this Section 1102, the Trustee shall cause notice of the proposed 

execution of such Supplemental Indenture to be mailed to each Bondowner as shown on the Register 

required by Section 206 of this Indenture.  Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the 

proposed Supplemental Indenture and shall state that copies thereof, which shall be promptly mailed 

to the Bondowner upon written request, are on file at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee 

for inspection by all Bondowners.  If within Sixty (60) days or such longer period as may be 

prescribed by the City following the mailing and final publication of such notice, the Bondowners 

of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding at the time of the 

execution of any such Supplemental Indenture shall have consented to and approved the execution 

thereof as herein provided, no Bondowner shall have any right to object to any of the terms and 

provisions contained therein, or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the propriety of 

the execution thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Trustee or the City from executing the same or from 

taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof. 

 

 Section 1103. Company’s Consent to Supplemental Indentures.  Anything herein to the 

contrary notwithstanding, a Supplemental Indenture under this Article XI which affects any rights 

of the Company shall not become effective unless and until the Company shall have consented in 

writing to the execution and delivery of such Supplemental Indenture.  In this regard, the Trustee 

shall cause notice of the proposed execution and delivery of any such Supplemental Indenture 

together with a copy of the proposed Supplemental Indenture to be mailed to the Company at least 

Thirty (30) days prior to the proposed date of execution and delivery of any such Supplemental 

Indenture. 

 

 ARTICLE XII 

 SUPPLEMENTAL LEASES 
 

 Section 1201. Supplemental Leases Not Requiring Consent of Bondowners.  The City 

and the Trustee shall, without the consent of or notice to the Bondowners, consent to the execution 

of any Supplemental Lease or Supplemental Leases by the City and the Company as may be required 

(a) in connection with the making by the Company of Additional Payments and acceptance by the 

City of additional real or personal property to be subject to the Lease, (b) by the provisions of the 

Lease and this Indenture, (c) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or formal defect or omission 

in the Lease, (d) so as to more precisely identify the Property, the Project, the Financed Facilities, or 

the Financed Equipment or add additional property thereto, (e) in connection with any other change 

therein which, in the judgment of the Trustee, does not materially and adversely affect the Trustee 

or security for the Bondowners. 

 

 Section 1202. Supplemental Leases Requiring Consent of Bondowners.  Except for 

Supplemental Leases as provided for in Section 1201 of this Indenture, neither the City nor the 

Trustee shall consent to the execution of any Supplemental Lease or Supplemental Leases by the 

City or the Company without the mailing of notice and the obtaining of the written approval or 

consent of the Bondowners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at 

201

WS #1.



 

 -41- 
 

the time Outstanding given and obtained as provided in Section 1102 of this Indenture.  If at any 

time the City and the Company shall request the consent of the Trustee to any such proposed 

Supplemental Lease, the Trustee shall cause notice of such proposed Supplemental Lease to be 

mailed in the same manner as provided in Section 1102 of this Indenture with respect to 

Supplemental Indentures.  Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of such proposed 

Supplemental Lease and shall state that copies of the same are on file in the principal corporate trust 

office of the Trustee for inspection by all Bondowners. 

 

 ARTICLE XIII 

 SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE 
 

 Section 1301. Satisfaction and Discharge of this Indenture. 
 

 (a) When all of the principal of and interest on all of the Bonds shall have been paid in 

accordance with their terms or provision has been made for such payment, as provided in Section 

1302 of this Indenture, and provision shall also be made for paying all other sums payable under this 

Indenture and under the Lease, including the reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee, the City 

and Paying Agent to the date of retirement of such Bonds, and all sums payable by the Company 

under the Development Agreement, then the right, title and interest of the Trustee in respect hereof 

shall thereupon cease, determine and be void, and thereupon the Trustee shall cancel, discharge and 

release this Indenture and shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to the City such instruments of 

satisfaction and discharge or release as shall be requisite to evidence such release and the satisfaction 

and discharge of this Indenture, and shall assign and deliver to the City any property at the time 

subject to this Indenture which may then be in the Trustee's possession, except amounts in the Bond 

Fund required to be paid to the Company under Section 606 of this Indenture and except funds or 

securities in which such funds are invested held by the Trustee for the payment of the principal of 

and interest on the Bonds. 

 

 (b) The City is hereby authorized to accept a certificate by the Trustee that the whole 

amount of the principal and interest, if any, so due and payable upon all of the Bonds then 

Outstanding has been paid or such payment provided for in accordance with Section 1302 of this 

Indenture as evidence of satisfaction of this Indenture, and upon receipt thereof shall cancel and erase 

the inscription of this Indenture from its records. 

 

 Section 1302. Bond Deemed to be Paid. 
 

 (a) Bonds shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning of this Article XIII when 

payment of the principal of and interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date be by 

reason of maturity or upon redemption as provided in this Indenture, or otherwise), either (1) shall 

have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof, or (2) shall have been 

provided for by depositing with the Trustee in trust and irrevocably set aside exclusively for such 

payment (i) moneys sufficient to make such payment or (ii) Government Securities maturing as to 

principal and interest in such amount and at such times as will insure the availability of sufficient 

moneys to make such payment, or (3) shall have been provided for by surrendering such Bonds to 

the Trustee for cancellation.  At such time as such Bonds shall be deemed to be paid hereunder, as 

202

WS #1.



 

 -42- 
 

aforesaid, such Bonds shall no longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits of this Indenture, 

except for the purposes of such payment from such moneys or Government Securities. 

 

 (b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of Bonds which by their terms may be 

redeemed prior to the stated maturities thereof, no deposit under clause (2) of the immediately 

preceding paragraph shall be deemed a payment of such Bonds as aforesaid until, as to all such 

Bonds which are to be redeemed prior to their respective stated maturities, proper notice of such 

redemption shall have been given in accordance with Article III of this Indenture or irrevocable 

instructions shall have been given to the Trustee to give such notice. 

 

 (c) Notwithstanding any provision of any other section of this Indenture which may be 

contrary to the provisions of this Section 1302, all moneys or Government Securities set aside and 

held in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Section 1302 for the payment of the Bonds shall be 

applied to and used solely for the payment of such Bonds, with respect to which such moneys and 

Government Securities have been so set aside in trust. 

 

 (d) At the Company’s option, the Company may deliver to the Trustee for cancellation 

Bonds or portions thereof not previously paid, and the Company shall receive a credit against the 

Basic Rent or other amounts payable by the Company for the redemption or defeasance of the Bonds 

in an amount equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds so delivered for cancellation, plus 

the accrued interest thereon. 

 

ARTICLE XIV 

 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

 Section 1401. Consents and Other Instruments by Bondowners.  Any consent, request, 

direction, approval, objection or other instrument required by this Indenture to be signed and 

executed by the Bondowners may be in any number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may 

be signed or executed by such Bondowners in person or by agent appointed in writing.  Proof of the 

execution of any such instrument or of the writing appointing any such agent and of the ownership 

of Bonds, if made in the following manner, shall be sufficient for any of the purposes of this 

Indenture, and shall be conclusive in favor of the Trustee with regard to any action taken, suffered 

or omitted under any such instrument, namely: 

 

  (1) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may 

be proved by the certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take 

acknowledgements within such jurisdiction that the person signing such instrument 

acknowledged before him the execution thereof, or by affidavit of any witness to such 

execution. 

 

  (2) The fact of ownership of Bonds and the amount or amounts, numbers and 

other identification of such Bonds, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the 

Register maintained on behalf of the City by the Trustee pursuant to Section 206 of this 

Indenture. 

 

203

WS #1.



 

 -43- 
 

 Section 1402. Limitation of Rights Under this Indenture.  With the exception of rights 

herein expressly conferred, nothing expressed or mentioned in or to be implied from this Indenture 

or the Bonds is intended or shall be construed to give any person other than the parties hereto, and 

the Bondowners, if any, any right, remedy or claim under or in respect to this Indenture, this 

Indenture and all of the covenants, conditions and provisions hereof being intended to be and being 

for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto and the Bondowners, as herein provided. 

 

 Section 1403. Notices.  It shall be sufficient service of any notice, request, complaint, 

demand or other paper required by this Indenture to be given or filed with the City, the Trustee, the 

Company or Bondowners if the same shall be duly mailed by registered or certified mail addressed: 

 

  (a) To the City:   City of Moberly, Missouri 

       101 West Reed Street -City Hall 

       Moberly, Missouri 65270 

       ATTN:  City Manager 
 

    with a copy to:  Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 

       211 N. Broadway, Suite 2000 

       St. Louis, Missouri 63102 

       ATTN:  Shannon Creighton, Esq. 
 

  (b) To the Trustee:   BOKF, N.A. 

     200 North Broadway, Suite 1710 

     St. Louis, Missouri 63102 

       ATTN:  Corporate Trust Department 
 

  (c) To the Company:  EquipmentShare.com Inc. 

       5710 Bull Run Drive 

Columbia, Missouri 65201 

       ATTN:  _____________________ 

 

    with a copy to:  ________________________________ 

       ________________________________ 

       ________________________________ 

       ATTN:  _____________________ 

 

  (d) To the Bondowners if the same shall be duly mailed by first class, registered 

or certified mail addressed to each of the Bondowners of the Bonds at the time Outstanding 

as shown on the Register required by Section 206 of this Indenture to be kept at the principal 

corporate trust office of the Trustee. 

 

 Section 1404. Severability.  If any provision of this Indenture shall be held or deemed to 

be invalid, inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or 

jurisdictions or in all jurisdictions, or in all cases because it conflicts with any other provision or 

provisions hereof or any constitution or statute or rule of public policy, or for any other reason, such 

circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in question inoperative or 

204

WS #1.



 

 -44- 
 

unenforceable in any other case or circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions 

herein contained invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatever. 

 

 Section 1405. Execution in Counterparts.  This Indenture may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same 

instrument. 

 

 Section 1406. Governing Law; Choice of Forum.  This Indenture and its performance 

shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Missouri applicable to contracts 

made and to be performed wholly within such state, without regard to choice or conflict of laws 

provisions.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or other judicial proceeding arising out of this 

Indenture shall be instituted only in the circuit court of Randolph County, Missouri or in federal 

court of the Eastern District of Missouri and waive any objections based upon venue or forum non 

conveniens or otherwise. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City of Moberly, Missouri, has caused this Indenture to be 

signed in its name and behalf by its Mayor and the seal of the City to be hereunto affixed and attested 

by its City Clerk, and to evidence its acceptance of the trusts hereby created, BOKF, N.A. has caused 

this Indenture to be signed in its name and behalf by its duly authorized officer and its official seal 

to be hereunto affixed and attested by its Secretary or Assistant Secretary, all as of the date first 

above written. 

 

       CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 

 

       By ________________________________ 

             Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By ____________________________ 

     Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

 

 

        

  

205

WS #1.



 

 -45- 
 

BOKF, N.A., 

       as Trustee 

 

 

       By __________________________ 

       Name:  

       Title:  

ATTEST: 

 

 

By ______________________________ 

Name:   

Title:   

 

 

206

WS #1.



 

A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

LOCATION OF FINANCED FACILITIES 
 

 

207

WS #1.



 

B-1 
 

EXHIBIT B 

THE FINANCED EQUIPMENT 

 

[TO BE PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

208

WS #1.



 

C-1 
 

EXHIBIT C 

THE PROPERTY 

 

Parcel No.  07-7.0-26.0-0.0-000-014.000 in the records of the Randolph County, known and 

numbered as 1855 Robertson Road, Moberly Missouri and partially described as: 

 
Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14 - PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE COR 
OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 146.57', SLY 
268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96', 
N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 

Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14 - PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE COR 

OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 146.57', SLY 
268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96', 
N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 
A total of 16.0 +/- acres. 
 

  

. 

 

 

209

WS #1.



 

D-1 
 

EXHIBIT D 

FORM OF PURCHASER'S LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS 

 

__________________, 20___ 

 

City of Moberly 

Moberly, Missouri 

 

BOKF, N.A., as Trustee 

St. Louis, Missouri 

 

Re: $55,000,000 (Aggregate Maximum Principal Amount) City of Moberly, 

Missouri Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (EquipmentShare.com Inc. 

Manufacturing, Refurbishment and Distribution Facility Project) Series 

2023 (the “Bonds”) 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 

This letter is to provide you with certain representations and agreements with respect to the 

[purchase of/making of an Additional Payment in connection with] $55,000,000 (Aggregate 

Maximum Principal Amount) City of Moberly, Missouri Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds 

(EquipmentShare.com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment and Distribution Facility Project) 

Series 2023 by the undersigned (the “Purchaser”).  The Bonds are secured in the manner set forth 

in the Trust Indenture dated as of  __________1, 2023 (the “Indenture”), between the City of 

Moberly, Missouri (the “City”) and BOKF, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”).  Capitalized terms 

used and not defined in this letter shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Indenture.   

 

In connection with [purchase of/making of an Additional Payment under] the Bonds, 

the undersigned Purchaser hereby represents and warrants to each of you and agrees with each of 

you, as follows: 

 

 1.  Purchase and Receipt of Bonds.  Purchaser acknowledges the [initial] purchase, 

receipt, and delivery from the City of the above-described Bonds, consisting of a single bond 

certificate in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $55,000,000, dated as of ___________ 

1, 2023 and maturing on the later of: (i) December 31, 2034 (12 years following the last date for 

acceptance by the City of any portion of the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment;) or 

(ii) with respect to each portion of the Bonds represented by an annual endorsement of principal, 

December 1 of that year which is Twelve (12) years from the year of such annual endorsement as 

set forth on the Table to which an Additional Payment/Principal Amount Advanced (all as provided 

in Section 208(e) of the Indenture) pertains, the corresponding portion of the Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount reflected on Column D to the Table.  

 

 2.  Receipt of Documents.  Purchaser acknowledges that Purchaser has timely 

received in satisfactory form and manner all proceedings, certificates, opinions, and other 

documents required to be submitted to Purchaser pursuant to the Indenture prior to or on the date 

of [purchase of/making of an Additional Payment under] the Bonds, and that the City and the 

210

WS #1.



 

 D-2 

 

Company have in all respects complied with and satisfied all of their respective obligations to 

Purchaser that are required under the Indenture to be complied with and satisfied on or before such 

date. 

 

 3. Security for the Bonds.  Purchaser fully understands and acknowledges: 

 

(a) That the Bonds have been issued under and pursuant to the Indenture;  

 

(b) That the Bonds are payable solely out of the rents, revenues, and receipts to be derived 

from the leasing or sale of the Project to the Company under the  Lease, which 

payments, revenues, and receipts have been pledged and assigned by the City to the 

Trustee under the Indenture to secure the payment of the principal of and interest on 

the Bonds; and 

 

(c) That the Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of the City or a loan or credit thereof 

within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction. 

 

4.  No Registration. Purchaser understands that the Bonds have not been registered 

under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the securities law of any state and will be sold to 

Purchaser in reliance upon certain exemptions from registration and in reliance upon the 

representations and warranties of Purchaser set forth herein.  Purchaser acknowledges that no 

official statement or other offering document has been prepared with respect to the Bonds and that 

the absence of such offering material will limit the transferability of the Bonds.  Purchaser is 

familiar with and has counsel who is familiar with federal and state laws pertaining to the transfer 

and distribution of securities, including, without limitation, disclosure obligations of the seller 

incident to any such transfer or distribution.  Purchaser understands and acknowledges that the 

Bonds are exempt from the continuing disclosure requirements of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by 

the Securities and Exchange Commission.  Purchaser hereby covenants and agrees that Purchaser 

will not sell, offer for sale, pledge, transfer, convey, hypothecate, mortgage, or dispose of the 

Bonds or any interest therein in violation of applicable federal or state law or in violation of the 

restrictions on sale, assignment, negotiation, or transfer of the Bonds set forth in paragraph 9 of 

this letter. 

 

5.  Purchase of Bonds.  Purchaser has sufficient knowledge and experience in 

business and financial matters in general, and investments such as the Bonds in particular, to enable 

Purchaser to evaluate the risks involved in an investment in the Bonds.  Purchaser is 

[purchasing/making an Additional Payment under] the Bonds solely as an investment and for 

Purchaser’s own account, as principal (not on behalf of another) with the present intent of holding 

the Bonds in Purchaser’s investment portfolio, and not with a view to or in connection with any 

agreement or understanding looking toward any distribution, resale, fractionalization, subdivision, 

or other disposition thereof, and no person other than Purchaser has direct or indirect interest in 

the Bonds.  Purchaser has satisfied itself that the Bonds may be legally purchased and assigned 

and transferred to Purchaser. 

 

6. Financial Statements and Documents; Access to Information.  Purchaser has 

received and carefully reviewed a copy of the Indenture and the Lease.  Purchaser has received all 

211

WS #1.



 

 D-3 

 

financial and other information from the Company that Purchaser has requested, has had all 

questions answered by appropriate officers of Company, and to the knowledge of Purchaser, has 

received all information necessary to make an informed decision with respect to issuance and 

purchase of the Bonds. 

 

7. Accredited Investor.  Purchaser certifies that Purchaser is (i) an “accredited 

investor” as that term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D promulgated by the Securities and 

Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”) or (ii) a 

“qualified institutional buyer” as that term is defined in Rule 144A promulgated by the Securities 

and Exchange Commission under the 1933 Act (or other applicable state and federal securities 

laws and regulations). 

 

8. Suitable Investment.  Purchaser is now and was when Purchaser agreed to 

[purchase/make an Additional Payment under] the Bonds, familiar with the operations of the 

Company and fully aware of terms and risks of the Bonds.  Purchaser confirms that Purchaser’s 

investment in the Bonds constitutes an investment that is suitable for and consistent with 

Purchaser’s investment program and that Purchaser is able to bear the economic risk of an 

investment in the Bonds, including a complete loss of such investment. 

 

9. Sale or Exchange.  Purchaser acknowledges that the right to sell, assign, negotiate, 

or otherwise transfer the Bonds shall be limited to the sale, assignment, negotiation, or transfer to 

an “accredited investor” as that term is used and defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D of the 

1933 Act and a “qualified institutional buyer” as that term is used and defined in Rule 144A 

promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 1933 Act.  Purchaser 

acknowledges and agrees that Purchaser will only offer, sell, pledge, transfer, or exchange the 

Bonds (a) in accordance with an available exemption from the registration requirements of the 

1933 Act, (b) in accordance with any applicable state securities laws, and (c) in accordance with 

the provisions of the Indenture. 

 

 10. Indemnification; Reliance.  Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold each of the 

addressees of this letter and Bond Counsel harmless from any claims, judgments, costs, fees and 

expenses of whatsoever nature, whether relating to litigation or otherwise, resulting from the 

attempted or affected sale, offer for sale, pledge, transfer, conveyance, hypothecation, mortgage, 

disposition of the Bonds in violation or contravention of this letter.  Purchaser has satisfied itself 

that the Bonds may be legally purchased by and assigned and transferred to Purchaser and the 

addressees and Bond Counsel may rely upon the representations of Purchaser set forth herein. 

 

      Very truly yours, 

 

      EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. 

 

      “Purchaser” 

 

 

      By: _________________________ 

      Title: ________________________ 

212

WS #1.



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    [Space Above this Line for Recording Data]     

 

Title of Document: Special Warranty Deed  

 

Date of Document:  _____________ 1, 2023 

 
 

Grantor:   EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC.,  

a Delaware corporation duly authorized to do business in Missouri 

 

Grantor’s Address:  5710 Bull Run Drive 

Columbia, Missouri 65201  

 

Grantee: CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, 

 a Missouri municipal corporation 

 

Grantee’s Address:  101 West Reed Street 

    Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 

 

Full Legal Description:  

See Exhibit A, page 4 hereof. 

 

Reference Documents: 

 

  

213

WS #1.



SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

 

 THIS SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED (this “Deed”) is made and entered into as of 

____________ 1, 2023, by and between EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., a Delaware 

corporation duly authorized to do business in Missouri and having a principal office at 5710 Bull 

Run Drive, Columbia, Missouri 65201 (“Grantor”) and the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, 

a Missouri municipal corporation having a principal office at 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, 

Missouri 65270 (“Grantee”). 

 

WITNESSETH, that Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) 

and other valuable considerations paid by Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

does hereby BARGAIN AND SELL, CONVEY AND CONFIRM unto Grantee the following 

described real property and any improvements thereon (collectively, the “Property”) situated in 

the County of Randolph and State of Missouri, to wit: 

See Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein; 

Subject to restrictions, easements, dedications, conditions, building lines, covenants, reservations 

and limitations of record. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, together with all rights and appurtenances 

belonging to the Property, unto Grantee and Grantee’s successors and assigns forever.  Grantor 

covenants that Grantor shall and will WARRANT AND DEFEND the title to the Property unto 

Grantee and Grantee’s successors and assigns against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by 

or through Grantor but none other, excepting, however, all claims, liens and encumbrances of 

record and further subject to the general taxes for the calendar year 2023 and thereafter, and special 

taxes becoming a lien after the date of this Deed. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor's duly authorized official has signed this Deed as of 

the day and year first above written. 

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. 
 

 

By:         

Printed Name: ________________________ 

Title: _________________________________ 

 

 

  

214

WS #1.



2 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

     ) SS. 

COUNTY OF BOONE  ) 

 

 On this _____ day of __________, 2023, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, 

appeared __________, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is 

the [TITLE] of EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., a Delaware corporation duly authorized to do 

business in Missouri, and that the foregoing instrument was signed in behalf of said corporation 

by authority of its board of directors and said officer acknowledged said instrument to be the free 

act and deed of said corporation. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 

in the County and State aforesaid on the day and year first above written. 

 

 

        

Name:  __________________________ 

Notary Public in and for said State 

 

My commission expires: 

 

215

WS #1.



3 
 

GRANTEE’S ACCEPTANCE 

 

The conveyance by EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC., as Grantor, to the City of Moberly, 

Missouri, as Grantee, by the Special Warranty Deed to which this Acceptance is attached, for the 

Property described therein, is hereby accepted by the City of Moberly, Missouri pursuant to 

Section 49.292.2 RSMo., as amended, on this _____ day of __________, 2023.   
 
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 
 
 

By:       
Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor 

 
[SEAL] 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:      
 Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 

  )  SS. 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH ) 

 

 On this _____ day of __________, 2023, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, 

appeared JERRY JEFFREY, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that 

he is the Mayor of the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, and that the seal affixed to the 

foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of said City, and that said instrument was signed and 

sealed by authority of its City Council, and said officer acknowledged said instrument to be 

executed for the purposes therein stated and as the free act and deed of said City. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 

in the County and State aforesaid on the day and year first above written. 

 

 

        

Name:  Jason S. Terry 

Notary Public in and for said State 

 

 

My commission expires: 

216

WS #1.



Exhibit A 

THE PROPERTY - LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Parcel No.  07-7.0-26.0-0.0-000-014.000 in the records of the Randolph County, known and 

numbered as 1855 Robertson Road, Moberly Missouri and partially described as: 

 
Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14 - PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE COR 
OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 146.57', SLY 
268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96', 
N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 
Sec: 26.0 Twp: 54 Range: 14 - PT OF SE1/4: BEG 792.75' S & 34.77' W OF NE COR 
OF SE1/4, TH S 751.68', W 82', SWLY 146.57', SLY 
268.12' TO N LINE OF HUNTHAUSEN RD, TH W 479.96', 
N 1110.26' TO S LINE OF FOWLER RD, TH E 700.10'> 
 
A total of 16.0 +/- acres. 

 

 

217

WS #1.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

February 21, 2023 

 

 

Mr. Brian Crane 

City Manager 

City of Moberly 

101 W. Reed St. 

Moberly, Missouri  65270 

 

Mr. Randy Asbury 

President 

Moberly Area Economic Development Corporation 

115 North Williams 

Moberly, Missouri  65270 

 

Re: Issuance of Not to Exceed $55,000,000 of Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds for the 

Benefit of EquipmentShare.Com, Inc. 

  

Dear Messrs. Crane and Asbury: 

 

The purpose of this engagement letter is to set forth certain matters concerning the services we will 

perform as bond counsel to the City of Moberly in connection with the issuance of taxable industrial revenue 

bonds in the maximum principal amount of $55,000,000 (the “Bonds”).  We understand that the proceeds 

of the Bonds will be used to renovate the existing facility located at 1855 Robertson Road and equip the 

facility (the “Project”) to accommodate a new construction equipment refurbishment, rental, sales and 

service facility to be owned by EquipmentShare.com Inc. (the “Company”).  The Bonds will be limited 

obligations of the City, payable solely from money derived from the lease of the Project by the City to the 

Company.   

 

 

SCOPE OF ENGAGEMENT 

 

 In this engagement, as bond counsel to the City we expect to perform the following duties: 

 

 (1) Subject to the completion of proceedings to our satisfaction, render our legal opinion (the 

“Bond Opinion”) regarding the validity and binding effect of the Bonds, and such related 

matters as we deem necessary or appropriate. 

 

218

WS #1.



Messrs. Brian Crane and Randy Asbury 

February 21, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

  

 (2) Examine applicable law as it relates to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds and our 

Bond Opinion and advise the City regarding the legal authority for the issuance of the 

Bonds and other legal matters related to the structure of the Bonds. 

 

 (3) Prepare or review authorizing proceedings and other legal documents necessary or 

appropriate to the authorization, issuance and delivery of the Bonds and the lease of the 

Project to the Company, including the Plan for Industrial Development and Cost/Benefit 

Analysis as required by Section 100.050 of the Missouri Revised Statutes. 

 

 (4) Attend meetings and conferences related to the Bonds and otherwise consult with the 

parties to the transaction prior to the issuance of the Bonds. 

 

 (5) Coordinate the closing of the transaction, and after the closing assemble and distribute 

transcripts of the proceedings and documentation relating to the authorization and issuance 

of the Bonds. 

 

 (6) Undertake such additional duties as we deem necessary to complete the transaction and to 

render our Bond Opinion. 

 

 Our Bond Opinion will be addressed to the City and the Company, and will be delivered by us on 

the date the Bonds are exchanged for their purchase price (the “Closing”). 

 

 The Bond Opinion will be based on facts and law existing as of its date.  In rendering our Bond 

Opinion, we will rely upon the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials, officers of 

the Company and other persons furnished to us without undertaking to verify the same by independent 

investigation, and we will assume continuing compliance by the City and the Company with applicable 

laws relating to the Bonds.  During the course of this engagement, we will rely on the Company to provide 

us with complete and timely information on all developments pertaining to any aspect of the Project and 

the Bonds. 

 

 Our duties in this engagement are limited to those expressly set forth above.  Among other things, 

our duties do not include: 

 

 (a) Expressing any opinion regarding the taxability of the Company’s leasehold interest under 

the Lease Agreements between the City and the Company. 

 

 (b) Drafting state constitutional or legislative amendments or pursuing test cases or other 

litigation. 

 

 (c) Making an investigation or expressing any view as to the creditworthiness of the Company. 

 

 (d) Addressing any other matter not specifically set forth above that is not required to render 

our Bond Opinion. 

 

 

219

WS #1.



Messrs. Brian Crane and Randy Asbury 

February 21, 2023 

Page 3 

 

 

  

ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP 

 

 Upon execution of this engagement letter, the City will be our client and an attorney-client 

relationship will exist between us.  In performing our services as bond counsel, we will represent the 

interests of the City exclusively.  We will not be representing the Company.  Our representation of the City 

will not affect, however, our responsibility to render objective Bond Opinion. 

 

 Our representation of the City and the attorney-client relationship created by this engagement letter 

will be concluded upon issuance of the Bonds and the delivery of our Bond Opinion. 

 

 

FEES AND EXPENSES 
 

Although the City will be our sole client, the Company will be responsible for paying our legal 

fees. Based upon (1) our current understanding of the terms, structure, size and schedule of the transaction, 

including our understanding that (a) there is no lender financing of the Project and (b) all of the Bonds will 

be purchased by the Company, (2) the duties we will undertake pursuant to this letter, (3) the time we expect 

to devote to the financing and (4) the responsibilities we assume, we expect our fee to be $60,000.  If at any 

time we believe circumstances warrant an adjustment to that fee, we will notify you.  

 

Except as noted in the next paragraph, the fees will be payable by the Company on the date the 

Bonds are issued.  The City will not have any obligation with respect to our fees or expenses, except to the 

extent that our fees or expenses may be payable out of the proceeds of the Bonds. 

 

The City, the Company and the Moberly Area Economic Development Corporation (the “EDC”) 

hereby agree that the terms of the Initial Funding Agreement dated February 1, 2022 between the Company 

and the EDC (the “Funding Agreement”) are hereby amended to recognize that Gilmore & Bell, P.C. is 

representing the EDC as “Special Counsel” (as defined in the Funding Agreement) replacing Cunningham, 

Vogel & Rost, P.C. and we are representing the City as bond counsel pursuant to the terms of this letter.  

The fees of Gilmore & Bell, P.C. stated above will first be paid from the Initial Funds (as defined in the 

Funding Agreement) on deposit with the City. Any portion of our fee not paid by the remaining Initial 

Funds will be payable by the Company.  Section 7 of the Funding Agreement is hereby amended by 

inserting “December 31, 2023” in lieu of December 31, 2022 with regards to the date of return of excess 

Initial Funds. 

 

 

RECORDS 

 

 At your request, papers and property furnished by you will be returned promptly.  Our own files, 

including lawyer work product, pertaining to the transaction will be retained by us.  For various reasons, 

including the minimization of unnecessary storage expenses, we reserve the right to dispose of any 

documents or other materials retained by us after the termination of the engagement. 

 

 

  

220

WS #1.



Messrs. Brian Crane and Randy Asbury 

February 21, 2023 

Page 4 

 

 

  

CONCLUSION 

 

 If the foregoing terms are acceptable to you, please so indicate by returning a signed copy of this 

engagement letter.  We look forward to working with you. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

 
Shannon W. Creighton 

 

SWC:rab 

cc:  Randall Thompson, Esq. 

  

221

WS #1.



Messrs. Brian Crane and Randy Asbury 

February 21, 2023 

Page 5 

 

 

  

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED: 

 

Date:        CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 

 

 

By:       

Title:       

 

 

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED: 

 

Date:         

 

MOBERLY AREA ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 

 

 

By:       

Title:      

  

 

 

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED: 

 

Date:        EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC. 

 

 

 

By:       

Title:       

222

WS #1.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Discussion Regarding The Purchase Of A JetVac For Public Utilities From 

Coe Equipment Inc. 

  

Summary: Utilities staff routinely performs system maintenance and inspections within 

sewer lines and manholes throughout Moberly’s sewer collection system. This 

system will be used just like its predecessor,  within the sewer collection 

system to clear blockages, to clean collection system segments for evaluation 

necessary for rehabilitation or replacement, and to answer questions related to 

sewer backups, sanitary sewer overflows and to allow assessment of system 

condition. This purchase is being made utilizing Sourcewell, an organization 

that allows members to utilize discounts similar to “state bid.” The discount 

obtained through this group is $8,412.38. Purchase price for this Vactor 

Impact JetVac Machine will be $283,868.76 after discount, along with a trade 

in of the existing 2010 unit with 41,000 miles and 5815 hours for $57,297.50 

and is scheduled for ordering in the Current CIP budget in the current year and 

initial payments for each to follow in FY 24 CIP budget. The current JetVac 

along with other heavy equipment are financed with a 4 year lease purchase 

plan as is intended for this unit.  

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to present a resolution for approval during the next scheduled 

council meeting. 

  

Fund Name: Capital Improvement Plan, Distribution & Collection 

  

Account Number: 301.112.5502 

  

Available Budget $: 2024 FY TBD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
   x  Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

223

WS #2.



224

WS #2.



225

WS #2.



226

WS #2.



227

WS #2.



228

WS #2.



229

WS #2.



230

WS #2.



231

WS #2.



232

WS #2.



233

WS #2.



234

WS #2.



235

WS #2.



236

WS #2.



237

WS #2.



238

WS #2.



239

WS #2.



240

WS #2.



241

WS #2.



242

WS #2.



243

WS #2.



244

WS #2.



245

WS #2.



246

WS #2.



247

WS #2.



248

WS #2.



 City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:   

Department:  Public Utilities 

Date:  February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item:  A Discussion Regarding Moberly State Revolving Fund Applications 

Submittal To DNR And Authorizing The City Manager To Submit The 

Applications. 

  

Summary:  The City of Moberly is required to submit revolving fund applications for 

capital projects if the city intends to utilize low interest revolving fund loans to 

finance any capital projects. Moberly voters approved these improvements, 

Wastewater & Water system projects. SRF application for the Northwest 

Regional Lift Station is to extend the project start date requirement to provide 

adequate time to complete the design and necessary approvals from other 

organizations that are required. The Logan Street area water distribution 

system project and the Rollins Street CSO upgrade project are the next priority 

listed in previous Jacobs engineering studies. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

  

 Direct staff to offer a resolution at the next council meeting 

  

Fund Name:  N/A 

  

Account Number:  N/A 

  

Available Budget $:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
      Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report          Other        Passed Failed 

 

249

WS #3.



MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES  
WATER PROTECTION PROGRAM 
DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN APPLICATION 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
DATE RECEIVED  

PROJECT NUMBER 

This application is for a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan 
described in Missouri Regulation 10 CSR 60-13.020. 
Submit to:  Missouri Department of Natural Resources, Financial Assistance Center, P.O. Box 176,     

 Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176.  Please type or print legibly. 

PRIORITY POINTS 

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION
PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY NAME  PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY ID NO. 

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY OWNER DUNS NO. 

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY CONTACT PERSON FOR THIS DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN PROJECT TITLE 

MAILING ADDRESS EMAIL ADDRESS 

CITY  STATE ZIP CODE + FOUR COUNTY 

TELEPHONE NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

   Ext. 
FAX NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

  Ext. 

2. ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING CONSULTANT INFORMATION 

CONSULTING FIRM’S NAME CONSULTANT’S NAME 

CONSULTANT MAILING ADDRESS EMAIL ADDRESS 

CITY STATE ZIP CODE + FOUR 

CONSULTANT TELEPHONE  NUMBER WITH AREA CODE

 Ext. 
CONSULTANT FAX NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

3. GENERAL INFORMATION 

POPULATION SERVED MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME FOR THE SERVICE AREA 

CURRENT AVERAGE MONTHLY WATER BILL FOR A TYPICAL HOUSEHOLD, PER 5,000 GALLONS 

ESTIMATED AVERAGE MONTHLY WATER BILL FOR A TYPICAL HOUSEHOLD, PER 5,000 GALLONS, FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THIS PROJECT 

ANTICIPATED TERM OF THE LOAN (YEARS) 

EXISTING CUSTOMERS ESTIMATED CUSTOMERS AT PROJECT COMPLETION 

WHAT IS YOUR COLLECTION DELINQUENCY RATE?  

percent 
ARE YOU CURRENTLY FUNDING DEPRECIATION? 

   Yes      No 
OUTSTANDING DEBT SERVICE 

$ 
ANY DEBT HELD BY USDA RURAL DEVELOPMENT? 

   Yes      No
WHEN WAS THE LAST TIME USER-FEES WERE REVIEWED? 

EXISTING ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE 

$ 
WHEN WAS THE LAST TIME USER-FEES WERE INCREASED? 

REVENUE LESS (MINUS) OPERATING EXPENSES FOR THE LAST FISCAL YEAR EQUALS = 

$ 

FROM A FINANCIAL STANDPOINT, DO YOU HAVE A COMBINED WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM? 

   Yes      No
U.S. CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT NUMBER STATE SENATE DISTRICT NUMBER(S)  STATE REPRESENTATIVE DISTRICT NUMBER(S) 

4. CERTIFIED OPERATOR AND EMERGENCY OPERATING PLAN
THE APPLICANT HAS PROVIDED: 

  Documentation the public water supply has a certified chief operator or expects to have prior to loan award. 

  Documentation the public water supply has an emergency operating plan or expects to have prior to loan award. 

  Documentation the public water supply has a permit to dispense or expects to have prior to loan award. 

    MO 780-1845 (12-18)  PAGE 1   

City of Moberly

080020845

Dana Ulmer

dulmer@cityofmoberly,com

660-269-7659

Jacobs Engineering Group

tobin.lichti@jacobs.com

314-335-4550

13,615 39225

1111111

11111111

13615 13615

.038

✔ Rate Study underway

2022

✔

✔

✔

MO2010533

City of Moberly

Utilities Director

101 West Reed Street

Moberly MO 65270 Randolph

501 North Broadway

St. Louis MO 63102

314- 335-5141 ?

250

WS #3.



5. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
 

DESCRIBE THE MAJOR COMPONENTS OF THE PROJECT  (ATTACH A SEPARATE SHEET, IF NECESSARY) 

6. PROJECT COST INFORMATION

ESTIMATED PROJECT COST BREAKDOWN  
BREAKDOWN OF STATE REVOLVING FUND ELIGIBLE 
COST PER DESIGNATED CATEGORIES: 

Treatment $ 

Administrative/Legal $ Transmission and Distribution $ 

Engineering Planning and Design $ Storage $ 

Construction Engineering Services $ Source $ 

Engineering Inspection $ Land Acquisition $ 

Construction $ Purchasing of Other Systems $ 

Other Costs (labs, upgrades, automation, etc.) 
Specify:   

$ Refinancing $

Interest During Construction $ 
Other  

Specify:   
$ 

Contingency (10 percent of Construction) $ PROJECTED REPAYMENT SOURCE 

Total Project Costs $ 
 User Fees 

 General Funds 

 Sales 

 Other (Please, describe):   

Funding Sources other than the Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund (specify whether loan or grant): If you list grant funding, 
please attach a copy of the grant approval letter, otherwise 
do not assume any grant funding. 

  $ 

  $ 

BALANCE (Total project costs minus other 
funding sources) 

$ 

Cost of Issuance (Estimate 5% of Balance) $ 

AMOUNT OF LOAN REQUEST 
(Balance plus Cost of Issuance) 

$ 

 

IS THE SOURCE OF REPAYMENT IN PLACE AND AVAILABLE AT THIS TIME? 
(CHECK ONE) 

  Yes     No   If yes, specify:  

7. ANTICIPATED DEBT STRUCTURE/SECURITY

 General Obligation Bonds  Revenue Bonds 
AMOUNT OF BOND 

$ 
HAVE YOU PASSED BONDS FOR THIS PROJECT?  (CHECK ONE) 

   Yes – include a copy of the bond language and certified election results  

   No  

    MO 780-1845 (12-18)  PAGE 2   

251

WS #3.



8. PROJECT SCHEDULE (READINESS TO PROCEED-SEE ATTACHED READINESS TO PROCEED AND DISTRIBUTION OF
FUNDS CRITERIA FACT SHEET)

MILESTONE ANTICIPATED DATE 

A. Facility plan submittal (See attached Facility Plan Submittal Checklist when submitting
the facility plan)

B. All other funding is secured (if necessary, bonds are voted)

C. Engineering plans and specifications submittal

D. Construction start date

9. PRIORITY POINTS CRITERIA (SEE ATTACHED MISSOURI WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND PRIORITY POINTS
CRITERIA FACT SHEET)
NOTE: Check all items listed below that apply to the project and describe in the space provided.  Attach any supporting documentation (e.g., copy of the latest sanitary survey, inspection, copy of 
order, agreement, permit or other enforceable document, etc.) and specifically cross-reference it in the narrative description.  The department will consider only supporting documentation described 
on the application form.

SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT COMPLIANCE (Anticipated compliance benefits of the proposed project.)  
THIS PROJECT WILL (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY): 

Correct persistent violations of maximum contaminant levels or treatment performance criteria for acute risk  
contaminants (such as coliform, turbidity or nitrate) within the past 36 months.  

Correct persistent violations of treatment technique requirements. 

Correct persistent violations of maximum contaminant levels for nonacute risk primary contaminants occurring within the 
past 36 months. 

Correct persistent violations of maximum contaminant levels for secondary contaminants occurring within the past  
  36 months. 

Enable the public water supply to comply with certain anticipated federal regulations. 

Enable the public water supply to comply with an administrative order, bilateral compliance agreement, permit or other 
enforceable document issued by the Missouri Department of Natural Resources. 

DESCRIPTION OR ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

    MO 780-1845 (12-18)  PAGE 3   

252

WS #3.



PUBLIC HEALTH (Anticipated public health benefits of the proposed project.)  
Existing public water systems only:  At least 51 percent of the project will address problems causing a waterborne disease 
outbreak attributable to the public water supply by the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services.   

Existing public water systems only:  The public water supply can document its inability consistently to maintain >35 psi as 
a normal working pressure in the distribution system. 

Existing public water systems only:  The public water supply can document its inability consistently to maintain >20 psi at 
all service connections. 

Private or noncommunity wells or sources in the project service area are unable to consistently provide an adequate 
amount of potable water for general household purposes and at least 51 percent of the project addresses this need. 

PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS (Anticipated infrastructure benefits of the proposed project.)   
THIS PROJECT WILL (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY): 

Provide a public water supply with a backup well or backup interconnection with another public water supply. 

Address problem(s) with improper well construction.   

Address unaccounted for water that exceeds 10 percent of the drinking water produced by the system, and the loss is due 
to leaking or broken water lines. 

Provide necessary modifications to a distribution system anticipated to exceed design capacity or useful life within the next 
five years.

Address a demonstrated need to replace faulty pipes or substandard pipe materials. 

Address a demonstrated need for distribution system valves and flushing devices. 

Address a demonstrated need for looping of water mains. 

Address an inability to maintain a disinfectant residual at all points in the distribution system. 

Address water storage facilities in poor condition not related to inadequate maintenance. 

Provide the public water supply with a storage capacity equal to one day’s average use or provide the public water supply 
with adequate standby power. 

Provide necessary modifications to a source or treatment facility anticipated to exceed design capacity or useful life within 
the next five years. 

Address significant degradation of the quality of raw water supply. 

Address significant degradation of the quality of finished water in storage. 

Enable the public water supply to meet existing state requirements for the treatment or storage of waste residues 
generated by the  water treatment plant. 

Enable repair or replacement of treatment facilities for required disinfection or turbidity removal that are severely 
deteriorated beyond the useful life of the facility. 

The facility’s source is vulnerable to natural disasters (such as flood or drought) or contamination. 

The facility’s treatment plan is vulnerable to natural disasters (such as flood or drought) or contamination. 

The facility is located in a department-approved wellhead protection area. 

    MO 780-1845 (12-18)  PAGE 4   

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

253

WS #3.



ADDITIONAL PRIORITY POINT CATEGORIES 
THIS PROJECT WILL (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY):

At least 51 percent of the project cost is for repair or replacing an existing public water system damaged or destroyed by a 
natural disaster. (Note:  Documentation must be submitted along with a statement that adequate state or federal disaster 
relief is not available). 

  Project will result in interconnections with other systems affected by drought or for upgrades to existing systems to address 
    drought related problems 

   Project will result in interconnections with other systems prone to flooding or for upgrades to existing systems to address 
 flood related problems 

Provide necessary upgrades to facilities of a primary water system to continue or expand services as a regional  
  water supplier.  Name of system(s):____________________________________________________________ 

Result in the permanent supply interconnection of two or more existing public water systems.  (This includes new water 
systems that allow small water systems within their boundaries to consolidate). 

 Name of system(s):_________________________________________________________________________ 

Result in a regional management system responsible for the day-to-day operation of the water system. 

 Name of the system(s):______________________________________________________________________ 

Enable the public water supply to enhance the water system security. 

At least 50 percent of the applicant’s governing board has received training related to the management and operation of      
drinking water infrastructure.  Please provide documentation of the training and a list of members who received the training. 

The public water supply has completed an asset inventory. 

DESCRIPTION OR ADDITIONAL COMMENTS 

    MO 780-1845 (12-18)  PAGE 5   

254

WS #3.



CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned representative certifies the information submitted in this application is true and correct to the best of his or her 
knowledge and that he or she is authorized to sign and submit this application.  The applicant agrees, if a loan is awarded on the 
basis of this application, to comply with all applicable rules and regulations of the Department of Natural Resources and the terms 
and conditions of the loan agreement.  Furthermore, the applicant meets the requirements of 10 CSR 60-3.030 Technical, 
Managerial, and Financial (TMF) Capacity or will meet these requirements upon completion of the project.  For more information 
regarding TMF Capacity, please contact the department’s Financial Assistance Center at 573-751-1192.   
Incomplete applications will be returned. 
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE DATE 

NAME AND OFFICIAL TITLE TELEPHONE  NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

  Ext. 

PREPARER’S NAME AND SIGNATURE (IF APPLICABLE)
SIGNATURE OF PREPARER DATE 

NAME AND TITLE TELEPHONE  NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

  Ext. 

MO 780-1845 (12-18)     PAGE 6 

660-269-7659

Brian Crane

Dana Ulmer

255

WS #3.



Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan Application Instruction for 780-1845 

Note: Any funding assistance is subject to all State Revolving Fund requirements. Potential applicants should 
contact the Missouri Department of Natural Resources’ Financial Assistance Center prior to completing and 
submitting an application. Please contact the Financial Assistance Center at 573-751-1192 or toll free at 800-
361-4827.

1. Print or type the applicant information. Include a street address if available. The applicant 1. is the entity
that will receive the loan funds, if awarded. Prior to receiving a loan, the entity must have a DUNS (Data
Universal Numbering System) number. The DUNS number is a nine digit number established and assigned
by Dun and Bradstreet Inc., or D&B, to uniquely identify business entities. A DUNs number is available
from D&B by telephone at 866-705-5711 or at fedgov.dnb.com/webform. The contact noted on the
application should be knowledgeable about the application and able to be contacted during business hours.

2. Include the engineering firm name and the name of the professional engineer working on the project.

3. Show the population of the entire service area. The population served by public water supply will be
different from the dicennial census population if the project is to serve a portion of the municipality or
district. The information included in Section 3 of the application will be used to determine the financial
capability of the applicant with respect to the proposed project. Please provide the most accurate
information available. Collection delinquency rate is defined as bills that are never collected, not bills that
don’t get paid by the due date but are eventually collected later.

Show the revenue minus expenses including operation and maintenance, replacement and debt service for
the last fiscal year. Please include the beginning and end of the fiscal year if not using the calendar year.
Provide the median household income based on the most recent decennial census. The median household
income data can be found online at factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml.

Fill in the current rate for a 5,000 gallon user and what the estimated rate will be at project completion.

Provide the U.S. congressional district numbers, state senate and state representative district numbers for
the project area.

4. Check the appropriate box if the public water supply has a certified chief operator or an emergency
operations plan. Please provide a copy of your permit to dispense. If you do not have a permit to dispense,
visit dnr.mo.gov/forms and submit an application to:

Missouri Department of Natural Resources, Public Drinking Water Branch, P.O. Box 176, Jefferson City,
MO 65102-0176

5. Provide a brief project description.

6. Supply the cost estimates for the project. Land acquisition and easements may be eligible for a Drinking
Water State Revolving Fund Loan. Please call the department’s Financial Assistance Center at 573-751-
1192 or 800-361-4827 for additional guidance concerning requirements needed when acquiring land and
easements. NOTE: Do not assume any grant funds. If you list grant funding, please provide a copy of the
grant approval letter.

Provide a cost breakdown by category of need.

State the source of repayment for the loan and if it is in place and available at this time.

7. Provide information about existing or proposed ballot issues. If a bond or tax issue has already been voted,
please include the documentation related to the bond election for the project. The documentation should
include, at a minimum:

256

WS #3.

http://dnr.mo.gov/env/wpp/srf/index.html
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
http://dnr.mo.gov/forms/index.html#DrinkingWater
http://dnr.mo.gov/forms/index.html#DrinkingWater


− The minutes and notice of the meeting approving the ordinance/resolution calling the election; 

− The ordinance/resolution calling the election; 

− The notice to the election authority; 

− A copy of the official ballot; 

− Abstract of votes/certification of election results; 

− Affidavit of publication of the notice of election; and 

− The minutes and notice of the meeting approving the results of the election (if applicable). 

8. Provide a project schedule that will be used to determine the applicant’s readiness to proceed. Please 
review the Readiness to Proceed and Distribution of Funds Criteria fact sheet. 

9. Check all boxes that apply to the proposed project and include descriptions or additional comments as 
needed. Additional information from these descriptions and a preliminary engineering report will help 
determine priority. 

Note: Please look at the Missouri Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Priority Points Criteria fact sheet to 
help you to maximize the priority points received for the project. The priority ranking criteria is available at 
dnr.mo.gov/pubs/pub2362.pdf. 

Incomplete Applications will be Returned 
• Sign the application and attach any information that will enable the department to prioritize the drinking 

water needs. 

• If funds from the U.S. Department of Agriculture-Rural Development or Department of Economic 
Development - Community Development Block Grant Program will also be sought, please ensure that 
information is included with this application. 

• Make a copy of the completed application for you records. 

Mail the completed application to: Missouri Department of Natural Resources, Financial Assistance Center 
P.O. Box 176, Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 

For More Information 
Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
Water Protection Program 
Financial Assistance Center  
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 
800-361-4827 or 573-751-1192 
FAX: 573-751-9396 
www.dnr.mo.gov/env/wpp/srf/index.html 
 

257

WS #3.



MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
WATER PROTECTION PROGRAM, FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CENTER 
CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN APPLICATION 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
DATE RECEIVED  

FINANCIAL CODE 

This application is for a Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan described in 10 CSR 20-4.040. 
Submit application to Missouri Department of Natural Resources, Financial Assistance Center 
P.O. Box 176, Jefferson City, MO  65102-0176. Please type or print legibly. 

PRIORITY POINTS 

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION
NAME OF APPLICANT DUNS NUMBER 

 Incorporated Municipality  Public Water/Sewer District  Other: 
APPLICANT TELEPHONE NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

Ext. 
APPLICANT FAX NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

APPLICANT MAILING ADDRESS APPLICANT EMAIL  ADDRESS 

CITY STATE ZIP CODE + FOUR COUNTY 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE NAME AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TITLE 

NAME  OF PERSON TO CONTACT ABOUT THIS APPLICATION TELEPHONE NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

    Ext. 
2. ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING CONSULTANT INFORMATION
CONSULTING FIRM’S NAME CONSULTANT’S NAME 

CONSULTANT MAILING ADDRESS EMAIL  ADDRESS 

CITY STATE ZIP CODE + FOUR 

CONSULTANT TELEPHONE  NUMBER WITH AREA CODE

    Ext. 
CONSULTANT FAX NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

3. GENERAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
POPULATION (CURRENT CENSUS) POPULATION OF AREA TO BE SERVED 

U.S. CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT NUMBER(S) STATE SENATE DISTRICT NUMBER(S) STATE REPRESENTATIVE DISTRICT NUMBER(S) 

MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME (CURRENT CENSUS) NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 

CURRENT MONTHLY SEWER RATE (for 5,000 gallons)   PROPOSED MONTHLY SEWER RATE (for 5,000 gallons)

SEWER REVENUES FOR MOST RECENT YEAR ENDED FISCAL YEAR END FOR DATA USED ON APPLICATION

SEWER OPERATING EXPENDITURES FOR MOST RECENT YEAR 

SYSTEM OUTSTANDING DEBT
ANY DEBT HELD BY USDA RURAL DEVELOPMENT? 

 Yes  No 
EXISTING ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE

WHAT IS YOUR COLLECTION DELINQUENCY RATE? 

%
ARE YOU CURRENTLY FUNDING DEPRECIATION? 

 Yes  No 
FROM A FINANCIAL STANDPOINT, DO YOU HAVE A COMBINED WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM? 

 Yes  No 
Does the applicant have a fiscal sustainability plan?       Yes      No   See Form MO 780- 2661 (06-16) 
A fiscal sustainability plan or certification is not required when the department is purchasing debt obligations (e.g. municipal bonds) 

4. PROPOSED PROJECT INFORMATION

 Point Source Project  Non-Point Source Project 

 Green Project Components (See Instructions) Decentralized/Cluster Wastewater System 

Design-Build (See Instructions)       Yes        No 
On-Site System Rehabilitation/Replacement 

Other Non-Point Source Project 
MO 780-1951 (12-18) PAGE 1

$

$

$

$

$ $

City of Moberly 080020845

(660) 269-8171

101 West Reed Street dulmer@cityofmoberly.com

Moberly MO 65270 Randolph

Brian Crane City Manager

Dana Ulmer

Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc Tobin Lichti

501 North Broadway tobin.lichti@jacobs.com

St. Louis MO 63102

(314) 335-5141

13615 13615

4 18 6

39225 5268

66.34

2022

2001277.27

4830000

1060714.08

3.8

(660) 269-7659

(314) 335-4550

(660) 269-7659

66.34

3137984.51

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

258

WS #3.

lichtitw
Rectangle

lichtitw
Rectangle

lichtitw
Rectangle



 Project Description. Include Green Project Components, if applicable (Attach Engineering Report): 

5. PERMIT INFORMATION
List National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System, or NPDES, Permit Number(s) of Water or Wastewater facilities affected 
by this project: 

List Non-Permitted facilities to be eliminated by this project (attach list if necessary): 
Name Population Served Type and Condition of Facility 

6. PROJECT COST INFORMATION

Cost Estimate Dated:    Cost Breakdown for EPA Designated Categories 

Engineering Planning and Design $ I. Secondary Treatment $ 

Engineering (Construction Phase) $ II. Advanced Treatment $ 

Engineering Inspection $ IIIA. Inflow/Infiltration Correction $ 

Land and Easements $ IIIB. Sewer Rehabilitation $ 

Construction $ IVA. Collection Sewers $ 

Equipment $ IVB. Interceptor Sewers $ 

SRF Closing Costs (estimate 5 percent) $ V. Combined Sewer Overflow Correction $ 

Other Costs (specify) $ VI. Storm Water $ 

Contingencies $ VII. Non-Point Source $ 

Refinancing $ 
X. Effluent Recycling/Reuse Total

Project Costs
$ 

Total Project Costs $ Total Project Costs $ 

Funding Request (this application 
only) $ Funding Committed From Other Sources* $ 

* Documentation committing other funds must be submitted with the application.
7. DEBT INSTRUMENT
A. Bonds B. Capital Improvements Sales Tax
Date of Bond Election Date of Election  

Type of Bond 
Dedicated?      Yes        No 

Amount of Bond 
$ Sunset Provision?      Yes        No 

C. Other (specify):

MO 780-1951 (12-18)     PAGE 2 

1. Divert flow from Holman Rd CSO draining NW Moberly by constructing a regional lift station to consolidate 3 existing lift stations and
water treatment backwash flow. Goal is to reduce number combined sewer overflow events.
2.  Allow for regional connection from 3 other permitted entities along highway JJ to the west of Moberly. These currently have a history
of chronic non-compliance.
3.  By expanding the collection system to the west, other on-site systems will have access to sewer collection system and treatment
facilities, reducing the overall number of on-site systems int eh area.

MO-0117960 MO-0040827 MO-0035599

M-0045021 MO-0040819

On-site systems (multiple) On-site systems, lagoons

06/02/2020 06/02/2020

18000000

Revenue Bond ✔

✔

259

WS #3.



If a bond or tax issue has already been voted, please provide the following information. 

 Affidavit of Publication of the Notice of Election   Notice to Election Authority   Ordinance/Resolution Calling the Election  

 Copy of the Official Ballot   Certified Election Results (Abstract of Votes)  

 Minutes and Notice of Meeting Approving the Ordinance/Resolution    

8. BOARD TRAINING
List any board training(s) related to wastewater utility management that current board members have attended in the last 
three years: 

9. WATERSHED SUSTAINABILITY INFORMATION
WATER BODY AFFECTED BY PROPOSED PROJECT  Check if this is the receiving water body 

 Check if the body is classified 

 If affected water body is not classified, provide the
 nearest downstream water body     

Will the proposed project address an identified watershed problem?   Yes     No     If yes, provide supporting documentation. 

Does the proposed project serve more than one community?   Yes     No     If yes, identify communities: 

Does the proposed project eliminate the need for multiple wastewater treatment facilities?   Yes      No   

Does the proposed project include measures to reduce demand for POTW capacity through water conservation, efficiency, or reuse?   
 Yes      No     If yes, provide supporting documentation. 

Does the proposed project include components for reusing or recycling wastewater, stormwater, or subsurface drainage water? 
 Yes      No     If yes, provide supporting documentation. 

Does the proposed project include green infrastructure components?  Yes      No     If yes, provide supporting documentation. 

Does the proposed project include energy efficiency components?  Yes      No     If yes, provide supporting documentation. 

Does the proposed project address groundwater pollution?   Yes      No   

GROUNDWATER IS USED FOR: 

OTHER PROBLEMS ADDRESSED: 

MO 780-1951 (12-18)             PAGE 3 

✔

✔

✔ ✔

✔

Missouri Municipal League Annual Meeting, 2019, 2020
Missouri Rural Water Training
Tim Bruebaker

Sugar Creek Lake, Moberly Primary Drinking Water Source
■

■

■

■

■

■

✔

✔

✔

✔

260

WS #3.



10. PROJECT TYPE (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY)

  Combined sewer overflow/sanitary sewer overflow  Number of overflows per year:     

  Wastewater Treatment Facility (specify)                               Antidegradation report submitted?  Yes   No   N/A 

  New facility 

  Increase capacity/increase level of treatment 

  Rehabilitation/process improvement 

  Failing or failed on-site wastewater disposal system Percentage of systems failing:              % 

  On-site system replacement/rehabilitation 

  Construction of a decentralized wastewater system 

  New collection system  

  Collection system rehabilitation primarily to address inflow/infiltration 

  New collection system 

  Upgrade or expansion of existing collection system 

  Storm water detention 

  Agricultural Best Management Practice 

  Landfill capping, leachate collection, side slope seepage prevention and control system, and monitoring wells 

The project addresses groundwater pollution by:    

  Addressing problems caused by petroleum storage tanks 

  Addressing problems caused by a hazardous waste site participating in the department’s Voluntary Cleanup Program 

  Addressing water quality problems caused by inadequate landfill leachate collection systems 

The project considers aquatic/riparian habitat by:  

  Including measures to restore aquatic/riparian habitat and/or to prevent aquatic/riparian degradation 
11. PROJECT SCHEDULE REQUIRED BY 10 CSR 20-4.040 (attach compliance schedule if applicable)
Milestone Anticipated Date 

A. Antidegradation Report (any new, expanded or upgraded wastewater treatment)

B. Engineering Report and Facility Plan complete

C. All other funding is secured (if necessary, bonds are voted)

D. Engineering Plans and Specifications complete

E. Construction start date

F. Initiation of operations

G. Project completion date

12. THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS REQUIRED BY 10 CSR 20-4.040 AND MUST BE INCLUDED WITH THIS
APPLICATION FORM:

  A project summary that includes the need for the project : 

  The project components including maps or drawings showing the project location 

  A cost estimate including a cost breakdown 

  The most recent financial statement/audit 

MO 780-1951 (12-18) PAGE 4 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

40

261

WS #3.



13. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION – DOCUMENTATION MUST BE ATTACHED

User charge system budgets showing revenues and expenses for the past five years. 

Documentation showing that an inflow/infiltration reduction program has been in place for the fast five years. 

Water or Energy Conservation Plan 

Proposed project is specifically identified in the applicant’s master wastewater or capital improvement plan. (Master 
wastewater or capital improvement plan should be for a period of five or more years). 

Documentation indicating the percentage of failed on-site wastewater disposal systems to be replaced or rehabilitated.

Governing board has received training related to the management and operation of wastewater infrastructure in the last 
three years.

CERTIFICATION: 

The undersigned representative certifies that the information submitted in this application is true and correct to the best of his/her 
knowledge and that he/she is authorized to sign and submit this application. The applicant agrees, if a loan is awarded on the basis 
of this application, to comply with all applicable terms, conditions and procedures of the Department of Natural Resources, the 
applicable rules and regulations of the Missouri Clean Water Commission and the terms and conditions of the loan agreement.  
Incomplete applications will be returned. 
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE DATE 

NAME AND OFFICIAL TITLE (TYPE OR PRINT) TELEPHONE  NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 
    Ext. 

PREPARER’S NAME AND SIGNATURE (IF APPLICABLE) 
SIGNATURE OF PREPARER DATE 

NAME AND TITLE (PRINT OR TYPE) TELEPHONE  NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 
    Ext. 

MO 780-1951 (12-18) PAGE 5 

✔

✔

✔

Brian Crane

660-269-7659

660-269-9907660-269-9907

Dana Ulmer

✔

262

WS #3.



Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Application Instructions for Form 780-1951 
 
Note: Any funding assistance is subject to all State Revolving Fund (SRF) requirements. Potential applicants 
should contact the Missouri Department of Natural Resources’ Financial Assistance Center prior to 
completing and submitting an application. Please contact the Financial Assistance Center at 573-751-1192 or 
toll free at 800-361-4827. 
 
1. Print or type the applicant information. Include a street address if available. The applicant is the entity that 

will receive the loan funds, if awarded. Prior to receiving a loan, the entity must have a DUNS (Data 
Universal Numbering System) number. The DUNS number is a 9 digit number established and assigned 
by Dun and Bradstreet Inc., or D&B, to uniquely identify business entities. A DUNs number is available 
from D&B by telephone at 866-705-5711 or at http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform. The contact noted on the 
application should be knowledgeable about the application and able to be contacted during business hours. 
 

2. Include the engineering firm name and the name of the professional engineer working on the project. 
Engineering firms must be procured in accordance with RSMo. 8.285 – 8.291. 
 

3. The financial information will be used to determine the applicant’s financial capabilities to carry out the 
proposed project. Please provide the most accurate information available. 

 
Show the population of the entire service area. “The population to be served” will be different from the 
census population if the project is to sewer, or construct improvements in, a portion of the municipality or 
district.  
 
Provide the state senate, state representative, and congressional district number(s) for the project area. 
 
Provide the median household income based on the most recent decennial census.  
The median household income data can be found online at 
https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml. 
 
Provide the current user rate for a 5,000 gallon user and what the estimated rate will be at project 
completion. Use the proposed rate if the project area is currently unsewered.  
 
Please show the total sewer system revenues for the most recent year. Show when the accounting year 
ended if the fiscal year used is not the calendar year. If this is a new system, write in “new system.” 
 
Show the expenditures for the sewer system for the same fiscal year. 
 
Outstanding Debt – Show the total debt on the wastewater system, or combined system.  
Existing Annual Debt Service – Show annual payments (principal and interest) on all outstanding debt 
listed above. 
 
List any other types of debt instruments and funding sources such as Neighborhood Improvement District, 
or NID, U.S. Department of Agriculture-Rural Development, Community Development Block Grants, etc. 
Supporting documentation should be attached to the application. 
 
Collection delinquency rate is defined as bills that are never collected, not bills that don’t get paid by the 
due date but are eventually collected later. 
 
Check if the applicant has a combined water and sewer system. 

 
 
MO 780-1951 (09-18) 

263

WS #3.

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml


Check if the applicant has a fiscal sustainability plan for the project if it involves the repair, replacement, 
or expansion of a publicly owned treatment works. Please see Form MO 780-2661 for reference. 

 
4. Point source projects include those projects that directly or indirectly impact a National Pollutant 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), or NPDES, permitted facility. In addition, a proposed project 
that will ultimately result in the issuance of an NPDES permit is to be considered a point source project.  
A non-point source project is one that does not fit the point source project description, e.g., a project to 
rehabilitate or replace on-site wastewater systems, the construction of a decentralized (cluster) wastewater 
system, or riparian corridor restoration. Provide a brief project description. Green Project Components 
may include the following: 
 

• Management of stormwater runoff at the local level through the use of natural systems, or 
engineered systems that mimic natural systems, to treat polluted runoff.  

• Water or energy efficiency improvements. 
• Environmentally innovative activities. 

 
Check if the proposed project will be Design-Build as per Section 67.5070, RSMo. A “design-build 
contract” shall mean any contract that furnishes architecture or engineering services and construction 
services either directly or through subcontracts. 

 
5. List the wastewater discharge permit numbers for all facilities affected by the proposed project. 
 

List the non-permitted facilities to be eliminated by the proposed project. 
  

6. Supply the cost estimates for the project. Land acquisition, surface and subsurface easements, places to 
store equipment and material during construction, land needed to locate eligible projects, and land integral 
to the treatment process are eligible for SRF funding. Funding recipients must certify compliance with the 
Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Act of 1970, P.L, 91-646, as amended. Call for 
additional guidance if land acquisition is related to a project to address non-point source pollution.  
 
Provide a cost breakdown by category of need. 
 

7. Provide information on existing or proposed ballot issues. If a bond or tax issue has already been voted, 
provide copies of all items listed at the top of page 3. 
 
List other types of debt instruments and funding sources. 

 
8. List any board trainings related to wastewater management that your board members have attended in the 

last 3 years. 
 

9. Provide as much information as possible related to the watershed the project is located in, and the 
problems to be addressed by the project. Note if the water body is a classified water body per 10 CSR  
20-7.031. This information will be used in determining the project priority in relation to other applications 
for funding. 

 
10. Check the boxes that apply to the proposed project. 

 
11. Provide the anticipated dates for the milestones listed. Put N/A in the space if the milestone isn’t 

applicable to the project. 
 

MO 780-1951 (09-18) 

 

264

WS #3.



12. Information required by 10 CSR 20-4.040 must be submitted before the application will be prioritized.

This additional information, if provided, may allow for additional priority points. The applicant may
submit other project related information that the applicant feels should be submitted with the application.

Incomplete Applications Will Be Returned 

• Sign the application; attach any additional information that will enable the department to prioritize 
your wastewater needs.

• If you are using funds from U.S. Department of Agriculture-Rural Development or Department of 
Economic Development's Community Development Block Grant Program, be certain that you 
have included this information.

• Make a copy of the completed application for your records.

• Electronically transmitted applications will not be accepted.

• Mail the completed applications to:
   Missouri Department of Natural Resources 

Water Protection Program 
Financial Assistance Center 
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 

For More Information: 
Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
Water Protection Program 
Financial Assistance Center 
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 
800-361-4827 or 573-751-1192
FAX: 573-751-9396
www.dnr.mo.gov/env/wpp/srf/index.html

MO 780-1951 (09-18)

265

WS #3.

http://www.dnr.mo.gov/env/wpp/srf/index.html


266

WS #3.



267

WS #3.



268

WS #3.



269

WS #3.



270

WS #3.



271

WS #3.



272

WS #3.



273

WS #3.



274

WS #3.



275

WS #3.



276

WS #3.



277

WS #3.



278

WS #3.



279

WS #3.



280

WS #3.



281

WS #3.



282

WS #3.



283

WS #3.



284

WS #3.



285

WS #3.



286

WS #3.



287

WS #3.



288

WS #3.



289

WS #3.



290

WS #3.



291

WS #3.



292

WS #3.



293

WS #3.



294

WS #3.



295

WS #3.



296

WS #3.



297

WS #3.



298

WS #3.



299

WS #3.



300

WS #3.



301

WS #3.



302

WS #3.



303

WS #3.



304

WS #3.



305

WS #3.



306

WS #3.



307

WS #3.



308

WS #3.



309

WS #3.



310

WS #3.



311

WS #3.



312

WS #3.



313

WS #3.



314

WS #3.



315

WS #3.



316

WS #3.



317

WS #3.



318

WS #3.



319

WS #3.



320

WS #3.



321

WS #3.



322

WS #3.



323

WS #3.



CITY OF MOBERLY FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN BY DEPARTMENT Created: 3/31/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 BUDGET Revised: 6/25/2020

Revision # Final

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

City Clerk (100.002.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Document scanner $3,500 $3,500

Subtotal $3,500 $0 $0 $3,500 $0 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $700

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Community Development (100.005.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Housing services $50,000 $30,000 $20,000

Subdivision regulations update $30,000 $30,000

Street specifications & master plan $70,000 $70,000

Subtotal $150,000 $30,000 $20,000 $30,000 $70,000 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $24,000

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Police (100.007.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Body cameras & video storage system (mfg. financing) $83,623 $26,239 $19,128 $19,128 $19,128

Patrol car/SUV replacement $455,000 $75,000 $95,000 $95,000 $95,000 $95,000

Subtotal $538,623 $101,239 $19,128 $114,128 $114,128 $95,000 $95,000

Five Year Average = $87,477

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Fire (100.008.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Pumper truck lease-purchase (thru 2/2021) $124,168 $62,084 $62,084

12 SCBA with bottle & mask $81,600 $27,200 $27,200 $27,200

Triple combination pumper truck + equipment (8 year lease purchase 

2022-2030, $545K + interest) $515,000 $68,125 $68,125 $68,125 $68,125

78 foot quint pumper truck + equipment (8 year lease purchase 2022-

2030, $845K + interest) $845,000 $105,625 $105,625 $105,625 $105,625

Used aerial truck, 95' + $350,000 $350,000

Subtotal $1,915,768 $62,084 $89,284 $200,950 $550,950 $173,750 $173,750

Five Year Average = $237,737

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Street (100.009.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Machine shop equipment $30,000 $30,000

GeoMelt mixing station $15,000 $15,000

New shop air compressor $10,000 $10,000

Replace diagnostic software $11,500 $11,500

Replace 4-post vehicle lift $20,000 $20,000

Replace maintenance shop building (10 year financing) $1,500,000 $172,500 $172,500 $172,500

Replace truck garage building (10 year financing) $500,000 $57,500 $57,500 $57,500

Additional salt storage building (5 year financing) $100,000 $21,500 $21,500 $21,500

Subtotal $2,186,500 $0 $0 $86,500 $251,500 $251,500 $251,500

Five Year Average = $168,200

Page 1 of 5
324

WS #3.



CITY OF MOBERLY FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN BY DEPARTMENT Created: 3/31/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 BUDGET Revised: 6/25/2020

Revision # Final

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Cemetery (100.010.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Replace mowers & weedeaters $49,000 $9,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000

Subtotal $49,000 $9,000 $0 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000

Five Year Average = $8,000

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Emergency Management (100.012.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

2 emergency alert sirens $68,250 $26,180 $37,000 $26,000

Subtotal $68,250 $26,180 $0 $37,000 $26,000 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $12,600

General Fund subtotal $4,911,641 $228,503 $128,412 $482,078 $1,022,578 $530,250 $291,350

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Heritage Hills Golf Course (114.000.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

2 greens mowers $68,250 $85,000

Subtotal $68,250 $0 $85,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $17,000

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Parks (115.041.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Depot Park Pavilion and Restroom $190,000 $190,000

Pool fencing $16,000 $16,000

Concrete for solar pavilions (pool & Riley Pavilion) $80,000 $80,000

Truck replacement (2021= 2 trucks) $145,000 $25,000 $45,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000

UTV replacement $15,000 $15,000

Replace lighting on Rothwell fields $100,000 $50,000 $50,000

Skid steer loader replacement $45,000 $45,000

Replace mowers $3,600 $3,600

Subtotal $594,600 $25,000 $286,000 $110,000 $120,000 $28,600 $25,000

Five Year Average = $113,920

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Athletic Complex (115.048.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

UTV replacement $42,000 $10,000 $32,000

Field groomer $25,000 $25,000

Truck replacement $25,000 $25,000

Golf cart replacement $20,000 $20,000

Mower replacement $39,000 $15,000 $24,000

Subtotal $151,000 $25,000 $0 $57,000 $45,000 $24,000 $0

Five Year Average = $25,200

Page 2 of 5
325

WS #3.



CITY OF MOBERLY FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN BY DEPARTMENT Created: 3/31/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 BUDGET Revised: 6/25/2020

Revision # Final

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Utilities - Distribution & Collection (301.112.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Large Vactor truck replacement (4 year lease purchase) $235,752 $78,584 $78,584 $78,584

Pickup truck replacement $210,000 $35,000 $35,000 $70,000 $70,000

Water valve replacement program $300,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

JD backhoe replacement (3 year lease purchase) $120,000 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000

2005 dump truck replacement (3 year lease purchase) $100,000 $40,000 $30,000 $30,000

Backwater valve program $120,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000

2010 dump truck replacement (3 year lease purchase) $100,000 $40,000 $30,000 $30,000

Small Vactor truck replacement (4 year lease purchase) $300,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000

Case backhoe replacement (3 year lease purchase) $90,000 $45,000 $45,000

Large Vactor truck replacement (4 year lease purchase) $80,000 $80,000

Flow meters & smart covers (SRF project) $100,000 $50,000 $50,000

Sewer main rehabilitation projects (SRF project) $2,000,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

Subtotal $3,755,752 $163,584 $243,584 $298,584 $360,000 $255,000 $335,000

Five Year Average = $298,434

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Utilities - Water Treatment (301.113.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Filter & benchtop turbidimeter $20,000 $20,000

Truck replacement (Ranger) $40,000 $40,000

Pickup truck replacement (plant) $40,000 $40,000

Repair upflow clarifiers (SRF project) $550,000 $50,000 $500,000

Engineering for clearwell baffles (SRF project) $100,000 $100,000

Baffle in round clearwell (SRF project) $500,000 $500,000

Baffle in clearwell under plant (SRF project) $500,000 $500,000

Subtotal $1,750,000 $0 $20,000 $40,000 $40,000 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $20,000

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Utilities - Wastewater Treatment (301.114.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Replace sludge basin #1 mixers $50,000 $50,000

Roof replacements $100,000 $100,000

Replace sludge reel $50,000 $50,000

Clean Taylor Street CSO $50,000 $50,000

Replace digester mixers $120,000 $120,000

4" Trailer-mounted pump $45,000 $45,000

Zero-turn mower $12,000 $12,000

Pickup truck replacement $25,000 $25,000

Clean 7 Bridges lagoon (SRF project) $550,000 $550,000

Clean sludge basins @ plant (SRF project) $250,000 $250,000

Clean Rollins lagoon (SRF project) $350,000 $350,000

N Morley lift station upgrades (SRF project) $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Page 3 of 5
326

WS #3.



CITY OF MOBERLY FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN BY DEPARTMENT Created: 3/31/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 BUDGET Revised: 6/25/2020

Revision # Final

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Utilities - Wastewater Treatment (301.114.5502) {cont'd.} Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Northwest pump station (SRF Project) $2,950,000 $150,000 $2,800,000

Biosolids land application improvements (SRF project) $300,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000

Darwood lift station screen (SRF project) $250,000 $250,000

Replace East Rollins lift station (SRF project) $2,230,000 $390,000 $1,840,000

Heritage Hills sewer connection (SRF project) $350,000 $350,000

Subtotal $8,682,000 $0 $250,000 $202,000 $0 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $90,400

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Trust (304.000.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

N Morley/Hwy 24 water main/sidewalk project $200,000 $200,000

Plumrose booster pump station $500,000 $500,000

Sugar Creek Lake dam repairs $400,000 $400,000

Harrison Ave. & Garfield Ave. water mains $600,000 $400,000 $200,000

GIS system upgrades $240,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000

Downtown NID payments (2021-2038) $402,500 $80,500 $80,500 $80,500 $80,500 $80,500

Sturgeon St water main replacement (SRF project) $700,000 $700,000

S Morley water main replacement (SRF project) $1,600,000 $1,600,000

Sparks Avenue lift station (SRF project) $625,000 $625,000

Logan St water main loop (SRF project) $2,350,000 $200,000 $2,150,000

Subtotal $7,617,500 $600,000 $1,260,500 $160,500 $160,500 $80,500 $80,500

Five Year Average = $348,500

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Emergency Telephone Fund (400.000.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

MC550 Two Position Dispatch Radio $160,338 $127,470 $32,868

Subtotal $160,338 $127,470 $32,868 $0 $0 $0 $348,500

Five Year Average = $76,274

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Transportation Trust (600.000.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Street overlay/slurry seal $3,500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $550,000 $600,000 $650,000 $700,000

Repave maintenance facility parking lot $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $3,550,000 $500,000 $500,000 $550,000 $650,000 $650,000 $700,000

Five Year Average = $610,000

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Street Improvement (601.000.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Small equipment $19,000 $8,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $3,000

Pickups/utility trucks replacement $247,000 $44,000 $35,000 $36,000 $47,000 $47,000 $38,000

Snow plows for trucks (8) $43,500 $6,000 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

Salt machines for light trucks $36,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000

1 ton truck with utility body for tool storage (2 year financing) $57,000 $28,500 $28,500

Page 4 of 5
327

WS #3.

lichtitw
Highlight

lichtitw
Arrow

lichtitw
Text Box
Project in 5 year CIP



CITY OF MOBERLY FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN BY DEPARTMENT Created: 3/31/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 BUDGET Revised: 6/25/2020

Revision # Final

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Street Improvement (601.000.5502) {cont'd.} Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Used tandem axle dump truck with snow plow (3 year fin.) $135,000 $45,000 $45,000 $45,000

Sickle mower - mid mount $20,000 $20,000

Skid loader with brush hog & plow (2 year financing) $76,000 $38,000 $38,000

Replace traffic control equipment (cones, signs, barricades, etc.) $10,000 $10,000

Waste oil furnace with oil tank $8,500 $8,500

Tilt deck trailer $7,500 $7,500

Replace street sweeper $108,000 $36,000 $36,000 $36,000

6-way rear hydraulic blade for John Deere tractor $8,000 $8,000

Forklift $20,000 $20,000

Wheel loader replacement $100,000 $50,000 $50,000

New single axle dump truck, spreader, & plow (3 year fin.) $165,000 $55,000 $55,000 $55,000

New single axle dump truck, spreader, & plow (3 year fin.) $165,000 $55,000 $55,000

1,000cc 4x4 UTV $27,000 $12,000 $15,000

Subtotal $345,500 $64,000 $272,000 $51,500 $62,500 $62,500 $54,500

Five Year Average = $100,600

GRAND TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS $32,493,581 $1,745,557 $8,503,364 $7,094,162 $8,586,578 $2,240,850 $1,070,850

Note: Items in red in departments 301.112, 301.113, 301.114, and 304.000 noted as SRF projects will be funded by the SRF (State Revolving Fund) program as a result of the 

         June 2, 2020 election in which the Moberly citizens authorized the issuance of $18 million in bonds for water & sewer system repairs. This program offers federally

         subsidized low-interest loans for municipalities to reduce the burden of replacing and repairing aging water and sewer infrastructure. These amounts are not included in

         the annual totals for items in each department.

Page 5 of 5
328

WS #3.



1

Lichti, Tobin

From: Mary West <mwc@cityofmoberly.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 10, 2021 3:10 PM
To: Lichti, Tobin
Subject: [EXTERNAL] water and energy efficiency projects

Tobin,

As part of the water and energy efficiency projects completed last year the City contracted for the following work (all
were approved for BizSaver grants from Ameren):

Replaced 3-100 hp blowers and installed variable frequency drives for the blowers at the Wastewater Treatment Plant
Replaced all air diffuser socks at the WWTF to increase air exchange efficiency
Installed solar panels at several wastewater facilities including lift stations and the wastewater plant

Installed 3 VFDs on 100 hp high service pumps at the Water Plant including upgraded motor control center
Installed solar panels at the Water Treatment Plant,  and the Pump House at Sugar Creek Lake
Upgraded icontrol programming/PLC/Scada and firewalls at water towers and pump house

The solar projects were completed in 2019.

We are also in the process of replacing all water meters in the system and installing new AMI meter reading equipment
and software.  This is anticipated to help our non-revenue water problem, and thereby increasing water and sewer
revenues. This work included a full system inventory of lead service lines to allow for a schedule to replace the lead
service lines that the City maintains between the meter and the main.  We hope by achieving better meter accuracy we
will be able to identify loss due to leaks and begin an aggressive leak detection program to target repairs.

Sincerely,
Mary West-Calcagno
Director of Public Utilities
City of Moberly, MO
(660) 269-7659
mwc@cityofmoberly.com

What people believe prevails over truth.  Sophocles

329

WS #3.



MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
WATER PROTECTION PROGRAM, FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CENTER 
CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN APPLICATION 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
DATE RECEIVED  

FINANCIAL CODE 

This application is for a Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan described in 10 CSR 20-4.040. 
Submit application to Missouri Department of Natural Resources, Financial Assistance Center 
P.O. Box 176, Jefferson City, MO  65102-0176. Please type or print legibly. 

PRIORITY POINTS 

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION
NAME OF APPLICANT DUNS NUMBER 

 Incorporated Municipality  Public Water/Sewer District  Other: 
APPLICANT TELEPHONE NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

Ext. 
APPLICANT FAX NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

APPLICANT MAILING ADDRESS APPLICANT EMAIL  ADDRESS 

CITY STATE ZIP CODE + FOUR COUNTY 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE NAME AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TITLE 

NAME  OF PERSON TO CONTACT ABOUT THIS APPLICATION TELEPHONE NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

    Ext. 
2. ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING CONSULTANT INFORMATION
CONSULTING FIRM’S NAME CONSULTANT’S NAME 

CONSULTANT MAILING ADDRESS EMAIL  ADDRESS 

CITY STATE ZIP CODE + FOUR 

CONSULTANT TELEPHONE  NUMBER WITH AREA CODE

    Ext. 
CONSULTANT FAX NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 

3. GENERAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
POPULATION (CURRENT CENSUS) POPULATION OF AREA TO BE SERVED 

U.S. CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT NUMBER(S) STATE SENATE DISTRICT NUMBER(S) STATE REPRESENTATIVE DISTRICT NUMBER(S) 

MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME (CURRENT CENSUS) NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 

CURRENT MONTHLY SEWER RATE (for 5,000 gallons)   PROPOSED MONTHLY SEWER RATE (for 5,000 gallons)

SEWER REVENUES FOR MOST RECENT YEAR ENDED FISCAL YEAR END FOR DATA USED ON APPLICATION

SEWER OPERATING EXPENDITURES FOR MOST RECENT YEAR 

SYSTEM OUTSTANDING DEBT
ANY DEBT HELD BY USDA RURAL DEVELOPMENT? 

 Yes  No 
EXISTING ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE

WHAT IS YOUR COLLECTION DELINQUENCY RATE? 

%
ARE YOU CURRENTLY FUNDING DEPRECIATION? 

 Yes  No 
FROM A FINANCIAL STANDPOINT, DO YOU HAVE A COMBINED WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM? 

 Yes  No 
Does the applicant have a fiscal sustainability plan?       Yes      No   See Form MO 780- 2661 (06-16) 
A fiscal sustainability plan or certification is not required when the department is purchasing debt obligations (e.g. municipal bonds) 

4. PROPOSED PROJECT INFORMATION

 Point Source Project  Non-Point Source Project 

 Green Project Components (See Instructions) Decentralized/Cluster Wastewater System 

Design-Build (See Instructions)       Yes        No 
On-Site System Rehabilitation/Replacement 

Other Non-Point Source Project 
MO 780-1951 (12-18) PAGE 1

$

$

$

$

$ $

City of Moberly 080020845

(660) 269-8171

101 West Reed Street dulmer@cityofmoberly.com

Moberly MO 65270 Randolph

Brian Crane City Manager

Dana Ulmer

Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc Tobin Lichti

501 North Broadway tobin.lichti@jacobs.com

St. Louis MO 63102

(314) 335-5141

13615 13615

4 18 6

39225 5268

66.34

2022

2001277.27

4830000

1060714.08

3.8

(660) 269-7659

(314) 335-4550

(660) 269-7659

66.34

3137984.51

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

330

WS #3.

lichtitw
Rectangle

lichtitw
Rectangle

lichtitw
Rectangle



 Project Description. Include Green Project Components, if applicable (Attach Engineering Report): 

5. PERMIT INFORMATION
List National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System, or NPDES, Permit Number(s) of Water or Wastewater facilities affected 
by this project: 

List Non-Permitted facilities to be eliminated by this project (attach list if necessary): 
Name Population Served Type and Condition of Facility 

6. PROJECT COST INFORMATION

Cost Estimate Dated:    Cost Breakdown for EPA Designated Categories 

Engineering Planning and Design $ I. Secondary Treatment $ 

Engineering (Construction Phase) $ II. Advanced Treatment $ 

Engineering Inspection $ IIIA. Inflow/Infiltration Correction $ 

Land and Easements $ IIIB. Sewer Rehabilitation $ 

Construction $ IVA. Collection Sewers $ 

Equipment $ IVB. Interceptor Sewers $ 

SRF Closing Costs (estimate 5 percent) $ V. Combined Sewer Overflow Correction $ 

Other Costs (specify) $ VI. Storm Water $ 

Contingencies $ VII. Non-Point Source $ 

Refinancing $ 
X. Effluent Recycling/Reuse Total

Project Costs
$ 

Total Project Costs $ Total Project Costs $ 

Funding Request (this application 
only) $ Funding Committed From Other Sources* $ 

* Documentation committing other funds must be submitted with the application.
7. DEBT INSTRUMENT
A. Bonds B. Capital Improvements Sales Tax
Date of Bond Election Date of Election  

Type of Bond 
Dedicated?      Yes        No 

Amount of Bond 
$ Sunset Provision?      Yes        No 

C. Other (specify):

MO 780-1951 (12-18)     PAGE 2 

Rollins Street CSO Basin and Lift Station serves to control flows from a Moberly combined sewer and discharge to the WWTP influent in
a user controlled rate.  This rate control is now manual, with only gross control available.  The project seeks to achieve finite flow control
with remote monitoring of flow rate and PLC control of same.  Additional elements of the project will include basin sludge removal, raising
of operating level, new lift station with pump VFDs and PLC control system, and odor control as the site is very near both residential and
local hospital. The addition of in-line grinding to two lift stations for pump protection at both McKinsey LS and Darwood LS.

MO-0117960 MO-0095605 MO-0035599

M-0045021

12/16/2019

06/02/2020 06/02/2020

18000000

Revenue Bond ✔

✔

331

WS #3.



If a bond or tax issue has already been voted, please provide the following information. 

 Affidavit of Publication of the Notice of Election   Notice to Election Authority   Ordinance/Resolution Calling the Election  

 Copy of the Official Ballot   Certified Election Results (Abstract of Votes)  

 Minutes and Notice of Meeting Approving the Ordinance/Resolution    

8. BOARD TRAINING
List any board training(s) related to wastewater utility management that current board members have attended in the last 
three years: 

9. WATERSHED SUSTAINABILITY INFORMATION
WATER BODY AFFECTED BY PROPOSED PROJECT  Check if this is the receiving water body 

 Check if the body is classified 

 If affected water body is not classified, provide the
 nearest downstream water body     

Will the proposed project address an identified watershed problem?   Yes     No     If yes, provide supporting documentation. 

Does the proposed project serve more than one community?   Yes     No     If yes, identify communities: 

Does the proposed project eliminate the need for multiple wastewater treatment facilities?   Yes      No   

Does the proposed project include measures to reduce demand for POTW capacity through water conservation, efficiency, or reuse?   
 Yes      No     If yes, provide supporting documentation. 

Does the proposed project include components for reusing or recycling wastewater, stormwater, or subsurface drainage water? 
 Yes      No     If yes, provide supporting documentation. 

Does the proposed project include green infrastructure components?  Yes      No     If yes, provide supporting documentation. 

Does the proposed project include energy efficiency components?  Yes      No     If yes, provide supporting documentation. 

Does the proposed project address groundwater pollution?   Yes      No   

GROUNDWATER IS USED FOR: 

OTHER PROBLEMS ADDRESSED: 

MO 780-1951 (12-18)             PAGE 3 

✔

✔

✔ ✔

✔

Missouri Municipal League Annual Meeting, 2019, 2020
Missouri Rural Water Training
Cole Davis
Tim Bruebaker

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

✔

✔

✔

✔

332

WS #3.



10. PROJECT TYPE (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY)

  Combined sewer overflow/sanitary sewer overflow  Number of overflows per year:     

  Wastewater Treatment Facility (specify)                               Antidegradation report submitted?  Yes   No   N/A 

  New facility 

  Increase capacity/increase level of treatment 

  Rehabilitation/process improvement 

  Failing or failed on-site wastewater disposal system Percentage of systems failing:              % 

  On-site system replacement/rehabilitation 

  Construction of a decentralized wastewater system 

  New collection system  

  Collection system rehabilitation primarily to address inflow/infiltration 

  New collection system 

  Upgrade or expansion of existing collection system 

  Storm water detention 

  Agricultural Best Management Practice 

  Landfill capping, leachate collection, side slope seepage prevention and control system, and monitoring wells 

The project addresses groundwater pollution by:    

  Addressing problems caused by petroleum storage tanks 

  Addressing problems caused by a hazardous waste site participating in the department’s Voluntary Cleanup Program 

  Addressing water quality problems caused by inadequate landfill leachate collection systems 

The project considers aquatic/riparian habitat by:  

  Including measures to restore aquatic/riparian habitat and/or to prevent aquatic/riparian degradation 
11. PROJECT SCHEDULE REQUIRED BY 10 CSR 20-4.040 (attach compliance schedule if applicable)
Milestone Anticipated Date 

A. Antidegradation Report (any new, expanded or upgraded wastewater treatment)

B. Engineering Report and Facility Plan complete

C. All other funding is secured (if necessary, bonds are voted)

D. Engineering Plans and Specifications complete

E. Construction start date

F. Initiation of operations

G. Project completion date

12. THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS REQUIRED BY 10 CSR 20-4.040 AND MUST BE INCLUDED WITH THIS
APPLICATION FORM:

  A project summary that includes the need for the project : 

  The project components including maps or drawings showing the project location 

  A cost estimate including a cost breakdown 

  The most recent financial statement/audit 

MO 780-1951 (12-18) PAGE 4 

12✔

✔

2/29/2020

✔

✔

✔

✔

333

WS #3.

lichtitw
Text Box
Facility plan sent with application



13. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION – DOCUMENTATION MUST BE ATTACHED

User charge system budgets showing revenues and expenses for the past five years. 

Documentation showing that an inflow/infiltration reduction program has been in place for the fast five years. 

Water or Energy Conservation Plan 

Proposed project is specifically identified in the applicant’s master wastewater or capital improvement plan. (Master 
wastewater or capital improvement plan should be for a period of five or more years). 

Documentation indicating the percentage of failed on-site wastewater disposal systems to be replaced or rehabilitated.

Governing board has received training related to the management and operation of wastewater infrastructure in the last 
three years.

CERTIFICATION: 

The undersigned representative certifies that the information submitted in this application is true and correct to the best of his/her 
knowledge and that he/she is authorized to sign and submit this application. The applicant agrees, if a loan is awarded on the basis 
of this application, to comply with all applicable terms, conditions and procedures of the Department of Natural Resources, the 
applicable rules and regulations of the Missouri Clean Water Commission and the terms and conditions of the loan agreement.  
Incomplete applications will be returned. 
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE DATE 

NAME AND OFFICIAL TITLE (TYPE OR PRINT) TELEPHONE  NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 
    Ext. 

PREPARER’S NAME AND SIGNATURE (IF APPLICABLE) 
SIGNATURE OF PREPARER DATE 

NAME AND TITLE (PRINT OR TYPE) TELEPHONE  NUMBER WITH AREA CODE 
    Ext. 

MO 780-1951 (12-18) PAGE 5 

✔

✔

✔

334

WS #3.



Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Application Instructions for Form 780-1951 
 
Note: Any funding assistance is subject to all State Revolving Fund (SRF) requirements. Potential applicants 
should contact the Missouri Department of Natural Resources’ Financial Assistance Center prior to 
completing and submitting an application. Please contact the Financial Assistance Center at 573-751-1192 or 
toll free at 800-361-4827. 
 
1. Print or type the applicant information. Include a street address if available. The applicant is the entity that 

will receive the loan funds, if awarded. Prior to receiving a loan, the entity must have a DUNS (Data 
Universal Numbering System) number. The DUNS number is a 9 digit number established and assigned 
by Dun and Bradstreet Inc., or D&B, to uniquely identify business entities. A DUNs number is available 
from D&B by telephone at 866-705-5711 or at http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform. The contact noted on the 
application should be knowledgeable about the application and able to be contacted during business hours. 
 

2. Include the engineering firm name and the name of the professional engineer working on the project. 
Engineering firms must be procured in accordance with RSMo. 8.285 – 8.291. 
 

3. The financial information will be used to determine the applicant’s financial capabilities to carry out the 
proposed project. Please provide the most accurate information available. 

 
Show the population of the entire service area. “The population to be served” will be different from the 
census population if the project is to sewer, or construct improvements in, a portion of the municipality or 
district.  
 
Provide the state senate, state representative, and congressional district number(s) for the project area. 
 
Provide the median household income based on the most recent decennial census.  
The median household income data can be found online at 
https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml. 
 
Provide the current user rate for a 5,000 gallon user and what the estimated rate will be at project 
completion. Use the proposed rate if the project area is currently unsewered.  
 
Please show the total sewer system revenues for the most recent year. Show when the accounting year 
ended if the fiscal year used is not the calendar year. If this is a new system, write in “new system.” 
 
Show the expenditures for the sewer system for the same fiscal year. 
 
Outstanding Debt – Show the total debt on the wastewater system, or combined system.  
Existing Annual Debt Service – Show annual payments (principal and interest) on all outstanding debt 
listed above. 
 
List any other types of debt instruments and funding sources such as Neighborhood Improvement District, 
or NID, U.S. Department of Agriculture-Rural Development, Community Development Block Grants, etc. 
Supporting documentation should be attached to the application. 
 
Collection delinquency rate is defined as bills that are never collected, not bills that don’t get paid by the 
due date but are eventually collected later. 
 
Check if the applicant has a combined water and sewer system. 

 
 
MO 780-1951 (09-18) 

335

WS #3.

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml


Check if the applicant has a fiscal sustainability plan for the project if it involves the repair, replacement, 
or expansion of a publicly owned treatment works. Please see Form MO 780-2661 for reference. 

 
4. Point source projects include those projects that directly or indirectly impact a National Pollutant 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), or NPDES, permitted facility. In addition, a proposed project 
that will ultimately result in the issuance of an NPDES permit is to be considered a point source project.  
A non-point source project is one that does not fit the point source project description, e.g., a project to 
rehabilitate or replace on-site wastewater systems, the construction of a decentralized (cluster) wastewater 
system, or riparian corridor restoration. Provide a brief project description. Green Project Components 
may include the following: 
 

• Management of stormwater runoff at the local level through the use of natural systems, or 
engineered systems that mimic natural systems, to treat polluted runoff.  

• Water or energy efficiency improvements. 
• Environmentally innovative activities. 

 
Check if the proposed project will be Design-Build as per Section 67.5070, RSMo. A “design-build 
contract” shall mean any contract that furnishes architecture or engineering services and construction 
services either directly or through subcontracts. 

 
5. List the wastewater discharge permit numbers for all facilities affected by the proposed project. 
 

List the non-permitted facilities to be eliminated by the proposed project. 
  

6. Supply the cost estimates for the project. Land acquisition, surface and subsurface easements, places to 
store equipment and material during construction, land needed to locate eligible projects, and land integral 
to the treatment process are eligible for SRF funding. Funding recipients must certify compliance with the 
Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Act of 1970, P.L, 91-646, as amended. Call for 
additional guidance if land acquisition is related to a project to address non-point source pollution.  
 
Provide a cost breakdown by category of need. 
 

7. Provide information on existing or proposed ballot issues. If a bond or tax issue has already been voted, 
provide copies of all items listed at the top of page 3. 
 
List other types of debt instruments and funding sources. 

 
8. List any board trainings related to wastewater management that your board members have attended in the 

last 3 years. 
 

9. Provide as much information as possible related to the watershed the project is located in, and the 
problems to be addressed by the project. Note if the water body is a classified water body per 10 CSR  
20-7.031. This information will be used in determining the project priority in relation to other applications 
for funding. 

 
10. Check the boxes that apply to the proposed project. 

 
11. Provide the anticipated dates for the milestones listed. Put N/A in the space if the milestone isn’t 

applicable to the project. 
 

MO 780-1951 (09-18) 

 

336

WS #3.



12. Information required by 10 CSR 20-4.040 must be submitted before the application will be prioritized.

This additional information, if provided, may allow for additional priority points. The applicant may
submit other project related information that the applicant feels should be submitted with the application.

Incomplete Applications Will Be Returned 

• Sign the application; attach any additional information that will enable the department to prioritize 
your wastewater needs.

• If you are using funds from U.S. Department of Agriculture-Rural Development or Department of 
Economic Development's Community Development Block Grant Program, be certain that you 
have included this information.

• Make a copy of the completed application for your records.

• Electronically transmitted applications will not be accepted.

• Mail the completed applications to:
   Missouri Department of Natural Resources 

Water Protection Program 
Financial Assistance Center 
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 

For More Information: 
Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
Water Protection Program 
Financial Assistance Center 
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 
800-361-4827 or 573-751-1192
FAX: 573-751-9396
www.dnr.mo.gov/env/wpp/srf/index.html

MO 780-1951 (09-18)

337

WS #3.

http://www.dnr.mo.gov/env/wpp/srf/index.html


338

WS #3.



339

WS #3.



340

WS #3.



341

WS #3.



342

WS #3.



343

WS #3.



344

WS #3.



345

WS #3.



346

WS #3.



347

WS #3.



348

WS #3.



349

WS #3.



350

WS #3.



351

WS #3.



352

WS #3.



353

WS #3.



354

WS #3.



355

WS #3.



356

WS #3.



357

WS #3.



358

WS #3.



359

WS #3.



360

WS #3.



361

WS #3.



362

WS #3.



363

WS #3.



364

WS #3.



365

WS #3.



366

WS #3.



367

WS #3.



368

WS #3.



369

WS #3.



370

WS #3.



371

WS #3.



372

WS #3.



373

WS #3.



374

WS #3.



375

WS #3.



376

WS #3.



377

WS #3.



378

WS #3.



379

WS #3.



380

WS #3.



381

WS #3.



382

WS #3.



383

WS #3.



384

WS #3.



385

WS #3.



386

WS #3.



387

WS #3.



388

WS #3.



389

WS #3.



390

WS #3.



391

WS #3.



392

WS #3.



393

WS #3.



394

WS #3.



395

WS #3.



CITY OF MOBERLY FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN BY DEPARTMENT Created: 3/31/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 BUDGET Revised: 6/25/2020

Revision # Final

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

City Clerk (100.002.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Document scanner $3,500 $3,500

Subtotal $3,500 $0 $0 $3,500 $0 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $700

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Community Development (100.005.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Housing services $50,000 $30,000 $20,000

Subdivision regulations update $30,000 $30,000

Street specifications & master plan $70,000 $70,000

Subtotal $150,000 $30,000 $20,000 $30,000 $70,000 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $24,000

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Police (100.007.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Body cameras & video storage system (mfg. financing) $83,623 $26,239 $19,128 $19,128 $19,128

Patrol car/SUV replacement $455,000 $75,000 $95,000 $95,000 $95,000 $95,000

Subtotal $538,623 $101,239 $19,128 $114,128 $114,128 $95,000 $95,000

Five Year Average = $87,477

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Fire (100.008.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Pumper truck lease-purchase (thru 2/2021) $124,168 $62,084 $62,084

12 SCBA with bottle & mask $81,600 $27,200 $27,200 $27,200

Triple combination pumper truck + equipment (8 year lease purchase 

2022-2030, $545K + interest) $515,000 $68,125 $68,125 $68,125 $68,125

78 foot quint pumper truck + equipment (8 year lease purchase 2022-

2030, $845K + interest) $845,000 $105,625 $105,625 $105,625 $105,625

Used aerial truck, 95' + $350,000 $350,000

Subtotal $1,915,768 $62,084 $89,284 $200,950 $550,950 $173,750 $173,750

Five Year Average = $237,737

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Street (100.009.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Machine shop equipment $30,000 $30,000

GeoMelt mixing station $15,000 $15,000

New shop air compressor $10,000 $10,000

Replace diagnostic software $11,500 $11,500

Replace 4-post vehicle lift $20,000 $20,000

Replace maintenance shop building (10 year financing) $1,500,000 $172,500 $172,500 $172,500

Replace truck garage building (10 year financing) $500,000 $57,500 $57,500 $57,500

Additional salt storage building (5 year financing) $100,000 $21,500 $21,500 $21,500

Subtotal $2,186,500 $0 $0 $86,500 $251,500 $251,500 $251,500

Five Year Average = $168,200

Page 1 of 5
396

WS #3.



CITY OF MOBERLY FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN BY DEPARTMENT Created: 3/31/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 BUDGET Revised: 6/25/2020

Revision # Final

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Cemetery (100.010.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Replace mowers & weedeaters $49,000 $9,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000

Subtotal $49,000 $9,000 $0 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000

Five Year Average = $8,000

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Emergency Management (100.012.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

2 emergency alert sirens $68,250 $26,180 $37,000 $26,000

Subtotal $68,250 $26,180 $0 $37,000 $26,000 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $12,600

General Fund subtotal $4,911,641 $228,503 $128,412 $482,078 $1,022,578 $530,250 $291,350

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Heritage Hills Golf Course (114.000.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

2 greens mowers $68,250 $85,000

Subtotal $68,250 $0 $85,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $17,000

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Parks (115.041.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Depot Park Pavilion and Restroom $190,000 $190,000

Pool fencing $16,000 $16,000

Concrete for solar pavilions (pool & Riley Pavilion) $80,000 $80,000

Truck replacement (2021= 2 trucks) $145,000 $25,000 $45,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000

UTV replacement $15,000 $15,000

Replace lighting on Rothwell fields $100,000 $50,000 $50,000

Skid steer loader replacement $45,000 $45,000

Replace mowers $3,600 $3,600

Subtotal $594,600 $25,000 $286,000 $110,000 $120,000 $28,600 $25,000

Five Year Average = $113,920

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Athletic Complex (115.048.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

UTV replacement $42,000 $10,000 $32,000

Field groomer $25,000 $25,000

Truck replacement $25,000 $25,000

Golf cart replacement $20,000 $20,000

Mower replacement $39,000 $15,000 $24,000

Subtotal $151,000 $25,000 $0 $57,000 $45,000 $24,000 $0

Five Year Average = $25,200

Page 2 of 5
397

WS #3.



CITY OF MOBERLY FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN BY DEPARTMENT Created: 3/31/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 BUDGET Revised: 6/25/2020

Revision # Final

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Utilities - Distribution & Collection (301.112.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Large Vactor truck replacement (4 year lease purchase) $235,752 $78,584 $78,584 $78,584

Pickup truck replacement $210,000 $35,000 $35,000 $70,000 $70,000

Water valve replacement program $300,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

JD backhoe replacement (3 year lease purchase) $120,000 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000

2005 dump truck replacement (3 year lease purchase) $100,000 $40,000 $30,000 $30,000

Backwater valve program $120,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000

2010 dump truck replacement (3 year lease purchase) $100,000 $40,000 $30,000 $30,000

Small Vactor truck replacement (4 year lease purchase) $300,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000

Case backhoe replacement (3 year lease purchase) $90,000 $45,000 $45,000

Large Vactor truck replacement (4 year lease purchase) $80,000 $80,000

Flow meters & smart covers (SRF project) $100,000 $50,000 $50,000

Sewer main rehabilitation projects (SRF project) $2,000,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

Subtotal $3,755,752 $163,584 $243,584 $298,584 $360,000 $255,000 $335,000

Five Year Average = $298,434

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Utilities - Water Treatment (301.113.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Filter & benchtop turbidimeter $20,000 $20,000

Truck replacement (Ranger) $40,000 $40,000

Pickup truck replacement (plant) $40,000 $40,000

Repair upflow clarifiers (SRF project) $550,000 $50,000 $500,000

Engineering for clearwell baffles (SRF project) $100,000 $100,000

Baffle in round clearwell (SRF project) $500,000 $500,000

Baffle in clearwell under plant (SRF project) $500,000 $500,000

Subtotal $1,750,000 $0 $20,000 $40,000 $40,000 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $20,000

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Utilities - Wastewater Treatment (301.114.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Replace sludge basin #1 mixers $50,000 $50,000

Roof replacements $100,000 $100,000

Replace sludge reel $50,000 $50,000

Clean Taylor Street CSO $50,000 $50,000

Replace digester mixers $120,000 $120,000

4" Trailer-mounted pump $45,000 $45,000

Zero-turn mower $12,000 $12,000

Pickup truck replacement $25,000 $25,000

Clean 7 Bridges lagoon (SRF project) $550,000 $550,000

Clean sludge basins @ plant (SRF project) $250,000 $250,000

Clean Rollins lagoon (SRF project) $350,000 $350,000

N Morley lift station upgrades (SRF project) $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Page 3 of 5
398

WS #3.



CITY OF MOBERLY FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN BY DEPARTMENT Created: 3/31/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 BUDGET Revised: 6/25/2020

Revision # Final

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Utilities - Wastewater Treatment (301.114.5502) {cont'd.} Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Northwest pump station (SRF Project) $2,950,000 $150,000 $2,800,000

Biosolids land application improvements (SRF project) $300,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000

Darwood lift station screen (SRF project) $250,000 $250,000

Replace East Rollins lift station (SRF project) $2,230,000 $390,000 $1,840,000

Heritage Hills sewer connection (SRF project) $350,000 $350,000

Subtotal $8,682,000 $0 $250,000 $202,000 $0 $0 $0

Five Year Average = $90,400

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Trust (304.000.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

N Morley/Hwy 24 water main/sidewalk project $200,000 $200,000

Plumrose booster pump station $500,000 $500,000

Sugar Creek Lake dam repairs $400,000 $400,000

Harrison Ave. & Garfield Ave. water mains $600,000 $400,000 $200,000

GIS system upgrades $240,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000

Downtown NID payments (2021-2038) $402,500 $80,500 $80,500 $80,500 $80,500 $80,500

Sturgeon St water main replacement (SRF project) $700,000 $700,000

S Morley water main replacement (SRF project) $1,600,000 $1,600,000

Sparks Avenue lift station (SRF project) $625,000 $625,000

Logan St water main loop (SRF project) $2,350,000 $200,000 $2,150,000

Subtotal $7,617,500 $600,000 $1,260,500 $160,500 $160,500 $80,500 $80,500

Five Year Average = $348,500

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Emergency Telephone Fund (400.000.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

MC550 Two Position Dispatch Radio $160,338 $127,470 $32,868

Subtotal $160,338 $127,470 $32,868 $0 $0 $0 $348,500

Five Year Average = $76,274

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Transportation Trust (600.000.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Street overlay/slurry seal $3,500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $550,000 $600,000 $650,000 $700,000

Repave maintenance facility parking lot $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $3,550,000 $500,000 $500,000 $550,000 $650,000 $650,000 $700,000

Five Year Average = $610,000

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Street Improvement (601.000.5502) Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Small equipment $19,000 $8,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $3,000

Pickups/utility trucks replacement $247,000 $44,000 $35,000 $36,000 $47,000 $47,000 $38,000

Snow plows for trucks (8) $43,500 $6,000 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

Salt machines for light trucks $36,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000

1 ton truck with utility body for tool storage (2 year financing) $57,000 $28,500 $28,500

Page 4 of 5
399

WS #3.

lichtitw
Highlight

lichtitw
Arrow

lichtitw
Text Box
Project in 5 year CIP



CITY OF MOBERLY FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN BY DEPARTMENT Created: 3/31/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 BUDGET Revised: 6/25/2020

Revision # Final

Department Item Last Year Current Impending Planned Planned Planned

Street Improvement (601.000.5502) {cont'd.} Cost YE 2020 YE 2021 YE 2022 YE 2023 YE 2024 YE 2025

Used tandem axle dump truck with snow plow (3 year fin.) $135,000 $45,000 $45,000 $45,000

Sickle mower - mid mount $20,000 $20,000

Skid loader with brush hog & plow (2 year financing) $76,000 $38,000 $38,000

Replace traffic control equipment (cones, signs, barricades, etc.) $10,000 $10,000

Waste oil furnace with oil tank $8,500 $8,500

Tilt deck trailer $7,500 $7,500

Replace street sweeper $108,000 $36,000 $36,000 $36,000

6-way rear hydraulic blade for John Deere tractor $8,000 $8,000

Forklift $20,000 $20,000

Wheel loader replacement $100,000 $50,000 $50,000

New single axle dump truck, spreader, & plow (3 year fin.) $165,000 $55,000 $55,000 $55,000

New single axle dump truck, spreader, & plow (3 year fin.) $165,000 $55,000 $55,000

1,000cc 4x4 UTV $27,000 $12,000 $15,000

Subtotal $345,500 $64,000 $272,000 $51,500 $62,500 $62,500 $54,500

Five Year Average = $100,600

GRAND TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS $32,493,581 $1,745,557 $8,503,364 $7,094,162 $8,586,578 $2,240,850 $1,070,850

Note: Items in red in departments 301.112, 301.113, 301.114, and 304.000 noted as SRF projects will be funded by the SRF (State Revolving Fund) program as a result of the 

         June 2, 2020 election in which the Moberly citizens authorized the issuance of $18 million in bonds for water & sewer system repairs. This program offers federally

         subsidized low-interest loans for municipalities to reduce the burden of replacing and repairing aging water and sewer infrastructure. These amounts are not included in

         the annual totals for items in each department.

Page 5 of 5
400

WS #3.



1

Lichti, Tobin

From: Mary West <mwc@cityofmoberly.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 10, 2021 3:10 PM
To: Lichti, Tobin
Subject: [EXTERNAL] water and energy efficiency projects

Tobin,

As part of the water and energy efficiency projects completed last year the City contracted for the following work (all
were approved for BizSaver grants from Ameren):

Replaced 3-100 hp blowers and installed variable frequency drives for the blowers at the Wastewater Treatment Plant
Replaced all air diffuser socks at the WWTF to increase air exchange efficiency
Installed solar panels at several wastewater facilities including lift stations and the wastewater plant

Installed 3 VFDs on 100 hp high service pumps at the Water Plant including upgraded motor control center
Installed solar panels at the Water Treatment Plant,  and the Pump House at Sugar Creek Lake
Upgraded icontrol programming/PLC/Scada and firewalls at water towers and pump house

The solar projects were completed in 2019.

We are also in the process of replacing all water meters in the system and installing new AMI meter reading equipment
and software.  This is anticipated to help our non-revenue water problem, and thereby increasing water and sewer
revenues. This work included a full system inventory of lead service lines to allow for a schedule to replace the lead
service lines that the City maintains between the meter and the main.  We hope by achieving better meter accuracy we
will be able to identify loss due to leaks and begin an aggressive leak detection program to target repairs.

Sincerely,
Mary West-Calcagno
Director of Public Utilities
City of Moberly, MO
(660) 269-7659
mwc@cityofmoberly.com

What people believe prevails over truth.  Sophocles

401

WS #3.



 City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:   

Department:  Public Utilities 

Date:  February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item:  A Discussion Regarding Moberly State Regional Incentive Grant Application 

Submittal To DNR And Authorizing The City Manager To Submit The 

Application. 

  

Summary:  The City of Moberly is required to submit documentation in the form of this 

completed resolution as part of the application for Regional Incentive Grant 

(RIG) application. This RIG application will consist of providing sewer 

service to the Orton Lane development in SW Moberly. The existing system 

has a history of chronic noncompliance and DNR reached out to Moberly in 

an effort to have the system connect to Moberly’s sewer system. As a part of 

this process, an initial application must be submitted in order to qualify for the 

100% RIG for the project, to include design, construction and equipment. 

During design, Jacobs staff have been directed to size the system to be able to 

sewer the entire drainage for anticipated future development. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

  

 Direct staff to offer a resolution at the next council meeting 

  

Fund Name:  N/A 

  

Account Number:  N/A 

  

Available Budget $:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
      Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report          Other        Passed Failed 

 

402

WS #4.



MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
WATER PROTECTION PROGRAM 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CENTER 

RESOLUTION OF GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT 
RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 

(Suggested Form for Grant/Loan Applicant use) 

Resolution authorizing the filing of an application with the Missouri Department of Natural Resources, Clean State 
Revolving Fund Program for a regionalization incentive grant under the Missouri Clean Water Law (Chapter 644, 
RSMo.). 

WHEREAS pursuant to the terms of the Missouri Clean Water Law, Chapter 644, Revised Statutes of Missouri, the State 
of Missouri has authorized the making of loans and/or grants to authorized applicants to aid in the planning of specific 
public projects. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by ___________________________________________________________ 
(Governing body of applicant) 

1. That ____________________________________________ be and he/she is hereby authorized to execute and
(Designated official) 

file an application on behalf of __________________________________________________________
(Legal name of applicant) 

with the State of Missouri for a loan and/or grant to aid in the planning of:

______________________________________________________________________________________
(Brief project description) 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. That ___________________________________________________, ___________________________________
(Name of authorized official) (Title) 

is hereby authorized and directed to furnish such information as the Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
may reasonably request in connection with the application which is herein authorized, to sign all necessary 
documents on behalf of the applicant, to furnish such assurances to the Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
as may be required by statute or regulation, and to receive payment on behalf of the applicant. 

CERTIFICATE OF RECORDING OFFICER 

The undersigned, duly qualified and acting _______________________________________________________of the 
(Title of officer) 

__________________________________________________, does hereby certify: That the attached resolution is a 
(Legal name of applicant) 

true and correct copy of the resolution adopted at a legally convened meeting of the _________________________ 

_______________________________________________held on the _______ day of ______________________, _______; 
(Name of the governing body of applicant) 

and further that such resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office. IN 

WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this _____day of _________________, ______. 

___________________________________ 
(Signature of recording officer) 

___________________________________ 
(Title of recording officer) 

SEAL (If applicant has an  
official seal, impress here.) 

403

WS #4.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Police  

Date: February 6, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item:     Resolution authorizing the Mother’s Day 5k to raise money for families battling 

Cancer on May 14, 2023.  

  

 

Summary: The Mother’s Day 5K to raise funds to go toward Cancer Treatments is an 

annual event. Event begins at 1509 Union Ave at 9:00am. Participants will 

travel west on Union Ave to Mullen St, south on Mullen to Taylor St. West on 

Taylor to Bertley St south on Bertley to Roberts St, west on Roberts to the 

parking lot at 300 N Morley, north through the parking lot to Farror St, east on 

Farror to Porter street, north on Porter to Franklin Ave, east on Franklin Ave to 

St. Charles, south on St. Charles to Union Ave, east on Union Ave to the finish 

point at 1509 Union Ave. Contact person is Lori Turk, 660-651-2719. 200 

participants are expected, volunteers will be along the route at intersections to 

help with traffic control. Law Enforcement is requested to lead the 5k.  

  

Recommended Action   

   Approve the request 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:  

  

Available Budget $: 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

404

WS #5.



405

WS #5.



 

 

City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Police  

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Approving Equipment Usage Agreement Between Burrell 

Health And The Police Department. 

  

Summary:  Burrell Health operates the Virtual-Mobile Crisis Intervention partnership to 

provide timely and efficient virtual face-to-face crisis intervention for 

individuals suspected of mental health issues. Through this usage agreement, 

Burrell health would provide the Moberly Police Department with the needed 

equipment to facilitate the virtual face-to-face intervention. There is no cost to 

the department unless the supplied equipment is stolen, vandalized, misplaced, 

destroyed or damaged.   

  

Recommended Action:   Direct staff to bring to the February 21st Council meeting for final approval. 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
     Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
   x    Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

406

WS #6.



Burrell Equipment Usage Contract 

 
The Virtual-Mobile Crisis Intervention partnership exists to provide timely and efficient virtual face-to-face crisis 

intervention for individuals suspected of mental health issues. The purpose of this document is to signify the 

formal, mutual agreement regarding the use of equipment supplied by Burrell, Inc. to the Law Enforcement 

agencies (LEAs) identified below under the Virtual-Mobile Crisis Intervention project. 

 

Member Responsibilities:  

 

Burrell, Inc. is the administrative agent for the Department of Mental Health in 17 counties in central and 

southwest Missouri. Burrell is providing equipment to facilitate the operation of the Virtual-Mobile Crisis 

Intervention project and a 24/7 crisis intervention service for an undetermined period of time. 

 

Each participating LEA must agree to the following regarding the use of Burrell equipment: 

 

1. I understand that the LEA is responsible for maintaining the equipment in working condition while said 

equipment is in the agency’s possession or purview. 

2. The LEA agrees to return the equipment in the same working condition as the agency received it, and 

return to the designated Burrell Behavioral Health Staff. 

3. I agree and understand that if instructed by Burrell, Inc. to return the hardware/software given to the LEA 

to use, the LEA must comply immediately.   

4. I agree and understand that if the equipment and/or other related items are stolen, vandalized, misplaced, 

destroyed, damaged, etc. the LEA is responsible and will reimburse (pay) Burrell, Inc. for the amount 

required to replace or repair the equipment, software or other related items or the LEA will replace the 

equipment, software or other related items with equipment, software or other related items approved by 

Burrell, Inc. 

5. I agree that employees of the LEA will not use the equipment for any other purpose except that for which 

it was intended. 

 

Each participating LEA must agree to one of the following network connectivity options: 

 

☐ LEA Mobile Network Option: I understand the LEA is responsible for providing the equipment with 

mobile internet access through the LEA’s mobile network. 

 

☐ Burrell Mobile Network Option: I understand Burrell, Inc is responsible for providing the equipment 

with mobile internet access through Burrell’s mobile network.  

 

Law Enforcement Agency:     _______________________________  

 

LEA Representative:              

                                                 Name                                    Signature                              Date 

 

Burrell Staff:              

                                                Name                                    Signature                              Date 

Burrell IT USE ONLY:   

 

Equipment Description ID Number Date 

Apple iPad & Charger   
Protective Case OtterBox Defender  

   

 

407

WS #6.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Parks & Recreation 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: 2023 Fireworks Agreement 

  

Summary: The City has had a positive ongoing relationship with J&M Displays for 

decades. J&M is a very professional and safe company which is responsible 

for most of the larger shows in Missouri including the show in Jefferson City. 

Given the size and scale of the show, the professionalism and technical 

experience required, the potential safety risks given the mass crowd and 

adjacent forests, J&M’s familiarity with the facility, and the fact that J&M 

Displays provides bonus product given the size of the show and early order, 

staff recommends continuing with J&M Displays in 2023.  

 

The contract is attached for $25,000, a $2,000 increase from last year to help 

maintain the size of the show and the draw from throughout Missouri and 

other states. The final proposal will include discounts and bonus product for a 

multi-year relationship and early payment. Please see the attached agreement. 

 

Also note the $10,000,000 insurance carried by J&M Displays. The City of 

Moberly will, as in past years, be listed as an additional insured. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Ask staff to bring a resolution for approval at the February 21, 2023 meeting. 

  

Fund Name: Recreation – Contract Services 

  

Account Number: 115.043.5406 

  

Available Budget $: $30,745 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes    X   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

408

WS #7.



 

409

WS #7.



FIREWORKS DISPLAY AGREEMENT

 

SHIPPED DISPLAY AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ______ day of _______________, 20__, by and between 
J&M Displays, Inc., an Iowa corporation, having its principal placed of business at Yarmouth, Iowa, including its 
employees, owners, and agents, hereinafter referred to as “Seller”, and                       , 
hereinafter referred to as “Buyer”.  

Seller shall provide to Buyer the display fireworks for one (1) shipped fireworks display, as per the $  
   program (the “Fireworks Program”) prepared jointly by Buyer and Seller, and which by reference 
is made a part hereof as Exhibit A. 

BUYER AFFIRMATIONS 

I, the undersigned Buyer (individually or on behalf of a municipality or licensee), Affirm the following to be true: 

1.          I am the holder of a valid license or permit issued by the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms, and 
Explosives; or          I am the appropriately authorized representative of a municipality that is purchasing 
the fireworks (initial one); 

2. I acknowledge and understand that the use of display fireworks is an inherently dangerous activity, and I 
assume fully responsible for the use of any and all products purchased from J&M Displays; 

3. I am purchasing the fireworks for my own (or my municipality’s) use in a single fireworks display, and will 
ensure that no explosive material is transferred to, or acquired by, any other individual or entity; 

4. I agree to completely and immediately indemnify and hold harmless J&M Displays from any and all claims 
made by any party, known or unknown at the time of this Agreement, related to the selling, distribution, 
transfer, manufacture, manipulation, or modification of any explosive material subsequent to my purchase; 

5. I am aware of, and appropriately trained in, the safety rules and conduct guidelines promulgated by the 
NFPA, BATFE, and my State and local regulations. I agree to fully comply with and obey all applicable 
National, State, and local regulations and NFPA guidelines; 

6. I understand that I am not an employee or agent of J&M Displays or any related entity. I am a customer 
purchasing product from J&M Displays and am solely responsible for the safe and lawful use of the product. 

IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS FOLLOWS: 

I. LICENSING and PERMITTING 
a. Buyer affirms that it is a municipality or has a valid license or permit from the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, 

Firearms & Explosives and waives the services of Seller related to the setup, performance, and teardown 
of the fireworks display. Buyer agrees to provide a copy of the appropriate paperwork to Seller at the time 
of signing this Agreement. 

b. Buyer is solely responsible for obtaining any necessary State or local permit or license, including providing 
an appropriately licensed lead pyrotechnician, which may be required to perform the display.  
 

II. FIRING OF DISPLAY 
a. Buyer is solely responsible for providing an appropriate location for the safe setup and discharge of display 

fireworks. Seller may, at Buyer’s request, aid in determining whether a proposed display site is appropriate 
for the items and dimensions selected by Buyer, but Buyer remains solely responsible for the selection and 
appropriate use of firework materials at its display. 

b. Buyer is solely responsible for providing the appropriate personnel and for the setup, operation, 
performance, and teardown of the fireworks display in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and 
local laws and regulations and NFPA 1123. Buyer agrees to comply with all local, state, and federal 
regulations and guidelines pertaining to the storing and displaying of fireworks.  

c. Unless otherwise provided for in the Fireworks Program, Buyer is solely responsible for providing 
appropriate equipment to lawfully and safely perform the fireworks display. 

10 January 23

City of Moberly

25,000

410

WS #7.



J&M Displays Shipped Display Agreement Page 2 of 3 
12/2/2022 

d. Buyer is solely responsible for providing appropriate, lawful, storage of the firework display materials 
before, during, and after the display. Buyer may, subject to Seller’s agreement, make arrangements with 
Seller for the return of any unfired explosive materials after the display, but Buyer remains responsible for 
the appropriate storage of those materials until Seller agrees to take possession. 

 
III. PAYMENT. The Buyer shall pay to the Seller (check one of the below options): 

 
The sum of $     as a down payment upon execution of this Agreement. The 
balance of $    shall be due and payable within fifteen (15) days after the date of the 
fireworks shipment. A service charge of one and one-half percent (1 ½ %) per month shall be added to the 
unpaid balance if the account is not paid in full with the fifteen (15) days from the date of the display. If 
this account remains unpaid and is turned over to a collection agency for non-payment, all fees incurred in 
collecting the balance will be at the Buyer’s expense. All returned checks will be assessed a $30.00 fee. 
 
$      in full by      (70 days prior to the 
shipment date). The Buyer will receive 8% prepayment bonus product in this fireworks display. 
 
$      in full by      (30 days prior to the 
shipment date). The Buyer will receive 5% prepayment bonus product in this fireworks display.  
 

IV. LOYALTY PROGRAM 
a. Seller has in place a bonus system for Buyer’s who purchase their fireworks displays exclusively from 

Seller year-to-year. The full terms of Seller’s loyalty program have been provided to Buyer with the 
Program and are available on J&M’s website. 

b. Pursuant to Buyer’s status in the loyalty program, Buyer will receive an additional ___5%  ____10% 
____15% (check one) bonus product for this display. 

 
V. POSTPONEMENT/RESCHEDULING 

a. Buyer is solely responsible for any decisions regarding postponement or cancellation of the fireworks 
display. If Buyer believes it is unable to appropriately store the display fireworks due to a postponement, 
Buyer should notify Seller at the soonest opportunity to determine if alternative storage can be arranged. 
Seller is under no obligation to provide storage to Buyer in the event of a postponement or cancellation, but 
agrees to work with Buyer to help ensure appropriate storage. 

 
VI. INSURANCE and LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 

a. Buyer agrees to provide, at its expense, general liability insurance coverage in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000.00, and within two (2) weeks prior to the date of the fireworks shipment, shall submit to Seller 
a certificate of insurance identifying Seller as an additional insured.  

b. Buyer agrees to provide, at its expense, any workers compensation insurance required in Buyer’s State or 
locale. At no time will Buyer, or Buyer’s employees, owners, volunteers, or personnel be considered 
employees of Seller. 

c. The Buyer agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Seller and its agents and employees from 
and against all claims, costs, judgments, damages and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees that 
may or shall arise out of any claim for injury or damage related to the fireworks display performed by the 
Buyer. The Buyer agrees to give the Seller prompt notice of any claims or demands.  

d. Separate from, and in addition to Buyer’s insurance of the fireworks event, Seller agrees to maintain, at its 
expense, a general liability policy sufficient to meet or exceed municipality or industry standards and all 
applicable requirements of local, state, and federal law and which shall be applicable to any claims of 
negligent or wrongful act or omission by the Seller. 

e. Buyer agrees that with respect to any losses covered by, or required to be covered by, insurance under the 
terms of this Agreement, other than those losses caused by the Seller’s gross negligence or intentional acts, 

■ 25000 April 15

411

WS #7.



J&M Displays Shipped Display Agreement Page 3 of 3 
12/2/2022 

Buyer hereby waives and releases Seller, its officers, directors, employees and agents, from any and all 
claims and liability or responsibility with respect to such losses. Buyer further agrees that its insurance 
companies shall have no right of subrogation against Seller on account of this release. 

f. In no event shall Seller’s liability to Buyer arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether arising out 
of or related to breach of contract, tort (including negligence), or otherwise, exceed the aggregate amount 
of insurance coverage as described in this section. Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary, in no 
event shall either Party be liable to the other, or to any third party, for any loss of use, revenue or profit, or 
for any consequential, incidental, indirect, exemplary, special, or punitive damages whether arising out of 
breach of contract, tort (including negligence), or otherwise, regardless of whether such damage was 
foreseeable and whether or not such party has been advised of the possibility of such damages.  

 
VII. Each Party has read all of the provisions of this Agreement, they understand all of its provisions, and agree to 

be bound by them. This written contract, and its Exhibits, contains the entire agreement of the Parties and 
modifies and supersedes all prior agreements or negotiations, all of which are merged into and incorporated 
into this Agreement. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or 
unenforceability shall not affect the other provisions of this agreement. 

 
VIII. Choice of Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Iowa without regard to conflict-of-law principles, except as otherwise specifically 
required for the storing and displaying of fireworks as set forth by State and Federal law. Notwithstanding, the 
Parties must bring any legal or equitable action or proceeding arising under or related to this Agreement 
exclusively in the Iowa District Court in and for Des Moines County, Iowa. The Iowa District Court in and for 
Des Moines County, Iowa shall have exclusive jurisdiction to decide any disputes arising out of or related to 
this Agreement. Each party knowingly and voluntarily consents to and expressly waives any objection or 
defense to personal jurisdiction, improper or inconvenient venue, or inconvenient forum in the Iowa District 
Court in and for Des Moines County, Iowa.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first written above. 

 SELLER      BUYER 

BY:        BY:       

ROLE:       ROLE:        

 J&M Displays, Inc.    ENTITY:      

412

WS #7.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Adopting Article III To Chapter 20 Of The City Code Providing 

For No Smoking Of Marijuana In A Public Place Or Meeting. 

  

Summary: The new constitutional amendment for recreational marijuana allows cities to 

regulate the time and place where marijuana may be smoked.  The ordinance 

was discussed during work session on January 17 and suggestions from staff 

and council have been incorporated into this second draft to include no use in 

parks, streets and sidewalks.  Other minor changes were also included.  If this 

draft meets with council’s approval it will be brought back at the February 21 

meeting for passage.  

  

Recommended 

Action: 

To discuss the parameters of an ordinance regulating smoking marijuana and 

to bring an ordinance to the council for passage thereafter. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report    x    Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 
413

WS #8.



 

 

 BILL NO: __________________ 
   

 

ORDINANCE NO: ______________  

 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING ARTICLE III TO CHAPTER 20 OF THE CITY CODE 

PROVIDING FOR NO SMOKING OF MARIJUANA IN A PUBLIC PLACE OR 

MEETING. 
 

Whereas, on November 8, 2022, Missouri voters passed Amendment 3 which amended the 
state constitution to provide for the use of recreational marijuana; and 
 

Whereas, Article XIV, Section 2.5(6) of the state constitution now provides that local political 
subdivisions may enact ordinances not in conflict with the constitution governing the time and 
place where marijuana may be consumed, used or smoked in public areas within the locality; 
and 
 
Whereas, the Moberly City Council has determined that smoking marijuana in public places 
should be regulated to safeguard citizens who do not wish to be exposed to marijuana smoke; 
and 
 
Whereas, the Moberly City Council hereby adopts this ordinance to prohibit smoking 
marijuana in public places or meetings. 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO WIT: 

 

  
SECTION ONE: Chapter 20 of the City Code is hereby amended by the adoption of 

Article III to prohibit smoking marijuana in public places and meetings as follows: 
 
Chapter 20 – HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES 

 

ARTICLE III. – NO MARIJUANA SMOKING IN PUBLIC 
 

Sec. 20-40. – Definitions.  As used in sections 20-40 to 20-44, the following terms mean: 
 
(1)  “Marijuana” means Cannabis indica, Cannabis sativa, and Cannabis ruderalis, hybrids 

of such species, and any other strains commonly understood within the scientific community to 
constitute marijuana, as well as resin extracted from the marijuana plant and marijuana-infused 
products, 

 
(2) “Other person in charge”, the agent of the proprietor authorized to give administrative 

directions to and general supervision of the activities within the public place, work place or 
public meeting at any given time; 

 
(3) “Proprietor”, the party who ultimately controls, governs or directs the activities within 

the public place, work place or public meeting, regardless of whether he is the owner or lessor 
of such place or site.  The term does not mean the owner of the property unless he ultimately 
controls, governs or directs the activities within the public place or public meeting.  The term 
“proprietor” shall apply to a corporation as well as an individual; 

 
414

WS #8.



(4) “Public meeting”, a gathering in person of members of a governmental body, whether 
an open or closed session, as defined in chapter 610; 

 
(5) “Public place”, any area used by the general public or serving as a place of work 

including, but not limited to: 
 
(a)  Any retail or commercial establishments. 
 
(b)  Health care facilities, health clinics or ambulatory care facilities including, but not 

limited to, laboratories associated with health care treatment, hospitals, nursing homes, 
physicians’ offices and dentists’ offices; 

 
(c)  Any vehicle used for public transportation including, but not limited to, buses, taxicabs 

and limousines for hire; 
 
(d)  Rest rooms; 
 
(e)  Elevators; 
 
(f)  Libraries, educational facilities, day care facilities, museums, auditoriums and art 

galleries; 
 
(g)  All public areas and waiting rooms of public transportation facilities including, but not 

limited to, bus and airport facilities. 
 
(h)  Any enclosed place used for entertainment or recreation including, but not limited to, 

gymnasiums, theater lobbies, concert halls, arenas and swimming pools; 
 
(i)  Any other enclosed indoor areas used by the general public including, but not limited 

to, corridors and shopping malls; 
 
(j)  any public park, public street, avenue or alley, any sidewalk or street crossing. 
 
(6)  “Smoking”, possession of burning marijuana in any form or other smoking equipment. 
 
Sec. 20-41 – Persons not to smoke in public places or meetings.  A person shall not 

consume, use or smoke marijuana in a public place or in a public meeting. 
 
Sec. 20-42 – Areas not considered public places.  The following areas are not considered 

a public place: 
 
(1)  An entire room or hall which is used for private social functions, provided that the 

seating arrangements are under the control of the sponsor of the function and not of the 
proprietor or other person in charge; 

 
(2)  Performers on the stage, provided that the smoking of marijuana is part of the 

production; and 
 
(3) Private residences; and 
 
(4)  Any area licensed by the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services 

(“DHSS”) for the use of medical marijuana, including owners or entities in control of a public 
place which under DHSS rules choose to make a non-public place available where qualifying 
medical marijuana patients may consume medical marijuana.  Such non-public place must meet 
all requirements of DHSS for an enclosed private space. 

 
415

WS #8.



 
 
 
 

 
Sec. 20-43 – Person in control of public places or public meetings, duties.  The person 

having custody or control of a public place or public meeting shall: 
 
(1)  Make reasonable efforts to prevent smoking in the public place or public meeting by 

posting appropriate signs indicating no marijuana smoking.  These signs shall be placed at a 
height and location easily seen by a person entering the public place or public meeting and not 
obscured in any way; 

 
(2)  Make a reasonable request of persons smoking to leave the public place or public 

meeting. 
 
Sec. 20-44 – Violators.  The following persons shall be guilty of a violation of this Article: 
 
(1)  A person who smokes marijuana in those areas where smoking is prohibited pursuant 

to the provisions of sections 40-20 to 40-43; 
 
(2)  A proprietor or other person in charge of a public place or public meeting who permits, 

causes, suffers or allows a person to smoke marijuana in those areas where smoking is 
prohibited pursuant to sections 40-20 to 40-43; 

 
(3)  Persons found guilty of violating this Article shall pay a civil penalty not exceeding 

$100.00. 
 
 
 
SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage by the 

Moberly City Council. 
                     

 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 20th day 

of    February, 2023. 

        

____________________________ 
Presiding Officer at Meeting  

ATTEST:  

________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk  
 

416

WS #8.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: 

Community 

Development 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Accepting A Quit Claim Deed From Marian E. Cumberlander 

For Real Estate Located At 1204 Quinn Street. 

  

Summary: Marian E. Cumberlander contacted our former Building Inspector about the 

property located at 1204 Quinn St. after receiving a letter about the condition 

of the property.  She told the inspector she would give the property to the City 

per a phone conversation with her.  She contacted the abstract company to 

have an O&E Report done and to have the Quit Claim Deed drawn up and she 

paid for all of this. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Bring this forward to February 21, 2023, regular City Council meeting for 

final approval 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report     x  Other       Passed Failed 

 

417

WS #9.



418

WS #9.



419

WS #9.



420

WS #9.



421

WS #9.



422

WS #9.



BILL NO.________      RESOLUTION NO._______ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A QUIT CLAIM DEED FROM MARIAN E. 

CUMBERLANDER FOR REAL ESTATE LOCATED AT 1204 QUINN STREET. 

 

WHEREAS, Marian E. Cumberland owns property legally described as Lot 2 of Block 

Twenty-two of Barrow’s Addition to the City of Moberly which is described on the attached 

Quit-Claim Deed; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Cumberlander desires to convey said property to the City of Moberly 

without consideration to aid in furthering economic development in the city; and 

WHEREAS, attached hereto is an executed Quit Claim Deed conveying the property to 

the city. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council authorizes the City Manager 

to accept the attached Quit Claim Deed from Ms. Cumberlander to Moberly on behalf of the city 

and to record the same in the land records of Randolph County. 

RESOLVED this 21st day of February, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 
 

 

423

WS #9.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Appointment to the Historic Preservation Commission 

  

Summary: In February 2023 the terms of JW Balling and Sara Fleming will expire on the 

Historic Preservation Commission board. JW Ballinger has submitted 

application stating he would be willing be reappointed to the board.  Sara 

Fleming has submitted a letter stating that she does not wish to be reappointed 

to the board.   Advertisement was done, and three applications were received. 

One from April Moran, Melissa Weggs, and Anne Jansen.   Also in September 

2022 Lee Seekins resigned from the board  her position will need to be filled 

on the board as well.   

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to bring to the February 21st Council meeting for approving of 

three individuals to the commission. 

  

Fund Name: N/a 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: $0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Role Call  Aye  Nay 
 
  Memo   Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
   x   Correspondence   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation   Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation   Petition M  S  Brubaker     
  P/C Minutes   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
  Application   Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
  Citizen   Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
  Consultant Report   Other         Passed Failed 

 

424

WS #10.



425

WS #10.



426

WS #10.



427

WS #10.



428

WS #10.



429

WS #10.



ATTACHMENT TO HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD/COMMISSION APPLICATION – ANNE JANSEN 

 

What particular contributions do you feel you can make to this board or commission? 

I feel that my 30 years of stewardship both in living and rehabbing my own historic homes defines the particular type of 
individual that I am.  Preservation of a city’s historic buildings and residences are what defines the community and 
brings a sense of identity to those towns.  Protecting and managing the future of such structures contributes to the 
overall “transmission” of the past to the future.  I am an old soul and have always had a love of historic homes and 
buildings.  I also feel that folks like myself understand the importance of being a “voice” for these pieces of the past and 
without such voices, a community’s essence will be lost.  And for these reasons, I feel this mindset, combined with my 
experience with historic homes would be valuable to any preservation board.  The bonus is that I am an artist with skills 
and knowledge in architectural styles, rehabbing, resources for historic homes, and general preservation arenas.  In my 
professional career, I’m versed in marketing, administrative duties, graphic design, and planning/organizing events.  

What experience and/or skills do you have that might especially qualify you to serve on this board or commission? 

As mentioned in my answer above, I bring several decades of stewardship from personally owning 4 historic homes in 4 
different communities and states.  The Valentine Riegel home I purchased last fall (2021) here in Moberly is my fifth and 
I’m thrilled and proud to be able to steward this home as well.  I hope to bring more recognition to the home and to 
share how valuable homes like these are to a community.   

My first home was a 1908 bungalow in Midtown in the City of St. Charles over 30 years ago.  I served on the Midtown 
Community Association where we had meetings to determine back then whether things like a CLG was the right decision 
for our community.  We promoted historic preservation and we spoke at City Council meetings regarding properties in 
the city.  We also developed and marketed a quarterly newsletter and organized events that further created “buzz” and 
more community awareness to the importance of historic preservation. 

Over the years, and most recent during my residency in Quincy, Illinois, I spoke in front of the City Council in regard to 
the saving of one of Quincy’s few representations of an Italianate home in that City.  I spoke in opposition (and as a 
resident) to the big attorneys that were representing the media group who  was simply wanting to demolish the home.  
It was a sad day that the community did NOT stand up in unity to save that home and it met the wrecking ball. I made 
efforts personally to work with their “Preservation Group” which fell on deaf ears and they simply had no clue “how to 
help”.  I was floored that a historic community like Quincy lacked the support of its residents when this happened.  After 
the fact, I spoke with folks around town that admitted they didn’t know a thing about the home and/or that it was even 
in danger of being torn down.  This showed the lack of communication and support of the community to its own historic 
homes and buildings. I don’t want to see this happen again!   

As this is my fifth home, it is my last rehab and I want to be a part of the board here in Moberly so that I can not only be 
a valuable voice to my own home, but to all of the structures that collectively represent what Moberly is all about – its 
past, its present and hopefully to preserve its future. 

Thank you for your consideration of my application. 

430

WS #10.



431

WS #10.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An application for re-zoning submitted by Devin Snodgrass on behalf of Kal 

Cleavinger for the property located at 201 W Hinton Ave and the lots to the 

north.  They are requesting these be zoned N-1/PD (Nonurban/Planned 

Development District).  These locations are currently zoned R-3 (Multi-

Family Dwelling District).  

  

Summary: The proposed site is located at 201 W Hinton Ave.   The property is surrounded on 

two sides by R-3 (multi-family dwelling district), to the south by MP (Mobile Park) 

and to the north B-3 (General Commercial District). Some of this property at one time 

had angus cattle on it.   

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval for the request of 

the rezoning.   

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to bring forward to the regular City Council meeting on February 

21, 2023 for final approval. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

432

WS #11.



CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI
REZONING APPLICATION

Return Form to:        For Office Use Only
Zoning Administrator        
City of Moberly        Deposit:   
101 West Reed Street       Date Advertised:  
Moberly, MO  65270-1551      Date Notices Sent:  
(660) 263-4420        Public Hearing Date:  
(660) 263-9398 (fax)         
        

APPLICANT INFORMATION: 

Applicant:        Phone:      
Address:         Zip:  
Owner:         Phone:      
Address:         Zip:   

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Street Address or General Location of Property:     
Property is Located In (Legal Description):          

Present Zoning     Requested Zoning:  Acreage:  

Present Use of Property:   

Character of the Neighborhood:     

Devin Snodgrass, Outline & Associates 660.998.4288

110 N 5th Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270

Kal Cleavinger 660.349.7100

1 Holman Road, Moberly, Missouri 65270

201 W Hinton Avenue

"see attached Submittal Letter"

 R-3  N-1-PD  6.11

 Vacant Lot

Residential

433

WS #11.



SURROUNDING LAND USE AND ZONING:

Land Use     Zoning

North           

South           

East           

West           

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ZONING PATTERN:

1. Would the proposed change create a small, isolated district unrelated to surrounding districts?
Yes _____ No _____

If yes, explain:    

2. Are there substantial reasons why the property cannot be used in accordance with existing zoning?
Yes _____ No _____

If yes, explain:    

CONFORMANCE WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

1. Is the proposed change consistent with the goals, objectives and policies set forth in the 
Comprehensive Plan?

   Yes _____ No _____

2. Is the proposed change consistent with the Future Land Use Map?

   Yes _____ No _____

TRAFFIC CONDITIONS:

1. Identify the street(s) with access to the property:    

2. Identify the classification of those street(s) as Arterial, Collector or Local and each Right-of-Way 
width:

Street Name   Classification   Right-of-Way Width

3. Will turning movements caused by the proposed use create an undue traffic hazard?
Yes _____ No _____

Vacant Lot

Hinton Ave / Manufactured Home Park / Vacant Lot

Single Family Residences

Tedford St / Single Family / Vacant Lot

B-3 General Commercial District

M-P Manufactured Home Park / R-2 Two-Family

R-2 Two-Family District

R-2 Two-Family District

✔

"see attached exhibit"

✔

"see attached Submittal Letter"

✔

✔

West Hinton Avenue & Tedford Street

West Hinton Avenue, Local Street, 40 ft ROW

Tedford Street, Local Street, 30ft ROW

✔

434

WS #11.



IS PLATTING OR REPLATTING REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FOR: 

1. Appropriately Sized Lots? Yes _____ No _____
2. Properly Sized Street Right-of-Way? Yes _____ No _____
3. Drainage Easements? Yes _____ No _____
4. Utility Easements:

Electricity? Yes _____ No _____
Gas? Yes _____ No _____
Sewers? Yes _____ No _____
Water? Yes _____ No _____

5. Additional Comments:

UNIQUE CHARACTERISTICS OF PROPERTY AND ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:

THE FOLLOWING MUST ACCOMPANY YOUR APPLICATION: 

1. One copy of a legal description of the property proposed to be rezoned.

2. One copy of a statement describing the impact of the proposed change, including any traffic
conditions that may result; any danger from fire hazards; how the proposed change may affect the
character of the surrounding properties; and how the proposed change will benefit the City of
Moberly.

3. Certified list of property owners within:

A. 185 feet of the property if the proposed PD is located within the city’s municipal
boundaries;

B. 1,000 feet of the property if the proposed PD is adjacent to the city’s corporate limits.

4. If the proposed zoning requires a special use permit, the rezoning application shall be
accompanied by a special use permit application defining the specifically requested use or list of
uses.

___________________________________________ ________________________  
Applicant’s Signature Date

usesssss..

_________________________________________ _____________
ApAAAAAAAAAAA plicant’s Signature

✔
✔
✔

✔
✔
✔
✔

435

WS #11.



 

City of        
 

 

 

 

To: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

From: Planning Staff  

 

Subject:   Agenda item 1-3, Hinton Ave Planned Development 
 

Meeting: January 30, 2023  

 

 
Public Hearing to consider: 

Notice of a Public Hearing for an application submitted by Devin Snodgrass on 

behalf of Kal Cleavinger for a zoning change from an R-3 (Multi-family Dwelling 

District) to an N-1/PD (Nonurban/Planned District) for a proposed Private 

Commercial Stable facility on the property located at 201 W Hinton Ave. 
Comments: 

The proposed site is located at 201 W Hinton Ave.  The proposed zoning change is in conjunction 

with a change of use for the property and a site plan submittal to follow if necessary.  The current 

zoning of the property is R-3 (Multi-family Dwelling District).  The future land use map for this 

property has it identified as R-3 (Multi-family Dwelling District).  The applicant is proposing 

Planned Development with Zoning Change to an N-1/Planned Development.  

 

The first item on the agenda is the zoning change to an N-1/Planned Development district.  If this 

is approved, the following two items will need to be reviewed.  

2. Preliminary Development Plan 

3. Site Plan 

 

As an N-1/Planned Development District, the base requirements for the district would require 

underlying criteria to align with the N-1 District regulations found in Chapter 46-3, 46-78, 46-87, 

and 46-118.  N-1 Agricultural district regulations require a minimum of 5 acres.  A commercial 

stable is not listed in the use table (46-118), however 46-78 states that Permitted uses. Generally, 
agricultural and rural residential uses are permitted on parcels greater than five acres.  The 

definition of a commercial stable in Chapter 46-3 means any building for the keeping of horses, 

mules, or ponies for remuneration, hire, or sale. The other definitions of which may be applicable 

to the use of land in this application is Animal Care, General as defined in 46-3. Animal Care, 

General per chapter 46-118 is a conditional use in B-2, B-3 districts and permitted use in M-1 

districts.  It is not listed in the N-1 district. 

   

City staff:  

The requested zoning change does not align with the future land use plan.  Historically, the 

intention and limitations on N-1 districts were to locate livestock and agricultural use of land 

to the outer edges of the city limits and to retain the use of land that is newly annexed into the 

city limits at that time.  There are other restrictions within the code book (Chapter 8) that 

limit animals kept within the city limits. The developer has also requested the following 

Memorandum 

436

WS #11.



specific details with respect to the City Code of Ordinances as they have applied for a planned 

development: 

1. They request to raise a specific number of horses and horses only on the property. 

2. They request to only use the 6 acre tract for the horses. 

3. They request to erect a commercial stable for business use on site. 

4. They are requesting an exemption to the limitations of Chapter 8 on animals kept in city 

limits. 

 

The granting of a planned development on the property would greatly restrict and detail the 

use of the property for the owner of the land.  This includes if the land were sold or 

transferred to the new owner of the property.  It will detail and limit the type of use and 

purpose of the land specifically as defined in the planned development plan.  This is not 

restrictive to the current owner and is transferable with the sale of the land.  The 

implementation of a planned development plan is more restrictive and detailed compared to 

a conditional use applied to the zoning change. 

 

 

#2  Public Hearing to consider: 

Notice of Public Hearing for an application submitted by Devin Snodgrass on behalf 

of Kal Cleavinger for a preliminary development plan for a Private Commercial 

Stable facility if item number 1 is approved. 

 

#3 Public Hearing to consider: 

Notice of Public Hearing for an application submitted by Devin Snodgrass on behalf 

of Kal Cleavinger for a site plan review for a Private Commercial Stable facility if 

item number 1 and 2 are approved. 

 
Comments: 

The proposed site is located at 201 W Hinton Ave.  The proposed preliminary development plan is 

in conjunction with a change of zoning for the property and a site plan submittal to follow if 

necessary.  The current zoning of the property is R-3 (Multi-family Dwelling District).  The future 

land use map for this property has it identified as R-3 (Multi-family Dwelling District).  The 

proposed Planned Development and Zoning Change to N-1/Planned Development requires a 

preliminary development plan submission. 

 

The preliminary development plan has indicated the construction of a commercial stable 

for the keeping of up to 5 horses on property.  This includes fencing (5ft tall and 3 rail 

style) around the perimeter of the property and internally to keep the horses within the 6 

acre tract of land, the construction of a stable (2,304 sq ft) to house and care for the horses, 

and newly constructed paved drive entry on to the property with two points of egress. The 

building will be designed with stables and restroom facilities. Planned connection to 

Ameren UE utilities as well as City Utilities at this time.  Perimeter fencing is currently 

planned to setback 20 ft from the property lines on all sides and remain behind the stable 

in the southwest corner of the property. 

 

The following elements of a Commercial Preliminary Development Plan are being 

requested as part of the submission: 

1. Exemption for installation of sidewalks as the sidewalks of the area are in disrepair. 

437

WS #11.



 

2. Use of residential trash containers on site instead of commercial dumpster with 

screening. 

3. Stormwater drainage to be directed to landscaped areas of the lot. 

 

Proposed Use and Operations: Owner intends to Construct and Occupy a Commercial 
Stable Facility as defined in Moberly Code of Ordinances.  
Facility will not consist of any permanent residence or provide lodging of any kind.  
Facility to be maintained and operated daily for Business by Cavalier Holding Company, 
LLC  
Business intends to offer Services that may include but not limited to Rental/Leasing, 
Boarding, Training, Grooming, and Riding Lessons.  
Facility to have over 5 Acres Total of Fenced Pasture Harboring up to Five Horses on site. 

 

City Staff: 

 Upon review the preliminary development plan meets the requirements for submission 

pending the items listed above for which they are asking for exemption.  As a commercial 

business location, the sidewalks, dumpster, and the requirements need to be reviewed.  

Installation of sidewalks will be an improvement to the area as well as having adequate 

dumpster facilities.     

 

N-1 Rezoning/Planned Development and Preliminary Development Plan shall 

both require approval through City Council at the next available 

meeting. 
 

 

Respectfully Submitted  

Aaron Decker 

 

438

WS #11.



W

P
relim

in
ary

 D
ev

elo
p

m
en

t P
lan

 fo
r

2
0
1
 W

est H
in

to
n

 A
v
e P

ro
ject

M
o

b
erly

, R
an

d
o

lp
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
, M

isso
u

ri

D
ecem

b
er 2

0
2

2

SU
B

JE
C

T
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 "B

"

H
inton A

ve

N Buchanan St

H
urley St

Tedford St

JO
H

N
SO

N
, R

O
N

A
L

D

M
o

b
erly

, M
isso

u
ri

C
rockett Eng

ineering
 C

onsulta
nts, LLC

M
issouri C

ertifica
te of A

uth
ority

#20
0

0
15130

1

EN
G

IN
EERIN

G
 C

O
N

SU
LTA

N
TS

10
0

0
 W

. N
ifong

 B
lv

d
., B

ld
g

. 1
C

olum
b

ia
, M

issouri  6520
3

(573) 4
4

7-0
292

w
w

w
.crocketteng

ineering
.com

B
E

L
L

G
E

R
A

L
D

 &
 A

U
D

R
A

SC
H

O
M

A
K

E
R

H
E

N
R

Y
 &

 T
IN

A

SA
N

D
E

R
S C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, L

L
C

C
A

D
E

, M
A

R
Y

 K

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 M

O
B

E
R

L
Y

W
A

IL
E

S, T
A

M
M

Y

B
O

R
R

O
N

L
A

R
R

Y
 &

 W
A

N
D

A

JO
H

N
SO

N
, W

A
N

D
A

 F
A

Y
E

SA
N

D
E

R
S C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, L

L
C

G
M

O
S E

N
T

E
R

P
R

ISE
S L

L
C

M
IL

A
Z

Z
O

, P
H

IL
L

IP

H
A

R
L

A
N

, W
A

L
L

A
C

E

D
R

E
W

E
R

Y
 &

 SP
A

R
K

M
A

N

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 H
O

L
D

IN
G

S, L
L

C

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 M

O
B

E
R

L
Y

K
IT

C
H

E
N

, R
E

B
E

C
C

A

M
E

Y
E

R
, G

E
R

A
L

D

D
A

V
IS, W

A
L

T
E

R

D
A

V
IS

W
A

L
T

E
R

 &
 A

L
F

R
E

D
A

C
H

IR
IL

L
O

R
O

N
A

L
D

 W
 - T

R
U

ST

C
H

IR
IL

L
O

R
O

N
A

L
D

 W
 - T

R
U

ST

Collins Ave

P
A

N
T

A
L

E
O

,

V
IR

G
IN

IA
 - E

ST
A

T
E

A
C

T
O

N

A
N

D
Y

 &
 P

A
M

E
L

A

SP
A

R
K

M
A

N
,

M
IC

H
A

E
L

 E
, SR

ST
R

U
B

L
E

, E
T

H
A

N

C
H

IR
IL

L
O

R
O

N
A

L
D

 W
 - T

R
U

ST

S
ite In

fo
rm

atio
n

:

P
ro

p
erty

 A
d

d
ress:

2
0

1
 W

est H
in

to
n

 A
v

e

M
o

b
erly

, R
an

d
o

p
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
, M

isso
u

ri

P
ro

p
erty

 O
w

n
er:

K
al C

leav
in

g
er

1
 H

o
lm

an
 R

o
ad

M
o

b
erly

, M
isso

u
ri  6

5
2

7
0

C
o

d
e in

 E
ffect:

IB
C

 2
0

2
1

, C
ity

 o
f M

o
b

erly

Z
o

n
in

g
:

C
u

rren
t:

R
-3

, M
u

ltifam
ily

 D
w

ellin
g

 D
istrict

P
ro

p
o

sed
 C

h
an

g
e:

N
-1

-P
D

, N
o

n
u

rb
an

 P
lan

n
ed

 D
ev

elo
p

m
en

t D
istrict

L
o

t A
rea:

C
u

rren
t =

 
6

.1
1

 A
cres (4

4
7

ft x
 5

9
5

ft)

S
etb

ack
s: 

F
ro

n
t Y

ard
:

R
-3

:
2

5
 feet

N
-1

:
3

0
 feet

S
id

e Y
ard

:
R

-3
:

5
/7

 feet, 1
5

ft 
N

-1
:

1
0

%
 o

f L
o

t W
id

th

R
ear Y

ard
:

R
-3

:
2

5
ft / 2

0
%

 D
ep

th
N

-1
:

3
0

 feet

L
o

t A
rea R

eg
u

latio
n

s:
R

-3
S

in
g

le F
am

ily
 =

 
6

,0
0

0
 sf

T
w

o
-F

am
ily

 =
 

5
,0

0
0

 sf

M
u

ltifam
ily

 =
1

0
,0

0
0

 sf

N
-1

:
F

iv
e A

cres (2
1

7
,8

0
0

 sf)

M
in

im
u

m
 L

o
t W

id
th

:
R

-3
:

S
in

g
le F

am
ily

 =
6

0
 feet, 7

5
 feet C

o
rn

er L
o

ts

T
w

o
-F

am
ily

 =
6

0
 feet, 8

0
 feet C

o
rn

er L
o

ts

M
u

ltifam
ily

 =
7

5
 feet, 8

0
 feet C

o
rn

er L
o

ts

N
-1

:  7
0

 feet fo
r R

esid
en

tial U
ses, n

/a fo
r N

o
n

-R
esid

en
tial U

ses

H
eig

h
t R

eg
u

latio
n

s:
R

-3
:

3
5

 feet
N

-1
:

3
5

 feet

P
ro

p
o

sed
 B

u
ild

in
g

:
±

2
,3

0
4

 sq
.ft. S

in
g

le S
to

ry
 B

u
ild

in
g

S
lab

-o
n

-G
rad

e, W
o

o
d

 F
ram

ed

T
y

p
e 5

B
, N

o
n

-S
p

rin
k

lered

P
ro

p
o

sed
 U

se &
 O

ccu
p

an
cy

:
C

o
m

m
ercial ~

 U
tility

 &
 M

iscellan
eo

u
s G

ro
u

p
 U

 (S
tab

les)

A
llo

w
ab

le B
ld

g
. H

eig
h

ts &
 A

reas: 
1

 S
to

ry
 (4

0
 feet)

5
,5

0
0

 sq
.ft. F

lo
o

r A
rea

D
esig

n
 L

o
ad

in
g

:
1

 O
ccu

p
an

t / 3
0

0
 sq

.ft. =
 

8
 O

ccu
p

an
ts

E
x

its R
eq

u
ired

:
1

 E
x

it R
eq

u
ired

 (<
5

0
 O

ccs, <
7

5
ft T

rav
el D

istan
ce)

P
lu

m
b

in
g

 F
acilities:

C
o

m
m

ercial R
eq

u
ired

:
W

C
's =

 (1
) R

eq
u

ired
 / (1

) P
ro

p
o

sed

L
av

's =
 (1

) R
eq

u
ired

 / (1
) P

ro
p

o
sed

A
 S

erv
ice S

in
k

 n
o

t req
u

ired

(1
) D

rin
k

in
g

 F
o

u
n

tain
,

o
r W

ater D
isp

en
ser/B

o
ttled

 W
ater

L
o

t A
rea C

alcu
latio

n
s:

T
o

tal L
o

t A
rea:

±
2

6
6

,1
5

2
 sq

.ft.
6

.1
1

 A
cres

P
ro

p
o

sed
 B

u
ild

in
g

:
±

2
,3

0
4

 sq
.ft.

0
.0

5
 A

cres

P
ro

p
o

sed
 P

av
in

g
:

±
5

,8
8

0
 sq

.ft.
0

.1
3

 A
cres

Im
p

erv
io

u
s A

rea:
±

8
,1

8
4

 sq
.ft.

0
.1

8
 A

cres

P
erv

io
u

s A
rea:

±
2

5
7

,9
6

8
 sq

.ft.
5

.9
2

 A
cres

(9
7

%
 o

f S
ite)

P
ro

p
o

sed
 P

ark
in

g
:

(1
) S

p
ace fo

r E
m

p
lo

y
ee, (1

) S
p

ace fo
r V

isito
r, (1

) A
D

A
 C

o
m

p
lian

t S
p

ace

S
ite P

lan
 N

o
tes:

·
F

o
r referen

ce o
n

ly
, refer to

 su
rv

ey
(s) filed

 fo
r reco

rd
 in

 R
an

d
o

lp
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
, M

isso
u

ri p
rep

ared
 b

y

a reg
istered

 p
ro

fessio
n

al lan
d

 su
rv

ey
o

r fo
r all p

ro
p

erty
 b

o
u

n
d

ary
, easem

en
ts, u

tilities, an
d

restrictio
n

s.  A
ll in

fo
rm

atio
n

 sh
o

w
n

 o
n

 th
is d

raw
in

g
 w

as b
ased

 o
ff su

ch
 rep

resen
ted

 b
y

 C
ity

 o
f

M
o

b
erly

's D
ig

itial M
ap

p
in

g
 S

y
stem

.  A
ll item

s, w
h

eth
er sh

o
w

n
 o

r n
o

t, to
 b

e field
 v

erified
,

co
o

rd
in

ated
, an

d
 ap

p
ro

v
ed

 b
y

 th
e C

ity
 o

f M
o

b
erly

 an
d

/o
r U

tility
 P

ro
v

id
er p

rio
r to

 an
y

 w
o

rk
.

·
C

u
rren

tly
 th

e p
ro

p
erty

 co
n

sists o
f V

acan
t L

o
ts an

d
 slo

p
es slig

h
tly

 fro
m

 S
o

u
th

 to
 N

o
rth

 w
ith

ro
u

g
h

ly
 8

ft in
 elev

atio
n

 ch
an

g
e.  P

ro
p

erty
 cu

rren
tly

 sh
eet d

rain
s N

o
rth

-N
o

rth
east.  N

o
 C

ity

S
to

rm
 W

ater C
o

n
tro

l (C
u

rb
/G

u
tter, In

lets, P
ip

in
g

, etc.) is cu
rren

tly
 ad

jacen
t to

 th
is p

ro
p

erty
.

S
treets are alig

n
ed

 w
ith

 D
rain

ag
e D

itch
es an

d
 D

riv
e/S

treet C
u

lv
erts.

·
S

treets ad
jacen

t to
 P

ro
p

erty
 d

o
 n

o
t cu

rren
tly

 h
av

e S
id

ew
alk

s.  P
artial S

id
ew

alk
s d

o
 ex

ist in

n
eig

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 h

o
w

ev
er are in

 d
isrep

air an
d

 d
o

 n
o

t co
m

p
ly

 w
ith

 C
ity

 S
tan

d
ard

s.  It is th
e in

ten
t

to
 n

o
t in

stall sid
ew

alk
s o

n
 th

is p
ro

p
erty

 at th
is tim

e.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 in

stall P
av

ed
 D

riv
e E

n
tran

ces w
ith

 C
u

lv
erts co

n
n

ected
 to

 ad
jacen

t W
est

H
in

to
n

 A
v

en
u

e an
d

 T
ed

fo
rd

 S
treets as sh

o
w

n
.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 h

av
e R

esid
en

tial T
rash

 C
o

n
tain

ers o
n

 site b
eh

in
d

 P
ro

p
o

sed
 B

u
ild

in
g

.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 in

stall n
ew

 P
o

w
er S

u
p

p
ly

 fro
m

 ad
jacen

t P
o

le u
n

d
erg

ro
u

n
d

 to
 B

u
ild

in
g

 as

d
irected

 b
y

 A
m

eren
 M

isso
u

ri an
d

 T
h

e C
ity

 o
f M

o
b

elry
.

·
A

n
y

 n
ew

 G
as S

erv
ice to

 b
e co

o
rd

in
ated

 an
d

 ap
p

ro
v

ed
 b

y
 A

m
eren

 M
isso

u
ri an

d
 T

h
e C

ity
 o

f

M
o

b
erly

.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 in

stall n
ew

 W
ater S

erv
ice fro

m
 ad

jacen
t w

ater m
ain

 as d
irected

 b
y

 T
h

e C
ity

o
f M

o
b

erly
.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 co

n
n

ect n
ew

 S
an

itary
 S

ew
er S

erv
ice to

 ad
jacen

t C
ity

 S
ew

er as d
irected

 b
y

T
h

e C
ity

 o
f M

o
b

erly
.

·
B

u
ild

in
g

 to
 d

isch
arg

e ro
o

f d
rain

ag
e at su

rface in
 p

erim
eter L

an
d

scap
in

g
 A

reas, o
n

to
 P

ro
p

o
sed

D
riv

e, an
d

/o
r in

to
 R

ain
w

ater C
o

llectio
n

 D
ev

ices.  P
ro

p
o

sed
 N

ew
 D

riv
e &

 P
ark

in
g

 to
 d

rain

to
w

ard
s d

esig
n

ated
 L

an
d

scap
in

g
/D

rain
ag

e A
reas an

d
 ex

istin
g

 D
rain

ag
e D

itch
es alo

n
g

 b
o

th

W
est H

in
to

n
 &

 T
ed

fo
rd

 S
treets.

·
P

ro
p

o
sed

 B
u

ild
in

g
 to

 b
e a S

in
g

le S
to

ry
 W

o
o

d
 F

ram
ed

 B
u

ild
in

g
 w

ith
 S

y
m

etrical G
ab

le E
n

d

R
o

o
f an

d
 L

ean
-to

 R
o

o
fin

g
 o

v
er S

tab
le/P

ad
d

o
ck

 A
rea.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 in

stall w
all-m

o
u

n
ted

 L
E

D
 L

ig
h

t F
ix

tu
res to

 illu
m

in
ate D

riv
e/P

ark
in

g
/W

alk

as n
ecessary

/req
u

ired
 an

d
 T

im
ed

 L
E

D
 P

o
le L

ig
h

ts in
 C

o
rral/P

astu
re as sh

o
w

n
.  P

ro
p

o
sed

L
ig

h
tin

g
 fo

r th
is p

ro
ject to

 n
o

t h
av

e lig
h

tin
g

 sp
ill to

 o
r b

ey
o

n
d

 p
ro

p
erty

 lin
es.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 N

O
T

 in
stall Illu

m
in

ated
 S

ig
n

ag
e o

n
 th

e B
u

ild
in

g
 o

r to
 co

n
stru

ct M
o

n
u

m
en

t,

P
y

lo
n

, o
r P

o
st S

ig
n

 o
n

 p
ro

p
erty

.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 in

stall 5
ft T

all 3
-R

ail F
en

cin
g

 at P
erim

eter o
f P

ro
p

erty
 an

d
 d

esig
n

ated

P
astu

res, C
o

rrals, P
ad

d
o

ck
s, etc.

Tedford St

E
x

istin
g

 F
ire H

y
d

ran
t

K
ey N

otes

E
x

istin
g

 P
o

w
er P

o
le

E
x

istin
g

 S
an

itary
 S

ew
er M

an
h

o
le

P
ro

p
o

sed
 N

ew
 E

lectrical S
erv

ice (C
o

o
rd

in
ate w

/ P
ro

v
id

er &
 C

ity
 o

f M
o

b
erly

)

P
ro

p
o

sed
 N

ew
 W

ater S
erv

ice (C
o

o
rd

in
ate w

/ P
ro

v
id

er &
 C

ity
 o

f M
o

b
erly

)

P
ro

p
o

sed
 N

ew
 S

an
itary

 S
erv

ice (C
o

o
rd

in
ate w

/ P
ro

v
id

er &
 C

ity
 o

f M
o

b
erly

)

P
ro

p
o

sed
 O

n
-S

ite P
ark

in
g

 L
o

catio
n

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 SIT
E

 P
L

A
N

B
u

ild
in

g
 C

o
n

cep
t

P
ro

p
o

sed
 P

o
le L

ig
h

t L
o

catio
n

439

WS #11.



440

WS #11.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An application for a planned development submitted by Devin Snodgrass on 

behalf of Kal Cleavinger for the property located at 201 W Hinton Ave and the 

lots to the north.   

  

Summary: The proposed site is located at 201 W Hinton Ave. and they are requesting a 

commercial stable facility to house not more than 5 horses and 5 acres fenced with 3 

rail fencing for the horses, there will be a restroom and  no sleeping quarters in the 

stable. 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval for the request of 

the planned development.   

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to bring forward to the regular City Council meeting on February 

21, 2023 for final approval. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

441

WS #12.



Devin Snodgrass, Outline & Associates 660.998.4288
1 Holman Road, Moberly, Missouri 65270

Kal Cleavinger 660.349.7100

1 Holman Road, Moberly, Missouri 65270

201 W Hinton Avenue

✔

442

WS #12.



Vacant Lot

Hinton Ave / Manufactured Home Park / Vacant Lot

B-3 General Commercial District

M-P Manufactured Home Park / R-2 Two-Family

Single Family Residences

Tedford Street / Single Family / Vacant Lot

R-2 Two-Family District

R-2 Two-Family District

✔

"see attached Submittal Letter"

✔

✔

 West Hinton Avenue & Tedford Street

 West Hinton Avenue, Local Street, 40ft ROW

 Tedford Street, Local Street, 30ft ROW

443

WS #12.



✔

444

WS #12.



 

City of        
 

 

 

 

To: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

From: Planning Staff  

 

Subject:   Agenda item 1-3, Hinton Ave Planned Development 
 

Meeting: January 30, 2023  

 

 
Public Hearing to consider: 

Notice of a Public Hearing for an application submitted by Devin Snodgrass on 

behalf of Kal Cleavinger for a zoning change from an R-3 (Multi-family Dwelling 

District) to an N-1/PD (Nonurban/Planned District) for a proposed Private 

Commercial Stable facility on the property located at 201 W Hinton Ave. 
Comments: 

The proposed site is located at 201 W Hinton Ave.  The proposed zoning change is in conjunction 

with a change of use for the property and a site plan submittal to follow if necessary.  The current 

zoning of the property is R-3 (Multi-family Dwelling District).  The future land use map for this 

property has it identified as R-3 (Multi-family Dwelling District).  The applicant is proposing 

Planned Development with Zoning Change to an N-1/Planned Development.  

 

The first item on the agenda is the zoning change to an N-1/Planned Development district.  If this 

is approved, the following two items will need to be reviewed.  

2. Preliminary Development Plan 

3. Site Plan 

 

As an N-1/Planned Development District, the base requirements for the district would require 

underlying criteria to align with the N-1 District regulations found in Chapter 46-3, 46-78, 46-87, 

and 46-118.  N-1 Agricultural district regulations require a minimum of 5 acres.  A commercial 

stable is not listed in the use table (46-118), however 46-78 states that Permitted uses. Generally, 
agricultural and rural residential uses are permitted on parcels greater than five acres.  The 

definition of a commercial stable in Chapter 46-3 means any building for the keeping of horses, 

mules, or ponies for remuneration, hire, or sale. The other definitions of which may be applicable 

to the use of land in this application is Animal Care, General as defined in 46-3. Animal Care, 

General per chapter 46-118 is a conditional use in B-2, B-3 districts and permitted use in M-1 

districts.  It is not listed in the N-1 district. 

   

City staff:  

The requested zoning change does not align with the future land use plan.  Historically, the 

intention and limitations on N-1 districts were to locate livestock and agricultural use of land 

to the outer edges of the city limits and to retain the use of land that is newly annexed into the 

city limits at that time.  There are other restrictions within the code book (Chapter 8) that 

limit animals kept within the city limits. The developer has also requested the following 

Memorandum 

445

WS #12.



specific details with respect to the City Code of Ordinances as they have applied for a planned 

development: 

1. They request to raise a specific number of horses and horses only on the property. 

2. They request to only use the 6 acre tract for the horses. 

3. They request to erect a commercial stable for business use on site. 

4. They are requesting an exemption to the limitations of Chapter 8 on animals kept in city 

limits. 

 

The granting of a planned development on the property would greatly restrict and detail the 

use of the property for the owner of the land.  This includes if the land were sold or 

transferred to the new owner of the property.  It will detail and limit the type of use and 

purpose of the land specifically as defined in the planned development plan.  This is not 

restrictive to the current owner and is transferable with the sale of the land.  The 

implementation of a planned development plan is more restrictive and detailed compared to 

a conditional use applied to the zoning change. 

 

 

#2  Public Hearing to consider: 

Notice of Public Hearing for an application submitted by Devin Snodgrass on behalf 

of Kal Cleavinger for a preliminary development plan for a Private Commercial 

Stable facility if item number 1 is approved. 

 

#3 Public Hearing to consider: 

Notice of Public Hearing for an application submitted by Devin Snodgrass on behalf 

of Kal Cleavinger for a site plan review for a Private Commercial Stable facility if 

item number 1 and 2 are approved. 

 
Comments: 

The proposed site is located at 201 W Hinton Ave.  The proposed preliminary development plan is 

in conjunction with a change of zoning for the property and a site plan submittal to follow if 

necessary.  The current zoning of the property is R-3 (Multi-family Dwelling District).  The future 

land use map for this property has it identified as R-3 (Multi-family Dwelling District).  The 

proposed Planned Development and Zoning Change to N-1/Planned Development requires a 

preliminary development plan submission. 

 

The preliminary development plan has indicated the construction of a commercial stable 

for the keeping of up to 5 horses on property.  This includes fencing (5ft tall and 3 rail 

style) around the perimeter of the property and internally to keep the horses within the 6 

acre tract of land, the construction of a stable (2,304 sq ft) to house and care for the horses, 

and newly constructed paved drive entry on to the property with two points of egress. The 

building will be designed with stables and restroom facilities. Planned connection to 

Ameren UE utilities as well as City Utilities at this time.  Perimeter fencing is currently 

planned to setback 20 ft from the property lines on all sides and remain behind the stable 

in the southwest corner of the property. 

 

The following elements of a Commercial Preliminary Development Plan are being 

requested as part of the submission: 

1. Exemption for installation of sidewalks as the sidewalks of the area are in disrepair. 

446

WS #12.



 

2. Use of residential trash containers on site instead of commercial dumpster with 

screening. 

3. Stormwater drainage to be directed to landscaped areas of the lot. 

 

Proposed Use and Operations: Owner intends to Construct and Occupy a Commercial 
Stable Facility as defined in Moberly Code of Ordinances.  
Facility will not consist of any permanent residence or provide lodging of any kind.  
Facility to be maintained and operated daily for Business by Cavalier Holding Company, 
LLC  
Business intends to offer Services that may include but not limited to Rental/Leasing, 
Boarding, Training, Grooming, and Riding Lessons.  
Facility to have over 5 Acres Total of Fenced Pasture Harboring up to Five Horses on site. 

 

City Staff: 

 Upon review the preliminary development plan meets the requirements for submission 

pending the items listed above for which they are asking for exemption.  As a commercial 

business location, the sidewalks, dumpster, and the requirements need to be reviewed.  

Installation of sidewalks will be an improvement to the area as well as having adequate 

dumpster facilities.     

 

N-1 Rezoning/Planned Development and Preliminary Development Plan shall 

both require approval through City Council at the next available 

meeting. 
 

 

Respectfully Submitted  

Aaron Decker 

 

447

WS #12.



W

P
relim

in
ary

 D
ev

elo
p

m
en

t P
lan

 fo
r

2
0
1
 W

est H
in

to
n

 A
v
e P

ro
ject

M
o

b
erly

, R
an

d
o

lp
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
, M

isso
u

ri

D
ecem

b
er 2

0
2

2

SU
B

JE
C

T
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 "B

"

H
inton A

ve

N Buchanan St

H
urley St

Tedford St

JO
H

N
SO

N
, R

O
N

A
L

D

M
o

b
erly

, M
isso

u
ri

C
rockett Eng

ineering
 C

onsulta
nts, LLC

M
issouri C

ertifica
te of A

uth
ority

#20
0

0
15130

1

EN
G

IN
EERIN

G
 C

O
N

SU
LTA

N
TS

10
0

0
 W

. N
ifong

 B
lv

d
., B

ld
g

. 1
C

olum
b

ia
, M

issouri  6520
3

(573) 4
4

7-0
292

w
w

w
.crocketteng

ineering
.com

B
E

L
L

G
E

R
A

L
D

 &
 A

U
D

R
A

SC
H

O
M

A
K

E
R

H
E

N
R

Y
 &

 T
IN

A

SA
N

D
E

R
S C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, L

L
C

C
A

D
E

, M
A

R
Y

 K

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 M

O
B

E
R

L
Y

W
A

IL
E

S, T
A

M
M

Y

B
O

R
R

O
N

L
A

R
R

Y
 &

 W
A

N
D

A

JO
H

N
SO

N
, W

A
N

D
A

 F
A

Y
E

SA
N

D
E

R
S C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, L

L
C

G
M

O
S E

N
T

E
R

P
R

ISE
S L

L
C

M
IL

A
Z

Z
O

, P
H

IL
L

IP

H
A

R
L

A
N

, W
A

L
L

A
C

E

D
R

E
W

E
R

Y
 &

 SP
A

R
K

M
A

N

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 H
O

L
D

IN
G

S, L
L

C

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 M

O
B

E
R

L
Y

K
IT

C
H

E
N

, R
E

B
E

C
C

A

M
E

Y
E

R
, G

E
R

A
L

D

D
A

V
IS, W

A
L

T
E

R

D
A

V
IS

W
A

L
T

E
R

 &
 A

L
F

R
E

D
A

C
H

IR
IL

L
O

R
O

N
A

L
D

 W
 - T

R
U

ST

C
H

IR
IL

L
O

R
O

N
A

L
D

 W
 - T

R
U

ST

Collins Ave

P
A

N
T

A
L

E
O

,

V
IR

G
IN

IA
 - E

ST
A

T
E

A
C

T
O

N

A
N

D
Y

 &
 P

A
M

E
L

A

SP
A

R
K

M
A

N
,

M
IC

H
A

E
L

 E
, SR

ST
R

U
B

L
E

, E
T

H
A

N

C
H

IR
IL

L
O

R
O

N
A

L
D

 W
 - T

R
U

ST

S
ite In

fo
rm

atio
n

:

P
ro

p
erty

 A
d

d
ress:

2
0

1
 W

est H
in

to
n

 A
v

e

M
o

b
erly

, R
an

d
o

p
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
, M

isso
u

ri

P
ro

p
erty

 O
w

n
er:

K
al C

leav
in

g
er

1
 H

o
lm

an
 R

o
ad

M
o

b
erly

, M
isso

u
ri  6

5
2

7
0

C
o

d
e in

 E
ffect:

IB
C

 2
0

2
1

, C
ity

 o
f M

o
b

erly

Z
o

n
in

g
:

C
u

rren
t:

R
-3

, M
u

ltifam
ily

 D
w

ellin
g

 D
istrict

P
ro

p
o

sed
 C

h
an

g
e:

N
-1

-P
D

, N
o

n
u

rb
an

 P
lan

n
ed

 D
ev

elo
p

m
en

t D
istrict

L
o

t A
rea:

C
u

rren
t =

 
6

.1
1

 A
cres (4

4
7

ft x
 5

9
5

ft)

S
etb

ack
s: 

F
ro

n
t Y

ard
:

R
-3

:
2

5
 feet

N
-1

:
3

0
 feet

S
id

e Y
ard

:
R

-3
:

5
/7

 feet, 1
5

ft 
N

-1
:

1
0

%
 o

f L
o

t W
id

th

R
ear Y

ard
:

R
-3

:
2

5
ft / 2

0
%

 D
ep

th
N

-1
:

3
0

 feet

L
o

t A
rea R

eg
u

latio
n

s:
R

-3
S

in
g

le F
am

ily
 =

 
6

,0
0

0
 sf

T
w

o
-F

am
ily

 =
 

5
,0

0
0

 sf

M
u

ltifam
ily

 =
1

0
,0

0
0

 sf

N
-1

:
F

iv
e A

cres (2
1

7
,8

0
0

 sf)

M
in

im
u

m
 L

o
t W

id
th

:
R

-3
:

S
in

g
le F

am
ily

 =
6

0
 feet, 7

5
 feet C

o
rn

er L
o

ts

T
w

o
-F

am
ily

 =
6

0
 feet, 8

0
 feet C

o
rn

er L
o

ts

M
u

ltifam
ily

 =
7

5
 feet, 8

0
 feet C

o
rn

er L
o

ts

N
-1

:  7
0

 feet fo
r R

esid
en

tial U
ses, n

/a fo
r N

o
n

-R
esid

en
tial U

ses

H
eig

h
t R

eg
u

latio
n

s:
R

-3
:

3
5

 feet
N

-1
:

3
5

 feet

P
ro

p
o

sed
 B

u
ild

in
g

:
±

2
,3

0
4

 sq
.ft. S

in
g

le S
to

ry
 B

u
ild

in
g

S
lab

-o
n

-G
rad

e, W
o

o
d

 F
ram

ed

T
y

p
e 5

B
, N

o
n

-S
p

rin
k

lered

P
ro

p
o

sed
 U

se &
 O

ccu
p

an
cy

:
C

o
m

m
ercial ~

 U
tility

 &
 M

iscellan
eo

u
s G

ro
u

p
 U

 (S
tab

les)

A
llo

w
ab

le B
ld

g
. H

eig
h

ts &
 A

reas: 
1

 S
to

ry
 (4

0
 feet)

5
,5

0
0

 sq
.ft. F

lo
o

r A
rea

D
esig

n
 L

o
ad

in
g

:
1

 O
ccu

p
an

t / 3
0

0
 sq

.ft. =
 

8
 O

ccu
p

an
ts

E
x

its R
eq

u
ired

:
1

 E
x

it R
eq

u
ired

 (<
5

0
 O

ccs, <
7

5
ft T

rav
el D

istan
ce)

P
lu

m
b

in
g

 F
acilities:

C
o

m
m

ercial R
eq

u
ired

:
W

C
's =

 (1
) R

eq
u

ired
 / (1

) P
ro

p
o

sed

L
av

's =
 (1

) R
eq

u
ired

 / (1
) P

ro
p

o
sed

A
 S

erv
ice S

in
k

 n
o

t req
u

ired

(1
) D

rin
k

in
g

 F
o

u
n

tain
,

o
r W

ater D
isp

en
ser/B

o
ttled

 W
ater

L
o

t A
rea C

alcu
latio

n
s:

T
o

tal L
o

t A
rea:

±
2

6
6

,1
5

2
 sq

.ft.
6

.1
1

 A
cres

P
ro

p
o

sed
 B

u
ild

in
g

:
±

2
,3

0
4

 sq
.ft.

0
.0

5
 A

cres

P
ro

p
o

sed
 P

av
in

g
:

±
5

,8
8

0
 sq

.ft.
0

.1
3

 A
cres

Im
p

erv
io

u
s A

rea:
±

8
,1

8
4

 sq
.ft.

0
.1

8
 A

cres

P
erv

io
u

s A
rea:

±
2

5
7

,9
6

8
 sq

.ft.
5

.9
2

 A
cres

(9
7

%
 o

f S
ite)

P
ro

p
o

sed
 P

ark
in

g
:

(1
) S

p
ace fo

r E
m

p
lo

y
ee, (1

) S
p

ace fo
r V

isito
r, (1

) A
D

A
 C

o
m

p
lian

t S
p

ace

S
ite P

lan
 N

o
tes:

·
F

o
r referen

ce o
n

ly
, refer to

 su
rv

ey
(s) filed

 fo
r reco

rd
 in

 R
an

d
o

lp
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
, M

isso
u

ri p
rep

ared
 b

y

a reg
istered

 p
ro

fessio
n

al lan
d

 su
rv

ey
o

r fo
r all p

ro
p

erty
 b

o
u

n
d

ary
, easem

en
ts, u

tilities, an
d

restrictio
n

s.  A
ll in

fo
rm

atio
n

 sh
o

w
n

 o
n

 th
is d

raw
in

g
 w

as b
ased

 o
ff su

ch
 rep

resen
ted

 b
y

 C
ity

 o
f

M
o

b
erly

's D
ig

itial M
ap

p
in

g
 S

y
stem

.  A
ll item

s, w
h

eth
er sh

o
w

n
 o

r n
o

t, to
 b

e field
 v

erified
,

co
o

rd
in

ated
, an

d
 ap

p
ro

v
ed

 b
y

 th
e C

ity
 o

f M
o

b
erly

 an
d

/o
r U

tility
 P

ro
v

id
er p

rio
r to

 an
y

 w
o

rk
.

·
C

u
rren

tly
 th

e p
ro

p
erty

 co
n

sists o
f V

acan
t L

o
ts an

d
 slo

p
es slig

h
tly

 fro
m

 S
o

u
th

 to
 N

o
rth

 w
ith

ro
u

g
h

ly
 8

ft in
 elev

atio
n

 ch
an

g
e.  P

ro
p

erty
 cu

rren
tly

 sh
eet d

rain
s N

o
rth

-N
o

rth
east.  N

o
 C

ity

S
to

rm
 W

ater C
o

n
tro

l (C
u

rb
/G

u
tter, In

lets, P
ip

in
g

, etc.) is cu
rren

tly
 ad

jacen
t to

 th
is p

ro
p

erty
.

S
treets are alig

n
ed

 w
ith

 D
rain

ag
e D

itch
es an

d
 D

riv
e/S

treet C
u

lv
erts.

·
S

treets ad
jacen

t to
 P

ro
p

erty
 d

o
 n

o
t cu

rren
tly

 h
av

e S
id

ew
alk

s.  P
artial S

id
ew

alk
s d

o
 ex

ist in

n
eig

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 h

o
w

ev
er are in

 d
isrep

air an
d

 d
o

 n
o

t co
m

p
ly

 w
ith

 C
ity

 S
tan

d
ard

s.  It is th
e in

ten
t

to
 n

o
t in

stall sid
ew

alk
s o

n
 th

is p
ro

p
erty

 at th
is tim

e.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 in

stall P
av

ed
 D

riv
e E

n
tran

ces w
ith

 C
u

lv
erts co

n
n

ected
 to

 ad
jacen

t W
est

H
in

to
n

 A
v

en
u

e an
d

 T
ed

fo
rd

 S
treets as sh

o
w

n
.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 h

av
e R

esid
en

tial T
rash

 C
o

n
tain

ers o
n

 site b
eh

in
d

 P
ro

p
o

sed
 B

u
ild

in
g

.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 in

stall n
ew

 P
o

w
er S

u
p

p
ly

 fro
m

 ad
jacen

t P
o

le u
n

d
erg

ro
u

n
d

 to
 B

u
ild

in
g

 as

d
irected

 b
y

 A
m

eren
 M

isso
u

ri an
d

 T
h

e C
ity

 o
f M

o
b

elry
.

·
A

n
y

 n
ew

 G
as S

erv
ice to

 b
e co

o
rd

in
ated

 an
d

 ap
p

ro
v

ed
 b

y
 A

m
eren

 M
isso

u
ri an

d
 T

h
e C

ity
 o

f

M
o

b
erly

.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 in

stall n
ew

 W
ater S

erv
ice fro

m
 ad

jacen
t w

ater m
ain

 as d
irected

 b
y

 T
h

e C
ity

o
f M

o
b

erly
.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 co

n
n

ect n
ew

 S
an

itary
 S

ew
er S

erv
ice to

 ad
jacen

t C
ity

 S
ew

er as d
irected

 b
y

T
h

e C
ity

 o
f M

o
b

erly
.

·
B

u
ild

in
g

 to
 d

isch
arg

e ro
o

f d
rain

ag
e at su

rface in
 p

erim
eter L

an
d

scap
in

g
 A

reas, o
n

to
 P

ro
p

o
sed

D
riv

e, an
d

/o
r in

to
 R

ain
w

ater C
o

llectio
n

 D
ev

ices.  P
ro

p
o

sed
 N

ew
 D

riv
e &

 P
ark

in
g

 to
 d

rain

to
w

ard
s d

esig
n

ated
 L

an
d

scap
in

g
/D

rain
ag

e A
reas an

d
 ex

istin
g

 D
rain

ag
e D

itch
es alo

n
g

 b
o

th

W
est H

in
to

n
 &

 T
ed

fo
rd

 S
treets.

·
P

ro
p

o
sed

 B
u

ild
in

g
 to

 b
e a S

in
g

le S
to

ry
 W

o
o

d
 F

ram
ed

 B
u

ild
in

g
 w

ith
 S

y
m

etrical G
ab

le E
n

d

R
o

o
f an

d
 L

ean
-to

 R
o

o
fin

g
 o

v
er S

tab
le/P

ad
d

o
ck

 A
rea.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 in

stall w
all-m

o
u

n
ted

 L
E

D
 L

ig
h

t F
ix

tu
res to

 illu
m

in
ate D

riv
e/P

ark
in

g
/W

alk

as n
ecessary

/req
u

ired
 an

d
 T

im
ed

 L
E

D
 P

o
le L

ig
h

ts in
 C

o
rral/P

astu
re as sh

o
w

n
.  P

ro
p

o
sed

L
ig

h
tin

g
 fo

r th
is p

ro
ject to

 n
o

t h
av

e lig
h

tin
g

 sp
ill to

 o
r b

ey
o

n
d

 p
ro

p
erty

 lin
es.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 N

O
T

 in
stall Illu

m
in

ated
 S

ig
n

ag
e o

n
 th

e B
u

ild
in

g
 o

r to
 co

n
stru

ct M
o

n
u

m
en

t,

P
y

lo
n

, o
r P

o
st S

ig
n

 o
n

 p
ro

p
erty

.

·
O

w
n

er's in
ten

t is to
 in

stall 5
ft T

all 3
-R

ail F
en

cin
g

 at P
erim

eter o
f P

ro
p

erty
 an

d
 d

esig
n

ated

P
astu

res, C
o

rrals, P
ad

d
o

ck
s, etc.

Tedford St

E
x

istin
g

 F
ire H

y
d

ran
t

K
ey N

otes

E
x

istin
g

 P
o

w
er P

o
le

E
x

istin
g

 S
an

itary
 S

ew
er M

an
h

o
le

P
ro

p
o

sed
 N

ew
 E

lectrical S
erv

ice (C
o

o
rd

in
ate w

/ P
ro

v
id

er &
 C

ity
 o

f M
o

b
erly

)

P
ro

p
o

sed
 N

ew
 W

ater S
erv

ice (C
o

o
rd

in
ate w

/ P
ro

v
id

er &
 C

ity
 o

f M
o

b
erly

)

P
ro

p
o

sed
 N

ew
 S

an
itary

 S
erv

ice (C
o

o
rd

in
ate w

/ P
ro

v
id

er &
 C

ity
 o

f M
o

b
erly

)

P
ro

p
o

sed
 O

n
-S

ite P
ark

in
g

 L
o

catio
n

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 SIT
E

 P
L

A
N

B
u

ild
in

g
 C

o
n

cep
t

P
ro

p
o

sed
 P

o
le L

ig
h

t L
o

catio
n

448

WS #12.



449

WS #12.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Discussion Regarding A Tannehill Water Line Project Change Order and 

Increase in Contract Costs. 

  

Summary: The project team identified the opportunity for this change. During work 

within the area where the Tannehill water line project and the Sturgeon & 

Rollins water line project will be connecting, a discussion between Jacobs, 

Willis Bros and Moberly Utilities recognized that it would be beneficial to add 

the valving and piping necessary for that connection as part of the Tannehill 

project rather than later during Sturgeon and Rollins in order to streamline 

each project and reduce overall project costs. This change order will increase 

the Tannehill project in the amount for that effort from $199,690 to $209,066, 

a difference (increase) of $9,376. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to develop a resolution for approval at the next regular council 

meeting. 

  

Fund Name: Capital Improvement Sales Tax 

  

Account Number: 350.000.5502 

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
   x   Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

450

WS #13.



451

WS #13.



452

WS #13.



453

WS #13.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: 

Community 

Development 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: On-Call Professional Services agreement with Bartlett and West expires 

March 3, 2023 and they want to extent the agreement. 

  

Summary: The On-Call professional Service with Bartlett and West is to expire on March 

3, 2023 and they are asking to extent the agreement.  Attached please find a 

letter from Bartlett and West.   

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Bring forward to the February 21, 2023 regular City Council meeting for final 

approval. 

  

Fund Name: Transportation Trust 

  

Account Number: 600.000.5406 

  

Available Budget $: 40,000.00 

  

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence        Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report   x    Other  Agreement       Passed Failed 

 

454

WS #14.



  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

February 2, 2023 

 

 

 
Bartlett & West, Inc 

1719 Southridge Dr, Suite 100 

Jefferson City, Mo 65109 

 

 

Re: On-Call Engineering Service Agreement Renewal for 2023 

 

 

In accordance with the On-Call Engineering Master Service Agreement dated March 3, 2020, the 

City of Mexico wishes to extend the agreement for another three (3) years. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement extension.  

 

CLIENT:       CONSULTANT: 

 

CITY OF OBERLY, MO     Bartlett & West, Inc. 

 

By: __________________________  By: ________________________ 

 

Print name: ____________________  Print name: __________________ 

 

Title: _________________________  Title: _______________________ 

 

Date Signed: ___________________  Date Signed: _________________ 

City Hall 

660-263-4420 

 

City Manager 

660-269-8705 

x2062 

 

City Clerk 

660-269-8705 

x2053 

 

Code 

Enforcement/ 

Building 

Inspection 

660-269-8705 

x2042 

 

Community 

Development 

660-269-8705 

x2044 

 

Finance 

660-269-8705 

x2037 

 

Fire Non-

Emergency 

660-263-4177 

 

Fire Emergency 

911 

 

Parks & 

Recreation 

660-263-6757 

 

Personnel/ 

Purchasing 

660-269-8705 

x2070 

 

Police Non-

Emergency 

660-263-0346 

 

Police 

Emergency 

911 

 

Public Works 

660-269-8705 

x2044 

 

Sanitation/ 

Street 

Maintenance 

660-269-9450 

 

Utility Billing 

660-263-4420 

 

Water/ 

Wastewater 

660-269-8705 

455

WS #14.



456

WS #14.



457

WS #14.



458

WS #14.



459

WS #14.



Neil Dobler

Sr. Vice President

3/5/2020

460

WS #14.



461

WS #14.



462

WS #14.



463

WS #14.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Parks & Recreation 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Kiwanis Park Engineering 

  

Summary: We requested engineering proposals last fall and received none as most firms 

were maxed out. We resumed conversations with Bartlett & West – who the 

City has had an ongoing relationship with for years – and they have put 

together a proposal. The attached proposal comes in just under what they 

estimated this winter and significantly under the estimate in the CDBG 

funding attempt approximately a year ago.  

 

Bartlett & West also previously did a basic site plan previously as well as 

worked on the CDBG funding proposal a year ago so they are very familiar 

with the property and the project. 

 

This agreement would provide for the engineering of and specifications for the 

hardscape portion of the project including the driveway, parking lot, sidewalk, 

pavilion, and restroom. The playground is a part of the grant application and 

proposals would be received separately based on a maximum budget and it 

would be installed following the construction of the items that fall under this 

engineering proposal in order to have the appropriate and required setbacks 

from the hardscape items. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Ask staff to bring a resolution for approval at the February 21, 2023 meeting. 

  

Fund Name: Recreation – Contract Services 

  

Account Number: 115.044.5406 

  

Available Budget $: $122,087.80 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes    X   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

 

464

WS #15.



  Bartlett & West Project No. 19254.038 

    Page 1 of 2    09/21 
   

TASK ORDER NO. 19  

This Task Order No. 19 is issued relative to and in accordance with the Master Agreement (hereafter 
referred to as the “Agreement”) for Professional Services between the City of Moberly, Missouri 
(“Client”) and Bartlett & West, Inc. (“Consultant”) as dated March 3, 2020, and as further modified 
herein. 

The Provisions of this Task are as follows: 
 

A. Definitions and Rules of Interpretation. For purposes of this Task Order, definitions and rules of 
interpretation as outlined within the Agreement, or within preceding Task Orders, shall apply 
unless exception or redefinition to any previously provided terms are expressly noted by this Task 
Order. 

B. Scope of Work. Consultant shall perform services under the Task Order for the purpose of 
developing a design for shelter pavilion with restrooms and associated site work at the Kiwanis 
Park in Moberly, Missouri and as more fully described herein. 

1. Refer to attached Exhibit A for the Scope of Work. 

C. Time of Performance for Services. The schedule for services will be established upon contract 
award.  

D. Compensation for Services. The services contained in this Task Order shall be performed for the 
lump sum fee of $93,942.00. 

1. Intermittent travel expenses to cover Consultant’s out-of-pocket expenses will be at cost, 
plus a 10% mark-up. A $1500 expense allowance is included in the lump sum fee. 

2. Subcontracted services, if added at a later date, will be billed at actual cost plus 10%.  
 

E. Client’s Responsibilities. Client’s responsibilities in the completion of this Task Order are as 
follows:  

1. Refer to attached Exhibit A for Client responsibilities.  

If no responsibilities are listed, then the responsibilities are as outlined in the Agreement. 
 

F. Special Items. Special items relative to this Task Order are as follows:  
1. Consultant and Client agree that the Agreement and this Task Order may be changed by 

mutual written consent of both Consultant and Client.  
2. In regard to this Task Order No. 19 only, the following terms are noted as changed from 

either the Agreement or the Standard Provisions. 

G. Authorization Acknowledgement and Acceptance: All services herein offered are subject to the 
terms of the Agreement, unless otherwise specifically provided for herein. Signature hereto by 
both Parties constitutes an offer by Consultant to perform such services listed herein and an 
authorization by Client for Consultant to proceed with the services. 

 
 

465

WS #15.



  Bartlett & West Project No. 19254.038 

    Page 2 of 2    09/21 
   

CLIENT:  CONSULTANT: 
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI  BARTLETT & WEST, INC. 

By:   By:   

Print Name:   Print Name:  

Title:   Title:   

Date Signed:   Date Signed:  
 

 

466

WS #15.



 -1- 

EXHIBIT A 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

FOR 

Shelter/Restroom Building 

Kiwanis Park 

Moberly, Missouri 

 

GENERAL BACKGROUND 

This project consists of providing construction documents for a Shelter House/Restroom Building at 

Kiwanis Park in Moberly, MO.  The building is to be approximately 54 feet x 34 feet.  There is to be a 

men’s restroom facility and a women’s restroom facility.  The building is to be timber construction with 

the restroom area being insulated with metal or wood stud framing and sheathing. The restrooms will be 

conditioned for year-round use. Site work includes a parking lot and utility connections.  

 

This project includes construction documents for civil, landscape, architectural, MEP (mechanical, 

electrical and plumbing) and structural (foundation and building) scopes of work. 

 

CIVIL, ARCHITECTURE, MEP & STRUCTURAL SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Design: 

 

Codes:  Design codes for Moberly, MO: 

• 2021 International Building Code (IBC) 

• 2021 International Plumbing Code (IPC) 

• 2021 International Mechanical Code (IMC) 

• 2021 International Fuel Gas Code (IGC) 

• 2011 National Electric Code (NEC) 

• 2021 International Fire Code (IFC) 

 

Civil / Landscape: 

• Project kickoff meeting with team and the owner. 

• Team coordination and collaboration (internal and external). 

• Perform topographic design surveys required to complete the proposed work. 

• Develop site layout with revisions. 

• Develop site grading. 

• Provide construction documents to include existing conditions & demolition plan, site layout 

plan, site dimension plan, site utility plan, site grading plan, erosion control plan, site details, and 

landscape plan. 

• Develop sheet specifications for civil and landscape sections.  

• Perform document QC reviews for each submittal. 

• Construction administration to include shop drawing review and response for RFI’s. 

• One site visit conducted during the design development phase and two construction phase, total 

of 3 site visits. 

  

467

WS #15.



 -2- 

Building and Architectural: 

• Develop drawings including a floor plan, code plan, roof plan, building elevations (4), wall 

sections (2-3), details, finish schedule and door schedule. 

• Perform a code analysis. 

• Team coordination and collaboration (internal and external). 

• Perform document QC reviews for each submittal. 

• Develop specifications for architectural scope of work (Divisions 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 13). 

• Submit a schematic design package for client review. 

• Address client comments. 

• Submit a final construction set of documents. 

• Submit a permit package upon approval of the final CD package. 

 

Structural  

• Provide structural foundation design for the shelter house/restroom building based on soil 

information provided to Bartlett & West.  The building is to be timber construction with the 

restroom area being constructed of wood or steel stud framing. 

• Provide construction documents as required to provide the contractor with the information 

required to bid and construct: 

o The new shelter house/restroom building. 

• Perform document QC reviews for each submittal. 

• Construction documents to include: 

o General notes for construction. 

o Foundation design, and roof design. 

o Foundation/concrete details required for construction. 

o Foundation and wall sections required for construction. 

• Review of structural shop drawing submittals for general conformance with structural 

construction documents. 

 

Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing (MEP) 

• Provide underfloor plumbing layout to provide two toilets and one sink in each of the restrooms 

in the new Shelter House/Restroom Building. 

• Plumbing details will be provided on the construction documents. 

• HVAC will include heating, ventilation and air conditioning in the new Shelter House/Restroom 

building. 

• HVAC equipment will be shown on the construction documents and scheduled. 

• HVAC details will be provided as part of the contract document package for construction. 

• Provide site electrical layout for electrical service to Shelter house/Restroom building.  Electrical 

service to be 120/240 single phase. 

• Provide building lighting layout and circuiting on the construction documents.  Includes shelter 

area and restroom area. 

• Provide power system layout and circuiting on the construction documents.  Includes shelter area 

and restroom area. 

• Provide area lighting with two light poles along the sidewalk that runs between the 

parking lot and playground area. 

• Provide electrical service drawings and details on construction documents. 

• Provide electrical schedules and details on construction documents. 

• Perform document QC reviews for each submittal. 

468

WS #15.



 -3- 

• Specifications will be included as part of the construction documents. 

 

Bidding Phase 

• Issue bid package. 

• Assist Owner in soliciting bids. 

• Attend the pre-bid conference virtually. 

• Respond to RFIs and issue addenda. 

• Assist Owner in evaluating bids. 

• Assist Owner in developing the Owner-Contractor agreement. 

 

Construction Phase 

• Respond to RFIs. 

• Provide submittal review (not exceeding 2 times per package). 

• Review pay applications for Owner approval. 

• Perform two (2) site visits during construction (1 person for 2 site visits only). 

• Attendance by 1 person at (3) virtual OAC meetings. 

 

Design/Pre-Bid and Pre-Construction meetings  

• This proposal includes two (2) virtual design review meetings (50% and 100% final review).  

Additional meetings requested will be additional services and be charged based on our standard 

hourly rates. 

• This proposal includes on-site attendance for 1 person at 3 meetings. 

 

EXCLUSIONS 

• Geotechnical or soils testing. Bartlett & West is contracting with Alpha Omega Geotech for 

geotechnical services. 

• Construction administration services other than shown above. 

• Presentations to City Council and/or Planning Commission. 

• Developing an opinion of probable construction cost. 

• Site environmental testing and/or remediation. 

• Permit fees. 

• Structural inspections and code-mandated special inspections. 

• Design of site structures (ie:  retaining walls, drainage structures, signs etc.) 

• Development of multiple plan options (exceeding 2 options).  

• Extensive re-design of the building façade (exceeding 2 revisions). 

• Building renderings. 

• As-built drawings. 

 

CLIENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 

1. Determination of the existence of any hazardous material associated with project. 

2. Contract with Alpha Omega Geotech to perform geotechnical sub-surface investigation with the 

report signed and sealed by a professional engineer licensed in the State of Missouri. 

3. Locations and weights of all building supported equipment. 

4. Product data on Owner-provided equipment and furnishings.  

5. All required permitting. 

 

469

WS #15.



 -4- 

TIME FOR COMPLETION 

The proposed project schedule is as follows: 

1. To be determined on approval of contract. 

 

DELIVERABLES 

Complete sealed architectural, m/e/p and structural construction documents including:   

1. A schematic design (65%) package with drawings only. 

2. A 95% construction documentation package with drawings and specifications (sheet and project 

manual). 

3. A permit set of sealed construction documents in PDF format for city approval and bidding.  

4. Drawings shall consist of plans, details and schedules necessary for project bidding and 

construction. Refer to scope of work narratives above for drawings included by each discipline.  

  

470

WS #15.



 -5- 

EXHIBIT B 

 

FEE PROPOSAL 

FOR 

Shelter/Restroom Building 

Kiwanis Park 

Moberly, Missouri 

 

SUMMARY OF COSTS 

The scope of services as described above will be completed on a Lump Sum basis. The design fee 

includes a $1500 expense allowance. 

 

Total Civil, Landscape, Architectural, MEP, & Structural Design Fee:  $86,131.00 

Survey:           $7,811.00 

  

Total Fee: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . $93,942.00 

 

 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES: 

 

Changes to the design or other design or construction connected assistance, other than stated in the scope 

of work above, will be considered additional services and will be charged at our standard hourly rates. 

Additional site visits required by contractor can be provided at our standard hourly rates.   

 

 

  

471

WS #15.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: 

Community 

Development 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Of The Council Of The City Of Moberly Approving A 

Sidewalk Repair Services Agreement; And Providing Further Authority. 

  

Summary: The proposal is to eliminate 108 trip hazards in the downtown district by angle 

sawing to make a smooth transition.  The cost for the proposed work is 

$12.898.00.  CID board approved pay half of the cost ($6,449.00) and the City 

paying the other half ($6,449.00).   

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Bring this forward to February 21, 2023 regular City Council meeting for final 

approval 

  

Fund Name: CID 

  

Account Number: 912.000.5502 

  

Available Budget $: 13,095.17 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report    x   Other       Passed Failed 

 

472

WS #16.



BILL NO: __________     RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY APPROVING A 

SIDEWALK REPAIR SERVICES AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FURTHER 

AUTHORITY. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Moberly, Missouri (the “City”) received the attached proposal 

for sidewalk repairs involving various sidewalk locations within the boundaries of the Downtown 

Moberly Community Improvement District (the “District”; and  

 

WHEREAS, the District was formed as a political subdivision of the State of Missouri 

pursuant to the Community Improvement District Act, sections 67.1401 through 67.1571 of the 

Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the “CID Act”);  and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council and the Board of Directors of the District have concluded 

that it is necessary and desirable to repair the various sidewalk locations located within the 

boundaries of the District and to engage the services of 3 Mat Co. d/b/a Precision Concrete Cutting 

Midwest (the “Contractor”) and to enter into a certain sidewalk repair services agreement among the 

District, the City of Moberly (the “City”), and the Contractor in substantially the form of Exhibit 1, 

attached to and incorporated by reference in this Resolution (the “Agreement”). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS, TO WIT: 

 

Section 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the contract, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein as Exhibit 1, on behalf of the City of Moberly, Missouri.  

 

 Section 2:  The City Administrator is authorized to deliver the Agreement with such 

ministerial changes as the Council may approve with the signature of the Mayor conclusively 

evidencing such changes and approval.  

 

Section 3: The portions of this Resolution shall be severable.  In the event that any 

paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, term, or word contained in this Resolution is found by a court 

of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining portions of this Resolution are valid, unless 

the court finds the valid portions of this Resolution are so essential and inseparably connected with 

and dependent upon the void portion that it cannot be presumed that the Council would have 

enacted the valid portions without the invalid ones, or unless the court finds that the valid portions 

standing alone are incomplete and are incapable of being executed in accordance with the 

legislative intent. 

 

 Section 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 

and adoption by the Council and its signature by the officer presiding at the meeting at which it 

was passed and adopted. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri this 21st day of 

February, 2023. 

 

 

473

WS #16.



2 

       _________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

474

WS #16.



3 

EXHIBIT 1  

 

SIDEWALK REPAIR SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS SIDEWALK REPAIR SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), is made and entered into 

as of this ______ day of January, 2023 (the “Effective Date”), by and among the DOWNTOWN 

MOBERLY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a community improvement district and 

political subdivision of the State of Missouri having a principal office at 101 West Main Street, Moberly, 

Missouri 65270 (the “District”); the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, a city of the third class and 

Missouri municipal corporation having a principal office at 101 West Main Street, Moberly, Missouri 

65270 (the “City”); and 3 MAT CO., a Missouri Corporation d/b/a PRECISION CONCRETE CUTTING 

MIDWEST, with a principal address of 16919 Hickory Crest Dr., Wildwood, Missouri 63011 (the 

“Contractor”). 

RECITALS 

A. The District was formed as a political subdivision of the State of Missouri pursuant to the 

Community Improvement District Act, sections 67.1401 through 67.1571 of the Revised Statutes of 

Missouri, as amended (the “CID Act”) to undertake, facilitate and promote certain actions, projects and 

programs designed to revitalize the downtown area of the City (collectively, the “Revitalization Project”).  

B. The City is the fee owner of certain real property throughout the boundaries of the District which 

have been identified by the Contractor as trip hazards and are in need of sidewalk repair services. The 

District, pursuant to Sections 67.1401 through 67.1571 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, 

may exercise the powers to contract for maintenance, and other services to public and private property 

located within the District.   

C. The District and the City are each desirous of facilitating the repair of these sidewalks (the 

“Project”) and to this end the Contractor has agreed to provide certain services based upon a proposal dated 

October 31, 2022 by the Contractor (the “Proposal”), which services are summarized in Exhibit A attached 

to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement (collectively, and as further detailed in this Agreement, 

the “Repair Services”).  

D. Subject to the limitations of this Agreement the District and the City wish to engage the Contractor 

to provide the Services. all in accordance with and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

AGREEMENT 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and mutual covenants and 

agreements contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the District, the City, and the Contractor each hereby agrees as follows: 

1. Services to be Provided.  The Contractor shall undertake at the Contractor’s sole cost and 

expense to provide all labor, tools, concrete, and equipment necessary to provide the Repair Services as 

morse specifically described in the Proposal and at all the trip hazard locations within the areas of the 

District identified by Contractor and depicted in the Proposal (Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated 

by reference in this Agreement). The Repair Services shall be performed at all times in a clean, safe, and 

workmanlike manner including clean-up of the surrounding area as required at each trip hazard location. In 

performing the Repair Services the Contractor shall not unreasonably block sidewalks or other travel areas 

and surfaces for a period of time longer than necessary to complete the Repair Services, shall exercise due 

care, and shall clean up and remove all tools and materials upon completion of the Repair Services. Any 

damage to private vehicles or to planters, benches, street trees, street furniture, building facades and similar 

caused in the course of provision by the Contractor of the Repair Services shall be the responsibility of the 

Contractor and the Contractor shall promptly reimburse the City for any costs incurred by the District or by 

the City, as applicable, in consequence of ay such damages, including without limitation, reasonable repair 

or replacement costs, as applicable. The Repair Services shall be provided by the Contractor in accordance 

475

WS #16.



4 

with all the provisions of the Proposal, this Agreement and the attached General Conditions made a part 

of this Agreement and incorporated herein by reference, and which General Conditions shall prevail over 

any conflicting terms that may occur in the Proposal. 

2. Compensation. For the provision of the Repair Services as set forth in this agreement, and 

as outlined in Option 1 on Exhibit A, the City and the District will each pay the Contractor the price of Six 

Thousand Four Hundred Forty-Nine Dollars and no cents ($6,449.00 each, for a total contract price of 

$12,898.00) for the Repair Services. The District and the City shall pay the Contractor for the Repair 

Services actually provided, as aforesaid, within not more than thirty (30) days after the City’s receipt of a 

written invoice from the Contractor therefor. Each such invoice shall identify the number and general 

location(s) of each trip hazard repaired for which payment is sought. If the District or City contests any 

invoice or portion thereof, the contested part of the invoice shall not be due until the dispute has been 

resolved.   

3. Time for Performance; Force Majeure.  This Agreement shall be effective upon the 

Effective Date. The Contractor shall commence providing the Repair Services under this Agreement 

immediately upon execution of this Agreement and shall faithfully and substantially complete the Repair 

Services not later than five (5) days after the City or District instructs Contractor to proceed (the “Contract 

Time”). It is understood that time is of the essence and that satisfactory completion of the Repair Services 

within the Contract Time are essential conditions of this Agreement; provided that neither the District, the 

City nor the Contractor shall be considered in breach or default of their respective obligations under this 

Agreement, and times for performance of obligations hereunder shall be extended on a day-for-day basis, in 

the event of any delay directly resulting from causes beyond the parties’ reasonable control (“Force Majeure”). 

 4. Notices.  Whenever notice or other communication is called for in this Agreement to be 

given or is otherwise given, such notice shall be in writing addressed to the addressees at the addresses set 

forth below, and transmitted by any of the following means: (a) personal service; (b) overnight courier; or 

(c) registered or certified mail, return receipt requested: 

  (i) In the case of the District, to: 

     Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District 

      101 West Reed Street 

     Moberly, Missouri 65270 

     Attention:  Chair 

      with a copy to:   

Cunningham, Vogel & Rost, P.C. 

       3660 S. Geyer Road, Suite 340 

       St. Louis, Missouri 63127 

         Attention:  Lyndee Rodamaker 

  (ii) In the case of the City, to: 

     City of Moberly, Missouri  

      101 West Reed Street – City Hall 

     Moberly, Missouri 65270 

     Attention:  City Manager 

  (ii) In the case of the Contractor, to:   

     Precision Concrete Cutting Midwest 

     16919 Hickory Crest Dr. 

     Wildwood, Missouri 63011 

or to such other address with respect to either party as that party may, from time to time, designate in writing 

and forward to the other as provided in this section 10. 

476

WS #16.



5 

5. Mutual Cooperation.  Each party to this Agreement hereby further agrees and covenants: (i) 

to allow access to the Properties or any portions thereof at all reasonable times; (ii) to cooperate in good faith 

with one another in each of the undertakings authorized by this Agreement; (iii) to promptly make and deliver 

such timely decisions as may be required to permit each of the other parties to perform its obligations under 

this Agreement; (iv) to take such actions and execute and deliver such further documents and instruments as 

may be reasonably necessary to facilitate the undertakings authorized by this Agreement and which do not 

impair the rights of the acting or signing party as they exist under this Agreement; and (v) to otherwise aid and 

assist each other in carrying out the terms, provisions and intent of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 

the day and year first above written. 

 

DOWNTOWN MOBERLY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT (the “District”) 

 

 

 

By:                          

 Brian Crane, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

     

                           

Secretary 

 

    CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI (the “City”) 

 

 

 

By:                          

 Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

     

                           

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

477

WS #16.



6 

3 MAT CO., d/b/a PRECISION CONCRETE 

CUTTING MIDWEST, (the “Contractor”) 

 

 

 

By:                          

 Title: 

 

ATTEST: 

 

     

                           

 

478

WS #16.



7 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

Independent Contractor.  The Contractor shall be and operate as an independent Contractor in the performance of this Contract.  The Contractor shall have 
complete charge of the personnel engaged in the performance of the Services, and all persons employed by the Contractor shall be employees of said Contractor 
and not employees of the City in any respect. 

Compliance with Laws.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable City ordinances and other laws and regulations, Federal, State, and any political 
subdivision thereof, including but not limited to, unemployment and workers' compensation, occupational safety, equal employment and affirmative action and 
wage and price laws insofar as applicable to the performance of the Contract. Specifically, Contractor shall comply with the following state law requirements: 

Work Authorization Program.  If the Contract is for services expected to cost more than $5,000.00, the Contractor shall comply with Section 285.530 RSMo., 
pertaining to enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program (as defined therein) and shall provide verification through an affidavit (attached 
as Exhibit B) that the Contractor (1) does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the Contract and (2) is enrolled in a 
federal work authorization program and provide documentary proof thereof.  The affidavit shall contain the notarized signature of the registered agent, legal 
representative or corporate officer of the business entity including but not limited to the human resources director or their equivalent. 

Proof of Lawful Presence.  Section 208.009 RSMo., requires that all applicants at the time of application for any contract provided by a local government provide 
“affirmative proof that the applicant is a citizen or a permanent resident of the United States or is lawfully present in the United States.”  Contractor’s affirmative 
proof must be established through (i) a Missouri driver's license, (ii) any “documentary evidence recognized by the department of revenue when processing an 
application for a driver's license,” or (iii) “any document issued by the federal government that confirms an alien's lawful presence in the United States.”  
§208.009.3. 

Subcontracts.  The Contractor shall not subcontract any of the Services to be performed by it hereunder without the express written consent of the City.  In 
addition, this Contract shall not be assigned by the Contractor. 

Attorney Fees’ and Costs.  The Contractor shall reimburse to the City any costs and attorneys’ fees that the City may reasonably incur in pursuit of any remedies 
at law or equity or enforcement of any rights established in this Contract, which may result from the Contractor’s breach of the Contract, the Contractor’s failure 
to perform any obligation or requirement contained herein, or the City’s enforcement of this Contract. 

Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor agrees to defend with counsel selected by the City, and indemnify and hold harmless the 
City, its officers, engineers, representatives, agents, and employees from and against any and all liabilities, damages, losses, claims, or suits, including costs 
and attorneys' fees, for or on account of any kind of injury to person, bodily or otherwise, or death, or damage to or destruction of property, or any other 
circumstances, sustained by the City or others,  arising from  negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the Contractor, or claims relating thereto, and including but 
not limited to the City's reliance on or use of the services or products provided by the Contractor under the terms of this Contract. The Contractor shall not be 
liable for any loss or damage attributable solely to the negligence of the City.  Nothing in this Contract shall require the City to indemnify Contractor. To the extent 
required by law to enforce this provision, Contractor agrees that this indemnification requires Contractor to obtain insurance in amounts specified herein and that 
Contractor has had the opportunity to recover the costs of such insurance in the Compensation set forth in this Contract. 

Insurance.  The Contractor shall obtain and maintain during the term of the Services and this Contract comprehensive general liability insurance, comprehensive 
automobile insurance, and employers liability insurance coverages of at least $2,000,000 aggregate and $450,000 per occurrence. Insurance policies providing 
required coverages shall be with companies licensed to do business in the State of Missouri and rated no less than AA by Best or equivalent.  All costs of 
obtaining and maintaining insurance coverages are included in the Contract Sum and no additional payment will be made therefor by the City. 

In addition, the Contractor and all subcontractors shall provide Worker’s Compensation Insurance in at least statutory amounts for all workers employed for the 
Services. Before commencing any Services, the Contractor shall provide to the City certificates of insurance evidencing the issuance and maintenance in force 
of the coverages required by this paragraph and bearing an endorsement precluding cancellation of or change in coverage without at least thirty (30) days written 
notice to the City.  Any self-insurance or deductible above $50,000.00 is not permitted. The City may waive any insurance coverages or amounts required to be 
carried by the Contractor under this paragraph when the City deems such waiver to be in the interest of the public health, safety, and general welfare. 

NOTHING HEREIN SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS A WAIVER OF THE CITY’S SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY UNDER SECTION 537.610.1 R.S.MO. OR 
OTHERWISE. The purpose of the insurance required under this paragraph is to confirm that the Contractor has adequate insurance to cover the Contractor for 
tort claims that may arise out of the Services. It is not for the purchase of insurance for the City EXCEPT FOR AND ONLY TO THE LIMITED EXTENT OF any 
claims against the City arising out of the Contractor’s Services and based upon one of the two statutory exceptions to sovereign immunity as expressly set forth 
in Section 537.600.1(1) and (2).  To that limited extent, the City shall be named as an additional insured the policy bearing an endorsement that: “The Insurer 
shall not be liable to make any payment for Loss in connection with any Claim made against the City of Moberly as an additional Insured that is barred by 
sovereign immunity, and nothing contained in this Policy shall constitute a waiver of the City’s sovereign immunity.” 

Nondisclosure.  The Contractor agrees that it will not divulge to third parties without the written consent of the City any information obtained from or through the 
City in connection with the performance of this Contract. Nothing herein shall preclude disclosure of information by the City. 

Changes.  No change in this Contract shall be made except in writing executed by all parties prior to the change in Services or terms being performed.  The 
Contractor shall make any and all changes in the Services without invalidating this Contract when specifically ordered to do so in writing by the City.  Contractor, 
prior to the commencement of such changed or revised Services, shall submit promptly to the City, a written cost or credit proposal for such revised Services.  If 
the City and Contractor shall not be able to agree as to the amount, either in consideration of time or money to be allowed or deducted, it shall nevertheless be 
the duty of Contractor, upon written notice from the City, to immediately proceed with such alteration or change, and Contractor shall be compensated the 
reasonable value of such Services.  No work or change shall be undertaken or compensated for without prior written authorization from the City. 

Termination.  The City shall have the right to terminate this Contract at any time for any reason by giving the Contractor written notice to such effect.  The City 
shall pay to the Contractor in full satisfaction and discharge of all amounts owing to the Contractor under this Contract an amount equal to the cost of all Services 
performed by the Contractor up to such termination date, less all amounts previously paid to the Contractor on account of the Contract Price.  The Contractor 

479

WS #16.



8 

shall submit to the City its statement for the aforesaid amount, in such reasonable detail as the City shall request, within thirty (30) days after such date of 
termination.  The City shall not be liable to the Contractor for any damages on account of such termination for loss of anticipated future profits with respect to the 
remainder of the Services. 

Multi-year contracts; Non-appropriation.  Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the City is obligated only to make the payments set forth in this 
Contract as may lawfully be made from funds budgeted and appropriated for that purpose during the City's then current fiscal year at the discretion of the City.  
If no funds are appropriated or otherwise made legally available to make the required payments for this Contract during the next occurring fiscal year (an “Event 
of Nonappropriation”), this Contract will terminate at the end of the then current fiscal year as if terminated expressly.  The failure or inability of the City to 
appropriate funds for this Contract in any subsequent fiscal year shall not be deemed a breach of this Contract by any party.  If applicable, this Contract may be 
annually renewed at each fiscal year by inclusion of specific appropriation for this Contract, from year to year not to exceed the maximum renewal period or term 
as set forth in the Contract. 

Accounting.  During the period of this Contract, the Contractor shall maintain books and accounts of its expenses and charges in connection with this Contract 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices.  The City shall, at reasonable times, have access to these books and accounts to the 
extent required to verify all invoices submitted hereunder by the Contractor. 

Other Contractors.  The City reserves the right to employ other Contractors in connection with the Services. 

Request for Proposals.  If the City issued a request for proposals in connection with the Services, such request for proposals and the proposal of the Contractor 
in response thereto are incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this Contract.  In case of any conflicts between the request for proposals and the 
executed Contractor/Services Contract or proposal of the Contractor, the requirements of the City’s Request for Proposal and this executed 
Contractor/Professional Services Contract shall control and supersede unless a change thereto is specifically stated in this Contract. 

Project Records and Work Product.  The Contractor shall provide the City with copies of all documents pertinent to the Services which shall include, without 
limitation, reports, correspondence, meeting minutes, and originals of all deliverables. The City shall own all right, title, and interest, including without limitations, 
all copyrights and intellectual property rights, to all documents and Work Product of the Contractor created in performance of or relating to this Contract.  
Contractor agrees to take all steps reasonably requested by the City to evidence, maintain, and defend the City's ownership rights in the Work Product. 

Site Operations.  Where appropriate, the City will arrange for right of entry to any property at the request of the Contractor for the purpose of performing studies, 
tests, and evaluations in connection with the Services. 

Personnel.  The Services shall be performed exclusively by the personnel of the Contractor identified in the Contractor's proposal and no other personnel of the 
Contractor shall perform any of the Services without the express written approval of the City. 

Compliance with State Immigration Statutes.  As a condition for the award of this Contract, the Contractor shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with the 
Services.  The Contractor shall also sign an affidavit affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the 
Services.  Such affidavits shall be in substantially the form provided in Exhibit B.  The Contractor shall not be required to provide these affidavits to the City if 
such affidavits have been previously provided to the City within the past year.  All words in this paragraph shall have the definitions as provided in Section 285.525 
R.S.Mo.  

Pursuant to Section 208.009 R.S.Mo., the Contractor shall provide at the earlier of submission of any bid or execution of any agreement affirmative proof that the 
Applicant for the Contractor is a citizen or a permanent resident of the United States or is lawfully present in the United States.  The Applicant for the Contractor 
(or “Applicant”) shall be the person authorized to prepare, submit, and sign contract documents on behalf of the Contractor and shall be eighteen years of age 
or older.  Such affirmative proof shall include documentary evidence recognized by the Missouri Department of Revenue when processing an application for a 
driver's license, a Missouri driver’s license, as well as any document issued by the federal government that confirms an alien’s lawful presence in the United 
States. 

An Applicant who cannot provide the proof required under Section 208.009 R.S.Mo. at the time of submission of any bid may alternatively sign an affidavit under 
oath, attesting to either United States citizenship or classification by the United States as an alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence.  The affidavit shall 
be on or consistent with forms prepared by the City, which shall be available from the City Clerk if needed.  Any Applicant who signed an above-described affidavit 
must provide proof of lawful presence within the time provided in Subsection 208.009.5 R.S.Mo. for temporary public benefits and failure to provide such proof 
within such time may result in the City rescinding and voiding any Contract awarded to the Contractor. 

Representations.  Contractor agrees that it has not relied on any representations or warranties of the City, oral or written, other than expressly identified in this 
Contract.  The parties agree the Contract represents the entire agreement between the parties. 

Governing/Choice of Law.  This Contract shall be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Missouri, 
without regard to its principles of conflict of laws. 

Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and 
the same agreement. 

  

480

WS #16.



9 

EXHIBIT A 

 

481

WS #16.



10 

 

482

WS #16.



11 

 

483

WS #16.



12 

 

484

WS #16.



13 

 

485

WS #16.



14 

 
 

  

486

WS #16.



15 

Exhibit B 
AFFIDAVIT OF PARTICIPATION IN 

FEDERAL WORK AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM 
(CONTRACTS OVER $5,000) 

 
Comes now _______________as _______________first being duly sworn, on my oath, 
          (name)           (office held) 
affirm _______________  (“Company”) is enrolled and will continue to participate in a federal work 
    (company name) 
authorization program in respect to employees that will work in connection with the contracted  
 
services related to the Sidewalk Repair Project in the City of Moberly and any incidental 
 
items associated with this work for the duration of the contract, if awarded, in accordance with  
 
Section 285.530.2, Revised Statutes of Missouri. I also affirm that the Company does not and will not  
 
knowingly employ a person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services  
 
for the duration of the contract, if awarded.  Attached to this affidavit is documentation of the  
 
Company’s participation in a federal work authorization program. 

 
(ATTACH DOCUMENTATION SHOWING THAT COMPANY PARTICIPATES IN FEDERAL WORK 
AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM.  ALSO ATTACH DRIVER’S LICENSE OR OTHER PROOF OF LAWFUL 
PRESENCE, AS PROVIDED IN THE GENERAL CONDITIONS – 208.009 RSMo.) 

 
In Affirmation thereof, the facts stated above are true and correct (The undersigned understands 

that false statements made in this filing are subject to the penalties provided under § 575.040 RSMo). 
 
 
___________________________    ___________________________ 
Signature (person with authority)     Printed Name 
 
 
___________________________    ___________________________ 
Title        Date 
 
 
State of Missouri   ) 

) ss. 
County of ______________ ) 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of ______________, 2023. 

 
 

______________________________ 
My commission expires:     Notary Public 

 

 

487

WS #16.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Works 

Date: February 6, 2023 
 

  
Agenda Item: Discussion regarding Mid-Am wanting semi-truck stacking in the right-of-way of 

Omar Bradley Dr. 

  

Summary: Rich Knabel has requested a Semi-Stacking area in the R/W adjacent to the Mid-Am 

facility. This is typically not allowed as the r/w are a corridor for utilities.  As this is 

an industrial park, and all of the lots have significantly larger frontages, there is not a 

ditch or drainage impact in the location requested, however there are various utilities 

in the r/w, including a City water line/fixtures. 

Staff has reviewed it and have made the following requests for the area, in the event 

that council would approve the request. 

1. Permittee shall provide plans and specifications for the proposed stacking 

area, including, but not limited to dimensions, preparation of site, materials, 

specification and include how it would be tied into the existing street. 

2. Permittee shall contact utilities to bring valve boxes and hydrant to the new 

elevation/location. 

3. Repair/expenses for damages experienced by utility assets within this paved 

section of R/W are the responsibility of the permittee* 

4. Future repairs/reconstruction & maintenance of the stacking area will be the 

responsibility of the permittee. 

5. In the event that it is no longer needed, used or maintained, it shall be 

removed, and curb restored at the permittees expense. 

*The various utility companies may have to cut the concrete for future repairs, 

utilities wanted to clarify that they various utility companies will complete their 

repairs and subsurface repairs, however the repair of the concrete will be the 

responsibility of the permittee. 

  

Recommended Action: Bring forward to the regular February 21, 2023 City Council meeting for final 

approval. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

  

  

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence        Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report    x   Other       Passed Failed 

 

488

WS #17.



REVOCABLE LICENSE FOR USE OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

 THIS REVOCABLE LICENSE FOR USE OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY is granted this ___ day of 

_____________, 2023, (the “Effective Date”) by the City of Moberly, Missouri, a statutory third class 

city, (“City”), whose address is 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270, to 

_____________________________________, (“Licensee”) whose address is ___________________. 

 

 WHEREAS, City owns the right-of-way which is commonly known and/or described as the right-

of-way at 1615 Omar Bradley Industrial Dr. (the “Licensed Premises”); 

 WHEREAS, Licensee desires to construct a paved bump out in the Licensed Premises (the 

“Improvement”).  The Improvement and its exact location within the Licensed Premises are depicted on 

Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Moberly City Code and the laws of the State of Missouri, the City is 

vested with power and authority over the use of municipally owned streets, rights-of-way and other 

public places; 

 WHEREAS, the City is willing to grant a revocable license to Licensee to allow Licensee to install 

and use the Improvement as depicted in Exhibit A with certain conditions and stipulations; and 

 WHEREAS, the intent of this License is to authorize on a temporary and revocable basis, the 

installation and operation of the Improvement within the Licensed Premises without cost or liability to 

the City. 

LICENSE 

1. Grant of Revocable License. 

 The City hereby grants to Licensee a non-exclusive, temporary and revocable authorization (the 

“License”) to install and use the Improvement in the Licensed Premises provided, however, that as 

conditions to the License, the Licensee shall install and maintain the Improvement only within the 

boundaries of the area depicted on Exhibit A. 

 The rights granted under this License are expressly subject to the rights of the public and any 

rights granted previously by the City to any person.  The City may enforce this License either by seeking 

damages or by specific performance or through any other legal or equitable remedy available to the 

City. 

2. Design, Installation, Operation and Maintenance. 

 a. The Licensee shall pay all costs of design, installation, operation and maintenance of the 

Improvement.  Upon revocation of the License as provided herein and upon City’s demand, Licensee 

shall pay all costs and perform all removal of the Improvement from the Licensed Premises and, as 

applicable, shall pay all costs of and be responsible for returning the land surface to substantially the 

same condition that it is on the Effective Date. 

489

WS #17.



 b. The License shall not operate or be construed to abridge, limit or restrict the City in 

exercising its right to make full use of the Licensed Premises encroached upon as public thoroughfares, 

nor shall it operate to restrict utility companies or any other Licensees in exercising their rights to 

construct, remove, operate and maintain their installations within the Licensed Premises. 

 c. Licensee hereby assumes full responsibility for any and all damages incurred to public 

facilities, utilities or other private improvements located within the Licensed Premises due to activities 

authorized by this License. 

 d. Licensee shall cooperate with City officials in the installation, removal, replacement or 

alteration of the Improvement and shall maintain the Improvement in a good and attractive condition 

during the term of the License. 

3. Repair of Damages. 

 Licensee shall promptly repair all damage to the Licensed Premises caused by its activities.  If 

such damage poses a threat to health, safety or welfare of the public or individuals, the City may cause 

repairs to be made at Licensees’ expense unless the Licensee makes such repairs upon the City’s 

request. 

4. Term. 

 This License shall commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate on such date as the City 

may revoke this License, or upon Licensee’s request so long as Licensee removes all Improvements and 

returns the Licensed Premises to substantially similar condition as that prior to installation of the 

Improvement. 

5. Revocation. 

 a. In addition to, and including, the termination triggers mentioned in Section 4, the City 

may also revoke this License upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to Licensee and upon the occurrence 

of any one or more of the following events: 

 (i) Breach of this License by Licensee, by failing to abide by any of the conditions upon 

which this License was granted. 

 (ii) The failure by Licensee to maintain the Improvement in a good and attractive condition, 

after Licensee has failed to cure such breach for a period of thirty (30) days from receipt of written 

notice of such breach by Licensee from City. 

 (iii) A unilateral decision by the City Council or the City Manager that the Licensed Premises 

is desired or beneficial for any purpose. 

 b. Upon revocation, Licensee shall, at Licensee’s sole cost, remove the Improvement and 

restore the Licensed Premises to substantially the same condition that it is in on the Effective Date. 

 c. Upon revocation, this License shall terminate, be deemed null and void and of no 

further force and effect. 

 d. In the event that Licensee fails to remove the Improvement by the 30th day after the City 

delivers notice of revocation, the City may remove or cause the Improvement to be removed.  The City 

490

WS #17.



may collect the cost of removal from the Licensee and Licensee agrees to pay such cost promptly upon 

written demand therefore. 

6. Notice. 

 Every notice required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have 

been given when personally delivered by hand, or upon delivery when sent by overnight mail, to the 

party’s address set forth in the introductory paragraph of this License or at such other address as a party 

may designate, in writing, to the other party. 

7. Indemnification. 

 The Licensee expressly agrees to, and shall, indemnify and hold harmless the City and any of its 

officers, agents, elected officials or employees from any and all claims, demands, damages, liability, or 

court awards, including costs and attorneys’ fees that are incurred by the City or that may be awarded 

as a result of any loss, injury or damage sustained or claimed to been sustained by anyone, including but 

not limited to, any person, in connection with or arising out of any act, omission, error, mistake, 

negligence, or other fault of the Licensee or any of such Licensee’s agents, partners, Licensees, sub-

licensees, or lessees. 

8. Conditions on Use. 

 City agrees to be responsible for bringing valve boxes and hydrant to the new elevation of the 

Improvement.  Following any water line/hydrant repair event, the City will be responsible for 

replacement of the subsurface but not responsible for concrete restoration which shall be the sole 

responsibility of the Licensee.  Repair expenses for damages experienced by city utilities within this 

newly paved area of the Licensed Premises are the responsibility of the Licensee.  Repair and 

maintenance of the off-street expansion will be the responsibility of the adjacent property owner.   

9. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

 a. Waiver of Breach.  A waiver by any party to this License of the breach of any term or 

provision of this License shall not operate or be constructed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by 

either party. 

 b. Assignment.  This License may not be assigned by the Licensee to any other party unless 

agreed to in writing by the City. 

 c. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this License is intended to or shall 

create a contractual relationship with, cause of action in favor of, or claim for relief for, any third party.   

 d. Governing Law, Venue, and Enforcement.  This License shall be governed by and 

interpreted according to the law of the State of Missouri.  Venue for any action arising under this License 

shall be in the Circuit Court of Randolph County, Missouri. 

 e. No Waiver of Immunity.   Nothing in this License is intended to waive any protection 

afforded to the City by the statutes or common law of the State of Missouri for sovereign immunity. 

 

 

491

WS #17.



       CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 

       _______________________________ 
       By: Brain Crane, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 
 
 
       LICENSEE 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       By: 
 

492

WS #17.



493

WS #17.


	Top
	WS #1.	An Ordinance Authorizing The City Of Moberly, Missouri To Issue Its Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (Equipmentshare.Com Inc. Manufacturing, Refurbishment And Distribution Facility Project) Series 2023, In A Principal Amount Not To Exceed $55,000,000, For The Purpose Of Providing Funds To Pay The Costs Of Acquiring,  Improving And Equipping A Facility For An Industrial Development Project In The City; Approving A Plan For An Industrial Development Project And Costs-Benefits Analysis For The Project; And Authorizing The City To Enter Into Certain Agreements And Take Certain Other Actions In Connection With The Project And The Issuance Of The Bonds
	Equipment share
	BOND ORDINANCE (with Clerk's Certificate)
	PROJECT ROBOT INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
	LEASE AGREEMENT
	TRUST INDENTURE
	SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED (Company to City)
	Engagement Letter

	WS #2.	A Discussion Regarding The Purchase Of A JetVac For Public Utilities From Coe Equipment Inc.
	2-6-23 Vactor Impact JetVac summary work
	COE Equip Inc. Vactor Impact Submittal

	WS #3.	A Discussion Regarding Moberly State Revolving Fund Applications Submittal To DNR And Authorizing The City Manager To Submit The Applications.
	SRF Applications to DNR Summary work
	Drinking Water SRF Logan St Dist Improvements
	NW Regional LS SRF Application 2023v
	Rollins CSA SRF Application

	WS #4.	A Discussion Regarding Moberly State Regional Incentive Grant Application Submittal To DNR And Authorizing The City Manager To Submit The Application.
	RIG Application to DNR Summary work
	Pages from clean-water-state-revolving-fund-regionalization-incentive-grant-application-mo-780-2881

	WS #5.	A Request From Lori Turk To Hold The Annual Mother’s Day 5k To Raise Money For Families Battling Cancer on May 14, 2023.
	Mother's day 5K 2023
	20230125105612223

	WS #6.	A Resolution Approving Equipment Usage Agreement Between Burrell Health And The Police Department.
	Burrell Health  Equipment usage
	VMCI Equipment Usage Agreement

	WS #7.	Review Of The 2023 Fireworks Agreement With J&M Display.
	2023FireworksSummaryWS
	2023 Moberly Agreement.

	WS #8.	An Ordinance Adopting Article III To Chapter 20 Of The City Code Providing For No Smoking Of Marijuana In A Public Place Or Meeting.
	Marijuana Agenda Memo
	No Marijuan Smoking in a Public Place Ordinance (v2)

	WS #9.	A Resolution Accepting A Quit Claim Deed From Marian E. Cumberlander For Real Estate Located At 1204 Quinn Street.
	1204 Quinn Res Summary Sheet
	Violation Letter
	O&E Report 1204 Quinn
	Quit Claim Deed 1204 Quinn
	Cumberlander Deed Resolution

	WS #10.	Appointment To The Historic Preservation Commission.
	Historic Preservation appt
	lee seekins07242720230201102851
	jw ballinger07242620230201102834
	sara fleming07242820230201102907
	Melissa Weggs
	april moran07242420230201102808
	ATTACHMENT TO HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD
	Completed App for Historic Preservation Board - Jansen20220630_16143685

	WS #11.	An Application For Re-Zoning Submitted By Devin Snodgrass On Behalf Of Kal Cleavinger For The Property Located At 201 W Hinton Ave And The Lots To The North. They Are Requesting These Be Zoned N-1/PD (Nonurban/Planned Development District). These Locations Are Currently Zoned R-3 (Multi-Family Dwelling District).
	Re-zoning W Hinton Summary Sheet
	201 W Hinton Ave Project ~ City of Moberly Rezoning Application PDF
	report for January 30, 23
	201 W Hinton Ave Proj - Prelim Development Plan - 2022-12-29
	Re-zoning Permit

	WS #12.	An Application For A Planned Development Submitted By Devin Snodgrass On Behalf Of Kal Cleavinger For The Property Located At 201 W Hinton Ave And The Lots To The North.
	PD W Hinton Summary Sheet
	201 W Hinton Ave Project ~ City of Moberly Preliminary Final Plan Application PDF
	report for January 30, 23
	201 W Hinton Ave Proj - Prelim Development Plan Map
	Planned Development Permit

	WS #13.	A Discussion Regarding A Tannehill Water Line Project Change Order And Increase In Contract Costs.
	2-6-23 Work Session Summary Sheet Jacobs Engineering Change Order Tannehill WL
	Tannehill Change Order 1 signed

	WS #14.	On-Call Professional Services Agreement With Bartlett And West Expires March 3, 2023 And They Want To Extent The Agreement Another Three (3) Years.
	B&W On-Call Serv Summary Sheet
	On-Call Letter
	City of Moberly Exp. 3-3-23 - 2020-0161_

	WS #15.	Discussion Of Task Order #19 With Bartlett & West Professional Services For Shelter/Restroom Building At Kiwanis Park.
	KiwanisEngineeringSummaryWS
	City of Moberly TO 19 - Kiwanis Park Shelter and Parking Lot. v2.final

	WS #16.	A Resolution Of The Council Of The City Of Moberly Approving A Sidewalk Repair Services Agreement; And Providing Further Authority
	Sidewalk Repair Srvc Agrmnt Summary Sheet
	RESOLUTION OF MOBERLY CITY COUNCIL RE SIDEWALK REPAIR AGREEMENT (002)

	WS #17.	Discussion Regarding Mid-Am Wanting Semi-Truck Stacking In The Right-Of-Way Of Omar Bradley Dr.
	Mid-Am Summary Sheet
	License for Use of ROW
	Map of Area

	Bottom

